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$26,900,000
DORMITORY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
INTERAGENCY COUNCIL POOLED LOAN PROGRAM
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2019A
Consisting of:
$25,885,000 Subseries 2019A-1

Consisting of:

$8,245,000 Serial Bonds

Maturing Principal
July 1 Amount Coupon Yield CUSIPW
2020 $ 275,000 4.00% 1.75% 64990G KN1
2021 255,000 4.00 1.80 64990G KP6
2022 835,000 4.00 2.00 64990G KQ4
2023 890,000 4.00 2.10 64990G KR2
2024 920,000 4.00 2.20 64990G KSO
2025 950,000 4.00 2.25 64990G KT8
2026 965,000 4.00 2.35 64990G KU5
2027 1,035,000 2.45 245+ 64990G KV3
2028 1,055,000 2.55 2.55F 64990G KW1
2029 1,065,000 2.60 2.60+ 64990G KX9

$5,550,000 3.125% Term Bond due July 1, 2034 to Yield 3.25%" CUSIP® 64990G KY7
$6,160,000 3.375% Term Bond due July 1, 2039 to Yield 3.549%" CUSIP® 64990G KZ4
$5,930,000 3.500% Term Bond due July 1, 2044 to Yield 3.600% * CUSIP® 64990G LA8

$1,015,000
Subseries 2019A-2
(Federally Taxable)

$1,015,000 2.84% Term Bond due July 1, 2021 to Yield 2.84% CUSIP® 64990G LB6

(1) Copyright, American Bankers Association (ABA). CUSIP data herein are provided by CUSIP Global Services, operated on behalf of the ABA by S&P Capital 1Q,
a division of McGraw-Hill Financial, Inc. CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an independent company not affiliated with DASNY and are included solely for
the convenience of the holder of the Series 2019 Bonds. Neither DASNY nor the Underwriter is responsible for the selection or uses of the CUSIP numbers, and no
representation is made as to their correctness on the Series 2019 Bonds or as indicated above. CUSIP numbers are subject to being changed after the issuance of
the Series 2019 Bonds as a result of various subsequent actions including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part of the Series 2019 Bonds or as a result of
the procurement of secondary market portfolio insurance or other similar enhancement by investors that is applicable to all or a portion of the Series 2019 Bonds.

T Yield calculated to first optional redemption date of July 1, 2026.



No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by DASNY, the Series 2019
Participants or the Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations with respect to the
Series 2019 Bonds, other than the information and representations contained in this Official Statement. If
given or made, any such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized
by DASNY, the Series 2019 Participants or the Underwriter.

This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy,
nor shall there be any sale of the Series 2019 Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is
unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

Certain information in this Official Statement has been supplied by the Series 2019 Participants,
the InterAgency Council of Developmental Disabilities Agencies, Inc. (the “Program Facilitator”) and
other sources that DASNY believes are reliable. DASNY does not guarantee the accuracy or
completeness of such information and such information is not to be construed as a representation of
DASNY. DASNY does not directly or indirectly guarantee, endorse or warrant (1) the creditworthiness
or credit standing of the Series 2019 Participants or the Program Facilitator, (2) the sufficiency of the
security for the Series 2019 Bonds, or (3) the value or the investment quality of the Series 2019 Bonds.

Each Series 2019 Participant has reviewed the portions of this Official Statement describing such
Series 2019 Participant, its Series 2019 Facilities, its Mortgages, if any, its Collateral Assignment of
Leases, if any, its Co-op Security Documents, if any, including “PART 1 — INTRODUCTION” (but
solely with respect to the headings “The Series 2019 Participants,” “Additional Security — Pledged
Revenues and Standby Intercepts,” “The Mortgages,” “Collateral Assignment of Leases” and “Co-op
Security Documents”), “PART 2 — SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019
BONDS - Security for the Series 2019 Bonds - Pledged Revenues — Intercept Funds,” “ — Security for the
Series 2019 Bonds — Mortgages,” “ — Security for the Series 2019 Bonds — Collateral Assignment of
Leases” and “ — Security for the Series 2019 Bonds — Co-op Security Documents,” “PART 3 — THE
SERIES 2019 BONDS - Principal, Sinking Fund Installment and Interest Requirements for the Series
2019 Bonds,” “PART 4 - THE SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANTS,” “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES
2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE,” “PART 6 - ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS,”
“PART 11 - BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS,” “PART 15 — CONTINUING DISCLOSURE,” “PART 18 —
INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS,” and the information relating to it contained in
Appendices A, B and C. It is a condition to the sale and delivery of the Series 2019 Bonds that each
Series 2019 Participant certify that, as of each such date, such parts and such information do not contain
any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit to state any material fact necessary in order to
make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which the statements were made,
not misleading. The Series 2019 Participants make no representations as to the accuracy or completeness
of any other information included in this Official Statement.

The Program Facilitator has reviewed the portions of this Official Statement describing itself and
the information contained in “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE” and
“PART 11 - BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS.” It is a condition to the sale and delivery of the Series 2019
Bonds that the Program Facilitator certify that, as of each such date, such parts and such information do
not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit to state any material fact necessary in
order to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which the statements were
made, not misleading. The Program Facilitator makes no representations as to the accuracy or
completeness of any other information included in this Official Statement.

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute
“forward-looking statements.” Such statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used such as

“plan,” “expect,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “budget,” “intend,” “projection” or other similar words. Such



statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those presently anticipated or projected. SEE ALSO “PART 11 - BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS.”

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement.
The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement pursuant to its responsibility to
investors under the federal securities law, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or
completeness of such information.

References in this Official Statement to the Act, the Resolution, the Series 2019 Resolution and
the Series 2019 Loan Agreements do not purport to be complete. Refer to the Act, the Resolution, the
Series 2019 Resolution and the Series 2019 Loan Agreements for full and complete details of their
provisions. Copies of the Resolution, the Series 2019 Resolution and the Series 2019 Loan Agreements
are on file with DASNY and the Trustee.

The order and placement of material in this Official Statement, including its appendices, are not
to be deemed a determination of relevance, materiality or importance, and all material in this Official
Statement, including its appendices, must be considered in its entirety.

Under no circumstances shall the delivery of this Official Statement or any sale made after its
delivery create any implication that the affairs of DASNY or the Series 2019 Participants have remained
unchanged after the date of this Official Statement.

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THE SERIES 2019 BONDS, THE
UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR
MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE SERIES 2019 BONDS AT LEVELS ABOVE THOSE
THAT MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF
COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.
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DASNY

DORMITORY AUTHORITY - STATE OF NEW YORK 515 BROADWAY, ALBANY, N.Y. 12207
GERRARD P. BUSHELL — PRESIDENT ALFONSO L. CARNEY, JR. - CHAIR

OFFICIAL STATEMENT
relating to
$26,900,000
INTERAGENCY COUNCIL POOLED LOAN PROGRAM
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2019A
Consisting of:

$25,885,000 Subseries 2019A-1 $1,015,000 Subseries 2019A-2 (Federally Taxable)

PART 1 - INTRODUCTION
Purpose of Official Statement

The purpose of this Official Statement, which includes the cover page, the inside cover page and
the appendices hereto, is to provide information about the Dormitory Authority of the State of New York
(“DASNY?”), Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. (“DDI”), Eden II School for Autistic Children,
Inc. (“Eden II’), Mercy Home for Children, Inc. (“Mercy Home”), Services for the Underserved, Inc. and
SUS-Developmental Disabilities Services, Inc. (which shall be considered a single Series 2019
Participant) (collectively “SUS”), United Cerebral Palsy of New York City, Inc. (“UCP”) d/b/a ADAPT
Community Network and Young Adult Institute, Inc. (“YAI”)(collectively, the “Series 2019
Participants™) in connection with the offering by DASNY of its $26,900,000 aggregate principal amount
of InterAgency Council Pooled Loan Program Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A, consisting of $25,885,000
Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds and $1,015,000 Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds (Federally Taxable) (collectively,
the “Series 2019 Bonds™).

The following is a brief description of certain information concerning the Series 2019 Bonds,
DASNY and the Series 2019 Participants. A more complete description of such information and
additional information that may affect decisions to invest in the Series 2019 Bonds is contained
throughout this Official Statement, which should be read in its entirety. Certain capitalized terms used in
this Official Statement are defined in Appendix D hereto.

Purpose of the Issue

The Series 2019 Bonds are being issued for the purpose of (i) financing or refinancing a portion
of the cost of the acquisition, construction, renovation and furnishing, as applicable, of certain facilities
(collectively, the “Series 2019 Facilities”) of the Series 2019 Participants for the provision of services to
people with developmental disabilities or other special needs and the acquisition of equipment and other
personal property with respect to such Series 2019 Facilities, (ii) making a deposit to each account of the
Debt Service Reserve Fund securing the Series 2019 Bonds (the “Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve
Fund”) in an amount equal to the aggregate of each Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion of the
Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement (defined herein), and (iii) paying certain costs of
issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds. The respective Loan Agreements entered into with DASNY by the
Series 2019 Participants (the “Series 2019 Loan Agreements”) require, in the aggregate, the payment of
amounts sufficient to provide for the payment of the principal or Redemption Price, if any, of, Sinking
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Fund Installments with respect to, and interest on, the Series 2019 Bonds as the same become due. See
“PART 6 — ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS.” For a description of the Series 2019
Facilities being financed or refinanced with proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds, see “Appendix A -
Description of Series 2019 Participants.”

Authorization of Issuance

The Act authorizes DASNY, among other things, to issue its bonds for the purpose of financing
or refinancing the costs of the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, renovation, development,
improvement, expansion and equipping of certain educational, administrative, day program, residential,
and other attendant and related facilities of the not-for-profit members (each a “Participant™) of the
InterAgency Council of Developmental Disabilities Agencies, Inc., which members include the Series
2019 Participants.

The Resolution authorizes the issuance of multiple series of bonds (each a “Series of Bonds™)
pursuant to separate series resolutions (each a “Series Resolution). Pursuant to the Resolution, each
Series of Bonds issued thereunder, including the Series 2019 Bonds, is to be separately secured by (i) the
funds and accounts established with respect to such Series of Bonds under a Series Resolution, and (ii)
the Revenues pledged to such Series of Bonds and derived from payments made under the loan
agreements entered into by DASNY and the applicable Participants in connection with the issuance of
such Series of Bonds. Neither the funds and accounts established under a Series Resolution nor any loan
agreement entered into or any mortgage or other security granted in connection with the issuance of a
Series of Bonds shall secure any other Series of Bonds.

The Series 2019 Bonds will be issued pursuant to the Act, the Resolution and the Series 2019
Resolution. The term “Resolutions” shall mean the Resolution and the Series 2019 Resolution. See
“PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS.”

DASNY

DASNY is a public benefit corporation of the State of New York (the “State”), created for the
purpose of financing and constructing a variety of public-purpose facilities for certain educational,
healthcare, governmental and not-for-profit institutions. See “PART 7 - DASNY.”

The Program Facilitator

The InterAgency Council of Developmental Disabilities Agencies, Inc. (the “Program
Facilitator”) will act as the facilitator for the InterAgency Council Pooled Loan Program. The Program
Facilitator is a not-for-profit membership organization voluntarily supported by approximately 150 not-
for-profit service provider members (including the Series 2019 Participants) that conduct business
throughout the State, but primarily in The City of New York metropolitan area. See “PART 4 - THE
SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANTS.”

The Series 2019 Participants

Each of the Series 2019 Participants is a not-for-profit corporation organized and existing under
the laws of the State. See “PART 4 - THE SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANTS,” “PART 5 - SOURCES OF
SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE,” “Appendix A - Description of Series 2019 Participants,”
“Appendix B - Audited Financial Statements of Series 2019 Participants,” and “Appendix C - Unaudited
Financial Information of Series 2019 Participants.”



Upon delivery of the Series 2019 Bonds, the Series 2019 Participants will receive loans from
DASNY from the proceeds thereof in the following principal amounts, representing each Series 2019
Participant’s Allocable Portion of each Subseries of the Series 2019 Bonds:

Subseries Subseries

Series 2019 Participant 2019A-1 2019A-2 Total
Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. $6,485,000 $235,000 $6,720,000
Eden II School for Autistic Children, Inc. 1,610,000 65,000 1,675,000
Mercy Home for Children, Inc. 2,955,000 130,000 3,085,000
Services for the Underserved, Inc. and SUS- 3,160,000 125,000 3,285,000
Developmental Disabilities Services, Inc.
United Cerebral Palsy of New York City, Inc. 5,315,000 240,000 5,555,000
Young Adult Institute, Inc. 6,360,000 220,000 6,580,000

No Series 2019 Participant is responsible for the payment obligations of any other Series 2019
Participant. If a Series 2019 Participant fails to pay amounts due under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement
in respect of its Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds, DASNY’s sole remedy will be against the
defaulting Series 2019 Participant and no other Series 2019 Participant.

See “PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS -
Events of Default - Special Provisions Relating to Defaults” and “Appendix F - Summary of Certain
Provisions of the Resolutions.” See also, “PART 3 - THE SERIES 2019 BONDS - Redemption
Provisions - Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption.”

The Series 2019 Bonds

The Series 2019 Bonds are dated their date of delivery and bear interest from such date (payable
July 1, 2019, and on each January 1 and July 1 thereafter) at the rates and will mature at the times set
forth on the inside cover page of this Official Statement. See “PART 3 - THE SERIES 2019 BONDS -
Description of the Series 2019 Bonds.”

Payment of the Series 2019 Bonds

The Series 2019 Bonds are special, limited obligations of DASNY payable from the applicable
Revenues, which consist of the aggregate of certain payments required to be made by the Series 2019
Participants pursuant to their respective Series 2019 Loan Agreements on account of the principal,
Sinking Fund Installments and Redemption Price, if any, of and interest due on their respective Allocable
Portions of the Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds. The Revenues are pledged and assigned to the Trustee.

Pursuant to its Series 2019 Loan Agreement, each Series 2019 Participant will be required to pay,
among other things, its Allocable Portion of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments and Redemption
Price of and interest due on the Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds, in each case corresponding to the
proceeds of each maturity of each Subseries of the Series 2019 Bonds loaned to it by DASNY. The
obligation of each Series 2019 Participant to make payments under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement
constitutes a general obligation of such Series 2019 Participant. The payment obligations of the Series
2019 Participants under their respective Series 2019 Loan Agreements are several, not joint, and are not
cross-collateralized with the obligations of any other Series 2019 Participant. For the purposes of a Series
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2019 Loan Agreement delivered by more than one entity, such payment obligations are joint and several
with respect to the entities comprising such Series 2019 Participant. For a listing of each Series 2019
Participant’s Allocable Portion of the principal and Sinking Fund Installments of and interest on the
Series 2019 Bonds, see “PART 3 — THE SERIES 2019 BONDS — Principal, Sinking Fund Installment
and Interest Requirements for the Series 2019 Bonds.”

Security for the Series 2019 Bonds

The Series 2019 Bonds will be secured by the pledge and assignment to the Trustee of the
Revenues, the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2019 Bonds (until disbursed as provided by the
Resolution) and all funds and accounts authorized by the Resolution and established by the Series 2019
Resolution (with the exception of the Arbitrage Rebate Fund), including the Series 2019 Debt Service
Reserve Fund, which will be funded at its requirement upon issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds with
proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds. See “PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR
THE SERIES 2019 BONDS - Security for the Series 2019 Bonds.”

The Series 2019 Bonds are separately secured from all other Series of Bonds. The Holders of any
Series of Bonds other than the Series 2019 Bonds are not entitled to the rights, benefits and security
conferred upon the Holders of the Series 2019 Bonds.

The Series 2019 Bonds will not be a debt of the State nor will the State be liable thereon.
DASNY has no taxing power.

Additional Security - Pledged Revenues and Standby Intercepts

The Series 2019 Bonds will also be secured by the pledge and assignment to the Trustee of
DASNY’s security interest in the applicable Pledged Revenues granted by each of the Series 2019
Participants to DASNY pursuant to its Series 2019 Loan Agreement, subject to Prior Pledges. Certain of
the Series 2019 Participants have previously pledged their Public Funds (a portion of which consists of
the Pledged Revenues) to DASNY, an industrial development agency or a bank or other financial
institution as security for the respective obligations of such Series 2019 Participants in connection with
bonds previously issued by DASNY or such industrial development agency or lines of credit or other
borrowings from financial institutions. In addition, certain Series 2019 Participants may, with the prior
written consent of DASNY (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed), hereafter secure a
line of credit with a Prior Pledge pursuant to its Series 2019 Loan Agreement. The pledge of the Pledged
Revenues granted by each such Series 2019 Participant is subject and subordinate to such Prior Pledges in
all respects. See “PART 4 - THE SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANTS” and “Appendix A - Description of
Series 2019 Participants” for a description of each of the Series 2019 Participants, including their
respective Prior Pledges of their respective Pledged Revenues.

Pledged Revenues are all of a Series 2019 Participant’s Public Funds attributable to its Series
2019 Facilities. In the case of each Series 2019 Participant, Public Funds includes amounts payable by
the State Office for People with Developmental Disabilities (“OPWDD”) or another State agency in
connection with all or a portion of the Series 2019 Participant’s Series 2019 Facility or Facilities.

With the exception of renovation costs for certain of UCP’s Series 2019 Facilities, as further
described in Appendix A, OPWDD has pre-approved pursuant to separate Prior Property Approvals (each
a “PPA”) each Series 2019 Facility for reimbursement of amounts calculated to be approximately
sufficient to pay the principal and interest costs incurred by the related Series 2019 Participant in
connection with its financing or refinancing of the acquisition, renovation and furnishing, as applicable,
of such Series 2019 Facility, in each case subject to annual appropriation by the State Legislature and so
long as such Series 2019 Participant operates the applicable Series 2019 Facility in accordance with
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certain defined standards. Except as set forth in the immediately preceding sentence, assuming annual
appropriation of sufficient funds and continued compliance with operational standards by the Series 2019
Participant, it is expected that the amounts received by such Series 2019 Participant pursuant to its
respective PPAs will be approximately sufficient to pay the annual principal of and interest on its
respective Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds for such Series 2019 Facility; any difference
between the two amounts is expected to be covered by the Pledged Revenues of such Series 2019
Participant expected to be received for operating and administrative expenses associated with such Series
2019 Facility. With respect to renovation costs for certain of UCP’s Series 2019 Facilities that are not
supported by a PPA, UCP expects to pay such non-PPA supported portion of its principal and interest on
its Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds from Public Funds paid by OPWDD and from its general
operating revenues. See “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE - New
York State Office for People with Developmental Disabilities.” For a description of the Series 2019
Facilities or portions thereof not supported by a PPA, see the description of UCP in Appendix A.

The Pledged Revenues will be paid directly to each Series 2019 Participant and may be disposed
of by such Series 2019 Participant for any of its corporate purposes. However, pursuant to the Act, the
respective Series 2019 Loan Agreements, and separate agreements entered into by DASNY, each Series
2019 Participant and OPWDD (each an “Intercept Agreement”), upon the occurrence of certain events
described herein, but subject to any Prior Pledges of the Pledged Revenues, DASNY may direct OPWDD
to remit the Pledged Revenues payable by OPWDD to a Series 2019 Participant pursuant to its PPA or
PPAs (the “Intercept Funds”), directly to DASNY or the Trustee for application to the payment of such
Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion of the Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds.

Pledged Revenues of one Series 2019 Participant will not be available to satisfy the obligations of
any other Series 2019 Participant. For the purposes of a Series 2019 Loan Agreement delivered by more
than one entity, the Pledged Revenues of such Series 2019 Participant shall refer to the Pledged Revenues
with respect to any and all entities comprising such Series 2019 Participant. See “PART 2 - SOURCE OF
PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS - Security for the Series 2019 Bonds -
Pledged Revenues - Intercept Funds” and - Standby Intercepts.” See also, “Appendix A - Description of
Series 2019 Participants,” “Appendix E-1 - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Series 2019 Loan
Agreements (other than the Series 2019 Loan Agreement of UCP)” and “Appendix E-2 - Summary of
Certain Provisions of the Series 2019 Loan Agreement of UCP.”

The ability of each Series 2019 Participant to satisfy its payment obligations under its Loan
Agreement with respect to its Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds and DASNY’s ability to realize
upon its security interests in the Pledged Revenues of each Series 2019 Participant are largely dependent
upon the continued operation by each Series 2019 Participant of its Series 2019 Facilities. Such operation
may be adversely affected by a number of risk factors, including, but not limited to, (i) the financial
condition of the Series 2019 Participant and its ability to continue to generate sufficient revenues to
support all of its facilities, including its Series 2019 Facilities, (ii) the continued compliance by the Series
2019 Participant with State and local operational standards with respect to its Series 2019 Facilities, and
(ii1) the continued commitment of Public Funds to support the programs and facilities operated by the
Series 2019 Participant, particularly with respect to its Series 2019 Facilities, including continued
appropriations by the State in amounts sufficient for OPWDD to make payments to the Series 2019
Participant pursuant to its PPA or PPAs. For a more detailed discussion of risk factors affecting the
ability of the Series 2019 Participants to pay amounts owed under their respective Loan Agreements and
the Pledged Revenues, as well as other risk factors affecting payment on the Series 2019 Bonds, see
“PART 11 - BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS.” See also, “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019
PARTICIPANT REVENUE.”



Limitations on Payment and Security Upon the Occurrence of Certain Events of Default

A failure by a Series 2019 Participant to timely pay its obligations under its Series 2019 Loan
Agreement might result in an event of default under the Resolutions if either (a) such Series 2019
Participant’s loan is accelerated in accordance with the provisions of its Series 2019 Loan Agreement, or
(b) as a result of such nonpayment, there is failure to pay the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, and
Redemption Price of and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds when due. In either event, the Resolution
provides that an event of default will have occurred only with respect to the portion of each maturity of
each Subseries of the Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds that corresponds to a principal installment on the
defaulting Series 2019 Participant’s loan under the terms of its Series 2019 Loan Agreement (referred to
as the “Defaulted Allocable Portion”). The funds available for the payment of a Defaulted Allocable
Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds are limited by the Resolution to only those Revenues payable by or on
behalf of such defaulting Series 2019 Participant pursuant to its Series 2019 Loan Agreement, funds on
deposit with the Trustee attributable to such Series 2019 Participant and amounts recovered upon the
realization on any collateral granted to DASNY as security for such Series 2019 Participant’s obligations
under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement and pledged to the payment of the Series 2019 Bonds.

After the application of all such amounts to the payment of the Defaulted Allocable Portion
of the Series 2019 Bonds following the acceleration or extraordinary mandatory redemption thereof
in accordance with the Resolutions, such Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds will
be deemed paid and discharged and the event of default cured, whether or not payment in full of all
of the principal of and interest on such Defaulted Allocable Portion has been made to the Holders
thereof. See “PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS
- Events of Default - Special Provisions Relating to Defaults” and “Appendix F - Summary of Certain
Provisions of the Resolutions.” See also, “PART 3 - THE SERIES 2019 BONDS - Redemption
Provisions - Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption.”

NO SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS
OF ANY OTHER SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT. IF A SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT FAILS TO PAY
AMOUNTS DUE UNDER ITS SERIES 2019 LOAN AGREEMENT IN RESPECT OF ITS
ALLOCABLE PORTION OF THE SERIES 2019 BONDS, DASNY’S SOLE REMEDY WILL BE
AGAINST THE DEFAULTING SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT AND NO OTHER SERIES 2019
PARTICIPANT. FOR THE PURPOSES OF A SERIES 2019 LOAN AGREEMENT DELIVERED BY
MORE THAN ONE ENTITY, THE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS OF SUCH SERIES 2019
PARTICIPANT ARE JOINT AND SEVERAL ONLY WITH RESPECT TO THE ENTITIES
COMPRISING SUCH SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT.

The Mortgages

In the event that a Series 2019 Participant owns its Series 2019 Facilities (except with respect to
UCP Co-op Facilities (as defined in “Co-op Security Documents” below), each Series 2019 Participant’s
obligations under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement will be additionally secured by one or more mortgages
(each a “Mortgage”; collectively, the “Mortgages”) from such Series 2019 Participant to DASNY,
granting a mortgage lien on its Series 2019 Facilities, and by a security interest in the fixtures, furniture
and equipment financed with the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds located therein or used in connection
therewith, such liens and security interests subject to applicable Permitted Encumbrances. In the case of
Mercy Home, it will grant to DASNY a mortgage lien and security interest on only one of its two Series
2019 Facilities. In the case of SUS, it will grant to DASNY a mortgage lien and security interest on only
one of its three Series 2019 Facilities. In the case of YAI, it will grant to DASNY a mortgage lien and
security interest on only four of its five Series 2019 Facilities. In the case of UCP, it will grant to
DASNY a mortgage lien and security interest on its five Series 2019 Facilities that are not UCP Co-op



Facilities; UCP will not grant a mortgage lien and security interest to DASNY on the UCP Co-op
Facilities.

The Mortgages do not presently provide any security for the Series 2019 Bonds. However, under
certain circumstances described herein, one or more of the Mortgages are required to be assigned to the
Trustee. Prior to any such assignment of a Mortgage to the Trustee, each Series 2019 Loan Agreement
provides that DASNY, without the consent of the Trustee or the Holders of the applicable Series 2019
Bonds, may consent to the amendment, modification, termination, subordination or satisfaction of such
Mortgage and of any security interest in furniture, fixtures or equipment financed with the proceeds of the
Series 2019 Bonds located in or on or used in connection therewith and the property subject to such
Mortgage or security interest may be released from the lien thereof, all upon such terms and conditions as
DASNY may require. See “PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES
2019 BONDS - Security for the Series 2019 Bonds - Mortgages.”

With respect to (i) Mercy Home’s Series 2019 Facility located at 1370 Union Street, Brooklyn,
New York, (ii) SUS’s Series 2019 Facilities located at 185-24 80™ Road, Queens, New York and 244-04
Northern Boulevard, Queens, New York, and (iii) YAID’s Series 2019 Facility located at 2000 Flatbush
Avenue, Brooklyn, New York (such Series 2019 Facilities are collectively referred to as the “Series 2019
Leased Facilities”) and the UCP Co-op Facilities, the respective Series 2019 Participants will not grant a
mortgage lien and security interest to DASNY on such Series 2019 Facilities. With respect to the Series
2019 Leased Facilities, such Series 2019 Participant’s obligations under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement
with respect to its Series 2019 Leased Facilities will not be secured by any mortgage or real property
security interest. With respect to the UCP Co-op Facilities, such Series 2019 Participant’s obligations
under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement with respect to the UCP Co-op Facilities will not be secured by
any mortgage, but will be secured by the Co-op Security Documents (as defined and described in “Co-op
Security Documents” below). See “PART 11-—BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS—Specific Risks Related to
the Series 2019 Leased Facilities” for a discussion of why there are no mortgages on the Series 2019
Leased Facilities. See “Co-op Security Documents” below for a brief description of the UCP Co-op
Facilities and a discussion of security documents to be delivered in lieu of a mortgage for the UCP Co-op
Facilities.

See “Appendix A - Description of Series 2019 Participants” for a description of which Series
2019 Participants (a) own or lease and (b) will grant mortgages (and the nature of such mortgages) on
their respective Series 2019 Facilities.

Collateral Assignment of Leases

Mercy Home leases the Series 2019 Facility located at 1370 Union Street, Brooklyn, New York,
SUS leases the Series 2019 Facilities located at 185-24 80™ Road, Queens, New York and 244-04
Northern Boulevard, Queens, New York, and YAI leases the Series 2019 Facility located at 2000
Flatbush Avenue, Brooklyn, New York. In order for each of Mercy Home, SUS and YAI to secure its
obligations under its respective Series 2019 Loan Agreement, each such Series 2019 Participant will
collaterally assign to DASNY pursuant to a Collateral Assignment of Leases its right, title and interest
(but not its obligations) in the lease or leases for its Series 2019 Facility or Series 2019 Facilities set forth
above. The landlord under each such lease has consented to such collateral assignment.

Co-op Security Documents
Certain of UCP’s Series 2019 Facilities (each a “UCP Co-op Facility”) are located at 2075
Wallace Avenue, Bronx, New York, 2077 Wallace Avenue, Bronx, New York, 2079 Wallace Avenue,

Bronx, New York, 2081 Wallace Avenue, Bronx, New York (collectively, the “Wallace Properties™),
3636 Greystone Avenue, Bronx, New York (the “Greystone Property”) and 2191 Bolton Street, Bronx,
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New York (the “Bolton Property” and together with the Wallace Properties and the Greystone Property,
the “Co-op Corporation Properties”). The Wallace Properties, the Greystone Property and the Wallace
Property are each owned by a separate corporation (each a “Co-op Corporation”). UCP is the sole owner
of the shares in the respective Co-op Corporation applicable to the respective UCP Co-op Facility
represented by stock certificates issued to UCP (each “Stock™). Each UCP Co-op Facility is leased to
UCP, as tenant, from the respective Co-Op Corporation, as landlord, pursuant to a proprietary lease for
such UCP Co-op Facility (each a “Proprietary Lease”). In order for UCP to secure its obligations under
its Series 2019 Loan Agreement with respect to its interest in the UCP Co-op Facilities, UCP will grant
DASNY a security interest pursuant to a Cooperative Interest Security Agreement (“Security
Agreement”) in (a) the shares of the Co-Op Corporation represented by the Stock issued to UCP and (b)
each Proprietary Lease. In addition to delivering the original fully executed Proprietary Lease for each
UCP Co-op Facility and the original Stock, UCP shall also deliver to DASNY a blank Stock Power for
the shares owned by UCP in each Co-op Corporation, a blank assignment of each Proprietary Lease, a
Recognition Agreement and shall cause a UCC-1 Financing Statement with Cooperative Addendum to be
properly filed (all of the foregoing together with the Security Agreement, collectively, the “Co-op
Security Documents”). Such Co-op Security Documents, together with the Intercept Agreement, reflect
typical documentation of a security interest in a cooperative unit, and are generally permitted by each
Proprietary Lease.

PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS

Set forth below is a narrative description of certain contractual provisions relating to the source
of payment of and security for the Series 2019 Bonds and certain related covenants. These provisions
have been summarized, and this description does not purport to be complete. Reference should be made
to the Act, the Resolution, the Series 2019 Resolution and the Series 2019 Loan Agreements, copies of
which are on file with DASNY and the Trustee. See also “Appendix E-1 - Summary of Certain Provisions
of the Series 2019 Loan Agreements (other than the Series 2019 Loan Agreement of UCP),” “Appendix E-
2 - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Series 2019 Loan Agreement of UCP” and “Appendix F - Summary of
Certain Provisions of the Resolutions” for a more complete statement of the rights, duties and obligations
of the parties thereto.

Payment of the Series 2019 Bonds

The Series 2019 Bonds are special, limited obligations of DASNY. The principal, Sinking Fund
Installments, and Redemption Price of and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds are payable solely from the
Revenues. With respect to the Series 2019 Participants, the Revenues consist of the aggregate of the
payments required to be made by each of the Series 2019 Participants under its respective Series 2019
Loan Agreement on account of such Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion of (i) the principal,
Sinking Fund Installments, and Redemption Price of and interest due on the Series 2019 Bonds, and (ii)
the Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement (as defined below). The Revenues and the right
to receive them have been pledged to the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2019 Bonds.
The aggregate of payments due and payable to DASNY under all of the Series 2019 Loan Agreements
will be sufficient to pay (i) the principal, Sinking Fund Installments and Redemption Price of and interest
on the Series 2019 Bonds when due, (ii) amounts necessary to maintain the Series 2019 Debt Service
Reserve Fund at its required level, and (iii) the annual fees of DASNY and the Trustee.

Each Series 2019 Loan Agreement is a general obligation of the respective Series 2019
Participant, pursuant to which such Series 2019 Participant will be required to make payments in amounts
sufficient to satisfy its Allocable Portion of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, and Redemption
Price of and interest due on the Series 2019 Bonds as reflected in the debt service table set forth in
“PART 3 — THE SERIES 2019 BONDS - Principal, Sinking Fund Installment and Interest Requirements
for the Series 2019 Bonds.” The payment obligations of the Series 2019 Participants with respect to their
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respective Allocable Portions of the Series 2019 Bonds are several, not joint. For the purposes of a
Series 2019 Loan Agreement delivered by more than one entity, the payment obligations for a Series
2019 Participant shall be joint and several with respect to the entities comprising such Series 2019
Participant. Each Series 2019 Participant is obligated to repay only its Allocable Portion of the Series
2019 Bonds. Each Series 2019 Participant’s payments under its respective Series 2019 Loan Agreement
will be applied pro rata to its Allocable Portion of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, and
Redemption Price of and interest due on each Subseries of the Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds.

Payments under each of the Series 2019 Loan Agreements are to be made monthly on the 10" day
of each month. Each payment under the Series 2019 Loan Agreements is to be equal to one-sixth of the
respective Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion of the interest coming due on the next succeeding
interest payment date and one-twelfth of its Allocable Portion of the principal and Sinking Fund
Installments coming due on the next succeeding July 1. See “PART 3 — THE SERIES 2019 BONDS -
Principal, Sinking Fund Installment and Interest Requirements for the Series 2019 Bonds.” Each of the
Series 2019 Loan Agreements also obligates the respective Series 2019 Participant to pay, at least 45 days
prior to a redemption date of Series 2019 Bonds called for redemption, its Allocable Portion of the
amount, if any, required to pay the Redemption Price of such Series 2019 Bonds. See “PART 3 — THE
SERIES 2019 BONDS — Redemption Provisions.”

Security for the Series 2019 Bonds
General

The Series 2019 Bonds will be secured ratably by the pledge and assignment to the Trustee of the
Revenues and DASNY’s security interest in the applicable Pledged Revenues, subject to Prior Pledges.
See “Appendix A - Description of Series 2019 Participants” for a description of each of the Series 2019
Participants, including their respective Prior Pledges of their respective Pledged Revenues.

The Series 2019 Bonds will also be secured by the proceeds from the sale of such Series 2019
Bonds (until disbursed as provided in the Resolutions) and all funds and accounts authorized by the
Resolution and established by the Series 2019 Resolution (with the exception of the Arbitrage Rebate
Fund), including the Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund.

Pursuant to the terms of the Resolution, the Series 2019 Bonds are separately secured from all
other Series of Bonds. The Holders of a Series of Bonds are not entitled to the rights, benefits and

security conferred upon the Holders of any other Series of Bonds.

Pledged Revenues - Intercept Funds

Pursuant to the Act and the respective Series 2019 Loan Agreements, each Series 2019
Participant has pledged and assigned to DASNY its Pledged Revenues in an amount sufficient to satisfy
its payment obligations under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement, subject to any Prior Pledges. With respect
to each Series 2019 Participant, the Pledged Revenues are all Public Funds attributable to its respective
Series 2019 Facilities. Public Funds are all moneys payable to a Series 2019 Participant by any agency of
the State or federal government, a State political subdivision, social services district in the State or any
other governmental entity. See “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2016 PARTICIPANT FUNDING -
New York State Office for People with Developmental Disabilities.”

With the exception of renovation costs for certain of UCP’s Series 2019 Facilities, as further
described in Appendix A, all of the Series 2019 Facilities are supported by an OPWDD PPA, which the
applicable Series 2019 Participant has received. These PPAs represent OPWDD’s pre-approval of the
applicable Series 2019 Facilities for reimbursement of certain amounts approximately sufficient to pay
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the annual principal and interest costs incurred by the related Series 2019 Participant in connection with
its financing or refinancing of the acquisition, renovation and furnishing, as applicable, of such Series
2019 Facility, in each case subject to annual appropriation by the State Legislature and so long as such
Series 2019 Participant operates the applicable Series 2019 Facility in accordance with certain defined
standards. Except as set forth in the immediately preceding sentence, assuming annual appropriation of
sufficient funds and continued compliance with such standards, it is expected by each Series 2019
Participant that the amounts received by such Series 2019 Participant pursuant to its respective PPA or
PPAs will be approximately sufficient to pay the annual principal of and interest on its respective
Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds related to such Series 2019 Facilities; any difference between
the two amounts is expected to be covered by the Pledged Revenues of such Series 2019 Participant
expected to be received for operating and administrative expenses associated with such Series 2019
Facility. With respect to the renovation costs for certain of UCP’s Series 2019 Facilities that are not
supported by a PPA, UCP expects to pay such non-PPA supported portions of its principal and interest on
its Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds from Public Funds paid by OPWDD and from its general
operating revenues. See “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE - New
York State Office for People with Developmental Disabilities.” Certain of the Series 2019 Facilities may
also be supported by additional OPWDD PPAs, but such other OPWDD PPAs were issued with respect to
other projects at such Series 2019 Facilities and not those being financed with the Series 2019 Bonds and,
therefore, payments under such other PPAs do not constitute Pledged Revenues.

Standby Intercepts

The Act and each Series 2019 Loan Agreement authorize an intercept mechanism whereby public
entities responsible for the payment of Pledged Revenues are authorized and required to pay a Series 2019
Participant’s Pledged Revenues to DASNY or the Trustee in accordance with a certificate filed by
DASNY with such public entity. Under the terms of each Series 2019 Loan Agreement, until the
occurrence of an event with respect to a Series 2019 Participant described in clause (a) or (b) below, a
Series 2019 Participant’s Pledged Revenues subject to such an intercept will be paid directly to such
Series 2019 Participant and will be available to be applied towards any of its corporate purposes.
However, pursuant to the respective Series 2019 Loan Agreements and the respective Intercept
Agreements, upon the occurrence of (a) an event of default under a Series 2019 Participant’s Series 2019
Loan Agreement, or an event which with the passage of time or giving of notice, or both, would become
an event of default under such Series 2019 Participant’s Series 2019 Loan Agreement, or (b) a drawing of
funds from the Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund for the benefit of such Series 2019 Participant that
has not been repaid by such Series 2019 Participant as required by its Series 2019 Loan Agreement and
the Resolutions, DASNY may, in addition to all other remedies available pursuant to such Series 2019
Participant’s Series 2019 Loan Agreement, cause such Series 2019 Participant’s Pledged Revenues
covered by the applicable Intercept Agreement to be deducted, withheld and paid directly to DASNY or
the Trustee, as appropriate, up to an amount sufficient to make the payments required by such Series 2019
Participant pursuant to its Series 2019 Loan Agreement. See “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019
PARTICIPANT REVENUE - New York State Office for People with Developmental Disabilities.”
Intercepted Pledged Revenues of one Series 2019 Participant will not be available to satisfy the payment
obligations of any other Series 2019 Participant.

There can be no assurance that the amount of any Series 2019 Participant’s intercepted Pledged
Revenues will be sufficient to satisfy such Series 2019 Participant’s payment obligations with respect to
its Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds. In the event that amounts received upon the intercept of a
Series 2019 Participant’s Pledged Revenues are insufficient to pay all of a Series 2019 Participant’s
Allocable Portion of the principal of and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds when due, such amounts
received will be applied pro rata to such Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion of each Subseries of
the Series 2019 Bonds.
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The ability of each Series 2019 Participant to satisfy its payment obligations under its Series 2019
Loan Agreement with respect to its Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds and DASNY’s ability to
realize upon its security interests in the Series 2019 Participant’s Pledged Revenues are largely dependent
upon the continued operation by the Series 2019 Participant of its Series 2019 Facilities, which may be
adversely affected by a number of risk factors. Such risk factors, which may affect the Series 2019
Participants differently, include, but are not limited to, (i) the financial condition of the Series 2019
Participant and its ability to continue to generate sufficient revenues to support all of its facilities,
including its Series 2019 Facilities, (ii) the continued compliance by the Series 2019 Participant with
State and local operational standards with respect to its Series 2019 Facilities, (iii) the continued
commitment of Public Funds to support the programs and facilities operated by the Series 2019
Participant, particularly with respect to the Series 2019 Facilities and (iv) the continued appropriation by
the State legislature of amounts sufficient for OPWDD and other State agencies to make payments,
including Pledged Revenues, to the Series 2019 Participant pursuant to its PPA(s) or otherwise. For a
more detailed discussion of risk factors affecting the Pledged Revenues and the ability of the Series 2019
Participants to pay amounts owed under their respective Series 2019 Loan Agreements, as well as other
risk factors affecting payment on the Series 2019 Bonds, see “PART 11 - BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS.”
See also “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE” and “Appendix A -
Descriptions of the Series 2019 Participants,” which includes for each Series 2019 Participant a
description of its outstanding long-term and short-term indebtedness and credit facilities secured by
security interests that are Prior Pledges with respect to its Pledged Revenues.

Debt Service Reserve Fund

The Resolution authorizes, and the Series 2019 Resolution establishes, the Series 2019 Debt
Service Reserve Fund, which is required to be maintained in an amount equal to one-half of the greatest
amount required in the then current or any future calendar year to pay the sum of (i) interest on the
Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds payable during such year, excluding interest accrued thereon prior to July
1 of the next preceding year and (ii) the principal and the Sinking Fund Installments of such Series 2019
Bonds (the “Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement”).

Proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds will be deposited in separate accounts established in the Series
2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund for each Series 2019 Participant in amounts equal to the respective
Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement.
If, on the fourth Business Day preceding an interest payment date for the Series 2019 Bonds, the amount
on deposit in the account established for a Series 2019 Participant in the Debt Service Fund is less than
the amount necessary to pay such Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion of the principal or Sinking
Fund Installments of and interest on the Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds payable on such interest payment
date, the Trustee is required to transfer moneys from the applicable account of the Series 2019 Debt
Service Reserve Fund to the corresponding account of the Debt Service Fund in an amount sufficient to
provide for such payment. FEach Series 2019 Loan Agreement requires the respective Series 2019
Participant to restore in full any amount withdrawn from the Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund for
its benefit within five days after receiving notice of a withdrawal. Each Series 2019 Loan Agreement also
requires the respective Series 2019 Participant to restore in full its Allocable Portion of the Series 2019
Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement within five days after receiving notice of a deficiency in the
Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund resulting from a devaluation of the investments held therein.
Each Series 2019 Participant is responsible for only its Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement. Any money in the Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund in excess of the
required amounts shall be applied in accordance with the Resolutions.
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Reserve Fund Facilities

In lieu of or in substitution for moneys in the Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund, DASNY
may deposit or cause to be deposited with the Trustee a Reserve Fund Facility satisfying the requirements
of the Resolutions for all or any part of the Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement or any
Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion thereof. See “Appendix F - Summary of Certain Provisions
of the Resolutions.”

Mortgages and Co-op Security Documents

In the event that a Series 2019 Participant owns its Series 2019 Facilities (except with respect to
the UCP Co-op Facilities), such Series 2019 Participant’s obligations under its Series 2019 Loan
Agreement will be additionally secured by its Mortgage granting to DASNY a mortgage lien on its Series
2019 Facilities, and by a security interest granted to DASNY in the fixtures, furniture and equipment
financed with the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds now or hereafter located on the mortgaged property,
such mortgage liens and security interests subject to applicable Permitted Encumbrances. In the case of
Mercy Home, it will grant to DASNY a mortgage lien and security interest on only one of its two Series
2019 Facilities. In the case of SUS, it will grant to DASNY a mortgage lien and security interest on only
one of its three Series 2019 Facilities. In the case of YAI it will grant to DASNY a mortgage lien and
security interest on only four of its five Series 2019 Facilities. In the case of UCP, it will grant to
DASNY a mortgage lien and security interest on its five Series 2019 Facilities that are not UCP Co-op
Facilities; UCP will not grant a mortgage lien and security interest to DASNY on the UCP Co-op
Facilities. See “Appendix A - Description of Series 2019 Participants™ for a description of the Series
2019 Facilities that are owned by a Series 2019 Participant and subject to its Mortgage and for a
description of the Series 2019 Leased Facilities and UCP Co-op Facilities.

UCP’s obligations under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement will be additionally secured in favor of
DASNY by the Co-op Security Documents with respect to the UCP Co-op Facilities. See “PART 1—
INTRODUCTION—Co-op Security Documents” and “Appendix A—Description of Series 2019
Participants” for a further description of the UCP Co-op Facilities and the Co-op Security Documents.

See “PART 11-—BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS—Specific Risks Related to the Series 2019 Leased
Facilities” for a discussion of why there are no mortgages on the Series 2019 Leased Facilities.

DASNY may, but has no present intention to, assign all or a portion of any of the Mortgages or
any of the Co-op Security Documents or such security interests to the Trustee. Upon (a) a withdrawal
from an applicable account of the Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund that has not been restored by
the respective Series 2019 Participant to its requirement within 30 days from the date of such withdrawal
or (b) the occurrence and continuance of an event of default under a Series 2019 Participant’s Series 2019
Loan Agreement and the acceleration of the loan thereunder, DASNY is required to assign such Series
2019 Participant’s Mortgage or Co-op Security Documents and the related security interest in the fixtures,
furnishings and equipment financed with the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds to the Trustee for the
benefit of the Holders of such Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion of the Outstanding Series 2019
Bonds. Unless a Mortgage or any of the Co-op Security Documents is assigned to the Trustee, none of
the Mortgages, the Co-op Security Documents or the security interests in the related fixtures, furnishings
and equipment or any proceeds therefrom will be for the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2019 Bonds.
Each Mortgage or Co-op Security Documents secures only the obligations of the Series 2019
Participant granting the Mortgage or Co-op Security Documents, and, in the event of a default by a
Series 2019 Participant that may lead to the assignment of its Mortgage or its Co-op Security
Documents, only the Mortgage or Co-op Security Documents of that defaulting Series 2019
Participant may be assigned.
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Prior to any assignment of a Mortgage or any Co-op Security Documents to the Trustee, each
Series 2019 Loan Agreement provides that DASNY, upon such terms and conditions as it may require
and without the consent of the Trustee or the Holders of the applicable Series 2019 Bonds, may (a)
consent to the amendment, modification, termination, subordination or satisfaction of such Mortgage or
Co-op Security Documents and of any related security interest in furniture, fixtures or equipment financed
with the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds located in or on or used in connection with the property
subject to the Mortgage or Co-op Security Documents, and (b) release the property subject to such
Mortgage or Co-op Security Documents or security interest from the liens thereof. Each Series 2019
Participant may incur debt secured on parity with, or subordinate to, the lien of its Mortgage and/or its
Co-op Security Documents , including debt incurred in connection with the issuance of other Series of
Bonds under the Resolution, with the prior consent of DASNY.

The liens and security interest granted to DASNY by a Mortgage or Co-op Security Documents
are subject to Permitted Encumbrances. The lien of and security interest in each Series 2019 Participant’s
owned Series 2019 Facility(ies) as described in its Mortgage may also be limited by certain other factors.
The lien of and security interest of UCP in the UCP Co-op Facilities as described in the Co-op Security
Documents may also be limited by certain other factors. See “PART 11- BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS” and
“Appendix A — Description of Series 2019 Participants.”

Collateral Assignment of Leases

In order to secure its obligations under its respective Series 2019 Loan Agreement, each of Mercy
Home, SUS and YAI will collaterally assign to DASNY pursuant to a Collateral Assignment of Leases its
right, title and interest (but not its obligations) in its respective lease or leases for its Series 2019 Leased
Facility or Series 2019 Leased Facilities. The landlord under each such lease has consented to such
collateral assignment.

Events of Default

Events of Default

The Resolutions provide that events of default thereunder constitute events of default with respect
to the Series 2019 Bonds. The following are events of default under the Resolutions:

(1) a default in the payment of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments or
Redemption Price of or interest on the Series 2019 Bonds of any Subseries; provided, however, if
the failure to make any such payment is caused by a failure of a Series 2019 Participant to timely
pay its Allocable Portion of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments or Redemption Price of or
interest on the Series 2019 Bonds pursuant to the terms of its Series 2019 Loan Agreement, then
it shall be an event of default under the Resolutions only with respect to the Defaulted Allocable
Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds Outstanding, as identified by the Trustee using the method for
selection of Bonds upon an extraordinary mandatory redemption thereof as set forth in the
Resolution;

(ii) DASNY shall default in the due and punctual performance of its tax covenants
contained in the Resolutions with the result that the interest on the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds
shall no longer be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes;

(iii) a default by DASNY in the due and punctual performance of any other covenant,

condition, agreement or provision contained in the Series 2019 Bonds or in the Resolutions which
continues for 30 days after written notice thereof is given to DASNY by the Trustee (such notice
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to be given at the Trustee’s discretion or at the written request of Holders of not less than 25% in
principal amount of Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds); or

(@iv) an event of default under a Series 2019 Loan Agreement shall have occurred and
is continuing and, as a result thereof, all sums payable by a Series 2019 Participant under such
Series 2019 Loan Agreement shall have been declared to be immediately due and payable, which
declaration shall not have been annulled; provided, however, that such event of default under a
Series 2019 Loan Agreement shall constitute an event of default under the Resolutions only with
respect to the Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds.

With respect to an event of default affecting only the Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series
2019 Bonds and not any other portion of the Series 2019 Bonds, the Trustee will determine such
Defaulted Allocable Portion in the manner described in “PART 3 - THE SERIES 2019 BONDS -
Redemption Provisions - Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption.”

The Series 2019 Bonds are separately secured from all other Series of Bonds which may be
issued pursuant to the Resolution. While an event of default with respect to another Series of Bonds
will not necessarily result in an event of default with respect to the Series 2019 Bonds, an event of
default by a Series 2019 Participant under a loan agreement entered into in connection with the
issuance of another Series of Bonds will result in an event of default under such Series 2019
Participant’s Series 2019 Loan Agreement.

Acceleration; Control of Proceedings

The Resolution provides that if an event of default (other than an event of default described in
clause (i) under the first paragraph of the subheading “Events of Default” above resulting from a Series
2019 Participant’s failure to timely pay its Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds or an event as
described in clauses (ii) or (iv) under the first paragraph of the subheading “Events of Default”) occurs
and continues, the Trustee shall, upon the written request of the Holders of not less than 25% in principal
amount of the Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds, by a notice in writing to DASNY, declare the principal of
and interest on all of the Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds to be due and payable immediately. At the
expiration of 30 days from the giving of such notice, such principal and interest shall become
immediately due and payable. The Trustee may, with the written consent of the Holders of not less than
25% in principal amount of the Series 2019 Bonds then Outstanding, annul such declaration and its
consequences under the terms and conditions specified in the Resolution with respect to such annulment.

In the case of a default described in clause (i) under the first paragraph of the subheading “Events
of Default” above resulting from a failure of a Series 2019 Participant to timely pay its Allocable Portion
of the Series 2019 Bonds pursuant to its Series 2019 Loan Agreement or a default described in clause (iv)
under the first paragraph of the subheading “Events of Default” above then and in every such case the
Trustee shall, upon the written request of the Holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the
Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds then Outstanding declare the principal of and
interest on the Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds then Outstanding to be due and
payable immediately.

At the expiration of 30 days after notice of such declaration has been given, such principal and
interest shall become immediately due and payable. The Trustee may, with the written consent of the
Holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019
Bonds then Outstanding, annul such declaration and its consequences under the terms and conditions
specified in the Resolution with respect to such annulment.
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With respect to the Series 2019 Bonds, the Holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of
the Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds or 25% in principal amount of Defaulted Allocable Portion of the
Series 2019 Bonds then Outstanding, as applicable, or, in the case of a default described in clause (ii) in
the first paragraph under the subheading “Events of Default” above, the Holders of not less than a
majority in principal amount of the Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds, shall have the right to direct the
method and place of conducting all remedial actions to be taken by the Trustee with respect to the Series
2019 Bonds.

Notice of Events of Default

The Resolution provides that the Trustee is to give notice in accordance with the Resolution of
each event of default actually known to the Trustee to the Holders of the Series 2019 Bonds within 30
days after knowledge of the occurrence thereof unless such default has been remedied or cured before the
giving of such notice; provided, however, that except in the case of default in the payment of principal,
Sinking Fund Installments or Redemption Price of or interest due on any of the Series 2019 Bonds, the
Trustee is protected in withholding such notice thereof to the Holders if and as long as the Trustee in good
faith determines that the withholding of such notice is in the best interests of the Holders of the Series
2019 Bonds.

Special Provisions Relating to Defaults

The Resolution provides that upon the happening and continuance of an event of default affecting
only a Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds as described in clauses (i) and (iv) above
under the subheading “Events of Default,” payment of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, if any,
and Redemption Price of and interest on such Defaulted Allocable Portion of Series 2019 Bonds (either
by their terms, by acceleration or by the extraordinary mandatory redemption thereof) shall be limited
solely to (i) those Revenues received or receivable by DASNY pursuant to the defaulting Series 2019
Participant’s Series 2019 Loan Agreement, including such Series 2019 Participant’s Pledged Revenues
and other amounts derived from the exercise of any remedies under such Series 2019 Loan Agreement
and the realization of any security or collateral granted by such defaulting Series 2019 Participant as
security for its loan, and (ii) the moneys and securities on deposit in only those accounts established
pursuant to the Series 2019 Resolution for the payment of such defaulting Series 2019 Participant’s
Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds. Holders of a Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019
Bonds will have no right to any other Revenues or any other funds held by the Trustee under the
Resolution derived from payments made by or on behalf of any other Series 2019 Participant for the
payment of the Series 2019 Bonds or any other security pledged by such other non-defaulting Series 2019
Participants as security for their loans.

If, following the exercise of all remedies available to the Trustee under the Resolutions and the
realization on all security and collateral available for the payment of a Defaulted Allocable Portion of the
Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds, moneys derived from the sources specified above are available to pay
only a portion of the principal and interest due on such Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019
Bonds upon the extraordinary mandatory redemption or acceleration thereof, then after application by the
Trustee of all available moneys to the partial payment of such Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series
2019 Bonds on a pro rata basis in accordance with the Resolution, (i) the remaining Defaulted Allocable
Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds shall be cancelled with the same effect as if paid in full and the event of
default shall be deemed cured, (ii) all obligations of DASNY and the Trustee under the Resolutions with
respect to such Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds shall be deemed to have been
discharged and satisfied, and (iii) the Holders of the Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019
Bonds shall no longer be entitled to the benefits of the Resolutions by virtue of their ownership of such
Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds. Upon such payment and/or cancellation of a
Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds, DASNY shall execute and the Trustee
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shall authenticate a new Series 2019 Bond or Series 2019 Bonds in a principal amount equal to the
Outstanding principal amount of the Series 2019 Bonds of each applicable maturity less the principal
amount of the Defaulted Allocable Portion thereof so paid and/or cancelled.

Payments made to Holders of the Series 2019 Bonds of less than all of the principal of and
interest on a Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds then Outstanding following an
acceleration or extraordinary mandatory redemption of such Defaulted Allocable Portion of the
Series 2019 Bonds and the application by the Trustee of all funds available for the payment thereof
as described above, will not be deemed a payment default on the Series 2019 Bonds under the
Resolutions.

General

The Series 2019 Bonds will not be a debt of the State nor will the State be liable thereon.
DASNY has no taxing power. DASNY has never defaulted in the timely payment of principal or sinking
fund installments of or interest on its bonds or notes. See “PART 7 — DASNY.”

PART 3 - THE SERIES 2019 BONDS

Set forth below is a narrative description of certain provisions relating to the Series 2019 Bonds.
These provisions have been summarized, and this description does not purport to be complete. Reference
should be made to the Resolution, the Series 2019 Resolution and the Series 2019 Loan Agreements,
copies of which are on file with DASNY and the Trustee. See also “Appendix E-1 - Summary of Certain
Provisions of the Series 2019 Loan Agreements (other than the Series 2019 Loan Agreement of UCP),”
“Appendix E-2 - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Series 2019 Loan Agreement of UCP” and
“Appendix F - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Resolutions” for a more complete description of
certain provisions of the Series 2019 Bonds.

General

The Series 2019 Bonds will be issued pursuant to the Resolutions. The Series 2019 Bonds will
be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”),
pursuant to DTC’s Book-Entry-Only System. Purchases of beneficial interests in the Series 2019 Bonds
will be made in book-entry form, without certificates. So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the
registered owner of the Series 2019 Bonds, payments of principal, Sinking Fund Installments,
Redemption Price and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds will be made by the Trustee directly to Cede &
Co. Disbursement of such payments to the Direct Participants (as hereinafter defined) is the
responsibility of DTC and disbursement of those payments to the Beneficial Owners of the Series 2019
Bonds is the responsibility of the Direct Participants and the Indirect Participants (as hereinafter defined).
If at any time the Book-Entry-Only System is discontinued for the Series 2019 Bonds, the Series 2019
Bonds will be exchangeable for fully registered Series 2019 Bonds in any authorized denominations of
the same Subseries and maturity, without charge, except the payment of any tax, fee or other
governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange, subject to the conditions and
restrictions set for in the Resolution. See “ - Book-Entry-Only System” and “Appendix F - Summary of
Certain Provisions of the Resolutions.”

Description of the Series 2019 Bonds
The Series 2019 Bonds will be dated their date of delivery and will bear interest from such date

(payable on July 1, 2019, and on each January 1 and July 1 thereafter) at the rates per annum, and will
mature on July 1 in each of the years set forth on the inside cover page of this Official Statement. The
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Series 2019 Bonds will be issuable in fully registered book-entry-only form, without coupons, in
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple in excess thereof.

Each Subseries of the Series 2019 Bonds may be exchanged for other Series 2019 Bonds of the
same Subseries in any other authorized denominations upon payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse
DASNY or the Trustee for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to
such exchange and for the cost of preparing the new bond, and otherwise as provided in the Resolution.

Redemption Provisions

Optional Redemption

The Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2027 are subject to redemption, on or
after July 1, 2026, as a whole or in part at any time at the option of DASNY, at a Redemption Price of
par, plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

The Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds are not subject to optional redemption.

Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption

Each Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds is subject to extraordinary mandatory
redemption at any time prior to maturity in whole, within 45 days following the realization by the Trustee
pursuant to the Resolution on all security and collateral granted by the applicable defaulting Series 2019
Participant as security for its loan upon an acceleration of such loan under its Series 2019 Loan
Agreement. The Series 2019 Bonds to be so redeemed shall be redeemed at a redemption price equal to
(a) the principal amount of the Outstanding Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds to be
redeemed on the redemption date, times the lesser of (i) 100% or (ii) the quotient, expressed as a
percentage, obtained by dividing (A) the amount of funds available to the Trustee to pay the principal of
and interest on such Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds on the redemption date less the
amount of accrued interest to be paid on such Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds on
such date, by (B) the principal amount of the Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds to be
redeemed, plus (b) accrued interest to the redemption date.

The Trustee shall, as reasonably practicable, determine the Defaulted Allocable Portion of the
Series 2019 Bonds to be redeemed based upon the schedule of amortization of the defaulting Series 2019
Participant’s loan which has been accelerated. All Series 2019 Bonds of each maturity that correspond to
a principal installment of the defaulted loan shall be called for redemption in part. The Trustee shall
redeem only that portion of each Series 2019 Bond which represents the quotient obtained by dividing the
principal scheduled to be paid on such defaulted loan in the year of maturity of such Series 2019 Bond by
the total principal scheduled to be paid in the year of maturity of such Series 2019 Bond on all loans made
with the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds, including the defaulted loan.

The particular Series 2019 Bonds of each affected maturity to be redeemed will be selected in the
manner described below under “- Selection of Series 2019 Bonds to be Redeemed.”

Special Redemption

The Series 2019 Bonds are also subject to redemption at the option of DASNY, as a whole or in
part, on any interest payment date at 100% of the principal amount thereof, from (a) the proceeds of a
condemnation or insurance award, which proceeds are not to be used to repair, restore or replace a Series
2019 Facility of such Series 2019 Participant, (b) from unexpended proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds
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upon abandonment of all or a portion of a Series 2019 Facility due to a legal or regulatory impediment
and (c) the proceeds of the sale of a Series 2019 Facility.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption

The Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds maturing on July 1, 2034, July 1, 2039 and July 1, 2044 shall be
subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity, in part on July 1 of the years and in the respective
principal amounts set forth below, at a Redemption Price equal to the principal amount thereof, together
with accrued interest to the date of redemption, from mandatory Sinking Fund Installments required to be
made in amounts sufficient to redeem on July 1 of each year the principal amount of the Subseries
2019A-1 Bonds specified for each such year below:

Subseries 2019A-1 Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds

Bonds Maturing Maturing Maturing
July 1, 2034 July 1, 2039 July 1, 2044
Sinking Fund Sinking Fund Sinking Fund
Year Installment Year Installment Year Installment
2030 $1,035,000 2035 $1,225,000 2040 $1,105,000
2031 1,090,000 2036 1,250,000 2041 1,150,000
2032 1,100,000 2037 1,310,000 2042 1,180,000
2033 1,130,000 2038 1,235,000 2043 1,225,000
20347 1,195,000 20397 1,140,000 20447 1,270,000

Final maturity.

The Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds maturing on July 1, 2021 shall be subject to mandatory
redemption prior to maturity, in part on July 1 of the years and in the respective principal amounts set
forth below, at a Redemption Price equal to the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to
the date of redemption, from mandatory Sinking Fund Installments required to be made in amounts
sufficient to redeem on July 1 of each year the principal amount of the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds
specified for each such year below:

Subseries 2019A-2

Bonds Maturing
July 1, 2021
Sinking Fund
Year Installment
2020 $475,000
20217 540,000

Final maturity.

The Series 2019 Participants may elect to have the Series 2019 Bonds purchased as a credit, at
100% of the principal amount thereof, against and in fulfillment of a required Sinking Fund Installment
on the Series 2019 Bonds of the same Subseries and maturity. To the extent DASNY’s obligation to
make Sinking Fund Installments in a particular year is fulfilled through such purchases, the likelihood of
redemption through mandatory Sinking Fund Installments of any Holder’s Series 2019 Bonds of the
Subseries and maturity so purchased will be reduced for such year.
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Selection of Series 2019 Bonds to be Redeemed

In the case of redemptions of Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds described above under “ - Optional
Redemption,” DASNY will select the maturities of the Allocable Portion of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds
to be redeemed. In the case of redemption of Series 2019 Bonds described above under “ - Special

Redemption,” Series 2019 Bonds will be redeemed to the extent practicable pro rata among maturities of
the Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds, but only in integral multiples of $5,000 within each
maturity. If less than all of the Series 2019 Bonds of a maturity are to be redeemed (pursuant to an
optional, special, extraordinary mandatory or mandatory sinking fund redemption), the Series 2019 Bonds
of such maturity to be redeemed will be selected by the Trustee, by lot, using such method of selection as
the Trustee shall consider proper in its discretion.

Notice of Redemption

The Trustee is to give notice of the redemption of a Series 2019 Bond in the name of DASNY,
which notice shall be given by first-class mail, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days nor more than 45
days prior to the redemption date to the registered owners of any Series 2019 Bonds which are to be
redeemed, at their last known addresses appearing on the registration books of DASNY not more than 10
days prior to the date such notice is to be given. If DASNY’s obligation to redeem Series 2019 Bonds is
subject to one or more conditions, then such notice must describe the conditions to such redemption. The
failure of any owner of a Series 2019 Bond to be redeemed to receive notice of redemption thereof will
not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of such Series 2019 Bond. If directed in
writing by an Authorized Officer of DASNY, the Trustee shall publish or cause to be published such
notice in an Authorized Newspaper not less than 30 days nor more than 45 days prior to the redemption
date, but such publication is not a condition precedent to such redemption and failure to publish such
notice or any defect in such notice or publication will not affect the validity of the proceedings for the
redemption of such Series 2019 Bonds.

If, on the redemption date, moneys for the redemption of the Series 2019 Bonds of like Subseries
and maturity to be redeemed, together with interest thereon to the redemption date, are held by the
Trustee so as to be available for payment of the Redemption Price, and if notice of redemption has been
mailed, then interest on the Series 2019 Bonds of such Subseries and maturity will cease to accrue from
and after the redemption date and such Series 2019 Bonds will no longer be considered to be Outstanding
under the Resolutions.

For a more complete description of the redemption and other provisions relating to the Series
2019 Bonds, see “Appendix F - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Resolutions.”

Purchase in Lieu of Optional Redemption

The Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2027 are also subject to purchase prior
to maturity, at the election of DASNY, on or after July 1, 2026, in any order, in whole or in part at any
time, at the prices set forth under “ - Optional Redemption” (the “Purchase Price”), plus accrued interest
to the date set for purchase (the “Purchase Date”) set forth in the notice of purchase to the registered
owners of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds to be so purchased.

Notice of Purchase and its Effect

Notice of the purchase of Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds will be given by DASNY in the name of one
or more of the Series 2019 Participants to the registered owners of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds to be
purchased by first-class mail, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days nor more than 45 days prior to the
Purchase Date specified in such notice. The Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds to be purchased are required to be
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tendered on the applicable Purchase Date to the Trustee. Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds to be purchased that
are not so tendered will be deemed to have been properly tendered for purchase. Such purchase shall not
operate to extinguish the indebtedness of DASNY evidenced thereby and such Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds
need not be cancelled, but shall remain Outstanding under the Resolution and in such case shall continue
to bear interest.

DASNY’s obligation to purchase a Subseries 2019A-1 Bond to be purchased or cause it to be
purchased is conditioned upon the availability of sufficient money to pay the Purchase Price for all of the
Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds to be purchased on such Purchase Date. If sufficient money is available on the
applicable Purchase Date to pay the applicable Purchase Price of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds to be
purchased, the former registered owners of such Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds will have no claim thereunder
or under the Resolution or otherwise for payment of any amount other than the applicable Purchase Price.
If sufficient money is not available on the applicable Purchase Date for payment of the applicable
Purchase Price, the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds tendered or deemed tendered for purchase will continue to
be registered in the name of the registered owners on the applicable Purchase Date, who will be entitled to
the payment of the principal of and interest on such Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds in accordance with their
terms.

In the event not all of the Outstanding Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds of a maturity are to be
purchased, the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds of such maturity to be purchased will be selected by lot in the
same manner as Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds of a maturity to be redeemed in part are to be selected.

Book-Entry-Only System

DTC will act as securities depository for the Series 2019 Bonds. The Series 2019 Bonds will be
issued as fully-registered securities in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such
other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Series
2019 Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the respective Subseries of Series 2019 Bonds,
each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized
under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York
Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of
the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions
of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over
3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues and money
market instruments from over 100 countries that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants™) deposit with
DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other
securities transactions in deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and
pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of
securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,
banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company
for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which
are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the
DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,
banks, trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship
with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has a Standard &
Poor’s rating of AA+. The DTC rules applicable to its Direct Participants and Indirect Participants are on
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at
www.dtcc.com.
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Purchases of Series 2019 Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Series 2019 Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership
interest of each actual purchaser of each Series 2019 Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded
on the Direct Participants’ and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written
confirmation from DTC of their purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written
confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from
the Direct Participant or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the
transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Series 2019 Bonds are to be accomplished by entries
made on the books of Direct Participants and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Series 2019
Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Series 2019 Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 2019 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with
DTC are registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as may be
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of the Series 2019 Bonds with DTC and
their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other nominee effect no change in beneficial
ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series 2019 Bonds; DTC’s
records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Series 2019 Bonds are
credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct Participants and Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Redemption notices shall be sent to Cede & Co. If less than all of the Series 2019 Bonds within
an issue are being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each
Direct Participant in such maturity to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to
Series 2019 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.
Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an omnibus proxy (the “Omnibus Proxy”) to DASNY as soon as
possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to
those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Series 2019 Bonds are credited on the record date
(identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest payments on the Series 2019 Bonds will be
made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.
DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding
detail information from DASNY or the Trustee on the payable date in accordance with their respective
holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to
Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the
responsibility of such Direct Participant or Indirect Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee or DASNY,
subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of
redemption proceeds and principal and interest payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Trustee, disbursement of
such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such
payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct Participants and Indirect
Participants.
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DASNY and the Trustee may treat DTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive registered
owner of the Series 2019 Bonds registered in its name for the purposes of payment of the principal and
redemption premium, if any, of, or interest on, the Series 2019 Bonds, giving any notice permitted or
required to be given to registered owners under the Resolutions, registering the transfer of the Series 2019
Bonds, or other action to be taken by registered owners and for all other purposes whatsoever. DASNY
and the Trustee shall not have any responsibility or obligation to any Direct Participant or Indirect
Participant or any person claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the Series 2019 Bonds under or
through DTC or any Direct Participant or Indirect Participant, or any other person which is not shown on
the registration books of DASNY (kept by the Trustee) as being a registered owner, with respect to the
accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any Direct Participant or Indirect Participant; the payment
by DTC or any Direct Participant or Indirect Participant of any amount in respect of the principal,
redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Series 2019 Bonds; any notice which is permitted or
required to be given to registered owners thereunder or under the conditions to transfers or exchanges
adopted by DASNY; or other action taken by DTC as a registered owner.

For every transfer and exchange of beneficial ownership of the Series 2019 Bonds, a Beneficial
Owner may be charged a sum sufficient to cover any tax, fee or other governmental charge that may be
imposed in relation thereto.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Series 2019 Bonds
at any time by giving notice to DASNY and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under
applicable law, or DASNY may terminate its participation in the system of book-entry transfer through
DTC at any time by giving notice to DTC. In either event, DASNY may retain another securities
depository for the Series 2019 Bonds or may direct the Trustee to deliver bond certificates in accordance
with instructions from DTC or its successor. If DASNY directs the Trustee to deliver such bond
certificates, such Series 2019 Bonds may thereafter be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount
of Series 2019 Bonds in any other authorized denominations and of the same Subseries and maturity as
set forth in the Resolution, upon surrender thereof at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee,
who will then be responsible for maintaining the registration books of DASNY.

Unless otherwise noted, certain of the information contained in the preceding paragraphs of this
subsection “ - Book-Entry-Only System” has been extracted from information given by DTC. None of
DASNY, the Trustee or the Underwriter make any representation as to the completeness or the accuracy
of such information or as to the absence of material adverse changes in such information subsequent to
the date hereof.
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Principal, Sinking Fund Installment and Interest Requirements for the Series 2019 Bonds

The following table sets forth the amounts required to be paid by each of the Series 2019
Participants during each twelve-month period ending June 30 of the Bond Years shown for the payment
of the interest on the Series 2019 Bonds payable on January 1 of such year and the principal and Sinking

Fund Installments of and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds payable on the succeeding July 1.

Total Debt Service by Series 2019 Participant

Developmental Disabilities Eden II School for Mercy Home for Children,
Institute, Inc. Autistic Children, Inc. Inc.

Principal & Principal & Principal &
FY Sinking Sinking Sinking
Ending Fund Fund Fund

Installments | Interest Installments | Interest Installments | Interest
6/30/2019 $ 0| §50693.12 $ 0] $12,63285 $ 0] $23,207.23
6/3012020 180,000 | 225,302.80 35,000 | 56,146.00 90,000 | 103,143.26
6/30/2021 190,000 |  219,378.80 45000 | 55,094.00 90,000 100,297.26
6/30/2022 195,000 |  213,228.80 45,000 | 53,700.00 100,000 97.451.26
6/30/2023 215,000 | 205.428.80 50,000 | 51,900.00 100,000 93.451.26
6/30/2024 220,000 | 196,828.80 50,000 | 49,900.00 105,000 89.451.26
6/30/2025 225,000 | 188,028.80 55,000 | 47.900.00 110,000 85.251.26
6/30/2026 225,000 | 179,028.80 55,000 | 45.700.00 115,000 80,851.26
6/36/2027 240,000 | 170,028.80 55,000 | 43,500.00 120,000 76.251.26
6/30/2028 250,000 |  164,148.80 60,000 | 42,152.50 120,000 7331126
6/30/2029 255,000 | 157,773.80 60,000 | 40,622.50 120,000 70.251.26
6/30/2030 255,000 |  151,143.80 60,000 | 39,062.50 130,000 67,131.26
6/30/2031 275,000 |  143,175.02 65,000 | 37,187.50 130,000 63,068.76
6/30/2032 275,000 |  134,581.26 65,000 | 35,156.26 135,000 59,006.26
6/30/2033 280,000 | 125987.52 70,000 | 33,125.00 135,000 54,787.50
6/30/2034 300,000 | 117,237.52 70,000 | 30.937.50 145,000 50,568.76
6/30/2035 305,000 | 107.862.54 70,000 | 28.750.00 150,000 46,037.52
6/30/2036 310,000 | 97.568.78 75000 | 26.387.50 150,000 40,975.00
6/36/2037 330,000 | 87,106.28 75000 | 23.856.26 155,000 35.912.52
6/30/2038 335,000 | 75968.78 80,000 | 21,325.00 115,000 30,681.26
6/30/2039 350,000 | 64,662.54 80,000 | 18,625.00 120,000 26,800.00
6/30/2040 285000 | 52,850.00 85,000 | 15,925.00 120,000 22,750.00
6/30/2041 290,000 | 42,875.00 90,000 | 12,950.00 125,000 18,550.00
6/30/2042 300,000 | 32,725.00 90,000 9,800.00 130,000 14,175.00
6/30/2043 310,000 | 22.225.00 95,000 6.650.00 135,000 9.625.00
6/30/2044 325,000 | 11,375,000 95,000 3,325.00 140,000 4,900.00
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Total Debt Service by Series 2019 Participant (continued)

Services for the
Underserved, Inc. and
SUS-Developmental
Disabilities Services,
Inc.

United Cerebral Palsy of
New York City, Inc.

Young Adult Institute,
Inc.

Principal &

Principal &

Principal &

Sinking Sinking Sinking
Fund Fund Fund

FY Installments | Interest Installments | Interest Installments | Interest
Ending

6/302019 | ¢ 0| s2482481 | $ 0]$ 4187274 s 0| $ 49,553.55
6/30/2020 120,000 | 110,332.50 135,000 | 186,101.02 190,000 | 220,238.04
6/30/2021 125,000 | 106,228.50 155,000 | 181,977.02 190,000 | 213,798.04
6/30/2022 135,000 | 101,982.50 155,000 | 177,285.02 205,000 | 207,590.04
6/30/2023 145,000 | 96,582.50 160,000 | 171,085.02 220,000 | 199,390.04
6/30/2024 150,000 | 90,782.50 170,000 | 164,685.02 225,000 | 190,590.04
6/30/2025 150,000 | 84,782.50 180,000 | 157,885.02 230,000 | 181,590.04
6/30/2026 155,000 | 78,782.50 180,000 | 150,685.02 235,000 | 172,390.04
6/30/2027 170,000 | 72,582.50 190,000 | 143,485.02 260,000 | 162,990.04
6/30/2028 170,000 |  68.417.50 195,000 | 138,830.02 | 260,000 | 156,620.04
6/30/2029 170,000 | 64,082.50 195,000 | 133,857.52 265,000 | 149,990.04
6/30/2030 120,000 | 59,662.50 200,000 | 128,787.52 270,000 | 143,100.04
6/302031 | 125000 | 5591252 | 210,000 | 122,537.54 | 285000 | 134,662.52
6/30/2032 125,000 | 52,006.26 215,000 | 115,975.04 285,000 | 125,756.26
6/30/2033 130,000 | 48,100.02 220,000 | 109,256.28 295,000 | 116,850.02
6/30/2034 135000 |  44,037.52 | 230,000 | 102,381.30 | 315,000 | 107,631.28
6/3072035 | 140,000 | 39.818.76 | 245,000 | 95,193.76 | 315000 | 97,787.52
6/3072036 | 145000 | 35093.76 | 245,000 | 8692502 | 325000 | 87,156.28
6/3072037 1 150,000 | 30,200.00 | 255,000 | 78,656.26 | 345000 | 76,187.54
6/30/2038 95,000 |  25,137.50 260,000 | 70,050.00 350,000 | 64,543.78
6/30/2039 95,000 |  21,931.26 260,000 | 61,275.02 235,000 | 52,731.28
6/30/2040 100,000 | 18,725.00 280,000 | 52,500.00 235,000 | 44,800.00
6/30/2041 105,000 | 1522500 | 290,000 | 42,700.00 | 250,000 |  36.575.00
6/30/2042 105,000 | 11,550.00 | 300,000 | 32,550.00 | 255000 | 27.825.00
6/30/2043 110,000 | 7.875.00 310,000 | 22,050.00 265,000 | 18,900.00
6/3072044 | 115000 | 402500 | 320,000 | 11,20000 | 275000 |  9,625.00
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PART 4 - THE SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANTS

Descriptions of the Series 2019 Participants, their operations and the Series 2019 Facilities they
will finance or refinance with the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds are set forth in Appendix A hereto.
Copies of the most recent audited financial statements for each of the Series 2019 Participants are set
forth in Appendix B hereto, and copies of recent unaudited financial information for each of the Series
2019 Participants are set forth in Appendix C hereto. Prospective purchasers of the Series 2019 Bonds
should carefully review Appendix A, Appendix B and Appendix C.

Each of the Series 2019 Participants is a not-for-profit corporation, organized and existing under
the laws of the State. All of the Series 2019 Participants have received Section 501(c)(3) designations
from the Internal Revenue Service and as such qualify for exemption from certain federal income taxes.
Typically, management of each Series 2019 Participant has as an operational goal the acquisition of
sufficient revenues to cover programmatic expenses, including debt service and the provision for capital
improvements. When revenues exceed expenses, the excess revenues are reflected in a fund balance (or
net assets) category and may be used for any lawful purpose consistent with the Series 2019 Participant’s
charitable purposes. When revenues are not sufficient to cover expenses, the Series 2019 Participant must
cover the deficit from fund reserves or other assets or reduce its services and expenses to match its
income. Trustees or members of the Board of Directors of a Series 2019 Participant typically serve
without remuneration, though expenses associated with attendance at board meetings or other official
board functions may be reimbursed.

Each of the Series 2019 Participants owns and/or leases and operates one or more facilities,
including the Series 2019 Facilities as described in Appendix A, in the State, to provide services to
individuals who are developmentally disabled or have other special needs. Each of the Series 2019
Participants has represented that it has the appropriate licenses and authority to provide its services under
State statutes. The Series 2019 Participants all currently have one or more contracts or approved
reimbursement arrangements with one or more departments of the State, The City of New York or a
county in the State. The reimbursement rates for the Series 2019 Participants for such contracts or
arrangements are adjusted annually according to a standardized formula set by the State and are subject to
annual appropriation by the State Legislature. No independent investigation or verification has been
made of the status of compliance with State, city, county or federal agency standards of licensing and
operations of the Series 2019 Participants in order to continue to receive payments of State, city, county,
and/or federal funds under such contracts or arrangements, which provide a substantial portion of the
total revenues of each of the Series 2019 Participants. A careful review should be made of Appendix
A, Appendix B and Appendix C to this Official Statement to determine the creditworthiness of each
of the Series 2019 Participants. See “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT
REVENUE.”

The Series 2019 Participants have engaged the Program Facilitator to act as the facilitator for the
InterAgency Council Pooled Loan Program. For its services, each Series 2019 Participant will pay the
Program Facilitator a fee of .25% of the principal amount of its Allocable Portion of the Series 2019
Bonds at closing for new money loans and an annual fee of .125% of all of its outstanding Allocable
Portion of Series 2019 Bonds. The Program Facilitator fee will not exceed $15,000 per year for any Series
2019 Participant. Each Series 2019 Participant is a member of the Program Facilitator.

Except for renovation costs for certain of UCP’s Series 2019 Facilities, all of the Series 2019
Facilities financed by the Series 2019 Bonds are supported by PPAs funded by OPWDD. With respect to
renovation costs for certain of UCP’s Series 2019 Facilities that are not supported by a PPA, UCP expects
to pay such non-PPA supported portions of its principal and interest on its Allocable Portion of the Series
2019 Bonds from Public Funds paid by OPWDD and from its general operating revenues.
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All of the Series 2019 Participants have over 20 years of experience providing services. See
“PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE.” Also see “Appendix A -
Description of Series 2019 Participants” for descriptions of (i) which Series 2019 Participants (a) have
Prior Pledges of their respective Pledged Revenues, (b) own or have a Co-op Interest in their respective
Series 2019 Facilities, (c) will grant mortgages (and the nature of such mortgages) on their respective
Series 2019 Facilities, (d) will grant Co-op Security Agreements on their respective Series 2019 Facilities
and (e) will grant Collateral Assignments of Leases on their respective Series 2019 Leased Facilities and
(i1) the Series 2019 Leased Facilities and the UCP Co-op Facilities.

PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE
General

OPWDD and other State agencies provide a portion of the revenues of the Series 2019
Participants through contracts and reimbursement arrangements for the provision of their services,
although the percentage of OPWDD and other State agencies revenues varies among the Series 2019
Participants. See “Appendix A - Description of Series 2019 Participants.” Other government funding
sources for one or more of the Series 2019 Participants are also described in Appendix A.

New York State Office for People with Developmental Disabilities

The following information concerning OPWDD and the PPA process included in this Part 5 has
been provided by the Program Facilitator and is subject to change. The Program Facilitator obtained
the information from publicly available information, including the New York State Annual Information
Statement dated July 2, 2018 (the “2018 AIS”), the Update to New York State Annual Information dated
December 4, 2018 (the “2018 AIS Update”), the New York State Statement of Updated Annual
Information Pursuant To Continuing Disclosure Agreements For FY 2018 (Ended March 31, 2018) dated
July 26, 2018 (the “2018 Updated CDA Information”), and the Enacted Budget Financial Plans of the
State for State fiscal years 2016 through 2019 (“Enacted Budget Plans”), as well as OPWDD s website.

Neither OPWDD nor any other State office, division, department, agency or officer, including the
State Division of Budget, has authorized the Program Facilitator to provide the information concerning
OPWDD and its operations for inclusion in this Official Statement or otherwise consented to such
inclusion or agreed to execute a continuing disclosure agreement with respect to the Series 2019 Bonds
described in this Official Statement. According to the State website on which the 2018 AIS, the 2018 AIS
Update and the 2018 Updated CDA Information are posted, (a) no portion of any of such documents may
be included in or incorporated by reference in any official statement unless (i) the State Division of
Budget (“DOB”) has expressly consented and (ii) DOB has agreed to execute a continuing disclosure
agreement relating to the bonds or notes described in the official statement, (b) any inclusion or
incorporation by reference in an official statement without such consent and agreement by DOB is
unauthorized and (c) the State expressly disclaims any responsibility with respect to the inclusion,
intended use, and updating of the information so included or referenced.

The information included in this Part 5 which was obtained from the 2018 Updated CDA
Information relates to obligations issued by DASNY under statutory authority and resolutions unrelated
to the statutory authority and Resolutions pursuant to which the Series 2019 Bonds are being issued.
While the Program Facilitator believes the information obtained from the 2018 Updated CDA
Information provides material information for prospective investors in the Series 2019 Bonds, prospective
investors should carefully review such information with an awareness that it was developed and posted to
discharge disclosure undertakings regarding bonds related to different service providers and payable
through a payment structure that is different from the payment structure made in connection with the
Series 2019 Bonds. Furthermore, none of the State, DASNY or any other State agency or official has any
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obligation to continue updating the information in the 2018 Updated CDA Information when the bonds
for which the 2018 Updated CDA Information is provided are no longer outstanding.

General

OPWDD is one of three autonomous offices within the State Department of Mental Hygiene
(“DMH”), the other autonomous offices being the Office of Mental Health (“OMH”) and the Office of
Alcoholism and Substance Abuse Services (“OASAS”). These three offices function independently
within DMH, each with complete responsibilities for planning and administration of their respective
programs. Each office is headed by a commissioner appointed by the State Governor with the advice and
consent of the State Senate. Also within DMH are the Developmental Disabilities Planning Council and
the Justice Center for the Protection of People with Special Needs. OPWDD, OMH and OASAS all
provide services directly to their clients through State-operated facilities and indirectly through
community service providers.

OPWDD is charged with developing a comprehensive, cost-effective, and integrated system to
serve the full range of needs of individuals with developmental disabilities. OPWDD operates five
regional offices, which oversee the provision of not-for-profit services, and six State operations offices,
which are responsible for State-delivered programs and services. The 13 service districts within the State
operations offices administer community-based and, where applicable, institutionally-based service
programs for persons with developmental disabilities within regional catchment areas. Institutional
programs offer residential care and habilitative services in campus settings, informally known as
developmental centers, and at special population units located throughout the State. The community-
based service programs, funded and regulated by OPWDD, reflect the cooperative efforts of local
governments, not-for-profit service providers, including the Series 2019 Participants, and OPWDD as a
provider of services. Community programs include State- and not-for-profit-operated residential and day
services, as well as a variety of support services to families and individuals living in their own homes,
including respite and crisis intervention, which help prevent unnecessary and costly out-of-home
placement. OPWDD is responsible for the regulation and licensing of residential facilities such as the
Series 2019 Facilities financed with the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds. Such regulation and licensing
includes determining the need for the facility, review of plans and specifications for construction,
inspections and audits and the establishment of a reimbursement rate for services.

OPWDD coordinates both residential and non-residential services for more than 128,000 New
Yorkers with developmental disabilities, including intellectual disabilities, cerebral palsy, Down
syndrome, autism spectrum disorders, and other disabilities. It provides services directly (referred to
above as “State-operated services”) and through a network of approximately 750 not-for-profit service
providing agencies, with about 80% of services provided by the not-for-profit service provider agencies
and 20% provided directly by the State.

OPWDD’s community services system using private not-for-profit agencies continues to grow,
which reflects the needs of the State’s residents, subject to the funds available in the OPWDD budget.
The 2018-19 budget for OPWDD increased by 3.7% over the 2017-18 budget, including $120 million for
new community services, which includes an estimated $60 million for new integrated residential settings
and $15 million for affordable housing initiatives. Additionally, $39 million has been added to support
the transition of OPWDD’s Medicaid Service Coordination program to a comprehensive care
coordination model as a first step in the transition to managed care.

Funding for OPWDD is subject to appropriation by the State legislature, and there is no

assurance that there will be continued appropriations by the State legislature in amounts sufficient
for OPWDD to make payments to the Series 2019 Participants pursuant to their respective PPAs.

27-



Population Statistics for Residential Programs

The following are actual population statistics for the State and residential programs funded by
OPWDD:

OPWDD Funded
Year State Operated Community Based
As of 3/31 Developmental Center Residences
2015 468 41,966
2016 297 42,314
2017 233 42,737
2018 196 43,080

Source: 2018 Updated CDA Information

Historical Total State Funding

The total State funding for OPWDD purposes for State Fiscal Years 2016, 2017 and 2018 are as
follows:

Fiscal

Year OPWDD
2016 $3,223,358,000
2017 2,974,349,000?
2018 2,935,355,000%)

(M Source: Enacted Budget Financial Plan for FY 2017 (page T-159)
@ Source: Enacted Budget Finanial Plan for FY 2018 (page T-158)
® Source: Enacted Budget Financial Plan for FY 2019 (page T-159)

State Fiscal Year 2018-19 Enacted Budget

The State Fiscal Year 2018-19 Enacted Budget (the “Enacted Budget”) provides approximately
$336 million in increased local assistance funding for DMH agencies. The spending increase is related to,
among other things, support direct care professionals and clinical staff employed by not-for-profit
organizations delivery services on behalf of OPWDD, OMH and OASAS, and new community
investments, new service investments in the OPWDD system. The additional funding increase is offset by
technical adjustments to the Medicaid Global Cap, as a greater share of OPWDD-related spending will be
financed from Global Cap resources. These technical adjustments have no impact on service delivery or
operations of OMH, OPWDD, OASAS or the Justice Center.
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State Fiscal Year 2019-20 Executive Budget

The State Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Executive Budget (the “Executive Budget”) provides
approximately $183 million in increased local assistance funding for DMH agencies. Mental hygiene
spending increases reflect enhancements in community mental health services, community-based
employment and residential opportunities for individuals with disabilities, increased funding to not-for-
profit providers for minimum wage increases, and additional resources to address the heroin and opioid
crisis. The additional funding increase is offset by a shift of program expenses to the Medicaid Global
Cap, as additional DOH Medicaid savings will allow for a greater share of OPWDD and OMH Medicaid
spending to be paid for under the Global Cap. The State Operating Funds growth is more than offset by
the fact that a significant portion of mental hygiene spending is funded with available resources from the
Medicaid Global Cap. This technical adjustment lowers reported mental hygiene spending and increases
Medicaid spending by an identical amount. These technical adjustments have no impact on mental
hygiene service delivery or operations.

Prior Property Approval Process

Prior to initiating the development of a capital project to serve intellectually and developmentally
disabled individuals, a not-for-profit provider is required under Title 14, New York State Codes, Rules
and Regulations Part 620 to complete a Certificate of Need (“CON”) process. The CON application is
reviewed by the OPWDD Developmental Disabilities Services Office in the provider’s region for
compliance with local government and general State plans for needed development as to type of
individuals to be served and the program to be provided.

If CON approval is received and an appropriate program site is identified, a PPA proposal that
details the capital costs associated with the development of the site is prepared by the provider and
regional Developmental Disabilities Services Office. The PPA process was developed to satisfy the
regulatory requirement for OPWDD and the approval process of capital costs for program sites for the
New York State Division of the Budget and to facilitate the capital financing of such sites. The PPA
identifies funding and financing sources for capital costs and the level and method of reimbursement for
such costs.

Securing PPA approval establishes commitments of the voluntary provider, as well as OPWDD.
The provider commits to develop the program to serve a specific number of individuals in a specific type
of facility and program. OPWDD commits to support the development and operation of the project if it is
completed within the approved budget in conformance with the PPA, subject to annual appropriation of
sufficient moneys by the State Legislature. As long as the provider continues to meet the requirements of
the operating certificate, the provider is eligible for such reimbursement. Certain capital costs are not
subject to the PPA process.

PPA Regulatory Compliance Process

OPWDD imposes additional restrictions on certain projects under applicable regulations. These
projects (the “New PPA Lien Projects”) are fee-owned sites for which OPWDD funding is sought for (a)
new acquisition, renovation and development, or (b) “substantial renovation” of an existing OPWDD-
regulated site, with “substantial renovation” defined as renovation expenses that exceed 75% of the fair
market value of the site as determined from the applicable municipal assessment rolls. All of the fee-
owned Series 2019 Facilities that have PPAs are New PPA Lien Projects, except for DDI’s Series 2019
Facility located at 75 Landing Meadow Road, Smithtown, New York (since the PPA for such Series 2019
Project does not relate to a “substantial renovation”); however certain of these New PPA Lien Projects
(the “Renovation Projects”) will also require additional renovations the costs of which have not been
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approved by OPWDD. For a description of which Series 2019 Facilities include Renovation Projects,
see “Appendix A - Description of Series 2019 Participants.”

For New PPA Lien Projects, OPWDD requires that the provider applicant execute a Regulatory
Compliance Contract and a Capital Component Security and Lien Agreement. The Regulatory
Compliance Contract requires that the provider operate an OPWDD-regulated program at the site for 40
years, and that the provider otherwise comply with all applicable OPWDD regulations.

In order to secure performance of the Regulatory Compliance Contract, the Capital Component
Security and Lien Agreement grants OPWDD a first lien on the facility to which the PPA relates and the
furniture, fixtures and equipment thereon, which lien also secures any amounts in the future paid by
OPWDD to satisfy any mortgage, capital expenditures or operating and maintenance expenses, and
professional services and other expenses, incurred by OPWDD.

The Capital Component Security and Lien Agreement also requires the provider to covenant to
operate its program, comply with all laws, maintain insurance, construct, renovate and maintain the
facility, and comply with certain other covenants and conditions. The Capital Component Security and
Lien Agreement restricts transfer and mortgaging of the facility in question, and contains a purchase
option, exercisable by OPWDD, in the amount of the greater of (i) the fair market value of the property
less OPWDD capital contributions or (ii) the principal balance of any Approved Mortgage (as defined
therein) or in the case of a UCP Co-op Facility, an “approved lien.”

Finally, for New PPA Lien Projects, OPWDD has approved a form of Subordination Agreement
in which the rights of OPWDD under the Regulatory Compliance Contract and the Capital Component
Security and Lien Agreement are subordinate to the lien of any Approved Mortgage or in the case of a
Cooperative Facility, an “approved lien” (as approved in writing by OPWDD). The Mortgages granted
on the Series 2019 Facilities are Approved Mortgages and the security interests granted on the Series
2019 Facilities which are Cooperative Facilities are “approved liens.”

OPWDD also enters into Regulatory Compliance Contracts and Capital Component Security and
Lien Agreements with regard to Co-op Facilities.

Commissioner’s Ability to Appoint a Temporary Operating Receiver for a Facility:; Security Interests

Pursuant to the State’s Mental Hygiene Law, the State Commissioner of OPWDD (the
“Commissioner”) has the authority to appoint a Temporary Operating Receiver (“TOR”) when OPWDD
determines that a temporary operator is necessary to ensure continuity of services at a facility, such as the
Series 2019 Facilities. The Commissioner may appoint a TOR to assume sole responsibility for the
operations of the facility for a limited period of time in the event that (i) the established operator is
seeking extraordinary financial assistance; (ii) OPWDD demonstrates that the established operator is
experiencing serious financial instability issues; (iii) OPWDD demonstrates that the established
operator's board of directors or administration is unable or unwilling to ensure the proper operation of the
program; or (iv) OPWDD indicates there are conditions that seriously endanger or jeopardize continued
access to necessary services within the community. In addition, the established operator may at any time
request the Commissioner to appoint a TOR.

The TOR is a provider of services that has been established and issued an operating certificate (an
“Operating Certificate”) for a facility, such as the Series 2019 Facilities, that (a) agrees to provide
services on a temporary basis in the best interests of the individuals served by the program operating in
the facility, (b) has a history of compliance with applicable law, rules and regulations and a record of
providing care of good quality, as determined by the Commissioner and (c) prior to appointment as a
TOR, develops a plan determined to be satisfactory by the Commissioner to address the program’s
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deficiencies. The TOR shall use its best efforts to implement the plan deemed satisfactory by the
Commissioner to correct or eliminate any deficiencies in the program and to promote the quality and
accessibility of services in the community served by the provider of services. During the term of
appointment, the TOR shall have the authority to direct the staff of the established operator as necessary
to appropriately provide services for individuals. The initial term of the appointment of the TOR shall
not exceed ninety days. After ninety days, if the Commissioner determines that termination of the TOR
would cause significant deterioration of the quality of, or access to, care in the community or that
reappointment is necessary to correct the deficiencies that required the appointment of the TOR, the
Commissioner may authorize an additional ninety-day term. However, such authorization shall include
the Commissioner's requirements for conclusion of the temporary operatorship to be satisfied within the
additional term. Notwithstanding the appointment of a TOR, the established operator shall remain
obligated for the continued provision of services.

The Mental Hygiene Law provides that no security interest in any real or personal property
comprising the facility, contained within the facility or in any fixture of the facility, shall be impaired or
diminished in priority by the TOR.

OPWDD Rights With Respect to Series 2019 Facilities

In addition to the statutory receivership remedy described above, each Series 2019 Loan
Agreement provides for a contractual remedy upon the failure of a Series 2019 Participant to operate its
Series 2019 Facilities in accordance with regulatory standards. Each Series 2019 Participant has
covenanted and agreed in its Series 2019 Loan Agreement that in the event that it fails to operate a
certified program for the developmentally disabled at one or more of its Series 2019 Facilities in
accordance with the valid operating certificate issued by OPWDD for such Series 2019 Facility, in
addition to any other legal remedies OPWDD may have, OPWDD shall have the right (after written
notice and a request to remedy such failure and without resort to judicial proceedings) to use, possess and
occupy such Series 2019 Facility for the remaining term during which such Series 2019 Participant has
agreed to operate such certified program at the Series 2019 Facility and, further, may assign such rights to
another operator. In such event, OPWDD or any assignee will be required to make the payments owed by
the Series 2019 Participant under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement with respect to such Series 2019
Facility as they become due and owing. See “Appendix D - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Series
2019 Loan Agreements” for further details of OPWDD’s rights with respect to the Series 2019 Facilities
and DASNY’s remedy upon an event of default by a Series 2019 Participant under its Series 2019 Loan
Agreement to request OPWDD to exercise such rights.
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PART 6 - ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The following table sets forth the estimated sources and uses of proceeds of the Series 2019

Bonds:
Subseries Subseries
2019A-1 2019A-2
Bonds Bonds
Estimated Sources of Funds
Proceeds of Series 2019 Bonds $25,855,000.00 $1,015,000.00
Net Original Issue Premium 87.047.15 0.00
Total Sources of Funds $25.972,047.15 $1.015,000.00
Estimated Uses of Funds
Deposit to Project Loan Fund $24,371,821.05 $27,596.69
Deposit to Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Fund 838,238.53 25,147.15
Deposit to Series 2019 Account of Debt Service Fund 9,746.63 0.00
Underwriter’s Discount 519,440.94 172,776.81
Costs of Issuance 232.800.00 789.479.35
Total Uses of Funds $25972,047.15 $1,015,000.00

PART 7 - DASNY
Background, Purposes and Powers

DASNY is a body corporate and politic constituting a public benefit corporation. DASNY was
created in 1944 to finance and build dormitories at State teachers’ colleges to provide housing for the
large influx of students returning to college on the G.I. Bill following World War II. Over the years, the
State Legislature has expanded DASNY’s scope of responsibilities. Today, pursuant to the Dormitory
Authority Act, DASNY is authorized to finance, design, construct or rehabilitate facilities for use by a
variety of public and private not-for-profit entities.

DASNY provides financing services to its clients in three major areas: public facilities; not-for-
profit healthcare; and independent higher education and other not-for-profit institutions. DASNY issues
State-supported debt, including State Personal Income Tax Revenue Bonds and State Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds, on behalf of public clients such as The State University of New York, The City University of New
York, the Departments of Health and Education of the State, the Office of Mental Health, the Office of
People with Developmental Disabilities, the Office of Alcoholism and Substance Abuse Services, the
Office of General Services, and the Office of General Services of the State on behalf of the Department of
Audit and Control. Other public clients for whom DASNY issues debt include Boards of Cooperative
Educational Services (“BOCES”), State University of New York, the Workers’ Compensation Board,
school districts across the State and certain cities and counties that have accessed DASNY for the purpose
of providing court facilities. DASNY’s private clients include independent colleges and universities,
private hospitals, certain private secondary schools, special education schools, facilities for the aged,
primary care facilities, libraries, museums, research centers and government-supported voluntary
agencies, among others.
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To carry out its programs, DASNY is authorized to issue and sell negotiable bonds and notes to
finance the construction of facilities for such institutions, to issue bonds or notes to refund outstanding
bonds or notes and to lend funds to such institutions. At December 31, 2018, DASNY had approximately
$55.2 billion aggregate principal amount of bonds and notes outstanding. DASNY also is authorized to
make tax-exempt leases, with its Tax-Exempt Leasing Program (TELP). As part of its operating
activities, DASNY also administers a wide variety of grants authorized by the State for economic
development, education and community improvement and payable to both public and private grantees
from proceeds of State Personal Income Tax Revenue Bonds issued by DASNY.

DASNY is a conduit debt issuer. Under existing law, and assuming continuing compliance with
tax law, interest on most bonds and notes issued by DASNY has been determined to be excludable from
gross income for federal tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended. All of DASNY’s outstanding bonds and notes, both fixed and variable rate, are special
obligations of DASNY payable solely from payments required to be made by or for the account of the
client institution for which the particular special obligations were issued. DASNY has no obligation to
pay its special obligations other than from such payments. DASNY has always paid the principal of and
interest on all of its obligations on time and in full; however, as a conduit debt issuer, payments on
DASNY’s special obligations are solely dependent upon payments made by DASNY’s client for which
the particular special obligations were issued and the security provisions relating thereto.

DASNY also offers a variety of construction services to certain educational, governmental and
not-for-profit institutions in the areas of project planning, design and construction, monitoring project
construction, purchasing of furnishings and equipment for projects, interior design of projects and
designing and managing projects to rehabilitate older facilities.

In connection with the powers described above, DASNY has the general power to acquire real
and personal property, give mortgages, make contracts, operate certain facilities and fix and collect
rentals or other charges for their use, contract with the holders of its bonds and notes as to such rentals
and charges, borrow money and adopt a program of self-insurance.

DASNY has a staff of approximately 507 employees located in three main offices (Albany, New
York City and Buffalo) and at approximately 46 field sites across the State.

Governance

DASNY is governed by an eleven-member board. Board members include the Commissioner of
Education of the State, the Commissioner of Health of the State, the State Comptroller or one member
appointed by him or her who serves until his or her successor is appointed, the Director of the Budget of
the State, one member appointed by the Temporary President of the State Senate, one member appointed
by the Speaker of the State Assembly and five members appointed by the Governor, with the advice and
consent of the Senate, for terms of three years. The Commissioner of Education of the State, the
Commissioner of Health of the State and the Director of the Budget of the State each may appoint a
representative to attend and vote at DASNY meetings. The members of DASNY serve without
compensation, but are entitled to reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.
The appointment to the Board by the State Comptroller is currently vacant.

The Governor of the State appoints a Chair from the members appointed by him or her and the

members of DASNY annually choose the following officers, of which the first two must be members of
DASNY:: Vice-Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers.
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The current members of DASNY are as follows:
ALFONSO L. CARNEY, JR., Chair, New York.

Alfonso L. Carney, Jr. was reappointed as a Member of DASNY by the Governor on June 19,
2013. Mr. Carney is a principal of Rockwood Partners, LLC, which provides medical consulting services
in New York City. He has served as Acting Chief Operating Officer and Corporate Secretary for the
Goldman Sachs Foundation in New York where, working with the President of the Foundation, he
managed the staff of the Foundation, provided strategic oversight of the administration, communications
and legal affairs teams, and developed selected Foundation program initiatives. Mr. Carney has held
senior level legal positions with Altria Group Inc., Philip Morris Companies Inc., Philip Morris
Management Corporation, Kraft Foods, Inc. and General Foods Corporation. Mr. Carney holds a
Bachelor’s degree in philosophy from Trinity College and a Juris Doctor degree from the University of
Virginia School of Law. His term expired on March 31, 2016 and by law he continues to serve until a
successor shall be chosen and qualified.

JOHN B. JOHNSON, JR., Vice-Chair, Watertown.

John B. Johnson, Jr. was reappointed as a Member of DASNY by the Governor on June 19, 2013.
Mr. Johnson is Chairman of the Board of the Johnson Newspaper Corporation, which publishes the
Watertown Daily Times, Batavia Daily News, Malone Telegram, Catskill Daily Mail, Hudson Register
Star, Ogdensburg Journal, Massena-Potsdam Courier Observer, seven weekly newspapers and three
shopping newspapers. He holds a Bachelor’s degree from Vanderbilt University, and Master’s degrees in
Journalism and Business Administration from the Columbia University Graduate School of Journalism
and Business. Mr. Johnson was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Science degree from Clarkson
University. Mr. Johnson’s term expired on March 31, 2016 and by law he continues to serve until a
successor shall be chosen and qualified.

PAUL S. ELLIS, ESQ., Secretary, New York.

Paul S. Ellis was appointed as a Member of DASNY by the Speaker of the State Assembly on
September 19, 2016. Mr. Ellis is the Managing Member of Paul Ellis Law Group LLC, a law firm with a
corporate/securities/capital markets practice with emphasis on private placements, mergers and
acquisitions, venture capital/private equity transactions and joint ventures. He previously worked for
Donovan Leisure Newton & Irvine and Winston & Strawn and served in staff positions in the U.S. Senate
and the Massachusetts House of Representatives. He co-founded the New York Technology Council and
serves on the Board of the NY Tech Alliance and as Chairman of the Housing Committee of Bronx
Community Board 8. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Harvard University and a Juris Doctor
degree from Georgetown University Law Center.

JONATHAN H. GARDNER, ESQ., Buffalo.

Jonathan H. Gardner was appointed as a Member of DASNY by the Governor on June 17, 2014.
Mr. Gardner is a partner of the law firm Kavinoky Cook, LLP in Buffalo, New York. His practice areas
include corporate and securities law, commercial transactions, private placements, venture capital
financing and business combinations representing private and public companies. Mr. Gardner is also an
adjunct professor at the University of Buffalo Law School. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from
Brown University and a Juris Doctor degree from the University of Chicago Law School. Mr. Gardner’s
term expired on March 31, 2015 and by law he continues to serve until a successor shall be chosen and
qualified.
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WELLINGTON Z. CHEN, Queens.

Wellington Z. Chen was appointed as a Member of DASNY by the Governor on June 20, 2018.
Mr. Chen is the Executive Director of the Chinatown Partnership Development Corporation. In this
capacity, he leads the Chinatown Partnership in implementing initiatives in infrastructure, post 9/11
rebuilding and public space improvements in a comprehensive effort to improve the environmental and
the business conditions. He is a graduate of the School of Architecture and Environmental Studies at The
City College of New York. Mr. Chen’s term expires on March 31, 2020.

BERYL L. SNYDER, J.D., New York.

Beryl L. Snyder was reappointed as a member of DASNY by the Governor on June 19, 2013.
Ms. Snyder is a principal in HBJ Investments, LLC, an investment company where her duties include
evaluation and analysis of a wide variety of investments in, among other areas: fixed income, equities,
alternative investments and early stage companies. She holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in History from
Vassar College and a Juris Doctor degree from Rutgers University. Her current term expired on August
31, 2016 and by law she continues to serve until a successor shall be chosen and qualified.

GERARD ROMSKI, ESQ., Mount Kisco.

Gerard Romski was reappointed as a Member of DASNY by the Temporary President of the
State Senate on May 9, 2016. He is Counsel and Project Executive for “Arverne by the Sea,” where he is
responsible for advancing and overseeing all facets of “Arverne by the Sea,” one of New York City’s
largest mixed-use developments located in Queens, New York. Mr. Romski is also of counsel to the New
York City law firm of Rich, Intelisano & Katz, LLP. Mr. Romski holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from
the New York Institute of Technology and a Juris Doctor degree from Brooklyn Law School.

MARYELLEN ELIA, Commissioner of Education of the State of New York, Loudonville; ex-
officio.

MaryEllen Elia was appointed by the Board of Regents to serve as Commissioner of Education
and President of the University of the State of New York effective July 6, 2015. As Commissioner of
Education, Ms. Elia serves as Chief Executive Officer of the State Education Department and as President
of the University of the State of New York which is comprised of public and non-public elementary and
secondary schools, public and independent colleges and universities, libraries, museums, broadcasting
facilities, historical repositories, proprietary schools and services for children and adults with disabilities.
Prior to her appointment in New York, Ms. Elia served as Superintendent of Schools in Hillsborough
County, Florida for 10 years. She began her career in education in 1970 as a social studies teacher in
Buffalo’s Sweet Home Central School District and taught for 19 years before becoming an administrator.
She holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in History from Daemen College in Buffalo, a Master of Education
from the University at Buffalo and a Master of Professional Studies from SUNY Buffalo.

HOWARD A. ZUCKER, M.D., J.D., Commissioner of Health of the State of New York, Albany;
ex-officio.

Howard A. Zucker, M.D., J.D., was appointed Commissioner of Health on May 5, 2015 after
serving as Acting Commissioner of Health since May 5, 2014. Prior to that, he served as First Deputy
Commissioner leading the State Department of Health’s preparedness and response initiatives in natural
disasters and emergencies. Before joining the State Department of Health, Dr. Zucker was professor of
Clinical Anesthesiology at Albert Einstein College of Medicine of Yeshiva University and a pediatric
cardiac anesthesiologist at Montefiore Medical Center. He was also an adjunct professor at Georgetown
University Law School where he taught biosecurity law. Dr. Zucker earned his medical degree from
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George Washington University School of Medicine. He also holds a Juris Doctor degree from Fordham
University School of Law and a Master of Laws degree from Columbia Law School.

ROBERT F. MUJICA, JR., Budget Director of the State of New York, Albany; ex-officio.

Robert F. Mujica Jr. was appointed Director of the Budget by the Governor and began serving on
January 14, 2016. He is responsible for the overall development and management of the State’s fiscal
policy, including overseeing the preparation of budget recommendations for all State agencies and
programs, economic and revenue forecasting, tax policy, fiscal planning, capital financing and
management of the State’s debt portfolio. Prior to his appointment, Mr. Mujica was Chief of Staff to the
Temporary President and Majority Leader of the Senate and concurrently served as the Secretary to the
Senate Finance Committee. For two decades, he advised various elected and other government officials
in New York on State budget, fiscal and policy issues. Mr. Mujica received his Bachelor of Arts degree
in Sociology from Brooklyn College at the City University of New York. He received his Master's degree
in Government Administration from the University of Pennsylvania and holds a Juris Doctor degree from
Albany Law School.

The principal staff of DASNY is as follows:

GERRARD P. BUSHELL is the President and chief executive officer of DASNY. Mr. Bushell is
responsible for the overall management of DASNY’s administration and operations. Prior to joining
DASNY, Mr. Bushell was Director, Senior Institutional Advisor of BNY Mellon’s alternative and
traditional investment management businesses. Prior thereto, he held a number of senior advisory roles,
including Director, Client Partner Group at Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. (KKR), Managing Director,
Institutional Sales at Arden Asset Management LLC and Head of Institutional Sales at ClearBridge: a
Legg Mason Company (formerly Citi Asset Management). Mr. Bushell previously served as Director of
Intergovernmental Affairs for New York State Comptroller H. Carl McCall. Mr. Bushell holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree, Master of Arts degree and Ph.D. in Political Science from Columbia University.

MICHAEL T. CORRIGAN is the Vice President of DASNY, and assists the President in the
administration and operation of DASNY. Mr. Corrigan came to DASNY in 1995 as Budget Director, and
served as Deputy Chief Financial Officer from 2000 until 2003. He began his government service career
in 1983 as a budget analyst for Rensselaer County and served as the County’s Budget Director from 1986
to 1995. Immediately before coming to DASNY, he served as the appointed Rensselaer County
Executive for a short period. Mr. Corrigan holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the State
University of New York at Plattsburgh and a Master of Arts degree in Business Administration from the
University of Massachusetts.

KIMBERLY J. NADEAU is the Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of DASNY. As Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer, Ms. Nadeau is responsible for supervising DASNY’s investment
program, general accounting, accounts payable, accounts receivable, financial reporting functions, budget,
payroll, insurance and information services, as well as the development and implementation of financial
policies, financial management systems and internal controls for financial reporting. She previously was
Vice President-Accounting and Controller for US Light Energy. Prior to that she was Vice President-
Accounting and Controller for CH Energy Group, Inc. and held various positions culminating in a
director level position at Northeast Utilities. Ms. Nadeau also held various positions with increasing
responsibility at Coopers & Lybrand LLP. She holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting, a
Master of Business Administration with a concentration in Management and a Juris Doctor degree from
the University of Connecticut. She is licensed to practice law in New York and Connecticut.

MICHAEL E. CUSACK is General Counsel to DASNY. Mr. Cusack is responsible for all legal
services including legislation, litigation, contract matters, and the legal aspects of all DASNY financings.
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In addition, he is responsible for the supervision of DASNY’s environmental affairs unit. He is licensed
to practice law in the State of New York and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, as well as the United
States District Court for the Northern District of New York. Mr. Cusack has over twenty years of
combined legal experience, including management of an in-house legal department and external counsel
teams (and budgets) across a five-state region. He most recently served as of counsel to the Albany, New
York law firm of Young/Sommer, LLC, where his practice included representation of upstate New York
municipalities, telecommunications service providers in the siting of public utility/personal wireless
service facilities and other private sector clients. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree from Siena
College and a Juris Doctor degree from Albany Law School of Union University.

PORTIA LEE is the Managing Director of Public Finance and Portfolio Monitoring. She is
responsible for supervising and directing DASNY bond issuance in the capital markets, implementing and
overseeing financing programs, overseeing DASNY’s compliance with continuing disclosure
requirements and monitoring the financial condition of existing DASNY clients. Ms. Lee previously
served as Senior Investment Officer at the New York State Comptroller’s Office where she was
responsible for assisting in the administration of the long-term fixed income portfolio of the New York
State Common Retirement Fund, as well as the short-term portfolio, and the Securities Lending Program.
From 1995 to 2005, Ms. Lee worked at Moody’s Investors Service where she most recently served as
Vice President and Senior Credit Officer in the Public Finance Housing Group. She holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree from the State University of New York at Albany.

STEPHEN D. CURRO is the Managing Director of Construction. Mr. Curro is responsible for
DASNY’s construction groups, including design, project management, resource acquisition, contract
administration, interior design, real property, sustainability and engineering, as well as other technical
services. Mr. Curro joined DASNY in 2001 as Director of Technical Services, and most recently served
as Director of Construction Support Services. He is a registered Professional Engineer in New York and
has worked in the construction industry for more than 30 years. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Civil
Engineering from the University of Rhode Island, a Master of Engineering in Structural Engineering from
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute and a Master of Business Administration from Rensselaer Polytechnic
Institute’s Lally School of Management.

CAROLINE V. GRIFFIN is the Chief of Staff of DASNY. She is responsible for overseeing
intergovernmental relations and managing the Communications & Marketing Department, as well as
coordinating policy and operations across DASNY’s multiple business lines. Ms. Griffin most recently
served as the Director of Intergovernmental Affairs for Governor Andrew M. Cuomo where she worked
as the Governor’s liaison with federal, state and local elected officials and managed staff serving in
various capacities in the Governor’s Office. Prior to that she served as the Assistant Executive Deputy
Secretary for Governor Andrew M. Cuomo overseeing the operations staff and Assistant Secretary for
Intergovernmental Affairs for both Governor David A. Paterson and Governor Eliot Spitzer. She holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Communications from Boston College.

Claims and Litigation
Although certain claims and litigation have been asserted or commenced against DASNY,
DASNY believes that such claims and litigation either are covered by insurance or by bonds filed with

DASNY, or that DASNY has sufficient funds available or the legal power and ability to seek sufficient
funds to meet any such claims or judgments resulting from such matters.
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Other Matters

New York State Public Authorities Control Board

The New York State Public Authorities Control Board (the “PACB”) has authority to approve the
financing and construction of any new or reactivated projects proposed by DASNY and certain other
public authorities of the State. The PACB approves the proposed new projects only upon its
determination that there are commitments of funds sufficient to finance the acquisition and construction
of the projects. DASNY obtains the approval of the PACB for the issuance of all of its bonds and notes.

Legislation

From time to time, bills are introduced into the State Legislature which, if enacted into law,
would affect DASNY and its operations. DASNY is not able to represent whether such bills will be
introduced or become law in the future. In addition, the State undertakes periodic studies of public
authorities in the State (including DASNY) and their financing programs. Any of such periodic studies
could result in proposed legislation which, if adopted, would affect DASNY and its operations.

Environmental Quality Review

DASNY complies with the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act and with the New
York State Historic Preservation Act of 1980, and the respective regulations promulgated thereunder to
the extent such acts and regulations are applicable.

Independent Auditors

The accounting firm of KPMG LLP audited the financial statements of DASNY for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2018. Copies of the most recent audited financial statements are available upon
request at the offices of DASNY.

PART 8 - LEGALITY OF THE SERIES 2019 BONDS
FOR INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT

Under State law, the Series 2019 Bonds are securities in which all public officers and bodies of
the State and all municipalities and municipal subdivisions, all insurance companies and associations, all
savings banks and savings institutions, including savings and loan associations, administrators, guardians,
executors, trustees, committees, conservators and other fiduciaries in the State may properly and legally
invest funds in their control.

The Series 2019 Bonds may be deposited with the State Comptroller to secure deposits of State
moneys in banks, trust companies and industrial banks.

PART 9 - NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENTS
The Series 2019 Bonds are negotiable instruments as provided in the Act, subject to the

provisions for registration and transfer contained in the Resolution, the Series 2019 Resolution and in the
Series 2019 Bonds.
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PART 10 - TAX MATTERS
Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds

Opinion of Co-Bond Counsel

In the opinion of Barclay Damon LLP, Co-Bond Counsel to DASNY, under existing law and
assuming compliance with the certain covenants described herein and the accuracy and completeness of
certain representations, certifications of fact and statements of reasonable expectations by DASNY, the
Series 2019 Participants, as applicable, and others, interest on the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds is excluded
from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the “Code™), and interest on the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds is not an item of tax
preference for purposes of the alternative minimum tax imposed under the Code. Barclay Damon LLP is
further of the opinion that, under existing statutes, interest on the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds is exempt
from personal income taxes imposed by the State of New York or any political subdivision thereof
(including The City of New York and the City of Yonkers).

Barclay Damon LLP expresses no opinion regarding any other federal, state or local tax
consequences with respect to the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds. The opinion of Barclay Damon LLP speaks
as of its issue date and does not contain or provide any opinion or assurance regarding the future activities
of DASNY, any Series 2019 Participant or about the effect of future changes in the Code, the applicable
regulations, rulings, judicial decisions, the interpretation thereof or the enforcement thereof by the IRS.
See “Appendix H — Forms of Approving Opinions of Co-Bond Counsel.”

General

The Code imposes various requirements that must be met in order that interest on the Subseries
2019A-1 Bonds be and remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Included
among these requirements are restrictions on the investment and use of proceeds of the Subseries 2019A-
1 Bonds and the rebate of certain earnings in respect of such investments to the United States. DASNY,
each of the Series 2019 Participants, as applicable, and others have made certain representations,
certifications of fact, and statements of reasonable expectations and DASNY and each of the Series 2019
Participants, as applicable, have given certain ongoing covenants to comply with applicable requirements
of the Code to assure the exclusion of interest on the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds from gross income under
Section 103 of the Code. The opinion of Barclay Damon LLP assumes continuing compliance with such
covenants as well as the accuracy and completeness of such representations, certifications of fact, and
statements of reasonable expectations. In addition, in rendering its opinion, Barclay Damon LLP has
relied on the opinion of counsel to the Series 2019 Participants regarding, among other matters, the
current status of the Series 2019 Participants as organizations described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.

In the event of the inaccuracy or incompleteness of any such representation, certification or
statement, or of the failure by DASNY or any Series 2019 Participant to comply with any such covenant,
the interest on the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds could become includable in gross income for federal income
tax purposes retroactive to the date of original execution and delivery of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds,
regardless of the date on which the event causing such inclusion occurs. Further, although the interest on
the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, receipt or
accrual of the interest may otherwise affect the tax liability of a Beneficial Owner of a Subseries 2019A-1
Bond. The tax effect of receipt or accrual of the interest will depend upon the tax status of a Beneficial
Owner of a Subseries 2019A-1 Bond and such Beneficial Owner's other items of income, deduction or
credit. Barclay Damon LLP expresses no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences arising
with respect to the ownership or disposition, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Subseries 2019A-
1 Bonds.

-390-



Certain Collateral Federal Income Tax Consequences

Prospective purchasers of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds should be aware that ownership of,
accrual or receipt of interest on, or disposition of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds may have collateral
federal income tax consequences for certain taxpayers, including financial corporations, insurance
companies, Subchapter S corporations, certain foreign corporations, individual recipients of social
security or railroad retirement benefits, individuals benefiting from the earned income credit and
taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry such
obligations. Prospective purchasers should consult their own tax advisors as to any possible collateral
consequences of their ownership of, accrual or receipt of interest on, or disposition of the Subseries
2019A-1 Bonds. Barclay Damon LLP expresses no opinion regarding any such collateral federal income
tax consequences.

Original Issue Discount

The excess of the principal amount of a maturity of a Subseries 2019A-1 Bond over the issue
price of such maturity of a Subseries 2019A-1 Bond (a “Tax-Exempt Discount Bond”) constitutes
“original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent properly allocable to the Beneficial Owner
thereof, constitutes “original issue discount” which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes to the same extent as interest on such Tax-Exempt Discount Bond. For this purpose, the issue
price of a maturity of Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds is the first price at which a substantial amount of such
maturity of Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds is sold to the public. Further, such original issue discount accrues
actuarially on a constant yield basis over the term of each Tax-Exempt Discount Bond and the basis of
such Tax-Exempt Discount Bond acquired at such initial offering price by an initial purchaser of each
Tax-Exempt Discount Bond will be increased by the amount of such accrued discount. Beneficial
Owners of Tax-Exempt Discount Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax
consequences of ownership of Tax-Exempt Discount Bonds.

Premium Bonds

Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, at prices greater
than the stated principal amount thereof are “Tax-Exempt Premium Bonds.” Tax-Exempt Premium
Bonds will be subject to requirements under the Code relating to tax cost reduction associated with the
amortization of bond premium and, under certain circumstances, the Beneficial Owner of Tax-Exempt
Premium Bonds may realize taxable gain upon disposition of such Tax-Exempt Premium Bonds even
though sold or redeemed for an amount less than or equal to such owner’s original cost of acquiring Tax-
Exempt Premium Bonds. The amortization requirements may also result in the reduction of the amount of
stated interest that a Beneficial Owner of Tax-Exempt Premium Bonds is treated as having received for
federal tax purposes (and an adjustment to basis). Beneficial Owners of Tax-Exempt Premium Bonds are
advised to consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Tax-
Exempt Premium Bonds.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

Interest paid on tax-exempt obligations is subject to information reporting to the Internal Revenue
Service (“IRS”) in a manner similar to interest paid on taxable obligations. Interest on the Subseries
2019A-1 Bonds may be subject to backup withholding if such interest is paid to a registered owner who
or which (i) fails to provide certain identifying information (such as the registered owner’s taxpayer
identification number) in the manner required by the IRS, or (ii) has been identified by the IRS as being
subject to backup withholding. Amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules will be paid to the
IRS as federal income tax withheld on behalf of the registered owner of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds and
would be allowed as a refund or credit against such owner’s federal income tax liability (or the federal
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income tax liability of the beneficial owner of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds, if other than the registered
owner).

Legislation

Current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, administrative actions or court
decisions, at either the federal or state level, may cause interest on the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds to be
subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation or to be subjected to state income taxation, or
otherwise have an adverse impact on the potential benefits of the exclusion from gross income of the
interest on the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds for federal or state income tax purposes. The introduction or
enactment of any such legislative proposals, administrative actions or court decisions may also affect,
perhaps significantly, the value or marketability of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds. It is not possible to
predict whether any legislative or administrative actions or court decisions having an adverse impact on
the federal or state income tax treatment of Beneficial Owners of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds may
occur. Prospective purchasers of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds should consult their own advisors
regarding any pending or proposed federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation, and regarding
the impact of future legislation, regulations or litigation, as to which Barclay Damon LLP expresses no
opinion. The opinion of Barclay Damon LLP is based on current legal authority, covers certain matters
not directly addressed by such authority and represents the judgment of Barclay Damon LLP as to the
proper treatment of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds for federal income tax purposes. It is not binding on
the IRS or the courts.

Post Issuance Events

Barclay Damon LLP’s engagement with respect to the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds ends with the
issuance of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds and, unless separately engaged, Barclay Damon LLP is not
obligated to defend DASNY or the Beneficial Owners regarding the tax-exempt status of interest on the
Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds in the event of an audit examination by the IRS. Under current procedures,
parties other than DASNY and its appointed counsel, including the Beneficial Owners, would have little,
if any, right to participate in the audit examination process. Moreover, because achieving judicial review
in connection with an audit examination of tax-exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent review
of IRS positions with which DASNY legitimately disagrees may not be practicable. Any action of the
IRS, including but not limited to selection of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds for audit, or the course or
result of such audit, or an audit of bonds presenting similar tax issues may affect the market price for, or
the marketability of, the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds, and may cause DASNY, the Series 2019 Participants,
as applicable, or the Beneficial Owners to incur significant expense.

Prospective purchasers of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds should consult their own tax advisors
regarding the foregoing matters.

Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds

Opinion of Co-Bond Counsel

In the opinion of Barclay Damon LLP, Co-Bond Counsel to DASNY, interest on the Subseries
2019A-2 Bonds is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of
the Code, and is exempt, under existing statutes, from personal income taxes imposed by the State of New
York or any political subdivision thereof (including The City of New York and the City of Yonkers).

Barclay Damon LLP expresses no opinion regarding any other federal, state or local tax
consequences with respect to the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds. The opinion of Barclay Damon LLP speaks
as of its issue date and does not contain or provide any opinion or assurance regarding the future activities
of DASNY, any Series 2019 Participant or about the effect of future changes in the Code, the applicable
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regulations, rulings, judicial decisions, the interpretation thereof or the enforcement thereof by the IRS.
See “Appendix H — Forms of Approving Opinions of Co-Bond Counsel.”

General

The following discussion is a brief summary of certain United States federal income tax
consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds by original
purchasers of the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds who are “U.S. Holders”, as defined herein. This summary (i)
is based on the Code, Treasury regulations, revenue rulings and court decisions, all as currently in effect
and all subject to change at any time, possibly with retroactive effect; (ii) assumes that the Subseries
2019A-2 Bonds will be held as “capital assets;” and (iii) does not discuss all of the United States federal
income tax consequences that may be relevant to a holder in light of its particular circumstances or to
holders subject to special rules, such as insurance companies, financial institutions, tax-exempt
organizations, dealers in securities or foreign currencies, persons holding the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds as
a position in a “hedge” or “straddle,” holders whose functional currency (as defined in Section 985 of the
Code) is not the United States dollar, holders who acquire Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds in the secondary
market, or individuals, estates and trusts subject to the tax on unearned income imposed by Section 1411
of the Code.

Holders of Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors concerning the
United States federal income tax and other consequences with respect to the acquisition, ownership and
disposition of the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds as well as any tax consequences that may arise under the
laws of any state, local or foreign tax jurisdiction.

As used herein, the term “U.S. Holder” means a Beneficial Owner of a Subseries 2019A-2 Bond
that is: (i) a citizen or resident of the United States, (ii) a corporation, partnership or other entity created
or organized in or under the laws of the United States or of any political subdivision thereof, (iii) an estate
the income of which is subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of its source or (iv) a
trust whose administration is subject to the primary jurisdiction of a United States court and which has
one or more United States fiduciaries who have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the
trust.

Interest on the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds

Interest on the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds that is “qualified stated interest” generally will be
taxable to a U.S. Holder as ordinary interest income at the time such payments are accrued or received (in
accordance with the U.S. Holder's regular method of tax accounting). Generally, “qualified stated
interest” means stated interest that is unconditionally payable in cash or property (other than debt
instruments of the issuer) at least annually at a single fixed rate and includes the semi-annual interest
payments on the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds.

Original issue discount with respect to a Subseries 2019A-2 Bond is equal to the excess of the
stated redemption price at maturity of a Subseries 2019A-2 Bond over the initial offering price thereof to
the public at which price a substantial amount of all Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds with the same maturity
were sold, provided that such excess equals or exceeds a de minimis amount (generally 4% of the
product of the stated redemption price of a bond at maturity and the number of complete years from its
issue date to its maturity) (a “Taxable Discount Bond”). The stated redemption price at maturity of a
Taxable Discount Bond is the sum of all scheduled amounts payable on the Taxable Discount Bond (other
than qualified stated interest). A U.S. Holder of Taxable Discount Bonds must include the discount in
income as ordinary interest for federal income tax purposes as it accrues in advance of receipt of cash
payments attributable to such income, regardless of the U.S. Holder's regular method of tax accounting.
Original issue discount accrues actuarially on a constant yield basis over the term of each Taxable
Discount Bond and the basis of such Taxable Discount Bond acquired at such initial offering price by an
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initial purchaser of each Taxable Discount Bond will be increased by the amount of such accrued
discount. U.S. Holders of any Taxable Discount Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors with
respect to the tax consequences of ownership of such Taxable Discount Bond.

In general, if a U.S. Holder purchases a Subseries 2019A-2 Bond at a price greater than the
principal amount payable at maturity, such U.S. Holder will be considered to have purchased the
Subseries 2019A-2 Bond at a premium (the “Taxable Premium Bond”), and generally may elect to
amortize the premium as an offset to interest income otherwise required to be included in respect of a
Taxable Premium Bond during a taxable year, using a constant-yield method, over the remaining term of
the Taxable Premium Bond. If a U.S. Holder makes the election to amortize the premium, it generally
will apply to all taxable debt instruments held by such U.S. Holder at the beginning of the first taxable
year to which the election applies, as well as any debt instruments that are subsequently acquired by such
U.S. Holder. In addition, a U.S. Holder may not revoke the election without the consent of the IRS. If
such U.S. Holder elects to amortize the premium, such U.S. Holder will be required to reduce its tax basis
in the Taxable Premium Bond by the amount of the premium amortized during the holding period of the
U.S. Holder. If a U.S. Holder does not elect to amortize the premium and holds the Taxable Premium
Bond to maturity, the premium will decrease the amount of gain or increase the amount of loss otherwise
recognized on the disposition of such Taxable Premium Bond. If a Taxable Premium Bond is optionally
callable before maturity at a price in excess of its stated redemption price at maturity, special rules for
determining the amount of amortizable bond premium may apply. U.S. Holders of any Taxable Premium
Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of
Taxable Premium Bonds.

Certain non-corporate U.S. Holders will be subject to a 3.8% tax, in addition to regular tax on
income and gains, on some or all of their net investment income, which generally will include interest on
the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds and any net gain recognized upon a disposition of a Subseries 2019A-2
Bond. U.S. Holders should consult with their tax advisors regarding the applicability of this tax.

Disposition and Defeasance

Upon the sale, exchange, redemption, or other disposition (which would include a legal
defeasance) of a Subseries 2019A-2 Bond, a U.S. Holder generally will recognize taxable gain or loss in
an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized (other than amounts attributable to
accrued interest not previously includable in income) and such U.S. Holder’s adjusted tax basis in the
Subseries 2019A-2 Bond.

U.S. Holders should be aware that, for federal income tax purposes, DASNY may cause the
deposit of moneys or securities in escrow in such amount and manner as to cause the Subseries 2019A-2
Bonds to be deemed to be no longer outstanding under the General Resolution (a “defeasance”). (See
“Appendix F - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Resolutions”). For federal income tax purposes,
such defeasance could result in a deemed exchange under Section 1001 of the Code and a recognition by
such owner of taxable income or loss, without any corresponding receipt of moneys. In addition, for
federal income tax purposes, the character and timing of receipt of payments on the Subseries 2019A-2
Bonds subsequent to any such defeasance could also be affected. U.S. Holders of the Subseries 2019A-2
Bonds are advised to consult with their own tax advisors regarding the consequences of a defeasance for
federal income tax purposes and for state and local purposes.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

In general, interest paid on taxable obligations is subject to information reporting to the IRS.
Interest on the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds may be subject to backup withholding if such interest is paid to
a registered owner who or which (i) fails to provide certain identifying information (such as the registered
owner’s taxpayer identification number) in the manner required by the IRS, or (ii) has been identified by
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the IRS as being subject to backup withholding. Amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules
will be paid to the IRS as federal income tax withheld on behalf of the registered owner of the Subseries
2019A-2 Bonds and will be allowed as a refund or credit against such owner’s federal income tax liability
(or the federal income tax liability of the beneficial owner of the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds, if other than
the registered owner).

Under the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (“FATCA?”), foreign financial institutions must
comply with information reporting rules with respect to their U.S. account holders and investors or be
required to withhold tax on certain payments on, and proceeds from the sale or disposition of, obligations
that produce U.S. source income to foreign financial institutions.

Legislation

Legislation considered by the Federal government, or the New York State Legislature, or court
decisions, whether at the federal or state level, may adversely affect the tax-exempt status of interest on
the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds under state law and could affect the market value or marketability of the
Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds.

Prospective purchasers of the Subseries 2019A-2 Bonds should consult their own tax advisors
regarding the foregoing matters.

PART 11 - BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS
General

The Series 2019 Bonds involve a certain degree of risk. Prospective investors in the Series 2019
Bonds should carefully review all of the information in this Official Statement, including the Appendices,
as well as information incorporated herein by reference, prior to purchasing any of the Series 2019 Bonds.
This Official Statement contains only summaries of the Resolution, the Series 2019 Resolution, the Series
2019 Loan Agreements and the related documents. Prospective investors are urged to read such
documents in their entirety prior to investing in the Series 2019 Bonds. Copies of such documents may
be obtained from the Underwriter prior to the issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds. See Appendix A for a
discussion of the financial condition and results of operations of the Series 2019 Participants, Appendix B
for copies of the audited financial statements of the Series 2019 Participants, and Appendix C for copies
of recent unaudited financial information for each of the Series 2019 Participants.

Set forth below are certain risk factors affecting an investment in the Series 2019 Bonds,
including, among others, risk factors that could adversely affect a Series 2019 Participant’s operations,
revenues and expenses, including those relating to its Series 2019 Facilities, to an extent which cannot be
determined at this time. Such risk factors should be considered before any investment in the Series 2019
Bonds is made. These risk factors should not be considered definitive or exhaustive.

Special, Limited Obligations of DASNY

The Series 2019 Bonds are special, limited obligations of DASNY payable solely from revenues
expected to be received by DASNY from the Series 2019 Participants under the applicable Series 2019
Loan Agreement and from amounts held in the funds established pursuant to the Resolutions (other than
the Arbitrage Rebate Fund). The Series 2019 Bonds will not be a debt of the State nor will the State be
liable thereon. DASNY has no taxing power.
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Several Obligations of Series 2019 Participants

The obligations of each Series 2019 Participant under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement are
independent of the obligations of each other Series 2019 Participant under their respective Series 2019
Loan Agreements. A failure by a Series 2019 Participant to timely pay its obligations under its Series
2019 Loan Agreement might result in an event of default under the Resolutions with respect to such
Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds. Upon the happening and
continuance of an event of default affecting only a Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds,
payment on such Defaulted Allocable Portion of Series 2019 Bonds will be limited to amounts received
from or payable by or on behalf of such Series 2019 Participant and amounts derived upon the realization
of any security or collateral granted by such defaulting Series 2019 Participant. With respect to Series
2019 Bonds comprising part of a Defaulted Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds, Holders of such
Series 2019 Bonds will have no right to any other Revenues or any other funds held by the Trustee under
the Resolution derived from payments made by or on behalf of any other Series 2019 Participant for the
payment of other Series 2019 Bonds or any other security pledged by such other non-defaulting Series
2019 Participants as security for their loans. The Series 2019 Bonds that comprise a Defaulted Allocable
Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds will be selected by the Trustee in the same manner as Series 2019
Bonds selected for extraordinary mandatory redemption as described in the Resolution. See “PART 1 -
INTRODUCTION - Limitations on Payment and Security Upon the Occurrence of Certain Events of
Default,” “PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS -
Events of Default - Special Provisions Relating to Defaults,” “PART 3 - THE SERIES 2019 BONDS -
Redemption Provisions” and “Appendix F - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Resolutions.”

Reliance on Credit of the Series 2019 Participants

The Series 2019 Bonds are being issued without credit enhancement in the form of a letter of
credit or bond insurance. While the amounts payable to the Series 2019 Participants pursuant to their
respective PPAs are expected to provide moneys approximately sufficient to pay annual debt service on
their respective loans for the Series 2019 Facilities supported by such PPA or PPAs (with any difference
between the two amounts covered by the Pledged Revenues of such Series 2019 Participant expected to
be received for operating and administrative expenses associated with such Series 2019 Facility), there
can be no assurance that the funds received by a particular Series 2019 Participant pursuant to its PPA or
PPAs (or by DASNY or the Trustee upon the intercept of such OPWDD Intercept Funds) will be
sufficient for the repayment of such Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds
attributable to the Series 2019 Facilities to which the PPA or PPAs relate (whether because of non-
appropriation of funds by the State, failure of a Series 2019 Participant to operate its Series 2019 Facility
or Facilities in accordance with operational standards, a prior pledge of such PPA or otherwise).
Additionally, in connection with renovation costs for certain of UCP’s Series 2019 Facilities that are not
supported by a PPA, there can be no assurance that UCP’s operating revenues will be sufficient for the
repayment of such portion of UCP’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds.

The payment obligations of the Series 2019 Participants are several, not joint. The Holders of the
Series 2019 Bonds must therefore rely upon the credit of each Series 2019 Participant for the payment of
the Series 2019 Bonds (and not the credit of DASNY, the Trustee, the Underwriter, the Program
Facilitator, the State or any municipality or agency of the State). See “PART 1 - INTRODUCTION -
Additional Security - Pledged Revenues and Standby Intercepts,” “PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT
AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS - Security for the Series 2019 Bonds,” and “PART
5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE - New York State Office for People with
Developmental Disabilities.” For the purposes of a Series 2019 Loan Agreement delivered by more than
one entity, the payment obligations for a Series 2019 Participant shall be joint and several with respect to
the entities comprising such Series 2019 Participant.
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Each Series 2019 Participant covenants in its Series 2019 Loan Agreement that it has maintained
in its current Fiscal Year and it will maintain in each Fiscal Year subsequent to the date of delivery of its
Series 2019 Loan Agreement Total Net Revenues Available for Debt Service sufficient to produce in each
Fiscal Year a Total Debt Service Coverage Ratio of not less than 1.00 to 1.00; provided, however, that
failure by a Series 2019 Participant in any Fiscal Year to demonstrate compliance with the Total Debt
Service Coverage Ratio shall not constitute an Event of Default under the Series 2019 Loan Agreement if
such Series 2019 Participant delivers to DASNY, the Underwriter and the Trustee, by the last day of the
next succeeding Fiscal Year, a certificate of an Authorized Officer of such Series 2019 Participant along
with a schedule or schedules demonstrating compliance with the Total Debt Service Coverage Ratio for a
rolling 12-month period ending no earlier than 90 days after the end of the Fiscal Year for which such
Series 2019 Participant is unable to demonstrate compliance.

Revenues of Series 2019 Participants

Future revenues of each Series 2019 Participant are dependent upon, among other things,
legislative appropriations, federal and State policy, the outcome of current and potential litigation and
other conditions that are unpredictable, some of which are discussed below. The ability to pay principal
of and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds depends upon the receipt by the Trustee of the Loan Repayments
under the Series 2019 Loan Agreements. Some of the risks that could affect the ability of one or more of
the Series 2019 Participants to pay such amounts are failure of (i) the legislature of the State, or any of the
counties or cities in which Series 2019 Participants operate, to approve sufficient appropriations for the
purchase of services from the Series 2019 Participants; (ii) the State or various county and city
departments to make timely payments to the Series 2019 Participants of appropriated amounts caused by
revenue short falls or other State or local fiscal considerations; (iii) the Series 2019 Participants to fulfill
their obligations which entitle them to receive payments, including payments under their respective PPAs;
(iv) the Series 2019 Participants to maintain the appropriate certifications from the required licensing or
certifying entity(ies) to provide services as required; and (v) the Series 2019 Participants to obtain the
renewal of their contracts to provide services.

In addition, a Series 2019 Participant’s license and/or certification may be revoked for failure to
comply with standards of operation applicable to such Series 2019 Participant, or a Series 2019
Participant may cease operations of its respective Series 2019 Facility due to insolvency. In such events,
OPWDD and DASNY may not be able to timely identify and install a replacement operator to assume the
operation of the applicable Series 2019 Facility, and thus there may be insufficient revenues to pay
principal and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds.

For the purposes of a Series 2019 Loan Agreement delivered by more than one entity, only
certain of such entities comprising such Series 2019 Participant may receive revenues as described in this
section. See Appendix A for further details.

Further, the enactment of additional legislation imposing new regulatory challenges, increasing
costs of operation or reducing reimbursement rates could adversely affect the financial condition of Series
2019 Participants. Any one of such adverse events may result in insufficient revenues to pay the principal
and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds.

Payment Defaults May Affect More Than One Series of Bonds Issued Under the Resolution

Upon the issuance of any other Series of Bonds for the benefit of one or more of the Series 2019
Participants, the applicable Series 2019 Participant and DASNY shall enter into one or more separate loan
agreements. The Series 2019 Bonds are separately secured from all other Series of Bonds and the
Holders of any Series of Bonds other than the Series 2019 Bonds are not entitled to the rights, benefits
and security conferred upon the Holders of the Series 2019 Bonds. While an event of default with respect
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to another Series of Bonds will not necessarily result in an event of default with respect to the Series 2019
Bonds, an event of default by a Series 2019 Participant under a loan agreement entered into in connection
with the issuance of another Series of Bonds will result in an “Event of Default” under such Series 2019
Participant’s Series 2019 Loan Agreement. See “PART 1 - INTRODUCTION - Authorization of
Issuance” and “- Security for the Series 2019 Bonds” and “PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND
SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS.”

Enforceability of Remedies; Effect of Bankruptcy of a Series 2019 Participant

The Series 2019 Bonds are payable from the sources and are secured as described in this Official
Statement. The practical realization of value from the collateral for the Series 2019 Bonds described
herein upon any default will depend upon the exercise of various remedies specified by the Resolutions,
the respective Series 2019 Loan Agreements, the respective Mortgages, if any, the respective Co-op
Security Documents, if any, or other security agreements, if applicable, and the then-value of the
collateral and other regulatory approvals. These and other remedies may, in many respects, require
judicial actions which are often subject to discretion and delay.

Under existing law, the remedies specified by the Resolutions, the Series 2019 Loan Agreements,
the Mortgages and the Co-op Security Documents may not be readily available or may be limited. A
court may decide not to order the performance of the covenants contained in those documents. The legal
opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Series 2019 Bonds will be qualified as to
the enforceability of the various agreements and other instruments by limitations imposed by State and
federal laws, rulings and decisions affecting remedies and by bankruptcy, reorganization or other laws
affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally.

The rights and remedies of the Holders of the Series 2019 Bonds are subject to various provisions
of Title 11 of the United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code™). If a Series 2019 Participant were to file a
petition for relief under the Bankruptcy Code, the filing would automatically stay the commencement or
continuation of any judicial or other proceedings against such Series 2019 Participant and its property,
including the commencement of foreclosure proceedings under its Mortgage or its Co-op Security
Documents, if applicable. Such Series 2019 Participant would not be permitted or required to make
payments of principal or interest under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement unless an order of the United
States Bankruptcy Court were issued for such purpose. In addition, without an order of the United States
Bankruptcy Court, the automatic stay may serve to prevent DASNY from intercepting the Series 2019
Participant’s Intercept Funds pursuant to the applicable Intercept Agreement or the Trustee from applying
amounts on deposit in the accounts established with respect to such Series 2019 Participant under the
Resolutions from being applied in accordance with the provisions of the Resolutions and the application
of such amounts to the payment of principal of, and interest on, such Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable
Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds. Moreover, any motion for an order terminating the automatic stay and
permitting such intercept or accounts to be applied in accordance with the provisions of the Resolutions
would be subject to the discretion of the United States Bankruptcy Court, and may be subject to objection
and/or comment by other creditors of such Series 2019 Participant, which could affect the likelihood or
timing of obtaining such relief. In addition, if the Mortgage or Co-op Security Documents of such
defaulting Series 2019 Participant is assigned by DASNY to the Trustee as described herein and the value
of the related Mortgaged Property or the related Co-op Unit, as applicable, is less than the principal
amount of such Series 2019 Participant’s total Loan Repayment obligation at the time of a bankruptcy
proceeding, the security interest of the Trustee in such property is subject to the claims of creditors that
the mortgaged indebtedness in excess of the then-fair market value of the Mortgaged Property or the Co-
op Unit, as applicable, is unsecured and, therefore, to the extent of such excess is not entitled to a secured
priority position in the administration of the bankruptcy estate.
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A Series 2019 Participant could file a plan for the adjustment of its debts in a proceeding under
the Bankruptcy Code, which plan could include provisions modifying or altering the rights of creditors
generally, or any class of them, whether secured or unsecured. The plan, when confirmed by the United
States Bankruptcy Court, would bind all creditors who have notice or knowledge of the plan and would
discharge all claims against such Series 2019 Participant provided for in the plan. No plan may be
confirmed unless certain conditions are met, among which are that the plan is in the best interests of
creditors, is feasible and has been accepted by each class of claims impaired thereunder. Each class of
claims has accepted the plan if at least two-thirds in dollar amount and more than one-half in number of
the allowed claims of the class that are voted with respect to the plan are cast in its favor. Even if the plan
is not so accepted, it may be confirmed if the court finds that the plan is fair and equitable with respect to
each class of non-accepting creditors impaired thereunder and does not discriminate unfairly.

Mortgages and Co-op Security Documents

Mortgages and Co-op Security Documents Not Currently Security for Series 2019 Bonds

The Mortgages and the Co-op Security Documents do not presently provide any security for the
Series 2019 Bonds. However, under certain circumstances described herein, one or more of the
Mortgages or the Co-op Security Documents may be assigned to the Trustee. Prior to any assignment of
a Mortgage or any Co-op Security Documents to the Trustee, each applicable Series 2019 Loan
Agreement provides that (a) DASNY, without the consent of the Trustee or the Holders of the Series 2019
Bonds, may consent to the amendment, modification, termination, subordination or satisfaction of such
Mortgage or such Co-op Security Documents, as applicable, and of any security interest in furniture,
fixtures or equipment financed with the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds located in or on or used in
connection therewith and (b) the property subject to such Mortgage or such Co-op Security Documents,
as applicable, or security interest may be released from the lien thereof. See “PART 2 - SOURCE OF
PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2019 BONDS - Security for the Series 2019 Bonds —
Mortgages and Co-op Security Documents.”

Pledge of Property Under Mortgages and Co-op Security Documents

The security interest in (a) the Mortgaged Property granted under a Mortgage and (b) the Co-op
Units granted under any Co-op Security Documents may be affected by various matters, including, (i)
rights arising in favor of the United States of America or any agency thereof, (ii) present or future
prohibitions against assignment in any applicable federal or state statutes or regulations, (iii) constructive
trusts, equitable liens or other rights imposed or conferred by any state or federal court in the exercise of
its equitable jurisdiction and rights of donors of property, (iv) claims that might obtain priority if
continuation statements are not filed in accordance with applicable laws, (v) the rights of holders of prior
perfected security interests in equipment and other goods owned by a Series 2019 Participant and
included in the Mortgaged Property or the Co-op Unit and the proceeds of sale of such property, (vi)
statutory liens and other liens arising as a matter of law, (vii) the rights of parties secured by other liens or
encumbrances permitted by the applicable Series 2019 Loan Agreements, the applicable Mortgages or the
applicable Co-op Security Documents and (viii) claims by creditors that the mortgaged or secured
indebtedness in excess of the then-fair market value of the Mortgaged Property or the Co-op Unit is
unsecured to the extent of such excess.

Insufficiency of Mortgage Foreclosure or other Sale Proceeds: Environmental Impairment of

Property

One of the options under each applicable Series 2019 Participant’s Series 2019 Loan Agreement,
and one of the options under the Resolution, is to institute foreclosure proceedings to enforce the lien on
and sell such Series 2019 Participant’s Mortgaged Property, if any, or to institute proceedings to enforce
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the security interest in such Series 2019 Participant’s Co-op Units in the event of a default under its Series
2019 Loan Agreement, its Mortgage(s), its Co-op Security Documents or the Resolutions. However, due
to the limited uses for which a Series 2019 Participant’s Mortgaged Property and Co-op Units may be
utilized, none of DASNY, the Program Facilitator, the Trustee, the applicable Series 2019 Participant, or
the Underwriter makes any assurance or representation that DASNY or the Trustee will be able to effect a
sale of a Series 2019 Participant’s Mortgaged Property or Co-op Unit(s), or, if such Mortgaged Property
or Co-op Unit is sold, that the proceeds received upon a foreclosure or other sale, along with all moneys
of such Series 2019 Participant on deposit in the various funds established under the Resolution, will be
sufficient to pay in full the principal of, or interest on, the Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds
attributable to such defaulting Series 2019 Participant.

In exercising the rights of foreclosure or other sale under a Mortgage or applicable Co-op
Security Documents, DASNY or the Trustee, as the case may be, in accordance with current commercial
lending practices, may perform a Phase I Environmental Audit to determine the presence or likely
presence of a release or a substantial threat of a release of any hazardous materials at, on, to, or from the
Mortgaged Property or Co-op Unit. If the audit indicates the existence of hazardous materials with
respect to the Mortgaged Property or Co-op Unit, the Trustee or DASNY, as applicable, may conclude
that it is not in the best interests of the Bondholders to foreclose or otherwise exercise its security interest
on such property due to liability for removal of hazardous materials. In such an event, the Trustee or
DASNY may decline to exercise foreclosure or other rights with respect to Mortgaged Property under a
Mortgage or with respect to a Co-op Unit under any Co-op Security Documents without specific
instructions from Bondholders and receipt of funds, security and/or indemnity from the Bondholders
reasonably satisfactory to such party to pay the costs, expenses, and liabilities which might be incurred by
its compliance with such instructions. Consequently, the existence, post-acquisition, of hazardous
materials with respect to any Mortgaged Property or any Co-op Unit could severely limit the ability, due
to the economic liability associated with removal of such materials, to foreclose on such property and/or
obtain the market value for such property in security for the Series 2019 Bonds that would otherwise have
been available absent the existence of such hazardous materials.

Another option under a Series 2019 Participant’s Series 2019 Loan Agreement is to institute
proceedings to enforce the lien on and sell the Series 2019 Participant’s Equipment (as defined in each
Mortgage) in the event of a default under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement, its Mortgage(s), its Co-op
Security Documents or the Resolutions. However, due to the limited uses for which a Series 2019
Participant’s Equipment may be utilized, none of DASNY, the Program Facilitator, the Trustee, the
applicable Series 2019 Participant, or the Underwriter makes any assurances or representations that
DASNY or the Trustee will be able to sell a Series 2019 Participant’s Equipment or, if such Equipment is
sold, that the proceeds received upon a sale, along with all moneys on deposit in the various funds of the
Series 2019 Participant established under the Resolution, would be sufficient to pay in full the principal
of, or interest on, the Series 2019 Bonds attributable to such defaulting Series 2019 Participant.
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No Approval by New York State Supreme Court

Section 510 of the New York Not-For-Profit Corporation Law (“NFPCL”) requires State
Supreme Court approval of any “sale, lease, exchange or other disposition” of “all, or substantially all, the
assets” of a not-for-profit corporation such as the Series 2019 Participants. Such approval was not sought
in connection with the execution, delivery and performance by the Series 2019 Participants of the
Mortgages, the Co-op Security Documents or the pledges of assets and revenues that are contemplated by
the Resolutions and the Series 2019 Loan Agreements. It is the opinion of counsel to the Series 2019
Participants that such actions do not require approval pursuant to NFPCL §510. However, absent court
decisions definitively resolving this issue, it cannot be ruled out that a defendant in a foreclosure or other
action may raise as an affirmative defense the failure to obtain NFPCL §510 court approval.

Release of Series 2019 Facilities from Lien of Mortgages and Co-op Security Documents

Each Series 2019 Loan Agreement, each Mortgage, each set of Co-op Security Documents and
the Resolutions provide a Series 2019 Participant the ability to prepay a portion of its loan attributable to
a Series 2019 Facility and, upon the redemption or defeasance of the related Series 2019 Bonds to have
such Series 2019 Facility released from the lien of the applicable Mortgage or applicable Co-op Security
Documents. There is no assurance that the security, if any, provided by the remaining Series 2019
Facilities subject to the lien of such Mortgage or such Co-op Security Documents will be sufficient to pay
the then outstanding principal and interest (or other amounts due) with respect to such Series 2019
Participant’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds. In the event of a default by one Participant,
none of DASNY, the Trustee, the Program Facilitator or any Bondholder will have any recourse to, claim
against or right of contribution from any other non-defaulting Series 2019 Participant.

In view of the foregoing, investors should rely on their own examination of the creditworthiness
and financial condition of each of the Series 2019 Participants and the terms of this offering, including,
without limitation, the merits and risks involved and the uncertainties associated with the possible
limitations or inability to enforce the remedies set forth in the Mortgages and/or Co-op Security
Documents, in the event that the Mortgages and/or the Co-op Security Documents are assigned to the
Trustee by DASNY.

Non-Appropriation of State, County and City Departments’ Funds

The Series 2019 Participants are subject to Federal, State and local actions, including, among
others, actions by the various State, county and city departments. The Series 2019 Bonds are payable
from operating revenues of the Series 2019 Participants, which depend in large measure upon the
appropriations of the State for the funds of the various State, county and city departments that have
contracts with the Series 2019 Participants. HOWEVER, THE OBLIGATION OF THE VARIOUS
STATE, COUNTY AND CITY DEPARTMENTS TO RENEW SUCH CONTRACTS IS SUBJECT TO
ANNUAL REEVALUATION BY THE DEPARTMENT OBTAINING THE CONTRACT AS PART
OF ITS ANNUAL BUDGET APPROPRIATION PROCESS. EACH YEAR THE STATE
LEGISLATURE, WHICH HAS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF APPROPRIATING AND ALLOCATING
STATE RESOURCES AMONG THE STATE’S VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS, HAS THE RIGHT, IN
ITS SOLE DISCRETION, EITHER (I) TO APPROPRIATE SUFFICIENT FUNDS, FROM
WHATEVER SOURCE, TO FUND IN WHOLE OR IN PART THE VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS’
BUDGETS FROM WHICH THE CONTRACTS PROCURED FOR THE NEXT FISCAL YEAR ARE
TO BE PAID, OR (II) TO APPROPRIATE INSUFFICIENT FUNDS TO MAKE SUCH PAYMENTS
OR (III) NOT TO APPROPRIATE ANY FUNDS FOR THE VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS’ BUDGETS
FROM WHICH CONTRACTS ARE TO BE PROCURED AND PAID.
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In particular, the ability of the State, county, and city departments to disburse Medicaid
reimbursements, and other State, county and city departments to fund contracts of the Series 2019
Participants, is limited in part by the amount of revenues collected, as well as the amount of
appropriations authorized, by the State for such fiscal year. Failure of the State to receive sufficient
revenues to fund appropriations for such fiscal year and/or the failure of the Series 2019 Participants to
generate sufficient revenues from other sources (or have access to sufficient fund balances) to make the
scheduled Loan Repayments that are to be used by the Trustee to repay the Series 2019 Bonds, will
materially adversely affect a Series 2019 Participant’s ability to make its Loan Repayments and,
consequently, the repayment of the Series 2019 Bonds attributable to such Series 2019 Participant.

Federal Medicaid Reform

A majority of the Public Funds (including the Intercept Funds) are received from Medicaid.
Future Medicaid reform may materially adversely affect the Public Funds received by the Series 2019
Participants. Various federal legislative proposals have recently been made in connection with health care
reform that could, among other things, reduce or unfavorably restructure Medicaid funding. Management
of the Series 2019 Participants cannot predict whether any such proposals will become law. If enacted
into law, such proposals could adversely affect the Public Funds received by, and the revenues available
to, Series 2019 Participants and therefore, their ability to pay debt service on their Allocable Portion of
the Series 2019 Bonds.

Completion of the Projects; Zoning; Certificate of Occupancy

The acquisition of all of the Series 2019 Facilities are complete. Each of the Series 2019 Facilities
has received a certificate of occupancy from the applicable local jurisdiction, except for the Mercy Home
Series 2019 Facility located at 1370 Union Street, Brooklyn, New York (no certificate of occupancy
required) and the UCP Co-op Facilities (no certificates of occupancy required for individual cooperative
units). Updated certificates of occupancy, certificates of compliance or letters of completion are required
for the DDI Series 2019 Facilities located at 8 Cynthia Court, East Setauket (Town of Brookhaven), New
York, 12 Campbell Drive, Dix Hills (Town of Huntington), New York, 229 Stony Hollow Road,
Greenlawn (Town of Huntington), New York and 75 Landing Meadow Road, Smithtown, New York, the
Eden II Series 2019 Facility located at 205 Eltingville Boulevard, Staten Island, New York, the Mercy
Home Series 2019 Facilities located at 1058 Herkimer Street, Brooklyn, New York and 1370 Union
Street, Brooklyn, New York, the SUS Series 2019 Facilities located at 5205 Henry Hudson Parkway
West, Bronx, New York, 185-24 80th Road, Jamaica (a/k/a Jamaica Estates), New York and 244-04
Northern Boulevard, Douglaston (a/k/a Little Neck), New York, and the YAI Series 2019 Facilities
located at 83 Daly Road, East Northport (Town of Huntington), New York, 579 Old Country Road,
Huntington Station (Town of Huntington), New York, 1366 North Windsor Avenue, Bay Shore (Town of
Islip), New York and 2000 Flatbush Avenue, Brooklyn, New York.

Each Series 2019 Facility may require special use permits or certificates of compliance or other
zoning approval (each, a “Certificate”) from the applicable municipality. Failure of a Series 2019
Participant to obtain an appropriate Certificate where the same is required could materially adversely
affect the financial position of such Series 2019 Participant. Moreover, the failure of a Series 2019
Participant’s Series 2019 Facilities to receive a Certificate when required could materially adversely
impact either the Series 2019 Participant’s, the Trustee’s or another party’s right to use or occupy the
Series 2019 Facility, before or after the exercise of default remedies.

OPWDD operating certificates, which permit the Series 2019 Participants to operate their Series
2019 Facilities for their intended purposes, have been issued by OPWDD for each of the Series 2019
Facilities except for the DDI Series 2019 Facilities located at 8 Cynthia Court, East Setauket (Town of
Brookhaven), New York and 12 Campbell Drive, Dix Hills (Town of Huntinton), New York, the Eden I1
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Series 2019 Facility located at 205 Eltingville Boulevard, Staten Island, New York, the Mercy Home
Series 2019 Facilities located at 1058 Herkimer Street, Brooklyn, New York and 1370 Union Street,
Brooklyn, New York, the SUS Series 2019 Facilities located at 5205 Henry Hudson Parkway West,
Bronx, New York, 185-24 80th Road, Jamaica (a/k/a Jamaica Estates), New York and 244-04 Northern
Boulevard, Douglaston (a/k/a Little Neck), New York, the UCP Co-op Facility located at 2191 Bolton
Street, Apt. 4D, Bronx, New York, and the YAI Series 2019 Facility located at 2000 Flatbush Avenue,
Brooklyn, New York.

Additional Indebtedness

Under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement, each Series 2019 Participant has the ability to incur
additional debt. An event of default by a Series 2019 Participant under a loan agreement entered into
with DASNY in connection with the issuance of another Series of Bonds will result in an “Event of
Default” under such Series 2019 Participant’s Series 2019 Loan Agreement. See “Appendix E-1 -
Summary of Certain Provisions of the Series 2019 Loan Agreements (other than the Series 2019 Loan
Agreement of UCP)” and “Appendix E-2 - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Series 2019 Loan
Agreement of UCP.”

Prior Pledges of Pledged Revenues

The Series 2019 Bonds are secured by the pledge and assignment to the Trustee of DASNY’s
security interest in the Pledged Revenues granted by each of the Series 2019 Participants to DASNY
pursuant to its Series 2019 Loan Agreement, subject to Prior Pledges. Certain of the Series 2019
Participants have previously pledged their Public Funds (a portion of which consists of the Pledged
Revenues) to DASNY, an industrial development agency to secure other obligations. Certain of the
Series 2019 Participants have pledged their accounts receivable, including Public Funds, to banks or other
financial institutions as security for their obligations in connection with lines of credit. Additionally,
certain Series 2019 Participants may, with the prior written consent of DASNY (such consent not to be
unreasonably withheld or delayed), hereafter secure a line of credit with a Prior Pledge. The pledge of the
Pledged Revenues securing such Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds is
subject, and subordinate, to such Prior Pledges in all respects. See “Appendix A - Description of Series
2019 Participants” for a description of each of the Series 2019 Participants, including a description of
outstanding indebtedness and credit facilities secured by security interests which include Prior Pledges of
their respective Pledged Revenues.

Grant of Additional Security Interests

Subject to the limitations set forth in its Series 2019 Loan Agreement, a Series 2019 Participant
may grant security interests in its Accounts Receivable, and the proceeds thereof, in favor of banks or
other financial institutions in order to secure a line of credit for working capital purposes, whether by
entering into a new credit facility or amending, modifying or extending an existing credit facility. The
incurrence of such indebtedness and the granting of such security interests could materially adversely
affect the financial position of a Series 2019 Participant and its ability to satisfy its Loan Repayment
obligations. See “Appendix E-1 - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Series 2019 Loan Agreements
(other than the Series 2019 Loan Agreement of UCP)” and “Appendix E-2 - Summary of Certain
Provisions of the Series 2019 Loan Agreement of UCP.”

A Series 2019 Participant may also grant a subordinate mortgage as security for bonds issued by
DASNY after the date of issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds, in an amount up to the amount approved by
OPWDD pursuant to the PPA process, for the purpose of financing the cost of renovating, constructing,
equipping or completing a Series 2019 Facility, and any loan agreement, or amendment to the applicable
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Series 2019 Loan Agreement, between DASNY and such Series 2019 Participant, in each case in
connection with such financing.

Effect of Changes in Tax-Exempt Status; Continued Legal Requirements of Tax-Exempt Status

As an entity qualified under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, each Series 2019 Participant is subject
to various requirements affecting its operation. The failure of a Series 2019 Participant to maintain its
tax-exempt status may affect the Series 2019 Participant’s ability to receive funds from State and federal
sources, which could adversely affect its ability to pay its principal Loan Repayments under its Series
2019 Loan Agreement. Further, a loss of a Series 2019 Participant’s status as a Section 501(c)(3)
organization, failure of a Series 2019 Participant to comply with certain legal requirements of the Code,
or adoption of amendments to the Code applicable to such Series 2019 Participant that restrict the use of
tax-exempt bonds for facilities, such as one or more of its Series 2019 Facilities, could cause interest on
the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds to be included in the gross income of the Bondholders or former
Bondholders for federal income tax purposes, and such inclusion could be retroactive to the date of
issuance of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds. The opinion of Barclay Damon LLP, Co-Bond Counsel, and
the description of the tax law contained in this Official Statement are based on statutes, judicial decisions,
regulations, rulings, and other official interpretations of law in existence on the date the Subseries 2019A-
1 Bonds are issued. No assurance can be given that such laws or the interpretation thereof will not change
or that new provisions of law will not be enacted or promulgated at any time while the Subseries 2019A-1
Bonds are outstanding in a manner that would adversely affect the value or the tax treatment of ownership
of the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds. See “PART 10 - TAX MATTERS.” The Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds are
not subject to redemption, nor will the interest rate on the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds be changed, if
interest on the Subseries 2019A-1 Bonds is included in the gross income of the Bondholders or former
Bondholders.

Risk of Audit by Internal Revenue Service

The Internal Revenue Service has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt obligations to
determine whether, in the view of the Internal Revenue Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is
includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. No assurances can
be given as to whether or not the Internal Revenue Service will commence an audit of the Subseries
2019A-1 Bonds.

Risk of Review by State and Federal Agencies

Various State and federal agencies, including without limitation, OPWDD, the Office of
Medicaid Inspector General, the Office of State Controller, the Department of Health, the State Attorney
General, the United States Attorney’s Office, the United States Office of Inspector General, and the State
Commission on Quality of Care, have ongoing programs of reviewing the services provided by, and the
claims for payment submitted by, service provider agencies, such as the Series 2019 Participants, to
determine compliance with State and/or federal laws and regulations. Such reviews, if adversely
determined, may affect the ability of the service provider agency to provide its services and receive
payments therefor. No assurances can be given as to whether or not any State or federal agency will
commence a review of any Series 2019 Participant and the effect of any such review on such Series 2019
Participant’s ability to make its payments under its Series 2019 Loan Agreement.

Specific Risks Related to Series 2019 Leased Facilities
In order to secure its respective obligations under its respective Series 2019 Loan Agreement, a

Series 2019 Participant that leases its Series 2019 Facility will collaterally assign to DASNY pursuant to
a Collateral Assignment of Leases its right, title and interest (but not its obligations) in the lease for its
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Series 2019 Facility (each a “Lease”). The landlord under each Lease has consented to such collateral
assignment. Upon and during an uncured Event of Default under such Series 2019 Participant’s Series
2019 Loan Agreement, DASNY may further assign the applicable Lease to a financially sound State-
approved not-for-profit corporation selected by DASNY (each a “Replacement Tenant”) for purposes of
operating a State-approved program within such Series 2019 Facility similar to the program currently
operated therein by the Series 2019 Participant. The applicable Replacement Tenant would assume the
Series 2019 Participant’s liabilities and obligations under such Lease on terms acceptable to the landlord.
Notwithstanding the Collateral Assignment of Leases, the Series 2019 Participant shall remain liable
under its Lease to perform all of its obligations thereunder. Certain practical and legal considerations,
however, including, but not limited to, bankruptcy risks, could inhibit or materially delay the ability to
locate a Replacement Tenant for such Series 2019 Leased Facility, or otherwise preclude the receipt of
sufficient revenues to repay such Series 2019 Participant’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds.
See “Appendix A — Description of Series 2019 Participants” for further details on which Series 2019
Facilities are Series 2019 Leased Facilities.

Specific Risks Related to the UCP Co-op Facilities

Certain of UCP’s Series 2019 Facilities are Co-op Units in which UCP has a Co-op Interest.
Should an event of default occur under UCP’s Series 2019 Loan Agreement, DASNY may enforce its
rights under the Co-op Security Documents; however, any sale and/or lease of any such UCP Co-op
Facilities after such enforcement proceedings is subject to the approval of the Co-op Corporation’s board
and subject to the terms of the Co-op Corporation’s bylaws, which provide the Co-op Corporation’s board
broad discretion in approving or denying a future sale and/or lease. Certain other practical and legal
considerations could also inhibit or materially delay or otherwise preclude the receipt of sufficient
revenues to repay UCP’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds. See “Appendix A - Description of
Series 2019 Participants” for further details on the UCP Co-op Facilities.

Right of Reacquisition of the Johnson Avenue Facility, the Steuben Avenue Facility and/or the
Swinton Avenue Facility of UCP

UCP acquired title to the Series 2019 Facilities located at 2782 Johnson Avenue, Bronx, New
York (the “Johnson Avenue Facility”), 3327 Steuben Avenue, Bronx, New York (the “Steuben Avenue
Facility”) and 424 Swinton Avenue, Bronx, New York (the “Swinton Avenue Facility” and together with
the Johnson Avenue Facility and the Steuben Avenue Facility, the “UCP Facilities Subject to
Reacquisition”) through a bankruptcy sale (the “FEGS Bankruptcy Sale”) involving Federal Employment
and Guidance Service, Inc. (“FEGS”). FEGS acquired the UCP Facilities Subject to Reacquisition from
the State of New York, acting by and through the Office of Mental Retardation and Developmental
Disabilities, as predecessor to OPWDD (the “Seller””) for $1.00 on September 8, 2004. The deed pursuant
to which FEGS acquired title to the UCP Facilities Subject to Reacquisition contained a right of
reacquisition by the Seller in the event that FEGS, its successors and assigns fail to utilize the UCP
Facilities Subject to Reacquisition as authorized not-for-profit community mental hygiene services
facilities for persons with mental retardation and developmental disabilities or, in the event that there is
no longer a need for community mental hygiene services for persons with mental retardation and
development disabilities, another legally authorized not-for-profit mental hygiene program purpose. UCP
has requested the Seller to enter into a subordination agreement in order to subordinate the Seller’s right
of reacquisition to the lien granted by UCP’s Mortgage on the UCP Facilities Subject to Reacquisition.
There is no guarantee that UCP will be able to obtain such subordination agreement from the Seller or
that UCP’s title to the UCP Facilities Subject to Reacquisition will not continue to be subject to the right
of reacquisition.
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Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements in this Official Statement

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute
“forward-looking statements.” Such statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used such as
“plan,” “expect,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “budget,” “intend,” “projection” or other similar words. Such
statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those presently anticipated or projected. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any
such forward-looking statements. SUCH RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES INCLUDE, AMONG
OTHERS, GENERAL ECONOMIC AND BUSINESS CONDITIONS, CHANGES IN POLITICAL,
SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS, REGULATORY INITIATIVES AND COMPLIANCE
WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATIONS, LITIGATION AND VARIOUS OTHER EVENTS,
CONDITIONS AND CIRCUMSTANCES, MANY OF WHICH ARE BEYOND THE CONTROL OF
THE SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANTS. PURCHASERS SHOULD NOT EXPECT TO RECEIVE ANY
UPDATES OR REVISIONS TO ANY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS IF OR WHEN
EVENTS, CONDITIONS OR CIRCUMSTANCES ON WHICH SUCH STATEMENTS ARE BASED
OCCUR.

99 Cc 99 <¢

PART 12 - STATE NOT LIABLE ON THE SERIES 2019 BONDS

The Act provides that notes and bonds of DASNY are not a debt of the State, that the State is not
liable on them and that such notes or bonds are not payable out of any funds other than those of DASNY.
The Resolution specifically provides that the Series 2019 Bonds are not a debt of the State and that the
State is not liable on them.

PART 13 - COVENANT BY THE STATE

The Act states that the State pledges and agrees with the holders of DASNY’s notes and bonds
that the State will not limit or alter the rights vested in DASNY to provide projects, to establish and
collect rentals therefrom and to fulfill agreements with the holders of DASNY’s notes and bonds or in any
way impair the rights and remedies of the holders of such notes or bonds until such notes or bonds and
interest thereon and all costs and expenses in connection with any action or proceeding by or on behalf of
the holders of such notes or bonds are fully met and discharged. Notwithstanding the State’s pledges and
agreements contained in the Act, the State may in the exercise of its sovereign power enact or amend its
laws which, if determined to be both reasonable and necessary to serve an important public purpose,
could have the effect of impairing these pledges and agreements with DASNY and with the holders of
DASNY s notes or bonds.

PART 14 - LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters incidental to the authorization and issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds by
DASNY are subject to the approval of Barclay Damon LLP, Albany, New York, and Marous Law Group,
P.C., New York, New York, Co-Bond Counsel to DASNY, whose approving opinions will be delivered
with the Series 2019 Bonds; provided, however, that certain legal matters with respect to the tax status of
interest on the Series 2019A-1 Bonds is subject to the approval of only Barclay Damon LLP. The
proposed forms of Co-Bond Counsel’s opinions are set forth in Appendix H hereto.

Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Series 2019 Participants by Cullen and Dykman

LLP, Albany, New York and for the Underwriter by McCarter & English, LLP, New York, New York
and Newark, New Jersey.
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There is not now pending any litigation restraining or enjoining the issuance or delivery of the
Series 2019 Bonds or questioning or affecting the validity of the Series 2019 Bonds or the proceedings
and authority under which they are to be issued.

See “Appendix A - Description of Series 2019 Participants” for a description of any litigation
which may have a material adverse effect on the Series 2019 Participants.

PART 15 - CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the Underwriter in complying with Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Rule 15¢2-12”),
each Series 2019 Participant will enter into a written agreement (collectively, the “Continuing Disclosure
Agreements”) for the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2019 Bonds with Digital Assurance
Certification L.L.C. (“DAC?”), as disclosure dissemination agent, and the Trustee. The proposed form of
the Continuing Disclosure Agreement is attached as Appendix G hereto.

For information about the Series 2019 Participants’ compliance with their continuing disclosure
undertakings made pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12, see “Appendix A - Description of Series 2019 Participants.”

PART 16 - UNDERWRITING

The Series 2019 Bonds are being purchased by Municipal Capital Markets Group, Inc. (the
“Underwriter”). The Underwriter has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the Series 2019
Bonds from DASNY at a purchase price of $26,294,829.40 and to make a public offering of the Series
2019 Bonds at prices not in excess public offering prices set forth on the inside cover page of this Official
Statement. The Underwriter will be obligated to purchase all Series 2019 Bonds if any Series 2019
Bonds are purchased. The Series 2019 Bonds may be offered and sold to certain dealers (including
dealers depositing such Series 2019 Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower than such public
offering prices, and such public offering prices may be changed, from time to time, by the Underwriter.

The Series 2019 Participants have agreed to indemnify the Underwriter and DASNY with respect
to certain liabilities, including certain liabilities under the federal securities laws.

PART 17 - RATING

The Series 2019 Bonds have been rated “Aa2” by Moody’s. The rating on the Series 2019 Bonds
is based upon the obligation of the Series 2019 Participants under the Series 2019 Loan Agreements to
make certain payments from the Revenues, and on the security interest in the Pledged Revenues granted
by such Series 2019 Participants to DASNY under the Series 2019 Loan Agreements. An explanation of
the significance of the rating should be obtained from Moody’s. There is no assurance that such rating
will prevail for any given period of time or that it will not be changed or withdrawn by Moody’s if, in its
judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any downward revision or withdrawal of a rating may have an
adverse effect on the market price of the Series 2019 Bonds.

PART 18 - INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. has provided its financial statements as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2017, December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 and the other Series 2019
Participants have provided their respective financial statements as of and for the years ended June 30,
2018, June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016. These financial statements, included in Appendix B to this
Official Statement, have been audited by independent certified public accounting firms, as stated in their
respective reports appearing therein. Notwithstanding the receipt of any consents to append the financial
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statements to this Official Statement, none of the auditors performed any procedures relating to any of the
information contained in this Official Statement.

PART 19 - MISCELLANEOUS

References in this Official Statement to the Act, the Resolutions, the Series 2019 Loan
Agreements, the Mortgages and the Co-Op Security Documents do not purport to be complete. Refer to
the Act, the Resolutions, the Series 2019 Loan Agreements, the Mortgages and the Co-op Security
Documents for full and complete details of their provisions. Copies of the Resolutions, the Series 2019
Loan Agreements, the Mortgages and the Co-op Security Documents are on file with DASNY and the
Trustee.

The agreements of DASNY with Holders of the Series 2019 Bonds are fully set forth in the
Resolutions. Neither any advertisement of the Series 2019 Bonds nor this Official Statement is to be
construed as a contract with purchasers of the Series 2019 Bonds.

Any statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or estimates,
whether or not expressly stated, are intended as such, and not as representations of facts. No
representation is made that any of the opinions or estimates will be realized.

The information regarding the Series 2019 Participants and their respective Series 2019 Facilities
contained in this Official Statement has, in each case, been furnished by the Series 2019 Participants.
DASNY believes that this information is reliable, but DASNY makes no representations or warranties as
to the accuracy or completeness of such information.

The information regarding the Program Facilitator and OPWDD contained in this Official
Statement has, in each case, been furnished by the Program Facilitator. DASNY believes that this
information is reliable, but DASNY makes no representations or warranties as to the accuracy or
completeness of such information.

The information regarding DTC and DTC’s book-entry-only system has been furnished by DTC.
DASNY believes that this information is reliable, but makes no representations or warranties whatsoever
as to the accuracy or completeness of this information.

“Appendix A - Description of Series 2019 Participants,” “Appendix B - Audited Financial
Statements of Series 2019 Participants” and “Appendix C - Unaudited Financial Information of Series
2019 Participants” were supplied by the Series 2019 Participants.

“Appendix D - Certain Definitions,” “Appendix E-1 - Summary of Certain Provisions of the
Series 2019 Loan Agreements (other than the Series 2019 Loan Agreement of UCP),” “Appendix E-2 -
Summary of Certain Provisions of the Series 2019 Loan Agreement of UCP,” “Appendix F - Summary of
Certain Provisions of the Resolutions,” and “Appendix H - Forms of Approving Opinions of Co-Bond
Counsel” have been prepared by Barclay Damon LLP, Albany, New York, and Marous Law Group, P.C.,
New York, New York, Co-Bond Counsel to DASNY.

“Appendix G — Form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement” has been prepared by McCarter &
English, LLP, New York, New York and Newark, New Jersey, counsel to the Underwriter.

Each Series 2019 Participant has reviewed the parts of this Official Statement describing such
Series 2019 Participant, its Series 2019 Facilities, its Mortgages, if any, its Co-op Security Documents, if
any, its Collateral Assignment of Leases, if any, including, without limitation, “PART 1 -
INTRODUCTION” (but solely with respect to the headings “The Series 2019 Participants,” “Additional
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Security — Pledged Revenues and Standby Intercepts,” “The Mortgages,” “Co-op Security Documents”
and “Collateral Assignment of Leases,” “PART 2 — SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR
THE SERIES 2019 BONDS — Security for the Series 2019 Bonds - Pledged Revenues — Intercept Funds,”
“— Security for the Series 2019 Bonds — Mortgages and Co-op Security Documents” and “— Security for
the Series 2019 Bonds — Collateral Assignment of Leases,” “PART 3 — THE SERIES 2019 BONDS —
Principal, Sinking Fund Installment and Interest Requirements for the Series 2019 Bonds,” “PART 4 -
THE SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANTS,” “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT
REVENUE,” “PART 6 — ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS,” “PART 11 -
BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS,” “PART 15 — CONTINUING DISCLOSURE,” and “PART 18 -
INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS,” and the information relating to it contained in
Appendices A, B, and C. It is a condition to the sale and delivery of the Series 2019 Bonds that each
Series 2019 Participant certify as of the dates of sale and delivery of the Series 2019 Bonds that such parts
and such information do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit any material
fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which the
statements are made, not misleading.

Each Series 2019 Participant has agreed to indemnify DASNY and certain others against losses,
claims, damages and liabilities arising out of any untrue statements or omissions of statements of any
material fact as described in the preceding paragraph with respect to such Series 2019 Participant.

The Program Facilitator has reviewed the parts of this Official Statement describing itself and the
information contained in “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE,” and
“PART 11 - BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS.” It is a condition to the sale and delivery of the Series 2019
Bonds that the Program Facilitator certify as of the dates of sale and delivery of the Series 2019 Bonds
that such parts and such information do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and do not
omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in light of the
circumstances under which the statements were made, not misleading.

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement by an Authorized Officer have been duly
authorized by DASNY.

DORMITORY AUTHORITY OF
THE STATE OF NEW YORK

By:_/s/ Gerrard P. Bushell
Authorized Officer
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APPENDIX A

DESCRIPTION OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANTS
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DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES INSTITUTE, INC.

General Operations. Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. (“DDI””) was founded in 1961 to
address the special needs of children with autism and other developmental disabilities and provide
therapeutic intervention. Today, DDI is a nonprofit, multisite agency serving over 1,500 children and
adults with autism and related disorders, providing educational, residential, day habilitation and
vocational services, as well as medical and dental services to over 5,000 patients across Long Island, New
York. DDI has grown to include 5 main campuses located in Smithtown, Huntington, Medford,
Riverhead and Ronkonkoma, New York, as well as 36 residential and day habilitation sites. Through
almost 50 years of sustained effort, DDI has become the largest provider of services and programs for
children and adults with autism on Long Island. The goal of DDI is to recognize the needs of each
individual, while maintaining the highest standards of teaching and training for its children, their families
and its staff. DDI prides itself on being in the forefront of the most effective methods in use today for the
treatment of autism and related disorders. DDI is a not-for-profit organization, exempt from income tax
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and comparable New York State Law.

The financial statements of DDI are prepared on a consolidated basis among DDI and its affiliate.
However, the financial information contained in this Appendix is limited to the operations of DDI, as the
affiliate of DDI will not have any obligation to make payments under the Loan Agreement. The Series
2019 Participant is only DDI.

DDI’s funding sources for its 2018 Fiscal Year were: OPWDD (approximately 62%), DOH
(approximately 5%), State Department of Education (approximately 32%) and miscellaneous other
sources (approximately 1%).

Description_of Facilities and Financing Plan. DASNY will lend DDI $6,720,000 from the
proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds (“DDI’s Allocable Portion”). Such amount will be used to finance or
refinance debt incurred in connection with the Facilities and Projects described below, as well as for
related legal fees, capitalized interest, costs of issuance and debt service reserve requirements.

. The “8 Cynthia Court Facility” is a 2,460 square-foot, 2-story building located at 8
Cynthia Court, East Setauket (Town of Brookhaven), New York. Approximately
$1,175,181 will be used to finance the “8 Cynthia Court Project,” which consists of the
acquisition and rehabilitation of the 8 Cynthia Court Facility for use as a residence for six
adults with developmental disabilities.

. The “12 Campbell Drive Facility” is a 2,050 square-foot, 1-story building located at 12
Campbell Drive, Dix Hills (Town of Huntington), New York. Approximately $1,174,749
will be used to finance the “12 Campbell Drive Project,” which consists of the acquisition
and rehabilitation of the 12 Campbell Drive Facility for use as a residence for six adults
with developmental disabilities.

. The “7 Welbourn Lane Facility” is a 1,674 square-foot, 1-story building located at 7
Welbourn Lane, Coram (Town of Brookhaven), New York. Approximately $710,918 will
be used to finance the “7 Welbourn Lane Project,” which consists of the acquisition and
rehabilitation of the 7 Welbourn Lane Facility for use as a residence for four adults with
developmental disabilities.

. The “73 Henearly Drive Facility” is a 2,688 square-foot, 2-story building located at 73
Henearly Drive, Miller Place (Town of Brookhaven), New York. Approximately
$861,580 will be used to finance the 73 Henearly Drive Project,” which consists of the
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acquisition and rehabilitation of the 73 Henearly Drive Facility for use as a residence for
six adults with developmental disabilities.

. The “229 Stony Hollow Road Facility” is a 2,215 square-foot, 1-story building located at
229 Stony Hollow Road, Greenlawn (Town of Huntington), New York. Approximately
$1,155,727 will be used to finance the “229 Stony Hollow Road Project,” which consists
of the acquisition and rehabilitation of the 229 Stony Hollow Road Facility for use as a
residence for six adults with developmental disabilities.

. The “75 Landing Meadow Road Facility” (together with the 8 Cynthia Court Facility, the
12 Campbell Drive Facility, the 7 Welbourn Lane Facility, the 73 Henearly Drive Facility
and the 229 Stony Hollow Road Facility, the “Facilities”) is a 28,382 square-foot, 2-story
building located at 75 Landing Meadow Road, Smithtown, New York. Approximately
$1,025,412 will be used to finance the “75 Landing Meadow Road Project” (together
with the 8 Cynthia Court Project, the 12 Campbell Drive Project, the 7 Welbourn Lane
Project, the 73 Henearly Drive Project and the 229 Stony Hollow Road Project, the
“Projects”), which consists of the rehabilitation of the 75 Landing Meadow Road Facility
to serve as a voluntary operated day habilitation for eighty individuals with
developmental disabilities.

The remainder of DDI’s Allocable Portion in the amount of approximately $616,433 will be used
for legal fees, costs of issuance and debt service reserve requirements.

The governmental funding source for the Facilities is OPWDD and the Facilities are supported by
PPAs, which DDI has received. This means the Facilities are pre-approved by OPWDD for
reimbursement by OPWDD for principal and interest costs incurred in connection with the acquisition
and/or renovation and furnishing of the Facilities and financing or refinancing costs incurred in
connection therewith.

The Facilities are all New PPA Lien Projects. See the information in this Official Statement
entitled “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE - New York State Office
for People with Developmental Disabilities - PPA Regulatory Compliance Process” for further
information concerning New PPA Lien Projects.

Certificates of Occupancy or Certificates of Compliance have been received from the applicable
local jurisdictions for all of the DDI Facilities. DDI has not received as required a new or updated
Certificate of Occupancy or Certificate of Compliance from the Town of Brookhaven for the 8 Cynthia
Court Facility, from the Town of Huntington for the 12 Campbell Drive Facility or the 229 Stony Hollow
Road Facility or from the Town of Smithtown for the 75 Landing Meadow Road Facility; DDI has
received a new or updated Certificate of Occupancy or Certificate of Compliance from the Town of
Brookhaven for the 7 Welbourn Lane Facility and 73 Henearly Drive Facility. DDI has received
Operating Certificates from OPWDD for the 7 Welbourn Lane Facility, the 73 Henearly Drive Facility,
the 229 Stony Hollow Road Facility and the 75 Landing Meadow Road Facility. DDI has not received
Operating Certificates from OPWDD for the 8 Cynthia Court Facility or 12 Campbell Drive Facility. See
the information in this Official Statement entitled “PART 11 - BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS - Completion
of the Projects; Zoning; Certificate of Occupancy.”

DDI owns the Facilities. DDI will grant DASNY a mortgage on the real property with respect to
each of the Facilities, a security interest in the furniture, fixtures and equipment financed with bond
proceeds and constituting a portion of each of the Facilities, and a lien on the Public Funds attributable to
each of the Facilities.
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Other Properties. DDI also owns 42 other properties and leases 9 other residential and day
program properties throughout Long Island.

Employees. DDI employs 1,150 full-time and 762 part-time employees in Nassau County and
Suffolk County, New York. DDI does not expect that the operation of the Facilities will require it to
employ additional personnel.

Debt Service Coverage.

Calculated in accordance with the definition set forth in the Loan Agreement between DASNY
and DDI, the Actual Debt Service Coverage Ratio of DDI for Fiscal Year 2018 and the Pro Forma Debt
Service Coverage Ratio (which includes DDI’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds) are as
follows:

2017 2017
Actual Pro Forma
Revenues $99,650,921 $99,650,921
Expenses 97,915,258 97,915,258
Net Income (after adj.) 1,735,663 1,735,663
Less Extraordinary Revenue Items 0 0
Plus Extraordinary Expense Items 0 0
Plus Depreciation and Amortization 3,096,901 3,096,901
Plus Current Interest Expense 1,052,294 1,052,294
New PPA Revenues (unaudited) 420,429
Cash Flow for Debt Service 5,884,858 6,305,287
Maximum Annual Debt Service (unaudited) 4,435,360 4,855,789
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) 1.33 1.30

Financials. Audited financial statements for DDI and its affiliate for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2015, December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2017 were prepared by BDO USA, LLP and
are attached as Appendix B-I. Interim unaudited financial information for DDI and its affiliate prepared
by DDI’s Management covering the period from January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018 is attached
as Appendix C-I. Significant accounting policies are contained in the notes to the audited financial
statements, as well as Consolidating Statements for DDI and its affiliate.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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Management’s Summary of Financial Information and Results of Operations.

Summary of Financial information for Prior Five Fiscal Years — All Funds.

The following is a summary of financial information for DDI for the most recently ended five (5)
fiscal years for which audited financial statements were available and has been prepared by DDI’s
Management and derived from DDI’s audited financial statements. The data contained in the following
table should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes presented in
Appendix B-I; audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2014 and December
31, 2013 are available upon request. Note that only the operations of DDI are presented below, which
results may differ from the reported figures in the audited financial statements respecting DDI and its

affiliate.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31,

Current Assets
Net Fixed Assets
Other

Total

Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Net Assets

Total

Operating Revenue:
Program Revenue
Nonprogram Revenue
Total
Operating Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning
of Year

Net Assets, End
of Year

Cash & Equivalents

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$26,593,658 $31,546,099 $34,115,578 $39,985,881 $38,786,628
24,293,712 27,477,574 28,059,733 27,545,851 27,625,661
10,009,559 5,513,765 5,501,309 4,817,620 4,942,800
60,896,929 64,537,438 67,676,620 72,349,352 71,355,089
15,303,626 15,120,862 15,962,549 20,280,743 18,772,727
32,346,456 31,442,975 31,423,161 28,280,699 27,291,619
13,246,847 17,973,601 20,920,910 23,787,910 25,920,743
60,896,929 64,537,438 67,676,620 72,349,352 71,355,089
89,625,577 92,863,886 98,848,011 99,811,644 98,960,074
(1,095,764) 1,931,341 1,301,650 2,449,441 216,529
88,529,813 94,795,227 100,149,661 102,261,085 99,176,603
88,003,223 90,068,473 97,832,352 98,764,085 97,673,770
526,590 4,726,754 2,317,309 3,497,000 1,502,833
12,720,257 13,246,847 17,973,601 20,290,910 23,787,910

13,246,847 17,973,601 20,290,910 23,787,910 25,290,743

8,038,368 9,824,211 14,555,228 15,981,145 13,685,926
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Management Discussion of Results of Operations.

(1 Known Trends or Uncertainties Likely to Have an Impact on Liquidity: DDI is not aware
of any trends or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on DDI’s
short-term or long-term liquidity.

2) Sources of Liquidity: (a) Internal - DDI had current assets of $38,786,628 and
$39,985,881 at the end of fiscal years 2017 and 2016, respectively, (b) External - DDI has available a $9
million revolving line of credit with TD Bank, N.A. for operating or capital expenses.

3) Known Trends or Uncertainties Likely to have an Impact on Revenue or Income: DDI is
not aware of any trends or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact
on DDI’s revenue or income.

4) Income or Loss from Sources Other than Continuing Operations: Income from
contributions, fund-raising, and interest for fiscal years 2017 and 2016 were $60,603 and $51,512,
respectively. See Appendix C-I for interim unaudited financial information through December 31, 2018.

®)] Causes for Changes in Financial Statements: Changes in the number of persons served in
a particular program normally affect the revenues of the program. The number of persons served by
DDTI’s total operations have not materially increased or decreased in recent years.

Liquidity and Capital Resources. As of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, DDI had
$13,685,926 and $15,981,145 in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and $19,083,777 and $17,641,986
in net accounts receivable, respectively.

As of December 31, 2018, DDI had an available revolving line of credit of $9 million with TD
Bank, N.A. The proceeds of the line of credit may be used for operating or capital expenses. The line of
credit is secured by a lien on DDI’s accounts receivable, subject to certain subordination agreements,
which include Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such funds. There was no
outstanding balance on such line of credit as of December 31, 2018.

Long-Term Debt. As of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, DDI had $24,746,294 and
$26,475,074, respectively, in outstanding long-term indebtedness including mortgages, bonds, loans and
capital lease obligations, some of which debt is secured by a security interest in DDI’s Public Funds. See
Notes 11, 12, 13 and 14 of DDI’s Audited Financial Statement for fiscal year ending December 31, 2017
under the titles of “Capital Lease Obligations,” “Line of Credit,” “Mortgages and Loans Payable” and
“Bonds Payable.” DDI has not incurred any long-term debt subsequent to December 31, 2018.

Prior Pledges. DDI’s line of credit for $9 million with TD Bank, N.A. is secured by a lien on
DDI’s accounts receivable, subject to certain subordination agreements, which include Public Funds, and
thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such funds. Of DDI’s total outstanding long-term debt as of
December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, $23,630,531 and $25,773,505 is secured by a security
interest in certain receivables of and real properties owned by DDI, which may include DDI’s Public
Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such funds. DDI’s total Prior Pledges (including short
term and long term debt) as of December 31, 2018 amount to $29,780,302.

Contingencies; Pending or Potential Litigation. According to DDI Management, there is no
action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity or before or by any court, public board
or body pending or threatened to challenge the authority or ability of DDI to continue to operate its
facilities or to challenge title to its properties or seeking damages in excess of applicable insurance
coverage or wherein an adverse determination might, in the opinion of DDI Management, materially
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adversely affect the ability of DDI to carry out the transactions contemplated in the Loan Agreement, the
Mortgage and the Intercept Agreement.

Management.

Directors and Officers: The affairs of DDI are governed by a Board of Directors of up to eighteen
persons. The officers are comprised of: Philip Veneziano, Chairperson, Larry Boone, Vice Chairperson,
Peter Pierri, Treasurer and John Werner, Secretary. Other members of the Board are: Rocco Cirigliano,
Edward Youngling, Michael D’ Alauro, Pamela Frank, James Fogarty, Patrick McCormick, Linda Namias,
Joseph Napolitano, John Porta, Joseph Schmidt, Russell Snaith and Victoria Shoaf. The Board of
Directors meets at least six times a year. A majority of the members of the Board constitute a quorum.
The members of the Board serve without compensation.

Executive and Administrative Officers: John Lessard is the Executive Director of DDI. He holds
a Master of Business Administration from Dowling College. Prior to working at DDI, Mr. Lessard was
the Vice President of Operations for St. Charles Hospital in Port Jefferson, New York. DDI has several
other key employees including Kim Kubasek, Associate Executive Director and Sophia Samuel, Chief
Financial Officer.

Continuing Disclosure. As described in this paragraph, during the past five years, DDI failed to
provide certain secondary market disclosure pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12 in connection with its previous
continuing disclosure undertakings. Such failures include (i) late filings of its audited financial
statements with respect to each of its fiscal years ended December 31, 2014, December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2017; and (ii) late filing of its Annual Information with respect to each of its fiscal years
ended December 31, 2014, December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2017. DDI has adopted procedures to
ensure the timely filing of required information pursuant to its continuing disclosure undertakings in the
future.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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EDEN II SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.

General Operations. Eden II School for Autistic Children, Inc. (“Eden”) was founded in 1976.
Operating out of 14 facilities, Eden provides a wide range of services to individuals with autism spectrum
disorders or individuals with autistic-like communication and behavior disorders, as defined by the
Autism Society of America. Eden students and adult consumers reside in New York City and the
counties of Long Island. Eden provides the following range of services:

Day school programs for pre-school and school age children

Residential programs for adolescents and adults

Family support services

Adult day habilitation programs

Community outreach services including parent training, community lectures and seminars,
professional consultations, after-school services, and summer camps.

Eden’s success in providing quality services lies in its commitment to state of the art
programming. Applied Behavior Analysis, the only empirically validated intervention for individuals
with autism, provides the framework for all Eden programs. Treatment programs are tailored to fit the
individual and are implemented within a community-based context, designed to facilitate community
living. The goal for all consumers of Eden is independence and community integration. Eden is a not-
for-profit organization, exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and comparable New York State Law.

Eden’s funding sources for its 2018 Fiscal Year were: OPWDD (approximately 57%), State
Department of Education (approximately 30%) and miscellaneous other sources (approximately 13%).

Description of Facilities and Financing Plan. DASNY will lend Eden $1,675,000 from the
proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds (“Eden’s Allocable Portion™). Such amount will be used to finance or
refinance debt incurred in connection with the Facility and Project described below, as well as for related
legal fees, capitalized interest, costs of issuance and debt service reserve requirements.

. The Facility is a 2,444 square-foot, 2-story building located at 205 Eltingville Boulevard,
Staten Island, New York. The Project consists of the acquisition and rehabilitation of the
Facility for use as a residence for seven adults with developmental disabilities.

The governmental funding source for the Facility is OPWDD and the Facility is supported by a
PPA, which Eden has received. This means the Facility is pre-approved by OPWDD for reimbursement
by OPWDD for principal and interest costs incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or renovation
and furnishing of the Facility and financing or refinancing costs incurred in connection therewith.

The Facility is a New PPA Lien Project. See the information in this Official Statement entitled
“PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE - New York State Office for
People with Developmental Disabilities - PPA Regulatory Compliance Process” for further information
concerning New PPA Lien Projects.

A Certificate of Occupancy has been received form the City of New York for the Facility. Eden
has not received as required a new or updated Certificate of Occupancy or a Letter of Completion from
the City of New York for the Facility and has not received an Operating Certificate for the Facility from
OPWDD. See the information in this Official Statement entitled “PART 11 - BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS
- Completion of the Projects; Zoning; Certificate of Occupancy.”
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Eden owns the Facility. Eden will grant DASNY a mortgage on the real property with respect to
the Facility, a security interest in the furniture, fixtures and equipment financed with bond proceeds and
constituting a portion of the Facility, and a lien on the Public Funds attributable to the Facility.

Other Properties. Eden also owns and operates 9 other properties and leases another 5
properties throughout New York City and Long Island.

Employees. Eden employs 449 full-time and 212 part-time employees. Eden expects that the
operation of the Facility will require it to employ 18 to 24 additional personnel.

Debt Service Coverage.

Calculated in accordance with the definition set forth in the Loan Agreement between DASNY
and Eden, the Actual Debt Service Coverage Ratio of Eden for Fiscal Year 2018 and the Pro Forma Debt
Service Coverage Ratio (which includes Eden’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds) are as
follows:

2018 2018
Actual Pro Forma
Revenues $32,718,077 $32,718,077
Expenses 33,036,776 33,036,776
Net Income (after adj.) (318,699) (318,699)
Less Extraordinary Revenue Items 0 0
Plus Extraordinary Expense Items 0 0
Plus Depreciation and Amortization 1,490,572 1,490,572
Plus Current Interest Expense 585,046 585,046
New PPA Revenues (unaudited) 103,125
Cash Flow for Debt Service 1,756,919 1,860,044
Maximum Annual Debt Service (unaudited) 1,343,207 1,446,332
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) 1.31 1.29

Financials. Audited financial statements for Eden for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and
June 30, 2017 were prepared by BDO USA, LLP and for fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 by Marks
Paneth LLP and are attached as Appendix B-II. Interim unaudited financial information for Eden
prepared by Eden’s Management covering the period from July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018 is
attached as Appendix C-II. Significant accounting policies are contained in the notes to the audited
financial statements.
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Management’s Summary of Financial Information and Results of Operations.

Summary of Financial information for Prior Five Fiscal Years — All Funds.

The following is a summary of financial information for Eden for the most recently ended five (5)
fiscal years for which audited financial statements were available and has been prepared by Eden’s
Management and derived from Eden’s audited financial statements. The data contained in the following
table should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes presented in
Appendix B-II; audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014

are available upon request.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Current Assets
Net Fixed Assets
Other

Total

Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Net Assets

Total
Operating Revenue:
Program Revenue
Nonprogram Revenue
Total

Operating Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of

Year

Net Assets, End of Year

Cash & Equivalents

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
$7,868,099  $7,129,661 $8,699,864  $7.584,564  $9,038,904
16,140,495 18,802,219 18,769,983 17,409,194 15,998,764
2,269,241 2,350,504 2,669,771 1,489,890 1,492,034
26,277,835 28,282,384 30,139,618 26,483,648 26,529,702
4,635,693 4,700,693 6,169,791 5,661,243 9,823,103
13,678,612 14,900,687 15,630,672 12,816,648 9,019,541
7,963,530 8,681,004 8,339,155 8,005,757 7,687,058
26,277,835 28,282,384 30,139,618 26,483,648 26,529,702
26,545,730 27,322,332 30,090,725 31,042,869 32,713,102
3,165,804 792,735 404,447 99,251 4,975
29,711,534 28,115,067 30,495,172 31,142,120 32,718,077
28,096,278 27,397,593 30,836,991 31475518 33,036,776
1,615,256 717,474 (341,819)  (333,398) (318,699)
6,348,274 7,963,530 8,680,974 8,339,155 8,005,757
7,963,530 8,681,004 8,339,155 8,005,757 7,687,058
743,618 603,678 890,162 383,692 552,563
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Management Discussion of Results of Operations.

(D Known Trends or Uncertainties Likely to Have an Impact on Liquidity: Eden is not aware
of any trends or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on Eden’s
short-term or long-term liquidity.

2) Sources of Liquidity: (a) Internal - Eden had current assets of $9,038,904 and $7,584,564
at the end of fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively, (b) External - Eden has available a $2.5 million
revolving line of credit with Northfield Bank for operating expenses and a revolving line of credit for up
to $1 million with the Foundation for the Advancement of Autistic Persons (“Foundation”).

3) Known Trends or Uncertainties Likely to have an Impact on Revenue or Income: Eden is
not aware of any trends or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact
on Eden’s revenue or income.

4) Income or Loss from Sources Other than Continuing Operations: Income from
contributions, fund-raising, and interest for fiscal years 2018 and 2017 were $438,057 and $269,737,
respectively. See Appendix C-II for interim unaudited financial information through December 31, 2018.

%) Causes for Changes in Financial Statements: Changes in the number of persons served in
a particular program normally affect the revenues of the program. The number of persons served by
Eden’s total operations have not materially increased or decreased in recent years.

Liquidity and Capital Resources. As of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, Eden had $552,563
and $383,692 in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and $7,525,683 and $6,809,690 in net accounts
receivable, respectively.

As of December 31, 2018, Eden had an available revolving line of credit of $2.5 million with
Northfield Bank. The proceeds of the line of credit are to be used for operating expenses. The line of
credit is secured by a lien on all of Eden’s assets, which include Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior
Pledge as to such funds. The outstanding balance on such line of credit as of December 31, 2018 was
$600,000.

As of December 31, 2018, Eden had an available revolving line of credit of $1 million with the
Foundation. The proceeds of the line of credit are to be used for operating expenses. The line of credit is
unsecured. There was no outstanding balance on such line of credit as of December 31, 2018.

Long-Term Debt. As of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, Eden had $9,019,541 and
$12,816,648, respectively, in outstanding long-term indebtedness including mortgages, bonds and loans,
some of which debt is secured by a security interest in Eden’s Public Funds. See Notes 7, 8, 9 and 10 of
Eden’s Audited Financial Statement for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 under the titles of “Bonds
Payable, Net,” “Mortgages and Notes Payable, Net,” “Line of Credit” and “Loan Payable.” Eden
anticipates borrowing $750,000 on March 12, 2019 from FJC for the purchase of a residence to serve as
an individualized residential alternative.

Prior Pledges. Eden’s line of credit for $2.5 million with Northfield Bank is secured by a lien on
all of Eden’s assets, which include Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such funds. Of
Eden’s total outstanding long-term debt as of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, $9,340,682 and
$9,082,190 is secured by a security interest in certain receivables of and real properties owned by Eden,
which may include Eden’s Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such funds. Eden’s
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total Prior Pledges (including short term and long term debt) as of December 31, 2018 amount to
$9,159,035.

Contingencies; Pending or Potential Litigation. According to Eden Management, there is no
action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity or before or by any court, public board
or body pending or threatened to challenge the authority or ability of Eden to continue to operate its
facilities or to challenge title to its properties or seeking damages in excess of applicable insurance
coverage or wherein an adverse determination might, in the opinion of Eden Management, materially
adversely affect the ability of Eden to carry out the transactions contemplated in the Loan Agreement, the
Mortgage and the Intercept Agreement.

Management.

Directors and Officers: The affairs of Eden are governed by a Board of Trustees of no less than
seven and no more than twenty-five. The officers are comprised of: Ralph Scamardella, Chairman,
Donald Russo, Vice Chairman, Shanx Ravisankar, Treasurer, and David Glick, Secretary. Other
members of the Board are: William Juliano, James Caldarella, Michele Carr, Anthony Citarrella, Jeanette
Collins, James Cronin, Michael Giangregorio, Lou Anne Haley, Grace Han, Denise Holzka, Steve
Kirschbaum, Barbara Maxwell, Nicole Memoli, Angela Natale, Bernardo Pace and Terry Tarangelo. The
Board of Directors meets at least four times a year. A majority of the trustees in office shall constitutes a
quorum. The members of the Board serve without compensation.

Executive and Administrative Officers: Joanne Gerenser, Ph.D., has been employed at Eden since
1982, and has served as its Executive Director since 1996. Dr. Gerenser is a distinguished professional,
having been credited with over 50 presentations and publications. She has won numerous awards for
contributions in the field of autism. Dr. Gerenser earned a doctorate in Speech and Hearing Science at the
City University of New York Graduate Center; a master’s degree in Speech and Hearing Sciences at The
Ohio State University; and a B.A. in Speech Pathology and Audiology from SUNY -Geneseo. Other key
employees include Daniel Rauch, CPA, Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Rauch joined Eden in 2014 as the
Chief Financial Officer. Prior to joining Eden, he served as the chief financial officer at several not-for-
profit organizations including a continuing care retirement community and acute care hospitals. He also
has over 10 years of experience at the national accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche. Besides being a
Certified Public Accountant, he is also a Certified Internal Auditor. He received a Bachelor of Business
Administration from the University of Notre Dame.

Continuing Disclosure.

Eden is in compliance with all of its continuing disclosure undertakings made pursuant to Rule
15¢2-12.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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MERCY HOME FOR CHILDREN, INC.

General Operations. Mercy Home for Children, Inc. (“MHC”) has been working with
vulnerable people for more than 150 years, providing services first to children and youth in need, then
expanding to adults. Historically, MHC has focused on meeting basic needs, but over the past 40 years,
MHC has focused on innovative services that draw out and engage individuals with autism spectrum
disorder and intellectual and developmental disabilities to enhance their skills, bolster their autonomy and
improve their self-esteem. MHC was founded in 1862 by the Sisters of Mercy, in Brooklyn, New York to
provide compassionate care for children who were victims of war, disease, poverty, or who suffered the
loss of a parent. MHC’s vision and all of its current work are a product of the initial concerns of the
Sisters of Mercy, particularly their focus on working on behalf of the marginalized, dismantling racism,
working for peace through nonviolence and believing firmly in the dignity of every person, including
immigrants, the poor and women. Today, MHC embraces this vision by helping people with intellectual
and developmental disabilities to live their lives fully. In 1977, MHC established the first Developmental
Therapy Unit in New York City for children with autism spectrum disorder. MHC currently operates 13
family-style homes in Brooklyn, Queens, and Nassau County, New York. MHC is a not-for-profit
organization, exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
comparable New York State Law.

The financial statements of MHC are prepared on a consolidated basis among MHC and its
affiliate. However, the financial information contained in this Appendix is limited to the operations of
MHC, as the affiliate of MHC will not have any obligation to make payments under the Loan Agreement.
The Series 2019 Participant is only MHC.

MHC’s funding sources for its 2018 Fiscal Year were: OPWDD (approximately 95%) and
miscellaneous other sources (approximately 5%).

Description of Facilities and Financing Plan. DASNY will lend MHC $3,085,000 from the
proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds (“MHC’s Allocable Portion”). Such amount will be used to finance or
refinance debt incurred in connection with the Facilities and Projects described below, as well as for
related legal fees, capitalized interest, costs of issuance and debt service reserve requirements.

. The “1058 Herkimer Street Facility” is a 3,984 square-foot, 3-story building located at
1058 Herkimer Street, Brooklyn, New York. Approximately $2,222,237 will be used to
finance the “1058 Herkimer Street Project,” which consists of the acquisition and
rehabilitation of the 1058 Herkimer Street Facility for use as a residence for ten adults
with developmental disabilities.

. The “1370 Union Street Facility” (together with the 1058 Herkimer Street Facility, the
“Facilities”) is a 2,749 square-foot, 3-story building located at 1370 Union Street,
Brooklyn, New York. Approximately $587,145 will be used to finance the “1370 Union
Street Project” (together with the 1058 Herkimer Street Project, the “Projects”), which
consists of the rehabilitation of the 1370 Union Street Facility for use as a residence for
six adults with developmental disabilities.

The remainder of MHC’s Allocable Portion in the amount of approximately $275,618 will be
used for legal fees, costs of issuance and debt service reserve requirements.

The governmental funding source for the Facilities is OPWDD and the Facilities are supported

by PPAs, which MHC has received. This means the Facilities are pre-approved by OPWDD for
reimbursement by OPWDD for principal and interest costs incurred in connection with the acquisition
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and/or renovation and furnishing of the Facilities and financing or refinancing costs incurred in
connection therewith.

The Facilities are both New PPA Lien Projects. See the information in this Official Statement
entitled “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE - New York State Office
for People with Developmental Disabilities - PPA Regulatory Compliance Process” for further
information concerning New PPA Lien Projects.

A Certificate of Occupancy has been received from the City of New York for the 1058 Herkimer
Street Facility. A Certificate of Occupancy is not required for the 1370 Union Street Facility. MHC has
not received as required a new or updated Certificate of Occupancy or Letter of Completion from the City
of New York for the 1058 Herkimer Street Facility or Letter of Completion for the 1370 Union Street
Facility. MHC has also not received Operating Certificates from OPWDD for either the 1058 Herkimer
Street Facility or the 1370 Union Street Facility. See the information in this Official Statement entitled
“PART 11 - BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS - Completion of the Projects; Zoning; Certificate of Occupancy.”

MHC owns the 1058 Herkimer Street Facility and leases the 1370 Union Street Facility. MHC
will grant DASNY a mortgage on the real property with respect to the 1058 Herkimer Street Facility, a
security interest in the furniture, fixtures and equipment financed with bond proceeds and constituting a
portion of the 1058 Herkimer Street Facility, and a lien on the Public Funds attributable to the 1058
Herkimer Street Facility. MHC will collaterally assign to DASNY pursuant to a Collateral Assignment of
Leases its right, title and interest (but not its obligations) in the lease for the 1370 Union Street Facility
and grant DASNY a lien on the Public Funds attributable to the 1370 Union Street Facility. The landlord
under the lease for the 1370 Union Street Facility has consented to such collateral assignment. The term
of the lease together with all lease renewal options available to MHC for the 1370 Union Street Facility
exceeds the term of MHC’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds.

Other Properties. MHC also owns 8 other properties and leases 7 other residential and day
program properties throughout Kings County, Queens County and Nassau County, New Y ork.

Employees. MHC employs 164 full-time and 131 part-time employees in Kings County, Queens
County and Nassau County, New York. MHC does not expect that the operation of the Facilities will
require it to employ additional personnel.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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Debt Service Coverage.

Calculated in accordance with the definition set forth in the Loan Agreement between DASNY
and MHC, the Actual Debt Service Coverage Ratio of MHC for Fiscal Year 2018 and the Pro Forma Debt
Service Coverage Ratio (which includes MHC’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds) are as
follows:

2018 2018
Actual Pro Forma
Revenues $18,235,286 $18,235,286
Expenses 19,052,532 19,052,532
Net Income (after adj.) (817, 246) (817, 246)
Less Extraordinary Revenue Items 0 0
Plus Extraordinary Expense Items 348,000 348,000
Plus Depreciation and Amortization 327,622 327,622
Plus Current Interest Expense 134,591 134,591
New PPA Revenues (unaudited) 0 197,451
Cash Flow for Debt Service (7,033) 190,418
Maximum Annual Debt Service (unaudited) 424,792 622,243
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) -0.02 0.31®

() Note that the Loan Agreement includes a covenant for MHC to maintain in each Fiscal Year
Total Net Revenues Available for Debt Service sufficient to produce in each Fiscal Year a Total
Debt Service Coverage Ratio of not less than 1.00 to 1.00, with which MHC expects to be in
compliance. The above pro forma illustration is a look back to Fiscal Year 2018, the most recent
fiscal year for which audited financial statements are available. Fiscal Year 2018 was a “Base
Year” for OPWDD providers. Per the Rate Rationalization process (the current methodology by
which reimbursement rates are calculated for providers in New York State) that began in Fiscal
Year 2014, providers who end a Base Year with a surplus can expect to have their
reimbursement rates cut in subsequent years. The Base Fiscal Year 2018 year results will affect
Fiscal Year 2020 rates. Consequently, many providers intentionally manage spending during a
Base Year to prevent future rate cuts which results in the lower Total Debt Service Coverage
Ratio shown above. OPWDD has been working with providers as part of its continuing ‘“Rate
Rationalization and Budget Neutrality” efforts in order to “right size” the reimbursement rates
paid to OPWDD funded providers based upon their geographic location within the state, the size
of their agency, the number of individuals served, and the complexity of care required (including
age of individuals, ambulation and other abilities).

Financials. Audited financial statements for MHC for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and
June 30, 2017 were prepared by Loeb & Troper LLP and for MHC and its affiliate for fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018 by Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP and are attached as Appendix B-III. Interim
unaudited financial information for MHC and prepared by MHC’s Management covering the period from
July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018 is attached as Appendix C-III. Significant accounting policies
are contained in the notes to the audited financial statements. Consolidating Statements for MHC and its
affiliate are not included in the audited financial statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 because
the affiliate is not yet operational.
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Management’s Summary of Financial Information and Results of Operations.

Summary of Financial information for Prior Five Fiscal Years — All Funds.

The following is a summary of financial information for MHC for the most recently ended five
(5) fiscal years for which audited financial statements were available and has been prepared by MHC’s
Management and derived from MHC’s audited financial statements. The data contained in the following
table should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes presented in
Appendix B-III; audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014
are available upon request. Note that only the operations of MHC are presented below with respect to
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, as MHC’s affiliate is not yet operational and will not have any obligation

to make payments under the Loan Agreement.

Current Assets
Net Fixed Assets
Other

Total

Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Net Assets

Total

Operating Revenue:
Program Revenue
Nonprogram Revenue

Total

Operating Expenses

Prior Year Rate
Adjustment

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of

Year

Net Assets, End of
Year

Cash & Equivalents

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
$16,270,728  $16,798,022 $14,614,784 §$14,881,370  $14,655,013
3,629,084 3,425,368 3,820,635 3,535,959 7,320,094
1,607,247 2,622,881 579,565 286,490 234,238
21,507,059 22,846,271 19,014,984 18,703,819 22,209,345
5,982,305 8,251,768 4,561,824 2,891,577 6,374,352
2,861,594 2,607,004 2,156,047 2,438,814 3,715,683
12,663,160 11,987,499 12,297,113 13,373,428 12,119,310
21,507,059 22,846,271 19,014,984 18,703,819 22,209,345
18,292,272 16,830,005 17,151,280 17,157,689 17,488,040
2,207,075 911,599 1,599,701 1,722,026 747,246
20,499,347 17,741,604 18,750,981 18,879,715 18,235,286
19,621,901 18,608,489 18,070,975 18,521,571 19,052,532
0 191,224 (370,392) 718,171 0
877,446 (675,661) 309,614 1,076,315 (817,246)
11,785,714 12,663,160 11,987,499 12,297,113 12,936,556
12,663,160 11,987,499 12,297,113 13,373,428 12,119,310
4,187,331 5,965,944 1,544,272 1,765,020 1,710,444

* See Note 15 to MHC’s audited financial statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
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Management Discussion of Results of Operations.

(D) Known Trends or Uncertainties Likely to Have an Impact on Liquidity: MHC is not
aware of any trends or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on
MHC’s short-term or long-term liquidity.

2) Sources of Liquidity: (a) Internal - MHC had current assets of $14,655,013 and
$14,881,370 at the end of fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively. (b) External - MHC has available a
$9.1 million line of credit with Wells Fargo Clearing Services, LLC secured by certain investments and a
$500,000 line of credit with Ridgewood Savings Bank secured by a savings account.

3) Known Trends or Uncertainties Likely to have an Impact on Revenue or Income: MHC is
not aware of any trends or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact
on MHC’s revenue or income.

4) Income or Loss from Sources Other than Continuing Operations: Income from
contributions, fund-raising, and interest for fiscal years 2018 and 2017 were $586,806 and $627,306,
respectively. See Appendix C-III for interim unaudited financial information through December 31, 2018.

%) Causes for Changes in Financial Statements: Changes in the number of persons served in
a particular program normally affect the revenues of the program. The number of persons served by
MHC’s total operations have not materially increased or decreased in recent years.

Liquidity and Capital Resources. As of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, MHC had
$1,710,444 and $1,765,020 in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and $1,379,739 and $1,690,635 in
net accounts receivable, respectively.

As of December 31, 2018, MHC had an available a $9.1 million line of credit with Wells Fargo
Clearing Services, LLC. The proceeds of the line of credit are to be used for operating expenses. The
line of credit is secured by a lien on certain of MHC’s investment accounts. There outstanding balance on
such line of credit as of December 31, 2018 was $3,551,805.

As of December 31, 2018, MHC had an available line of credit of $500,000 with Ridgewood
Savings Bank. The proceeds of the line of credit may be used for operating expenses and other business
purposes. The line of credit is secured by a lien on MHC’s savings accounts. There was no outstanding
balance on such line of credit as of December 31, 2018.

Long-Term Debt. As of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, MHC had $4,288,673 and $2,435,137,
respectively, in outstanding long-term indebtedness including mortgages, loans and capital lease
obligations, some of which debt is secured by a security interest in MHC’s Public Funds. See Notes 4, 5,
6, 7 and 8 of MHC’s Audited Financial Statement for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 under the titles of
“Line of Credit Payable,” “Priority Line of Credit Payable,” “Mortgages Payable,” “Capital Lease
Payable” and “Loan Payable.” MHC has not incurred any long-term debt subsequent to June 30, 2018.

Prior Pledges. Of MHC'’s total outstanding long-term debt as of June 30, 2018 and June 30,
2017, $4,288,673 and $2,435,137 is secured by a security interest in certain receivables of and real
properties owned by MHC, which may include MHC’s Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge
as to such funds. MHC’s total Prior Pledges (including short term and long term debt) as of December 31,
2018 amount to $3,846,425.
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Contingencies; Pending or Potential Litigation. According to MHC Management, there is no
action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity or before or by any court, public board
or body pending or threatened to challenge the authority or ability of MHC to continue to operate its
facilities or to challenge title to its properties or seeking damages in excess of applicable insurance
coverage or wherein an adverse determination might, in the opinion of MHC Management, materially
adversely affect the ability of MHC to carry out the transactions contemplated in the Loan Agreement, the
Mortgage, the Collateral Assignment of Leases and the Intercept Agreement.

Management.

Directors and Officers: The affairs of MHC are governed by a Board of Directors of up to thirty
persons. The officers are comprised of: Donna Whiteford, Chairperson, James Slattery, Vice Chairperson,
Anthony Simeone, Treasurer and Sister Frances Picone, Secretary. Other members of the Board are:
Sister Theresa Agliardi, Reverend Michael Perrry, Sister Camille D’ Arienzo, Sister Margaret Dempsey,
Sister Linda Esposito, Robert Flanagan, Frank Fellone I1I, Rose Travers, Celeste Wasielewski, David
Orlinsky, Richard Santulli and Honorable Matthew D’Emic. The Board of Directors meets at least four
times a year. A majority of the members of the Board constitute a quorum. The members of the Board
serve without compensation.

Executive and Administrative Officers: Janice Aris is the Executive Director of MHC. She holds
Masters degrees in Social Sciences, Social Work and Public Administration from Long Island University.
Prior to working at MHC, Mrs. Aris was the Vice President of Services for People with /DD Operations
for Catholic Charities Neighborhood Services. MHC has several other key employees including Elinor
LaTouche, Chief Operations Officer and Minglan Cai, Executive Vice President of Finance.

Continuing Disclosure.

As described in this paragraph, during the past five years, MHC has failed to provide certain
secondary market disclosure pursuant to Rule 15c¢2-12 in connection with its previous continuing
disclosure undertakings. Such failures include (i) late filings of its audited financial statements with
respect to its fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 due to unlinked CUSIP numbers; and (ii) not filing a notice
of its failure to timely file audited financial statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 due to unlinked
CUSIP numbers. MHC has adopted procedures to ensure the timely filing of required information
pursuant to its continuing disclosure undertakings in the future.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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SERVICES FOR THE UNDERSERVED, INC.
AND
SUS-DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES SERVICES. INC.

General Operations. Services for the UnderServed, Inc. (“SUS”) and its eleven affiliates were
founded in and after 1978. Operating out of 109 facilities and its corporate offices at 305 7" Avenue,
New York, New York, SUS and its affiliates provide a wide range of in-home and residential services to
the developmentally disabled, mentally ill, people living with AIDS and other communities of New York
City. The mission of SUS and its affiliates is to provide support and assistance to individuals with special
needs to live with dignity in the community, direct their own lives and attain personal fulfillment. In
order to achieve their mission, SUS and its affiliates provide services with the following goals: (i) to
assist individuals to develop to their fullest level of independence; (ii) to allow individuals choice in
determining what their lives will be like; (iii) to help families stay together by providing relief, training
and support of care givers which enhance the family’s quality of life; and (iv) to provide excellent
services as defined by the consumers of service. SUS is a not-for-profit organization, exempt from
income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and comparable New York State Law.

SUS-Developmental Disabilities Services, Inc. (“SUS-DD”) is a subsidiary of SUS and is the
entity that, along with SUS, will receive the loan from the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds. SUS-DD
is also a not-for-profit organization, exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and comparable New York State Law. SUS is the sole member of SUS-DD, and the board
of directors of SUS controls the membership rights and obligations of SUS-DD. The financial statements
of SUS are prepared on a consolidated basis among SUS and its affiliates, including SUS-DD. However,
the financial information in this Appendix is limited to the operations of SUS and SUS-DD, as the other
affiliates of SUS will not have any obligation to make payments under the Loan Agreement. The Series
2019 Participant is only SUS and SUS-DD.

SUS and SUS-DD’s funding sources for their 2018 Fiscal Year were: OPWDD (approximately
5%), New York State Office of Mental Health (approximately 30%), New York State Office of
Alcoholism and Substance Abuse Services (approximately 10%), U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (approximately 10%), New York City Department of Homeless Services (approximately
25%), New York City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (approximately 10%) and
miscellaneous other sources (approximately 10%).

Description of Facilities and Financing Plan. DASNY will lend SUS and SUS-DD $3,285,000
from the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds (“SUS and SUS-DD’s Allocable Portion™). Such amount
will be used to finance or refinance debt incurred in connection with the Facilities and Projects described
below, as well as for related legal fees, capitalized interest, costs of issuance and debt service reserve
requirements.

. The “5205 Henry Hudson Parkway West Facility” is a 2,527 square-foot, 2.5-story
building located at 5205 Henry Hudson Parkway West, Bronx, New York.
Approximately $1,806,526 will be used to finance the “5205 Henry Hudson Parkway
West Project,” which consists of the acquisition and rehabilitation of the 5205 Hendry
Hudson Parkway West Facility for use as a residence for eight adults with developmental
disabilities.

. The “185-24 80" Road Facility” is a 2,556 square-foot, 2-story building located at 185-24
80" Road, Jamaica, New York. Approximately $440,124 will be used to finance the
“185-24 80™ Road Project,” which consists of the rehabilitation of the 185-24 80" Road
Facility for use as a residence for eight adults with developmental disabilities.
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. The “244-04 Northern Boulevard Facility” (together with the 5205 Henry Hudson
Parkway West Facility and the 185-24 80" Road Facility, the “Facilities”) is a 3,786
square-foot, 2-story building located at 244-04 Northern Boulevard, Douglaston, New
York. Approximately $736,842 will be used to finance the “244-04 Northern Boulevard
Project” (together with the 5205 Henry Hudson Parkway West Project and the 185-24
80™ Road Project, the “Projects”), which consists of the rehabilitation of the 244-04
Northern Boulevard Facility for use as a residence for eight adults with developmental
disabilities.

The remainder of SUS and SUS-DD’s Allocable Portion in the amount of approximately
$301,508 will be used for legal fees, costs of issuance and debt service reserve requirements.

The governmental funding source for the Facilities is OPWDD and the Facilities are supported by
PPAs, which SUS has received. This means the Facilities are pre-approved by OPWDD for
reimbursement by OPWDD for principal and interest costs incurred in connection with the acquisition
and/or renovation and furnishing of the Facilities and financing or refinancing costs incurred in
connection therewith.

The Facilities are all New PPA Lien Projects. See the information in this Official Statement
entitled “PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE - New York State Office
for People with Developmental Disabilities - PPA Regulatory Compliance Process” for further
information concerning New PPA Lien Projects.

Certificates of Occupancy have been received from the City of New York for all of the Facilities.
SUS and SUS-DD have not received as required new or updated Certificates of Occupancy or Letters of
Completion from the City of New York or Operating Certificates from OPWDD for the Facilities. See
the information in this Official Statement entitled “PART 11 - BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS - Completion
of the Projects; Zoning; Certificate of Occupancy.”

SUS-DD owns the 5205 Henry Hudson Parkway West Facility and leases the 185-24 80™ Road
Facility and 244-04 Northern Boulevard Facility. SUS-DD will grant DASNY a mortgage on the real
property with respect to the 5205 Henry Hudson Parkway West Facility, a security interest in the furniture,
fixtures and equipment financed with bond proceeds and constituting a portion of the 5205 Henry Hudson
Parkway West Facility, and a lien on the Public Funds attributable to the 5205 Henry Hudson Parkway
West Facility. SUS-DD will collaterally assign to DASNY pursuant to Collateral Assignments of Leases
its right, title and interest (but not its obligations) in the leases for the 185-24 80" Road Facility and 244-
04 Northern Boulevard Facility, and SUS and SUS-DD will grant DASNY a lien on the Public Funds
attributable to the 185-24 80™ Road Facility and 244-04 Northern Boulevard Facility. The landlords
under the respective leases for the 185-24 80™ Road Facility and 244-04 Northern Boulevard Facility
have each consented to such collateral assignment. The respective term of each of the leases together
with all lease renewal options available to SUS and SUS-DD for the 185-24 80" Road Facility and 244-
04 Northern Boulevard Facility exceeds the term of SUS and SUS-DD’s Allocable Portion of the Series
2019 Bonds.

Other Properties. SUS-DD and other SUS affiliates own 75 other properties and lease another
34 residential and day program properties in the Boroughs of New York City and lease office space in
Manhattan and Brooklyn. These do not include individual apartments which SUS rents on behalf of its
consumers.

Employees. SUS employs a staff of 2,070, of which 1,910 are full-time employees and 160 are
part-time employees. SUS does not expect that the operation of the Facilities will require it to employ
additional personnel.
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Debt Service Coverage.

Calculated in accordance with the definition set forth in the Loan Agreement among DASNY
SUS and SUS-DD, the Actual Debt Service Coverage Ratio of SUS and SUS-DD for Fiscal Year 2018
and the Pro Forma Debt Service Coverage Ratio (which includes SUS and SUS-DD’s Allocable Portion
of the Series 2019 Bonds) are as follows:

2018 2018
Actual Pro Forma
Revenues $94,961,000 $94,961,000
Expenses 97,976,000 97,976,000
Net Income (after adj.) (3,015,000) (3,015,000)
Less Extraordinary Revenue Items 0 0
Plus Extraordinary Expense Items 0 0
Plus Depreciation and Amortization 2,031,000 2,031,000
Plus Current Interest Expense 979,000 979,000
New PPA Revenues (unaudited) 0 242,583
Cash Flow for Debt Service (5,000) 237,583
Maximum Annual Debt Service (unaudited) 1,823,000 2,065,583
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) -0.003 0.115®

() Note that the Loan Agreement includes a covenant for SUS and SUS-DD to maintain in
each Fiscal Year Total Net Revenues Available for Debt Service sufficient to produce in each
Fiscal Year a Total Debt Service Coverage Ratio of not less than 1.00 to 1.00, with which
SUS and SUS-DD expect to be in compliance. The above pro forma illustration is a look
back to Fiscal Year 2018, the most recent fiscal year for which audited financial statements
are available. Fiscal Year 2018 was a “Base Year” for OPWDD providers. Per the Rate
Rationalization process (the current methodology by which reimbursement rates are
calculated for providers in New York State) that began in Fiscal Year 2014, providers who
end a Base Year with a surplus can expect to have their reimbursement rates cut in
subsequent years. The Base Fiscal Year 2018 year results will affect Fiscal Year 2020 rates.
Consequently, many providers intentionally manage spending during a Base Year to prevent
future rate cuts which results in the lower Total Debt Service Coverage Ratio shown above.
OPWDD has been working with providers as part of its continuing ‘“Rate Rationalization and
Budget Neutrality” efforts in order to “right size” the reimbursement rates paid to OPWDD
funded providers based upon their geographic location within the state, the size of their
agency, the number of individuals served, and the complexity of care required (including age
of individuals, ambulation and other abilities).

Financials. Audited financial statements for SUS and its affiliates, including SUS-DD, for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2016, June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2018 were prepared by BDO USA, LLP and
are attached as Appendix B-IV. Interim unaudited financial information for SUS and its affiliates
prepared by SUS and SUS-DD’s Management covering the period from July 1, 2018 through December
31, 2018 is attached as Appendix C-IV. Significant accounting policies are contained in the notes to the
audited financial statements. Consolidating Statements for SUS and its affiliates are included in the
audited financial statements for fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017 but not for fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018.
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Management’s Summary of Financial Information and Results of Operations.

Summary of Financial information for Prior Five Fiscal Years — All Funds.

The following is a summary of financial information for SUS and SUS-DD for the most recently
ended five (5) fiscal years for which audited financial statements were available and has been prepared by
SUS and SUS-DD’s Management and derived from SUS and SUS-DD’s audited financial statements.
The data contained in the following table should be read in conjunction with the audited financial
statements and related notes presented in Appendix B-1V; audited financial statements for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014 are available upon request. Note that only the operations of SUS
and SUS-DD are presented below, which results may differ from the reported figures in the audited
financial statements respecting SUS and all of its affiliates.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Current Assets
Net Fixed Assets
Other

Total
Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Net Assets
Total
Operating Revenue:
Program Revenue
Nonprogram Revenue
Total
Operating Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Other Changes to Net
Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of

Year

Net Assets, End of Year

Cash & Equivalents

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
$7,346,767  $15,040,000 $14,348,000 11,022,000 21,778,000
19,029,525 18,223,000 20,300,000 21,752,000 22,507,000
14,350,903 17,262,000 34,826,000 47,458,000 44,892,000
40,727,195 50,525,000 69,674,000 80,232,000 89,175,000
14,379,149 13,884,000 24,748,000 13,453,000 23,188,000
15,493,218 16,213,000 23,861,000 35,540,000 37,765,000
10,854,828 20,428,000 21,065,000 31,239,000 28,222,000
40,727,195 50,525,000 69,674,000 80,232,000 89,175,000
41,855,751 48,034,000 53,837,000 59,618,000 71,940,000

8,308,786 12,484,000 15,027,000 17.309,000 23,021,000
50,164,537 60,518,000 68,864,000 76,927,000 94,961,000
48,464,034 59,039,000 68,227,000 78,487,000 97,976,000

1,700,503 1,479,000 637,000  (1,560,000) (3,015,000)

0 8,094,000 0 11,734,000 0

9,154,325 10,855,000 20,428,000 21,065,000 31,239,000
10,854,828 20,428,000 21,065,000 31,239,000 28,222,000

5,423,100 8,229,000 6,430,000 1,031,000 7,517,000
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Management Discussion of Results of Operations.

(1 Known Trends or Uncertainties Likely to Have an Impact on Liquidity: SUS and SUS-
DD are not aware of any trends or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material
impact on SUS or SUS-DD’s short-term or long-term liquidity.

2) Sources of Liquidity: (a) Internal - SUS and SUS-DD had current assets of $21,776,000
and $11,022,000 at the end of fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively, (b) External - SUS has available
with TD Bank, N.A. as lead agent and Bank United, N.A. a $20 million revolving line of credit for
operating expenses and a $6 million revolving line of credit for working capital.

3) Known Trends or Uncertainties Likely to have an Impact on Revenue or Income: SUS
and SUS-DD are not aware of any trends or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably likely to have a
material impact on SUS or SUS-DD’s revenue or income.

4) Income or Loss from Sources Other than Continuing Operations: Income from
contributions, fund-raising, and interest for fiscal years 2018 and 2017 were $270,000 and $1,007,000,
respectively. See Appendix C-IV for interim unaudited financial information through December 31, 2018.

%) Causes for Changes in Financial Statements: Changes in the number of persons served in
a particular program normally affect the revenues of the program. The number of persons served by
SUS’s total operations have not materially increased or decreased in recent years.

Liquidity and Capital Resources. As of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, SUS and SUS-DD
had $7,517,000 and $1,031,000 in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and $12,701,000 and
$9,316,000 in net accounts receivable, respectively.

As of December 31, 2018, SUS had an available revolving line of credit of $6 million with TD
Bank, N.A. and Bank United, N.A. The proceeds of the line of credit are to be used for capital project
interim financing. The line of credit is secured by a lien on accounts receivable and other business assets,
which include Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such funds. The outstanding balance
on such line of credit as of December 31, 2018 was $1,531,000.

As of December 31, 2018, SUS also had an available revolving line of credit of $20 million with
TD Bank, N.A. and Bank United, N.A. The proceeds of the line of credit are to be used for operating
expenses. The line of credit is secured by a lien on SUS’s accounts receivable and other business assets,
which include Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such funds. The outstanding
balance on such line of credit as of December 31, 2018 was $5 million.

Long-Term Debt. As of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, SUS and SUS-DD had $22,060,000
and $11,115,000, respectively, in outstanding long-term indebtedness including mortgages, bonds, loans
and capital lease obligations, some of which debt is secured by a security interest in SUS and SUS-DD’s
Public Funds. See Notes 8, 9, 10 and 11 of SUS’s Audited Financial Statement for fiscal year ending
June 30, 2018 under the titles of “Lines of Credit,” “Mortgages Payable,” “Loans Payable” and “Bonds
Payable.” SUS and SUS-DD have not incurred any long-term debt subsequent to June 30, 2018.

Prior Pledges. SUS’s lines of credit for $6 million and $20 million with TD Bank, N.A. and
Bank United, N.A. are secured by liens on SUS’s accounts receivable and other business assets, which
include Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such funds. Of SUS and SUS-DD’s total
outstanding long-term debt as of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, $48,060,000 and $39,115,000 is
secured by a security interest in certain receivables of and real properties owned by SUS and SUS-DD,
which may include SUS and SUS-DD’s Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such funds.
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SUS and SUS-DD’s total Prior Pledges (including short term and long term debt) as of December 31,
2018 amount to $46,248,000.

Contingencies:; Pending or Potential Litigation. According to SUS and SUS-DD Management,
there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity or before or by any court,
public board or body pending or threatened to challenge the authority or ability of SUS or SUS-DD to
continue to operate its facilities or to challenge title to its properties or seeking damages in excess of
applicable insurance coverage or wherein an adverse determination might, in the opinion of SUS and
SUS-DD Management, materially adversely affect the ability of SUS or SUS-DD to carry out the
transactions contemplated in the Loan Agreement, the Mortgage, the Collateral Assignment of Leases and
the Intercept Agreement.

Management.

Directors and Officers: The affairs of SUS are governed by a Board of Directors of not less than
seven and up to sixteen persons. The officers are comprised of: Gareth Old, Chair, Jennifer Press Marden,
Vice-Chair, Ed Hubbard, Treasurer and Scott Millimet, Secretary. Other members of the Board are:
Michelle Ballan, Josh Bider, Amelia Wright Brewer, Earl Brown, Chris Cheney, Scott Drevnig, Sherrie
Dulworth, Peter Friedland, Lawrence Hamdan, Jacquie Holmes, Andrew Hurwitz, Joshua Liston, John
McKesson, Linda Nguyen, Carolyn Powell, Joann Sacks, Phillip Saperia, Deborah Wolfe and Andrew
Zimmern. The Board of Directors meets at least four times a year. A majority of the members of the
Board constitute a quorum. The members of the Board serve without compensation.

Executive and Administrative Officers: Donna Colonna has been employed by SUS since 1997
and has been the President and Chief Executive Officer of SUS since January 2002. She holds a M.S.
degree from Pace University and a B.A. from Hunter College. Over the years Ms. Colonna has served in
industry leadership positions in statewide and NYC trade associations and has served on numerous
government committees that have shaped policy and program implementation. She served on the
Association for Community Living (ACL - a statewide mental health association) board for 10 years and
as President of ACL. She has also served on the board of NYAPRS (NYS Association of Psychiatric
Rehabilitation Services - a statewide consumer/provider advocacy group). She is currently on the boards
of the InterAgency Council of Developmental Disabilities Agencies, Inc. and the Coalition for Behavioral
Health Care, Inc., both of which are important trade associations each representing about 150 service
providers. SUS has several other key employees including Perry Permutter, Chief Financial Officer and
Trish Marsik, Chief Operating Officer.

Continuing Disclosure.

As described in this paragraph, during the past five years, SUS and SUS-DD have failed to
provide certain secondary market disclosure pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12 in connection with its previous
continuing disclosure undertakings. Such failures include (i) late filings of its audited financial
statements with respect to each of its fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2018 due to unlinked
CUSIP numbers; and (ii) not filing notices of its failure to timely file audited financial statements for each
of its fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2018 due to unlinked CUSIP numbers; (iii) failure to
file its Annual Information with respect to each of its fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2018
due to unlinked CUSIP numbers; and (iv) not filing notices of its failure to timely file Annual Information
for each of its fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2018. SUS and SUS-DD have adopted
procedures to ensure the timely filing of required information pursuant to its continuing disclosure
undertakings in the future.
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UNITED CEREBRAL PALSY OF NEW YORK CITY, INC.

General Operations. United Cerebral Palsy of New York City, Inc. (“UCP”) d/b/a ADAPT
Community Network was founded in 1946 by parents of children with disabilities. UCP’s mission is to
provide the highest quality services in health care, education, employment, housing and technology
resources to support people with cerebral palsy and related disabilities in leading independent and
productive lives. Approximately 23,100 individuals receive services annually from UCP. These services
include preschool and school-age programs, residential programs, day programs, vocational programs and
medical and support services. UCP is a not-for-profit organization, exempt from income tax under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and comparable New York State law.

The financial statements of UCP are prepared on a consolidated basis among UCP and its
affiliates. However, the financial information contained in this Appendix is limited to the operations of
UCP, as the affiliates of UCP will not have any obligation to make payments under the Loan Agreement.
The Series 2019 Participant is only UCP.

The funding sources for UCP for its 2018 Fiscal Year were: OPWDD (approximately 70%), the
New York State Education Department (approximately 12.5%), the New York State Department of
Health (“DOH”) (approximately 15%) and other miscellaneous sources (approximately 2.5%).

Description of Facilities and Financing Plan. DASNY will lend UCP $5,555,000 from the
proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds (“UCP’s Allocable Portion”). Such amount will be used to finance or
refinance debt incurred in connection with the Facilities and Projects described below, as well as for
related legal fees, capitalized interest, costs of issuance and debt service reserve requirements.

. The “2075 Wallace Avenue Facility” consists of Apartments 244, 343 and 642, each
approximately 700 square feet, located at 2075 Wallace Avenue, Bronx, New York.
Approximately $206,625 will be used to finance the “2075 Wallace Avenue Project,”
which consists of the acquisition and rehabilitation of the 2075 Wallace Avenue Facility
for use as residences for three adults with developmental disabilities.

. The “2077 Wallace Avenue Facility” consists of Apartments 355, 655 and 657, each
approximately 700 square feet, and Apartments 454 and 754, each approximately 900
square feet, located at 2077 Wallace Avenue, Bronx, New York. Approximately
$414,137 will be used to finance the “2077 Wallace Avenue Project,” which consists of
the acquisition and rehabilitation of the 2077 Wallace Avenue Facility for use as
residences for seven adults with developmental disabilities.

. The “2079 Wallace Avenue Facility” consists of Apartments 377 and 577, each
approximately 700 square feet, located at 2079 Wallace Avenue, Bronx, New York.
Approximately $138,341 will be used to finance the “2079 Wallace Avenue Project,”
which consists of the acquisition and rehabilitation of the 2079 Wallace Avenue Facility
for use as residences for two adults with developmental disabilities.

) The “2081 Wallace Avenue Facility” consists of Apartments 265, 364, 565, 669, 762 and
764, each approximately 700 square feet, and Apartments 465, 664 and 768, each
approximately 900 square feet, located at 2081 Wallace Avenue, Bronx, New York.
Approximately $661,555 will be used to finance the “2081 Wallace Avenue Project,”
which consists of the acquisition and rehabilitation of the 2081 Wallace Avenue Facility
for use as residences for twelve adults with developmental disabilities.
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The “2782 Johnson Avenue Facility” is a 2,242 square-foot, 3-story building located at
2782 Johnson Avenue, Bronx, New York. Approximately $383,478 will be used to
finance the ‘2782 Johnson Avenue Project,” which consists of the acquisition and
rehabilitation of the 2782 Johnson Avenue Facility for use as a residence for ten adults
with developmental disabilities.

The “3277 Perry Avenue Facility” is a 2,536 square-foot, 2-story building located at 3277
Perry Avenue, Bronx, New York. Approximately $411,640 will be used to finance the
“3277 Perry Avenue Project,” which consists of the acquisition and rehabilitation of the
3277 Perry Avenue Facility for use as a residence for eight adults with developmental
disabilities.

The “3327 Steuben Avenue Facility” is a 4,734 square-foot, 3-story building located at
3327 Steuben Avenue, Bronx, New York. Approximately $659,641 will be used to
finance the “3327 Steuben Avenue Project,” which consists of the acquisition and
rehabilitation of the 3327 Steuben Avenue Facility for use as a residence for ten adults
with developmental disabilities.

The “3636 Greystone Avenue Facility” consists of Apartments 3J and 4E, each
approximately 1,300 square feet, located at 3636 Greystone Avenue, Bronx, New York.
Approximately $607,622 will be used to finance the “3636 Greystone Avenue Project,”
which consists of the acquisition and rehabilitation of the 3636 Greystone Avenue
Facility for use as residences for eight adults with developmental disabilities.

The “424 Swinton Avenue Facility” is a 3,300 square-foot, 3-story building located at
424 Swinton Avenue, Bronx, New York. Approximately $593,089 will be used to
finance the “424 Swinton Avenue Project,” which consists of the acquisition and
rehabilitation of the 242 Swinton Avenue Facility for use as a residence for ten adults
with developmental disabilities.

The “5606 Sylvan Avenue Facility” is a 1,453 square-foot, 2-story building located at
5606 Sylvan Avenue, Bronx, New York. Approximately $549,265 will be used to
finance the “5606 Sylvan Avenue Project,” which consists of the acquisition and
rehabilitation of the 5606 Sylvan Avenue Facility for use as a residence for six adults
with developmental disabilities.

The “2191 Bolton Street Facility” (together with the 2075 Wallace Avenue Facility, the
2077 Wallace Avenue Facility, the 2079 Wallace Avenue Facility, the 2081 Wallace
Avenue Facility, the 2782 Johnson Avenue Facility, the 3277 Perry Avenue Facility, the
3327 Steuben Avenue Facility, the 3636 Greystone Avenue Facility, the 424 Swinton
Avenue Facility and the 5606 Sylvan Avenue Facility, the “Facilities”) consists of
Apartments 1D, 2C, 2J and 4D, each approximately 775 square feet, and Apartment 6C,
approximately 800 square feet, located at 2191 Bolton Street, Bronx, New York.
Approximately $372,161 will be used to finance the “2191 Bolton Street Project”
(together with the 2075 Wallace Avenue Project, the 2077 Wallace Avenue Project, the
2079 Wallace Avenue Project, the 2081 Wallace Avenue Project, the 2782 Johnson
Avenue Project, the 3277 Perry Avenue Project, the 3327 Steuben Avenue Project, the
3636 Greystone Avenue Project, the 424 Swinton Avenue Project and the 5606 Sylvan
Avenue Project, the “Projects”), which consists of the acquisition and rehabilitation of the
2191 Bolton Street Facility for use as residences for six adults with developmental
disabilities.
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The remainder of UCP’s Allocable Portion in the amount of approximately $557,446 will be used
for legal fees, costs of issuance and debt service reserve requirements.

The governmental funding source for the Facilities is OPWDD, and the Facilities, with the
exception of renovation costs for the Mortgaged Properties (as defined below), are supported by PPAs,
which UCP has received. This means the Facilities are pre-approved by OPWDD for reimbursement by
OPWDD for principal and interest costs incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or renovation and
furnishing of the Facility and financing or refinancing costs incurred in connection therewith. Renovation
costs totaling approximately $342,000 in the aggregate for the Mortgaged Properties are not supported by
PPAs; with respect to these renovation costs, UCP expects to pay its Allocable Portion of the Series 2019
Bonds from Public Funds paid by OPWDD and from its general operating revenues. All payment
obligations including renovations continue to be covered by the OPWDD stand-by intercept agreement.

The Facilities are New PPA Lien Projects. See the information in this Official Statement entitled
“PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2018 PARTICIPANT FUNDING - New York State Office for People
with Developmental Disabilities - PPA Regulatory Compliance Process” for further information
concerning New PPA Lien Projects.

UCP has received Certificates of Occupancy from the City of New York for the Mortgaged
Properties and Operating Certificates for the Mortgaged Properties from OPWDD. Certificates of
Occupancy are not required for the Co-op Corporation Properties (as defined below). UCP has received
an Operating Certificate for the Co-op Corporation Properties from OPWDD, with the exception of
Apartment 4D in the 2191 Bolton Street Facility. See the information in this Official Statement entitled
“PART 11 - BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS - Completion of the Projects; Zoning; Certificate of Occupancy.”

UCP owns each of the 2782 Johnson Avenue Facility, the 3277 Perry Avenue Facility, the 3327
Steuben Avenue Facility, the 424 Swinton Avenue Facility and the 5606 Sylvan Avenue Facility
(collectively, the “Mortgaged Properties”). UCP will grant DASNY a mortgage on the real property with
respect to each of the Mortgaged Properties, a security interest in the furniture, fixtures and equipment
financed with bond proceeds and constituting a portion of the Mortgaged Properties, and a lien on the
Public Funds attributable to the Mortgaged Properties.

The 2075 Wallace Avenue Facility, the 2077 Wallace Avenue Facility, the 2079 Wallace Avenue
Facility, the 2081 Wallace Avenue Facility, the 3636 Greystone Avenue Facility and the 2191 Bolton
Street Facility (each a “UCP Co-op Facility” and, collectively, the “Co-op Corporation Properties”) are
each owned by a separate corporation (each a “Co-op Corporation”). UCP is the sole owner of shares in
the respective Co-op Corporation applicable to the respective UCP Co-op Facility represented by stock
certificates issued to UCP (each “Stock”). Each UCP Co-op Facility is leased by UCP, as tenant, from
the respective Co-Op Corporation, as landlord, pursuant to a proprietary lease for each UCP Co-op
Facility (each a “Proprietary Lease”). In order for UCP to secure its obligations under its Loan
Agreement with respect to its interest in the UCP Co-op Facilities, UCP will grant DASNY a security
interest pursuant to a Cooperative Interest Security Agreement (“Security Agreement”) in all of the shares
of the Co-Op Corporation represented by the Stock issued to UCP and in each Proprietary Lease. In
addition to delivering the original fully executed Proprietary Lease for each UCP Co-op Facility and the
original Stock, UCP shall also deliver to DASNY a blank Stock Power for the shares owned by UCP in
each Co-op Corporation, a blank assignment of each Proprietary Lease, a Recognition Agreement and
shall cause a UCC-1 Financing Statement with Cooperative Addendum to be properly filed (all of the
foregoing together with the Security Agreement, collectively, the “Co-op Security Documents”).

Other Properties. UCP also owns 64 other properties and leases 183 other residential and day
program properties in the Boroughs of New York City including properties financed by the Series 2019
Bonds.
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Employees. UCP employs 1,436 full-time and 548 part-time employees. UCP does not expect
that the operation of the Facilities will require it to employ additional personnel.

Debt Service Coverage.

Calculated in accordance with the definition set forth in the Loan Agreement between DASNY
and UCP, the Actual Debt Service Coverage Ratio of UCP for Fiscal Year 2018 and the Pro Forma Debt
Service Coverage Ratio (which includes UCP’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds) are as
follows:

2018 2018
Actual Pro Forma
Revenues $169,557,476 $169,557,476
Expenses 169,282,306 169,282,306
Net Income (after adj.) 275,170 275,170
Less Extraordinary Revenue Items (5,492,785) (5,492,785)
Plus Extraordinary Expense Items 0 0
Plus Depreciation and Amortization 4,777,972 4,777,972
Plus Current Interest Expense 2,190,579 2,190,579
New PPA Revenues (unaudited) 0 340,194
Cash Flow for Debt Service 1,750,936 2,091,130
Maximum Annual Debt Service (unaudited) 4,989,720 5,329,914
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) 0.35 0.39)

(D' Note that the Loan Agreement includes a covenant for UCP to maintain in each Fiscal Year
Total Net Revenues Available for Debt Service sufficient to produce in each Fiscal Year a Total
Debt Service Coverage Ratio of not less than 1.00 to 1.00, with which UCP expects to be in
compliance. The above pro forma illustration is a look back to Fiscal Year 2018, the most recent
fiscal year for which audited financial statements are available. Fiscal Year 2018 was a “Base
Year” for OPWDD providers. Per the Rate Rationalization process (the current methodology by
which reimbursement rates are calculated for providers in New York State) that began in Fiscal
Year 2014, providers who end a Base Year with a surplus can expect to have their reimbursement
rates cut in subsequent years. The Base Fiscal Year 2018 year results will affect Fiscal Year 2020
rates. Consequently, many providers intentionally manage spending during a Base Year to
prevent future rate cuts which results in the lower Total Debt Service Coverage Ratio shown
above. OPWDD has been working with providers as part of its continuing “Rate Rationalization
and Budget Neutrality” efforts in order to “right size” the reimbursement rates paid to OPWDD
funded providers based upon their geographic location within the state, the size of their agency,
the number of individuals served, and the complexity of care required (including age of
individuals, ambulation and other abilities).

Financials. Audited financial statements for UCP and its affiliates for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2016, June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2018 were prepared by Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP and
are attached as Appendix B-V. Interim unaudited financial information for UCP and its affiliates
prepared by UCP’s Management covering the period from July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018 is
attached as Appendix C-V. Consolidating Statements for UCP and its affiliates are included in the audited
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financial statements for fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2018 but not for fiscal year ended
June 30, 2016.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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Management’s Summary of Financial Information and Results of Operations.

Summary of Financial information for Prior Five Fiscal Years — All Funds.

The following is a summary of financial information for UCP for the most recently ended five (5)
fiscal years for which audited financial statements were available and has been prepared by UCP’s
Management and derived from UCP’s audited financial statements. The data contained in the following
table should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes presented in
Appendix B-V; audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014
are available upon request. Note that only the operations of UCP are presented below, which results may
differ from the reported figures in the audited financial statements respecting UCP and all of its affiliates.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Current Assets
Net Fixed Assets
Other

Total

Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Net Assets

Total

Operating Revenue:
Program Revenue
Nonprogram Revenue
Total

Operating Expenses
Change in Net Assets
FASB 158 Effect

Other Change to Net
Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of

Year

Net Assets, End of Year

Cash & Equivalents

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
$33,116,113  $83,542,373  $92,077,778  $69,129,143  $69,166,133
33,020,721 68,753,309 60,238,824 67,173,243 68,755,490
2,760,365 98,853,298 101,314,680 2243311 2,266,385
68,897,199 251,148,980 253,631,282 138,545,697 140,188,008
21,496,314 34,022,763 21,641,246 20,079,044 20,546,897
33,639,931 92,880,224 95,390,565 95,605,045 96,504,333
13,760,954 124245993 136,599,471 22,861,608 23,136,778
68,897,199 251,148,980 253,631,282 138,545,697 140,188,008
99,409,469 233,281,355 140,097,574 149,339,978 150,906,004
3,869,973 4,105,697 2,865,361 8,494,544 13,158,687
103,279,442 237,387,052 142,962,935 157,834,522 164,064,691
109,255,185 118,488,611 137,361,906 159,168,855 169,282,306
(5,975,743) 118,898,441 5,601,029  (1,334,333)  (5,217,615)
3,689,584  (8,413,402)  (4,219,729) 3,296,707 5,492,785
0 0 10,972,178  (1,298.796) 0
16,047,114 13,760,954 124245993  22.198.030° 22,861,608
13,760,954 124245993  136,599.471 22,861,608 23,136,778
6,150,670 18,268,290 16,973,416 20,645,132 17,260,197

*In FY2015 realized a $129,604,000 gain on the sale of certain buildings. In FY2017, an intra-affiliate transfer of

$114,401,441 was made from UCP to its affiliate, the New York City Foundation for Cerebral Palsy, Inc.

A-29



Management Discussion of Results of Operations.

(1 Known Trends or Uncertainties Likely to Have an Impact on Liquidity: UCP is not aware
of any trends or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on UCP’s
short-term or long-term liquidity.

2) Sources of Liquidity: (a) Internal - UCP had current assets of $69,166,133 and
$69,129,143 at the end of fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively. (b) External - UCP has available an $8
million fixed asset line of credit and $8 million working capital line of credit with TD Bank.

3) Known Trends or Uncertainties Likely to have an Impact on Revenue or Income: Other
than as described in Part 11 entitled “BONDHOLDERS RISKS’ - Federal Medicaid Reform,” UCP is not
aware of any trends or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on
UCP’s revenue or income.

4) Income or Loss from Sources Other than Continuing Operations: Income from
contributions, fund-raising, and interest for fiscal years 2018 and 2017 were $7,211,418 and $3,267,935,
respectively. See Appendix C-V for interim unaudited financial information through December 31, 2018.

%) Causes for Changes in Financial Statements: Changes in the number of persons served in
a particular program normally affect the revenues of the program. The number of persons served by
UCP’s total operations have not materially increased or decreased in recent years.

Liquidity and Capital Resources. As of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, UCP had
$17,260,197 and $20,645,132 in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and $16,832,990 and $15,808,191
in net accounts receivable, respectively.

UCP has available an $8 million fixed asset line of credit with TD Bank for the purposes of
providing interim financing for acquisition and renovation of residential properties, which is unsecured.
The line of credit is available through November 30, 2019. There was an outstanding balance on the line
of credit of $4,558,000 as of December 31, 2018.

UCP has available an $8 million working capital line of credit with TD Bank for operating
expenses, which is unsecured. The line of credit is available through March 31, 2019. There was no
outstanding balance on the line of credit as of December 31, 2018.

Long-Term Debt. As of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, UCP had $56,466,648 and
$52,381,127, respectively, in outstanding long-term indebtedness including loans, capital leases payable
and mortgages, some of which debt is secured by a security interest in UCP’s Public Funds. See Notes 7,
8 and 9 of UCP’s Audited Financial Statement for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 under the titles of
“Lines of Credit Payable and Term Loan Payable,” “Capital Leases Payable” and “Mortgages Payable.”
UCP has not incurred any long-term debt subsequent to June 30, 2018.

Prior Pledges. Of UCP’s total outstanding long-term debt as of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017,
$56,446,648 and $52,381,127 is secured by a security interest in certain receivables of and real properties
owned by UCP, which may include UCP’s Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such
funds. UCP’s total Prior Pledges (including short term and long term debt) as of December 31, 2018
amount to $70,578,000.

Contingencies; Pending or Potential Litigation. According to UCP Management, there is no
action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity or before or by any court, public board
or body pending or threatened to challenge the authority or ability of UCP to continue to operate its
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facilities or to challenge title to its properties or seeking damages in excess of applicable insurance
coverage or wherein an adverse determination might, in the opinion of UCP Management, materially
adversely affect the ability of UCP to carry out the transactions contemplated in the Loan Agreement, the
Mortgages, the Co-op Security Documents and the Intercept Agreement.

Management.

Directors and Officers: The affairs of UCP are governed by a Board of Directors not less than
seven and of up to thirty persons. The officers are comprised of: Gary Geresi, President, Martin C.
Hausman, Honorary Chairman, Tamsen Fadal, Honorary Vice Chair, Kenneth Carmel, Vice Chairman,
James Kase, Executive Vice-President, Kenneth R. Auerbach, Vice-President and Treasurer and Kelly E.
Kaminski, Vice-President and Secretary. Other members of the Board are: Peter Auerbach, Jason
Carlough, Houda Foster, John Lombardo, Sabina McCarthy, James Hausman, Richard Levy and Jay
Silver. The Board of Directors meets at least three times a year. A majority of the members of the Board
constitute a quorum. The members of the Board serve without compensation.

Executive and Administrative Officers: Edward R. Matthews is the Chief Executive Officer. Mr.
Matthews has worked in the developmental disabilities field since 1974. He has worked extensively for
New York State in developing community run programs for people with disabilities. He is the past
President of the Interagency Council of Developmental Disabilities Agencies, Inc. in New York City, a
coordinating body and trade association consisting of over 150 agencies providing services to people with
developmental disabilities. He holds undergraduate and graduate degrees in psychology from Fordham
and St. John’s University, respectively. UCP has several other key employees including Linda B. Laul,
Chief Operating Officer and Rajesh Shah, Chief Financial Officer.

Continuing Disclosure.

As described in this paragraph, during the past five years, UCP has failed to provide certain
secondary market disclosure pursuant to Rule 15c¢2-12 in connection with its previous continuing
disclosure undertakings. Such failures include (i) late filings of its audited financial statements with
respect to each of its fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, June 30, 2015, June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2018
due to unlinked CUSIP numbers; and (ii) not filing notices of its failure to timely file audited financial
statements for each of its fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, June 30, 2015, June 30, 2017 and June 30,
2018 due to unlinked CUSIP numbers; (iii) failure to file its Annual Information with respect to each of
its fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, June 30, 2015, June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2018 due to unlinked
CUSIP numbers; and (iv) not filing notices of its failure to timely file Annual Information for each of its
fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, June 30, 2015, June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2018. UCP has adopted
procedures to ensure the timely filing of required information pursuant to its continuing disclosure
undertakings in the future.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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YOUNG ADULT INSTITUTE, INC.

General Operations. Young Adult Institute, Inc. (“YAI”) was founded in 1957. Today, YAI
provides a wide range of in-home, residential, vocational training, educational and early intervention
services to the developmentally disabled community of the State of New York. YAI’s mission is to
provide support and assistance to individuals with developmental and related disabilities and their
families. To achieve its mission, YAI provides services whose goals are: (i) to assist individuals to
develop to their fullest level of independence; (ii) to allow individuals choice in determining what their
lives will be like; (iii) to help families stay together by providing relief, training and support of care givers
which enhance the family’s quality of life; and (iv) to provide excellent services as defined by the
consumers of service. YAI is a not-for-profit organization, exempt from income tax under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and comparable New York State Law.

The financial statements of YAI are prepared on a consolidated basis among Y AI and its affiliates.
However, the financial information in this Appendix is limited to the operations of YAI as the affiliates
of YAI will not have any obligation to make payments under the Loan Agreement. The Series 2019
Participant is only YAL

YAI’s funding sources for its 2018 Fiscal Year were: OPWDD (approximately 97.5%) and
miscellaneous other sources (approximately 2.5%).

Description of Facilities and Financing Plan. DASNY will lend YAI $6,580,000 from the
proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds (“YAI’s Allocable Portion”). Such amount will be used to finance or
refinance debt incurred in connection with the Facilities and Projects described below, as well as for
related legal fees, capitalized interest, costs of issuance and debt service reserve requirements.

. The “83 Daly Road Facility” is a 2,752 square-foot, 1-story building located at 83 Daly
Road, East Northport (Town of Huntington), New York. Approximately $1,163,172 will
be used to finance the “83 Daly Road Project,” which consists of the acquisition and
rehabilitation of the 83 Daly Road Facility for use as a residence for six adults with
developmental disabilities.

. The “579 Old Country Road Facility” is a 2,525 square-foot, 1-story building located at
579 Old Country Road, Huntington Station (Town of Huntington), New York.
Approximately $1,180,737 will be used to finance the “579 Old Country Road Project,”
which consists of the acquisition and rehabilitation of the 579 Old Country Road Facility
for use as a residence for six adults with developmental disabilities.

. The “1366 N. Windsor Avenue Facility” is a 1,610 square-foot, 1.5-story building located
at 1366 N. Windsor Avenue, Bay Shore (Town of Islip), New York. Approximately
$752,022 will be used to finance the “1366 N. Windsor Avenue Project,” which consists
of the acquisition and rehabilitation of the 1366 N. Windsor Facility for use as a
residence for four adults with developmental disabilities.

. The “16 Waterview Drive Facility” is a 3,458 square-foot, 2-story building located at 16
Waterview Drive, Ossining, New York. Approximately $1,187,808 will be used to
finance the “16 Waterview Drive Project,” which consists of the acquisition and
rehabilitation of the 16 Waterview Drive Facility for use as a residence for six adults with
developmental disabilities.

. The “2000 Flatbush Avenue Facility” (together with the 83 Daly Road Facility, the 579
Old Country Road Facility, the 1366 N. Windsor Avenue Facility and the 16 Waterview
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Drive Facility, the “Facilities”) consists of the first, second and third floors of a 7,658
square-foot, 3-story building located at 2000 Flatbush Avenue, Brooklyn, New York.
Approximately $1,707,840 will be used to finance the “2000 Flatbush Avenue Project”
(together with the 83 Daly Road Project, the 579 Old Country Road Project, the 1366 N.
Windsor Avenue Project and the 16 Waterview Drive Project, the “Projects”), which
consists of the lease and rehabilitation of the 2000 Flatbush Avenue Facility for use as a
residence for thirteen adults with developmental disabilities.

The remainder of YAI’s Allocable Portion in the amount of approximately $588,421 will be used
for legal fees, costs of issuance and debt service reserve requirements.

The governmental funding source for the Facilities is OPWDD and the Facilities are supported by
PPAs, which YAI has received. This means the Facilities are pre-approved by OPWDD for
reimbursement by OPWDD for principal and interest costs incurred in connection with the acquisition,
lease and/or renovation and furnishing of the Facilities and financing or refinancing costs incurred in
connection therewith.

The Facilities are New PPA Lien Projects. See the information in this Official Statement entitled
“PART 5 - SOURCES OF SERIES 2019 PARTICIPANT REVENUE - New York State Office for
People with Developmental Disabilities - PPA Regulatory Compliance Process” for further information
concerning New PPA Lien Projects.

Certificates of Occupancy or Certificates of Compliance have been received from the applicable
local jurisdictions for all of the Facilities. YAI has not received as required a new or updated Certificate
of Occupancy or Certificate of Compliance from the Town of Huntington for the 83 Daly Road Facility
and the 579 Old Country Road Facility or the Town of Islip for the 1366 N. Windsor Avenue Facility, nor
a new or updated Certificate of Occupancy or Letter of Completion from the City of New York for the
2000 Flatbush Avenue Facility. YAI has received a new Certificate of Occupancy from the Village of
Ossining for the 16 Waterview Drive Facility and Operating Certificates from OPWDD for the 83 Daly
Road Facility, the 579 Old Country Road Facility, the 1366 N. Windsor Avenue Facility and the 16
Waterview Drive Facility. YAI has not received an Operating Certificate from OPWDD for the 2000
Flatbush Avenue Facility. See the information in this Official Statement entitled “PART 11 -
BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS - Completion of the Projects; Zoning; Certificate of Occupancy.”

YAI owns the 83 Daly Road Facility, the 579 Old Country Road Facility, the 1366 N. Windsor
Avenue Facility and the 16 Waterview Drive Facility (the “Mortgaged Facilities”) and leases the 2000
Flatbush Avenue Facility. YAI will grant DASNY a mortgage on the real property with respect to each
of the Mortgaged Facilities, security interests in the furniture, fixtures and equipment financed with bond
proceeds and constituting a portion of the Mortgaged Facilities, and a lien on the Public Funds
attributable to the Mortgaged Facilities. YAI will collaterally assign to DASNY pursuant to a Collateral
Assignment of Leases its right, title and interest (but not its obligations) in the lease for the 2000 Flatbush
Avenue Facility and grant DASNY a lien on the Public Funds attributable to the 2000 Flatbush Avenue
Facility. The landlord under the lease for the 2000 Flatbush Avenue Facility has consented to such
collateral assignment. The term of the lease together with all lease renewal options available to YAI for
the 2000 Flatbush Avenue Facility exceeds the term of YAI’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds.

Other Properties. YAI also owns approximately 76 and leases approximately 95 other
properties in the Boroughs of New York City and Nassau, Rockland, Suffolk and Westchester Counties.

Employees. YAI employs approximately 1,805 full-time and 1,245 part-time employees in the
State of New York. YAI does not expect that the operation of the Facilities will require it to employ
additional personnel.
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Debt Service Coverage.

Calculated in accordance with the definition set forth in the Loan Agreement between DASNY
and YAI, the Actual Debt Service Coverage Ratio of YAI for Fiscal Year 2018 and the Pro Forma Debt
Service Coverage Ratio (which includes YAI’s Allocable Portion of the Series 2019 Bonds) are as
follows:

2018 2018
Actual Pro Forma
Revenues $178,228,842 $178,228,842
Expenses 178,217,064 178,217,064
Net Income (after adj.) 11,778 11,778
Less Extraordinary Revenue Items 0 0
Plus Extraordinary Expense Items 0 0
Plus Depreciation and Amortization 3,997,410 3,997,410
Plus Current Interest Expense 1,240,736 1,240,736
New PPA Revenues (unaudited) 0 422,990
Cash Flow for Debt Service 5,249,924 5,672,914
Maximum Annual Debt Service (unaudited) 3,779,861 4,202,851
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) 1.3889 1.3498

Financials. Audited financial statements for YAI and its affiliates for the fiscal years ended June
30, 2016, June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2018 were prepared by Marks Paneth, LLP and are attached as
Appendix B-VI. Interim unaudited financial information for YAI only prepared by YAI’s Management
covering the period from July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018 is attached as Appendix C-VI.
Significant accounting policies are contained in the notes to the audited financial statements, as well as
Consolidating Statements for YAI and its affiliates.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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Management’s Summary of Financial Information and Results of Operations.

Summary of Financial information for Prior Five Fiscal Years — All Funds.

The following is a summary of financial information for YAI for the most recently ended five (5)
fiscal years for which audited financial statements were available and has been prepared by YAI’s
Management and derived from YAI’s audited financial statements. The data contained in the following
table should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes presented in
Appendix B-VI; audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014
are available upon request. Note that only the operations of YAI are presented below, which results may
differ from the reported figures in the audited financial statements respecting YAI and all its affiliates.

Current Assets
Net Fixed Assets
Other

Total

Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Net Assets

Total
Operating Revenue:
Program Revenue
Nonprogram Revenue

Total
Operating Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Non-Operating
Changes

Net Assets, Beginning
of Year

Net Assets, End
of Year

Cash & Equivalents

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
$54,311,494  §$64,475,266 $62,999,968 $65,618,161 $58,845,012
34,839,214 32,833,234 34,535,025 34,881,726 35,493,589
14,996,595 8,694,842 4,624,395 2,352,081 2,651,718
104,147,303 106,003,342 102,159,388 102,851,968 96,990,319
40,947,295 54,232,523 30,876,496 37,201,430 32,461,954
41,464,918 26,773,320 38,605,423 31,217,703 30,083,752
21,735,090 24,997,499 32,677,469 34,432,835 34,444,613
104,147,303 106,003,342 102,159,388 102,851,968 96,990,319
176,672,348 183,823,593 176,976,779 172,888,534 176,651,218
0 0 2,112,526 1,272687 1,577,624
176,672,348 183,823,593 179,089,305 174,161,221 178,228,842
174,211,464 180,928,721 171,409,335 172,405,855 178,217,064
2,460,884 2,903,361 7,679,970 1,755,366 11,778
316,350 359,048 0 0 0
18,957,856 21,735,090 24,997,499 32,677,469 34,432,835
21,735,090 24,997,499 32,677,469 34,432,835 34,444,613
25,088,088 17,109,932 13,100,241 18,585,550 14,315,782
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Management Discussion of Results of Operations.

(1 Known Trends or Uncertainties Likely to Have an Impact on Liquidity: YAI is not aware
of any trends or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on YAI’s
short-term or long-term liquidity.

2) Sources of Liquidity: (a) Internal - YAI had current assets of $58,845,012 and
$65,618,161 at the end of fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively, (b) External - YAI has available an
$18 million working capital line of credit with Bank of America, N.A. and Israel Discount Bank of New
York for operating expenses and a $8 million line of credit with Bank of America, N.A. and Israel
Discount Bank of New York for acquisition and renovation of program sites.

3) Known Trends or Uncertainties Likely to have an Impact on Revenue or Income: YAI is
not aware of any trends or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact
on YAI’s revenue or income.

4 Income or Loss from Sources Other than Continuing Operations: Income from
contributions, fund-raising, and interest for fiscal years 2018 and 2017 were $1,510,498 and $1,179,274,
respectively. See Appendix C-VI for interim unaudited financial information through December 31, 2018.

5) Causes for Changes in Financial Statements: Changes in the number of persons served in
a particular program normally affect the revenues of the program. The number of persons served by
Y ATI’s total operations have not materially increased or decreased in recent years.

Liquidity and Capital Resources. As of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, YAI had
$14,315,782 and $18,585,550 in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and $23,330,764 and $23,686,406
in net accounts receivable, respectively.

As of December 31, 2018, YAI has available an $18 million working capital line of credit with
Bank of America, N.A. and Israel Discount Bank of New York for operating expenses. The line of credit
is secured by a lien on YAI’s accounts receivable and all of its assets, which include Public Funds, and
thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such funds. There was an outstanding balance of $7,842,911 as of
December 31, 2018.

As of December 31, 2018, YAI has available an $8 million line of credit with Bank of America,
N.A. and Israel Discount Bank of New York for the acquisition and renovation of program sites. Upon
receipt of PPAs from New York State, the funds drawn down on this line are converted into notes secured
by related real property and accounts, which include Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as
to such funds. There was a collective balance of $6,635,088 on 23 outstanding notes as of December 31,
2018.

Long-Term Debt. As of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, YAI had $30,083,752 and
$31,217,703, respectively, in outstanding long-term indebtedness including mortgages, bonds and capital
leases payable, some of which debt is secured by a security interest in YAI’s Public Funds. See Notes 6
and 7 of YAI’s Audited Financial Statement for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 under the titles of
“Capital Lease Obligations” and “Notes and Mortgages Payable.” YAI has incurred $2,250,000 in
additional long-term debt subsequent to June 30, 2018.

Prior Pledges. YAI’s working capital line of credit for $18 million with Bank of America, N.A.
and Israel Discount Bank of New York and line of credit for $8 million with Bank of America, N.A. and
Israel Discount Bank of New York are secured by a lien on YAI’s investment accounts, accounts
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receivable and real property, which include Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such
funds. Of YATI’s total outstanding long-term debt as of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, $30,083,752
and $31,217,703 is secured by a security interest in certain receivables of and real properties owned by
Y AI, which may include YAI’s Public Funds, and thus constitutes a Prior Pledge as to such funds. YAI’s
total Prior Pledges (including short term and long term debt) as of December 31, 2018 amount to
$32,161,086.

Contingencies; Pending or Potential Litigation. According to YAI Management, the litigation
disclosed in Note 8, under the title of “Commitments and Contingencies,” of YAI’s Audited Financial
Statement for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 and attached hereto as Appendix B-VI, was denied review
by the United States Supreme Court. Accordingly, the decision by the United States Court of Appeals for
the Second Circuit affirming the monetary judgment entered at the district court level remains undisturbed,
and YAI has begun making payments on the judgment from funds available in YAI’s Supplemental
Pension Plan and Trust and Life Insurance Plan and Trust established for employees. Other than the
aforementioned, according to YAI Management, there is no other action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or
investigation at law or in equity or before or by any court, public board or body pending or threatened to
challenge the authority or ability of YAI to continue to operate its facilities or to challenge title to its
properties or seeking damages in excess of applicable insurance coverage or wherein an adverse
determination might, in the opinion of Y AI Management, materially adversely affect the ability of YAI to
carry out the transactions contemplated in the Loan Agreement, the Mortgage, the Collateral Assignment
of Leases and the Intercept Agreement.

Management.

Directors and Officers: The affairs of YAI are governed by a Board of Trustees of not less than
five and up to fifty persons. The officers are comprised of: Jeffery Mordos, Chairman, David Stafford,
Vice Chairman, and Kevin Hogan, Treasurer. Other members of the Board are Jeffrey Lieberman, Lee
Alexander, Eliot Green, Jane Levine, Richard Rosenbaum, John Rufer and Lewis Lindenberg. A presence
of at least seven members of the Board constitutes a quorum. The members of the Board serve without
compensation.

Executive and Administrative Officers: George Contos is the Chief Executive Officer of YAL
Having served as YAI’s Chairman of the Board of Trustees (2014), Co-Vice Chairman (2013), and
Trustee (2012), Mr. Contos brings to the role an extensive knowledge of the organization’s inner
workings and infrastructure. Prior to becoming CEO, Mr. Contos was a wealth manager and registered
investment advisor with New York-based Wealth Advisory Group and Park Avenue Securities. Formerly,
as an attorney, Mr. Contos specialized in elder law, trust-based asset protection and Medicaid planning.
Mr. Contos received his J.D. from Georgetown University Law Center, his B.A. from Tufts University
and his Chartered Advisor in Philanthropy designation from The American College. YAI has several
other key employees including Kevin Carey, Chief Financial Officer and Ravi Dahiya, Chief Program
Officer.

Continuing Disclosure.

As described in this paragraph, during the past five years, YAI failed to provide certain secondary
market disclosure pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12 in connection with its previous continuing disclosure
undertakings. Such failures include (i) late filings of its audited financial statements with respect to its
fiscal year ended December 31, 2018; and (ii) late filing of its Annual Information with respect to its
fiscal year ended December 31, 2018. YAl has adopted procedures to ensure the timely filing of required
information pursuant to its continuing disclosure undertakings in the future.
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APPENDIX B-I
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES, INC.
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND
DECEMBER 31, 2015)
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Tel: 212-885-8000 100 Park Avenue
Fax: 212-697-1299 New York, NY 10017
. www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors

Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc.
and Affiliate

Smithtown, New York

Report on the Combined Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Developmental Disabilities
Institute, Inc. and Affiliate (collectively, the “Agency and Affiliate”), which comprise the
combined statement of financial position as of December 31, 2017, and the related combined
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the combined financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Combined Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of combined financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the combined financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
combined financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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IBDO

Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate as of
December 31, 2017, and the results of changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matters
Supplementary Information

Our audit of the combined financial statements was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on those statements as a whole. The supplementary information presented in the
following section of this report is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the combined financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the combined financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the combined financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial statements or to
the combined financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the combined financial
statements as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have audited the Agency and Affiliate’s 2016 combined financial statements and our report,
dated May 19, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited combined financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2016 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

0 Ush, P

May 23, 2018



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Statement of Financial Position
(with comparative totals for 2016)

December 31, 2017 2016
Assets
Current:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $14,373,935 $16,436,539
Assets limited as to use, current portion (Note 3) 2,514,991 2,953,460
Investments, at fair value (Notes 3 and 4) 4,996 4,996
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 5) 19,083,777 17,641,986
Government and other grants receivable (Note 3) 1,011,873 738,789
Contributions and pledges receivable, current portion (Notes 3
and 6) 146,217 170,113
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,702,297 2,623,646
Total Current Assets 39,838,086 40,569,529
Security Deposits 198,286 198,286
Other Investment (Note 19) 28,688
Contributions and Pledges Receivable, Net, Less Current Portion
(Notes 3 and 6) 54,145 82,953
Assets Limited as to Use, Less Current Portion (Note 4) 4,708,558 4,789,757
Fixed Assets, Net (Notes 3, 7, 13 and 14) 27,625,661 27,545,851
$72,453,424 $73,186,376
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 4,447,122 $ 3,801,400
Accrued interest payable (Note 14) 177,208 135,957
Accrued payroll and related benefits 6,313,736 7,553,789
Accrued pension payable (Note 8) 879,584 1,411,759
Deferred revenue, current portion (Note 3) 2,634,869 3,047,163
Capital lease obligations, current portion (Note 11) 765,696 639,826
Mortgages and loans payable, current portion (Note 13) 184,349 203,280
Bonds payable, current portion (Note 14) 1,972,176 1,868,232
Due to governmental agencies, current portion (Notes 3 and 10) 1,397,987 1,619,544
Total Current Liabilities 18,772,727 20,280,950
Deferred Revenue, Less Current Portion (Note 3) 1,967,061 1,845,076
Capital Lease Obligations, Less Current Maturities (Note 11) 1,053,121 872,621
Mortgages and Loans Payable, Less Current Maturities (Note 13) 1,724,224 1,903,267
Bonds Payable, Less Current Maturities (Note 14) 19,046,728 20,987,848
Due to Governmental Agencies, Less Current Portion
(Notes 3 and 10) 3,500,485 2,671,887
Total Liabilities 46,064,346 48,561,649
Commitments and Contingencies
(Notes 3, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15 and 16)
Net Assets:
Unrestricted net assets (Note 3) 25,967,515 24,207,669
Temporarily restricted net assets (Notes 3, 17 and 18) 421,563 417,058
Total Net Assets 26,389,078 24,624,727
$72,453,424 $73,186,376

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.
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Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Statement of Activities
(with comparative totals for 2016)

Year ended December 31,

Temporarily Total
Unrestricted Restricted 2017 2016
Program Revenues:
Fees for services $95,260,259 S $95,260,259 $93,667,038
Government and other grants 1,605,822 1,605,822 1,643,595
Clinic revenue - - 2,802,955
Other program revenues 2,093,993 - 2,093,993 1,698,056
Net assets released from restrictions (Note 17) 42,962 (42,962) - -
Total Program Revenues 99,003,036 (42,962) 98,960,074 99,811,644
Expenses:
Program services:
Education services 31,910,552 31,910,552 32,321,183
Clinic services - - 3,702,449
Adult day services 18,311,200 18,311,200 17,327,926
Children’s residential services 10,635,824 10,635,824 10,885,451
Adult residential services 28,943,230 28,943,230 27,669,160
Other programs 1,199,492 1,199,492 713,808
Total Program Services 91,000,298 91,000,298 92,619,977
Supporting services:
Management and general 6,663,472 6,663,472 6,144,108
Fundraising 241,488 241,488 355,464
Total Supporting Services 6,904,960 6,904,960 6,499,572
Total Expenses 97,905,258 97,905,258 99,119,549
Change in Net Assets Before
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 1,097,778 (42,962) 1,054,816 692,095
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses:
Capital campaign income 71,812 71,812 222,392
Capital campaign expenses (97,750) (97,750) (512,574)
Net Expenses From Capital Campaign (25,938) (25,938) (290,182)
Special events revenues 464,288 464,288 389,091
Direct cost to donors (126,526) (126,526) (111,029)
Net Revenues From Special Events 337,762 - 337,762 278,062
Contributions 98,955 73,405 172,360 62,247
Gain on sale of fixed assets 59,270 - 59,270 29,926
Loss on other investment (21,312) (21,312) -
Interest income 50,466 50,466 41,594
Other income 88,170 88,170 76,400
Prior period income 48,757 48,757 2,293,754
Total Nonoperating Revenues
and Expenses 662,068 47,467 709,535 2,491,801
Change in Net Assets 1,759,846 4,505 1,764,351 3,183,896
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 24,207,669 417,058 24,624,727 21,440,831
Net Assets, End of Year $25,967,515 $421,563  $26,389,078 $24,624,727

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Statement of Functional Expenses
(with comparative totals for 2016)

Year ended December 31,

Program Services

Supporting Services

Children’s Adult Total Total
Education Adult Day Residential Residential Other Program Management Supporting Total

Services Services Services Services Programs Services and General Fundraising Services 2017 2016

Salaries and Related Expenses:
Salaries $21,341,080 $10,546,145 $ 6,065,423 $17,622,958 S 341,485 $55,917,091 $3,659,922 $131,983 $3,791,905 $59,708,996 $60,023,446
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 7,319,287 3,656,325 1,913,837 5,968,959 112,873 18,971,281 1,221,277 38,641 1,259,918 20,231,199 20,788,132
Total Salaries and Related Expenses 28,660,367 14,202,470 7,979,260 23,591,917 454,358 74,888,372 4,881,199 170,624 5,051,823 79,940,195 80,811,578

Other Expenses:

Fee-for-services professionals 34,973 26,371 84,531 276,985 26,972 449,832 126,388 126,388 576,220 845,459
Building occupancy 486,303 956,724 9,017 239,883 1,691,936 19,978 - 19,978 1,711,914 1,595,220
Telephone 172,171 207,211 49,955 137,007 33,104 599,448 42,121 1,322 43,443 642,891 690,322
Travel 45,083 64,952 11,191 48,715 2,581 172,522 20,058 1,552 21,610 194,132 182,935
Supplies 226,543 195,782 301,615 660,277 17,650 1,401,867 462,898 12,098 474,996 1,876,863 2,053,559
Food 554 28,999 362,141 855,627 - 1,247,321 410 - 410 1,247,731 1,161,487
Office expense 149,943 68,612 27,067 36,578 1,988 284,188 109,902 32,012 141,914 426,102 476,764
Dues and subscriptions 34,693 5,087 1,005 1,241 59 42,085 51,512 3,649 55,161 97,246 104,057
Postage 11,335 2,939 1,268 723 616 16,881 44,532 248 44,780 61,661 61,478
Meetings and conferences 11,211 16,281 4,429 5,740 11,264 48,925 8,378 247 8,625 57,550 75,914
Employee training and recruitment 135,926 100,850 63,921 117,531 1,280 419,508 131,952 8,672 140,624 560,132 559,003
Legal and accounting 166 2,150 7,154 26,386 - 35,856 199,851 - 199,851 235,707 232,348
Utilities 345,759 228,696 124,160 329,048 63,745 1,091,408 34,169 444 34,613 1,126,021 1,033,192
Repairs and maintenance 341,364 363,335 107,163 325,714 52,313 1,189,889 36,470 4,147 40,617 1,230,506 1,139,874
Equipment and furniture 121,210 54,154 60,841 87,156 43,332 366,693 30,477 3,487 33,964 400,657 252,863
Interest 220,569 172,783 198,910 400,148 125,344 1,117,754 53,331 348 53,679 1,171,433 1,130,894
Insurance 300,529 424,273 130,569 456,625 7,452 1,319,448 50,540 135 50,675 1,370,123 1,361,507
Medicaid assessment taxes - - 627,823 196,884 - 824,707 - - - 824,707 860,071
Debt-related expenses - - - - 17,480 17,480 17,480 20,742
Temporary service subcontracting fees - 16,803 - - - 16,803 - - - 16,803 -
Vehicle expense 21,034 562,659 40,376 271,437 339 895,845 2,443 44 2,487 898,332 823,061
Bad debt expense 118,177 3,489 - - - 121,666 - 900 900 122,566 433,273
Contributions expense - - - 1,385 1,385 1,385 134,558
Total Expenses Before Depreciation and Amortization 31,437,910 17,704,620 10,183,388 27,834,756 1,082,280 88,242,954 6,324,089 241,314 6,565,403 94,808,357 96,040,159
Depreciation and Amortization 472,642 606,580 452,436 1,108,474 117,212 2,757,344 339,383 174 339,557 3,096,901 3,079,390
Total Expenses $31,910,552  $18,311,200  $10,635,824  $28,943,230 $1,199,492  $91,000,298 $6,663,472 $241,488 $6,904,960 $97,905,258 $99,119,549

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Statement of Cash Flows
(with comparative totals for 2016)

Year ended December 31, 2017 2016
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $ 1,764,351 S 3,183,896
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,096,901 3,079,390
Interest on debt issuance costs 119,351 (32,958)
Gain on sale of fixed assets (59,270) (29,926)
Provision for bad debt 122,566 433,273
Discount on pledges receivables 1,530 4,285
Loss on other investment 21,312 -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable (1,564,357) (3,840,042)
Government and other grants receivable 51,174 114,581
Contributions and pledges receivable (273,084) (86,584)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (78,651) (1,462,836)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 645,722 489,901
Accrued interest payable 41,251 3,300
Accrued payroll and related benefits (1,240,053) 1,543,594
Accrued pension payable (532,175) 595,030
Deferred revenue (290,309) 1,508,688
Due to governmental agencies 607,041 (2,493,276)
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 2,433,300 3,010,316
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of other investment (50,000) -
Purchases of fixed assets (2,091,966) (1,784,871)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 84,073 50,116
Assets limited to use 519,668 685,254
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (1,538,225) (1,049,501)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from bonds - 2,355,000
Repayments on capital lease obligations (803,178) (734,451)
Principal payments on mortgages and loans payable (209,501) (254,940)
Principal payments on bonds payable (1,945,000) (1,890,000)
Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (2,957,679) (524,391)
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (2,062,604) 1,436,424
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 16,436,539 15,000,115
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $14,373,935 $16,436,539
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest $ 1,052,294 S 1,130,894
Noncash transaction related to capital leases 1,109,548 875,103
Transfer of fixed assets to LISH - 74,276
Accounts receivable recorded on transfer of fixed assets to
LISH - (74,276)

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

1. Principles of Combination

The accompanying combined financial statements include the accounts of Developmental
Disabilities Institute, Inc. (the “Agency”) and DDI Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”) (collectively,
the “Agency and Affiliate”), which are related by certain common members of the Board of Directors
and identical management.

All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in combination.

2. Nature of the Organizations

(a) The Agency is a New York State not-for-profit corporation which operates health, education
and residential facilities for the therapeutic education, guidance and training of developmentally
disabled children, adults and their families. The Agency also operated Diagnostic and Treatment
Centers, which are licensed by the New York State Department of Health under Article 28 of the
Public Health Law to provide rehabilitative, therapeutic, medical and dental services primarily for
developmentally disabled children and adults. The Agency is exempt from Federal, state and local
income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”), and therefore has
made no provision for income taxes in the accompanying combined financial statements. In addition,
the Agency has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a “private foundation”
within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. There was no unrelated business income for the
year ended December 31, 2017.

As of August 22, 2016, the Agency surrendered the license for its Diagnostic and Treatment Center
(“OPTI Healthcare”). OPTI Healthcare was transitioned over to another unrelated not-for-profit
entity, Long Island Select Healthcare (“LISH”) which will continue to provide services as a federally-
qualified healthcare center. The Agency leases space to LISH and has a tenant-landlord relationship.
In addition, LISH has an outstanding liability to the Agency related to the sale of equipment from
OPTI Healthcare, payment of startup expenses by the Agency and a loan for operating expenses
during the initial months of operations.

(b) The Foundation is a New York State not-for-profit corporation that was established May 31,
1988 and began operations October 1, 1990. The Foundation is organized and operated exclusively
for charitable, scientific and educational purposes. Consistent with the foregoing, its specific
purpose is to promote and support the activities of the Agency. The Foundation maintains certain
common board members with the Agency. The Foundation is exempt from Federal, state and local
income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and, therefore has made no provision for income
taxes in the accompanying combined financial statements. In addition, the Foundation has been
determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a “private foundation” within the meaning of
Section 509(a) of the Code. There was no unrelated business income for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

The combined financial statements of the Agency and Affiliate have been prepared on the accrual
basis. In the combined statement of financial position, assets and liabilities are presented in order
of liquidity or conversion to cash and their maturity resulting in the use of cash, respectively.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

(b) Financial Statement Presentation

The classification of the Agency’s net assets and its support, revenue and expenses is based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. It requires that the amounts for each of three
classes of net assets, permanently restricted, temporarily restricted, and unrestricted, be displayed
in a statement of financial position and that the amounts of change in each of those classes of net
assets be displayed in a combined statement of activities.

These classes are defined as follows:

(i)  Permanently Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the Agency is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by
passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Agency.

(ii) Temporarily Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the Agency is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage
of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the Agency pursuant to those
stipulations. When such stipulations end or are fulfilled, such temporarily restricted net assets
are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the combined statement of
activities.

(iii) Unrestricted - The part of net assets that is neither permanently nor temporarily restricted
by donor-imposed stipulations.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency and Affiliate consider all highly liquid instruments purchased with a maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

(d) Assets Limited as to Use, Current Portion

Assets limited as to use consists of cash held in banks for future contributions to the pension plan
and future workers compensation claims.

(e) Provision for Doubtful Accounts

The Agency and Affiliate provide an allowance for doubtful accounts for accounts receivable which
are specifically identified by management as to their uncertainty in regards to collectability. As of
December 31, 2017, the total allowance for doubtful accounts is $592,615.

(f) Investments at Fair Value

Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820, “Fair Value Measurement,” defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands the disclosures about fair value
measurements. ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in a principal or most advantageous market. Fair value is a market-based
measurement that is determined based on inputs, which refer broadly to assumptions that market
participants use in pricing assets or liabilities. These inputs can be readily observable, market
corroborated, or unobservable. ASC 820 established a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value in three broad levels. The standard
requires that assets and liabilities be classified in their entirety based on the level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input may
require judgment considering factors specific to the asset or liability, and may affect the valuation
of the asset or liability and their placement within the fair value hierarchy. The Agency and Affiliate
classify fair value balances based on the fair value hierarchy defined by ASC 820 as follows:

10



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

Level 1 - Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. An active market for the asset or liability is a market in which transactions for the asset
or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. Valuation adjustments and block discounts are not applied to Level 1 instruments.

Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant
inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement.

Investment income is recognized when earned and consists of interest and dividends. Dividends are
recorded on the ex-dividend date. Purchases and sales are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(g) Income Taxes

The Agency and Affiliate were incorporated in the State of New York and is exempt from Federal
and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and, therefore, have made no provision
for income taxes in the accompanying combined financial statements. In addition, the Agency and
Affiliate have been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be “private foundations”
within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business
income for the year ended December 31, 2017. Management believes that the Agency and Affiliate
are no longer subject to income tax examinations for years prior to 2014.

Under ASC 740, an organization must recognize the tax benefit associated with tax positions taken
for tax return purposes when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained. The
Agency and Affiliate do not believe there are any material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly,
they will not recognize any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The Agency and Affiliate have
filed for and received income tax exemptions in the jurisdictions where they are required to do so.
Additionally, the Agency and Affiliate have filed Internal Revenue Service Form 990 tax returns, as
required, and all other applicable returns in jurisdictions when it is required. For the year ended
December 31, 2017, there was no interest or penalties recorded or included in the combined
statement of activities.

(h) Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements and equipment under capital leases
are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Years
Buildings 18-40
Building improvements 5-40
Furniture and fixtures 4-20
Equipment and vehicles 3-15

11



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

(i) Impairment of Fixed Assets

The Agency and Affiliate review fixed assets for impairment whenever events or changes in business
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable. An
impairment loss would be recognized when the future cash flows from the use of the asset are less
than the carrying amount of that asset. As of December 31, 2017, there have been no such losses.

(j) Contributions and Pledges Receivable

Contributions and pledges receivable, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as
revenues in the appropriate category of net assets in the period received. Promises to give are
recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows, based on an appropriate discount rate
at the time of the gift. Amortization of the discount in subsequent years is included in contribution
revenue. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value at the
date of the gift. Contributions for capital projects are reported as nonoperating revenues.
Conditional contributions, including conditional promises to give, are not recognized until the
conditions are substantially met.

Unconditional promises to give are recorded in the combined financial statements at present value
using a discount rate which represents risk-free interest rates applicable to the years in which
promises are received. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Agency and Affiliate used a
discount rate of 1.65%.

Contributions receivable consist of $164,563 for the capital campaign and $35,799 for pledges
receivable at December 31, 2017.

The capital campaign represents funds donated to the Agency and Affiliate for the purpose of
renovations of the Little Plains School located in Huntington, New York and the Hollywood Drive
campus located in Smithtown, New York, and expenses related to the capital campaign.

(k) Third-party Reimbursements and Revenue Recognition

The Agency receives substantially all of its revenue for services provided to approved clients from
third-party reimbursement agencies; primarily the Office for People With Developmental Disabilities
(“OPWDD”), Department of Health and the State Education Department of New York. These
revenues are based on predetermined rates based on cost reimbursement principles and are subject
to audit and retroactive adjustment by the respective third-party fiscal intermediary. The financial
statement impact of such adjustments is recognized in the period in which the retroactive
adjustment occurred.

Revenue is recognized as earned from third parties and when received or pledged for contributions,
special events and fundraising activities.

(1)  Allocation Methodology

Common costs incurred for the administration of the various programs are allocated directly to
respective programs as incurred and/or utilizing predetermined allocation rates established by
management.

(m) Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Agency and Affiliate to concentration of credit
risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents. At various times, the Agency and Affiliate have
cash deposits at financial institutions, which exceed the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation
insurance limits.

12



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

(n) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the combined financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(o) Comparative Financial Information

The combined financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information.
With respect to the combined statement of activities, the prior year information is presented in
total, not by net asset class. With respect to the combined statement of functional expenses, the
prior year expenses are presented by expense classification in total rather than functional category.
Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Agency and Affiliate’s combined financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2016, from which the summarized information was derived in total but not by net
asset class.

(p) Accounting Pronouncements Issued But Not Yet Adopted

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards
Update (“ASU”) 2016-02, “Accounting for Leases,” which applies a right-of-use (“ROU”) model that
requires a lessee to record, for all leases with a lease term of more than 12 months, an asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a liability to make lease payments. For leases
with a term of 12 months or less, a practical expedient is available whereby a lessee may elect, by
class of underlying asset, not to recognize an ROU asset or lease liability. At inception, lessees must
classify all leases as either finance or operating based on five criteria. Balance sheet recognition of
finance and operating leases is similar, but the pattern of expense recognition in the income
statement, as well as the effect on the statement of cash flows, differs depending on the lease
classification. In addition, lessees and lessors are required to provide certain qualitative and
quantitative disclosures to enable users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and
uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The amendments are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the pending
adoption of ASU 2016-02.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14, “Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) and Health Care
Entities (Topic 954) - Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities.” The ASU
amends the current reporting model for nonprofit organizations and enhances their required
disclosures. The major changes include: (a) requiring the presentation of only two classes of net
assets now entitled “net assets without donor restrictions” and “net assets with donor restrictions,”
(b) modifying the presentation of underwater endowment funds and related disclosures, (c)
requiring the use of the placed in service approach to recognize the expirations of restrictions on
gifts used to acquire or construct long-lived assets absent explicit donor stipulations otherwise, (d)
requiring that all nonprofits present an analysis of expenses by function and nature in either the
statement of activities, a separate statement, or in the notes and disclose a summary of the
allocation methods used to allocate costs, (e) requiring the disclosure of quantitative and qualitative
information regarding liquidity and availability of resources, (f) presenting investment return net of
external and direct expenses, and (g) modifying other financial statement reporting requirements
and disclosures intended to increase the usefulness of nonprofit financial statements. The ASU is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. The
provisions of the ASU must be applied on a retrospective basis for all years presented although
certain optional practical expedients are available for periods prior to adoption. Management is
currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on its combined financial statements.

13



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606),”
which is a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that will supersede existing revenue
recognition guidance. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Agency is deemed to be a conduit bond obligor since its bond is held by the public and,
therefore, has an effective date for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017.
Management is currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on its combined financial statements.

(@) Recently Adopted Authoritative Guidance

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, “Presentation of Financial Statements - Going
Concern: Disclosures of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern.”
This ASU provides guidance about management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is
substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related
footnote disclosures. Specifically, this ASU provides a definition of the term substantial doubt and
requires an assessment for a period of one year after the date that the financial statements are
issued (or available to be issued). It also requires certain disclosures when substantial doubt is
alleviated as a result of consideration of management’s plans and requires an express statement
and other disclosures when substantial doubt is not alleviated. The standard was adopted by the
Agency and Affiliate in the year ended December 31, 2017.

(r) Reclassifications

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to be consistent with the current year financial
statement presentation.

4, Investments and Assets Limited as to Use, Long-Term Portion

The cost and respective fair values of investments at December 31, 2017 are as follows:

December 31, 2017

Cost Fair Value

Agency and Affiliate:
Common stock S 4,99 S 4,996
Federated Treasury Obligations Fund 3,792,786 3,792,786
Debt service reserve fund - money market fund 915,772 915,772
Total $4,713,554 $4,713,554

The Agency and Affiliate’s assets recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon a fair
value hierarchy in accordance with ASC 820. See Note 3 for a discussion of the Agency and Affiliate’s
policies regarding this hierarchy. A description of the valuation techniques applied to the Agency
and Affiliate’s major categories of assets measured at fair value is below.

The Agency and Affiliate have investments in common stock, treasury obligation and money market
funds. The Agency and Affiliate’s custodian prices these investments using nationally recognized
pricing services. The Agency and Affiliate’s common stock, Federated Treasury Obligations Fund
and debt service reserve fund are classified as Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

14



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

The following table shows, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Agency and Affiliate’s
financial assets that are accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2017.
The financial assets are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The Agency and Affiliate’s assessment of the significance
of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the placement
within the fair value hierarchy levels. There have been no changes in the levels from the prior year.

Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant
for Identical ~ Significant Other Unobservable Balance at
Assets Observable Inputs Inputs December 31,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2017
Common stock S 4,99 S- S- S 4,99
2005 A-B Civic Facility Revenue Bonds:
Federal Treasury Obligations Fund 129,469 - - 129,469
2006 A-B Civic Facility Revenue Bonds:
Federal Treasury Obligations Fund 65,784 - - 65,784
2012 AA-AF Local Development Corp. Revenue
Bond 3,162,158 - - 3,162,158
2012 BA-BE County Economic Development Corp.
Revenue Bond 434,551 - - 434,551
Facilities Development Corporation (“FDC”)
mortgages payable - debt service reserve fund 915,772 - - 915,772
2004 A-C Civic Facility Revenue Bonds:
Federal Treasury Obligations Fund 824 - - 824
$4,713,554 $- $- $4,713,554

5. Accounts Receivable, Net

At December 31, 2017, accounts receivable, net consists of the following:

December 31, 2017

Government and other grants $ 1,011,873
Office for People With Developmental Disabilities 5,980,961
New York State Education Department 11,717,164
Long Island Select Healthcare, Inc. 1,528,984
Other 449,283
20,688,265
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (592,615)
$20,095,650

6. Contributions and Pledges Receivable, Net

At December 31, 2017, the net present value of contributions and pledges receivable is $200,362.
The net present value of pledges receivable was calculated using a discount rate of 1.65%.
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Notes to Combined Financial Statements

Net present value of pledges receivable at December 31, 2017 is summarized below:

December 31, 2017

Total contributions and pledges receivable $203,117
Discount 2,755
Net present value of contributions receivable $200,362

Amount due in:
One year $146,217
Two to five years 56,900
$203,117

7. Fixed Assets, Net

Fixed assets, net, including equipment under capital leases, consists of the following:

December 31, 2017

Land $ 5,950,101
Buildings and building improvements 44,590,848
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 7,076,375
Vehicles under capital lease obligations 5,937,665
Machinery and equipment 183,194
IT equipment 1,347,203
Leasehold improvements 2,008,209
67,093,595
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (40,253,083)
Construction-in-progress 785,149
$ 27,625,661

The estimated cost to complete the construction-in-progress is approximately $3,152,000.

8. Pension Plans
(a) 403(b) Tax Deferred Annuity Plan

The Agency is the sponsor of a 403(b) tax deferred annuity plan that covers all Agency and Affiliate
employees meeting eligibility requirements. Employee contributions are immediately vested. The
Agency also makes a discretionary contribution based upon a percentage of an employee’s salary,
which will become 100% vested after three or five years depending on date of hire. Accrued pension
payable for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $879,584. In 2017, employer contributions of
$1,410,889 were made.
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Notes to Combined Financial Statements

(b) Frozen Plan

The Agency and Affiliate had a defined contribution 401(a) pension plan for all salaried employees
who completed one year of service. Contributions were based on a percentage of employees’
salaries and vesting occurred after five years. The plan was frozen as of April 6, 2001. As of
November 30, 2017, the plan has been terminated.

9. Workers’ Compensation Reserve

The Agency was previously a member of the now terminated and insolvent Community Residence
Insurance Saving Plan Self-Insurance Trust for Workers’ Compensation (“CRISP”). Due to financial
deficits, the Workers’ Compensation Board (“WCB”) of New York State assumed the administration
of CRISP. WCB has been charged with facilitating the extinguishment of the liabilities of the trust
and performed a review to reconstruct and allocate the deficit among CRISP’s former members. The
Agency received an assessment based on this review for fiscal years 2006-2011. In 2016, the WCB
and the Agency counsel agreed to a settlement in the amount of $1,569,026. The full liability, net
of a discount based on lump-sum payment, has been recorded in the accompanying combined
financial statements. In March 2017, the Agency paid the discounted lump-sum amount of
$1,490,575 and the WCB has issued the Agency a full release of liability related to the CRISP Trust.

10. Due to Governmental Agencies

Due to governmental agencies consists of the following:

December 31, 2017

Advances by funding sources to be recouped in future years $4,898,472

11. Capital Lease Obligations

Capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

December 31, 2017

The Agency financed the cost of vehicles with notes payable in various monthly
installments through 2020. The interest rates on these leases range from

5.25% to 7.27%. $1,818,817
Less: Current maturities (765,696)
$1,053,121
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Future minimum principal payments and the present value of net minimum principal payments are
as follows:

December 31,

2018 S 856,343
2019 565,707
2020 426,199
2021 137,081
Total minimum lease payments 1,985,330
Less: Interest (166,513)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $1,818,817

12. Line of Credit

The Agency has a revolving line of credit with a bank of up to $9,000,000 and expires on August 31,
2018. Interest is charged at 3.75% per annum. There were no amounts outstanding at December 31,
2017. The line of credit is secured by outstanding accounts receivable excluding any receivables,
subject to subordination agreements.

13. Mortgages and Loans Payable

Mortgages and loans payable consist of the following:

December 31, 2017

Mortgage payable to FDC, due February 2021, payable in semi-annual debt

service payments ranging from $8,066 to $11,242, including interest at 5.61%

per annum; secured by real estate located in Mt. Sinai, New York. S 46,444
Various loans payable, due from May 2025 to February 2026, payable in current

monthly installments ranging from $3,383 to $7,125, including interest from

3.65% to 5.49%; secured by related vehicles, land and buildings. 1,862,129
1,908,573

Less: Current maturities (184,349)
$1,724,224
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Mortgages and loans payable mature as follows:

December 31,

2018 S 185,890
2019 194,920
2020 192,777
2021 152,585
2022 157,642
Thereafter 1,029,963
1,913,777

Less: Unamortized balance of deferred financing costs (5,204)
$1,908,573

14. Bonds Payable

(a) On December 17, 2004, the Agency obtained financing of $265,000 of Civic Facility Revenue
bonds through the Suffolk County Industrial Development Agency (“SCIDA”) for the renovation and
equipping of a facility located in Medford, NY. The bonds, which require quarterly interest
payments, bear interest at 6%. At December 31, 2017, $20,000 remains outstanding:

(b)  On January 21, 2005 the Agency obtained financing of $163,000 of Civic Facility Revenue
bonds through the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (“NCIDA”) for the renovation and
equipping of a facility located in Bellmore, NY. The bonds, which require quarterly interest
payments, bear interest at 6%. At December 31, 2017, $25,000 remains outstanding.

(c)  On October 13, 2005, the Agency obtained financing of $1,091,000 of Civic Facility Revenue
Bonds through SCIDA for the renovation and equipping of a facility located in East Patchogue, NY.
The bonds, which require quarterly interest payments, bear interest at 6%. At December 31, 2017,
$295,000 remains outstanding.

(d) On September 27, 2006, the Agency obtained financing of $3,857,000 of Civic Facility Revenue
Bonds through SCIDA to renovate properties located in Nesconset, NY, Commack, NY, Babylon, NY,
Smithtown, NY and Bohemia, NY, and for acquisitions and renovations of properties located in Ridge,
NY and Yaphank, NY. The bonds, which require quarterly interest payments, bear interest at 5.95%.
At December 31, 2017, $1,210,000 remains outstanding.

(e) On August 29, 2012, the Agency obtained financing of $20,016,071 through the Town of
Huntington Local Development Corporation to renovate properties in Smithtown and Huntington, NY
and to refinance outstanding amounts associated with financing obtained in 1993 and 1998 through
SCIDA. The bond, which requires monthly interest payments, bears interest ranging from 2.5% to
3.8%. At December 31, 2017, $14,294,476 remains outstanding.

On August 29, 2012, the Agency obtained financing of $5,880,138 through the Suffolk County
Economic Development Corporation to renovate properties in Hauppauge, NY and to refinance
outstanding amounts associated with financing obtained in 1993, 1998 and 1999. The bond, which
requires monthly interest payments, bears interest ranging from 2.5% to 4.4%. At December 31,
2017, $3,532,482 remains outstanding.
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(f)  On October 5, 2016, the Agency obtained financing of $2,355,000 through the Dormitory
Authority of New York State for properties in Deer Park, NY and Centereach, NY and to renovate
properties in Smithtown, NY. The bond, which requires monthly interest payments, bears interest
ranging from 1.5% to 4%. At December 31, 2017, $2,345,000 remains outstanding. These bonds are
conduit debt securities since they are offered by a governmental entity not for its own use, but for
the use of the Agency. As the conduit debt obligor, the Agency is required to make all interest and
principal payments as they become due. The bonds are publicly held and therefore have additional
financial reporting requirements.

The aggregate principal maturities for the years ending December 31 are as follows:

December 31,

2018 $ 1,972,176
2019 2,130,000
2020 2,210,000
2021 2,200,000
2022 1,950,000
Thereafter 11,259,782
21,721,958

Less: Unamortized balance of deferred financing costs (703,054)
$21,018,904

All bonds are secured by the related properties.

Interest expense related to the bonds for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $858,785.

15. Operating Leases

Pursuant to several lease agreements, the Agency and Affiliate are obligated for minimum annual
rentals payable to nonrelated entities, as indicated below. The Agency is obligated for certain
operating costs at these sites. The future minimum commitments to all nonrelated parties are as
follows:

December 31,

2018 $1,225,000
2019 770,058
2020 672,413
2021 689,512
2022 576,283
Thereafter 556,775

Total minimum lease payments $4,490,041

Total rental expense under noncancellable operating leases amounted to $1,525,599 for the year
ended December 31, 2017.
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16. Commitments and Contingencies

(a) For the year ended December 31, 2017, revenues from Medicare and Medicaid programs
accounted for a significant portion of the Agency’s revenues. Laws and regulations governing
Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. The Agency believes
that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or
threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such regulatory
inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future
government review and interpretation. In the event noncompliance is determined, the Agency would
be subject to regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and
Medicaid programs.

(b) Additionally, the Agency is involved in certain disputes arising from the normal course of its
businesses. In the opinion of management and on the advice of legal counsel, the expected outcome
of such disputes, in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the Agency’s financial
position.

(c) On July 15, 2015, the Agency entered into an irrevocable letter of credit amounting to
$3,416,837 from a bank which matures on July 1, 2018. The letter of credit was issued in conjunction
with the Agency’s workers’ compensation policy. There were no outstanding borrowings at
December 31, 2017.

17. Net Assets Released From Restrictions

During 2017, temporarily restricted net assets that were released from donor restrictions by
incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpose are as follows:

Program designated S 42,962
Capital Campaign 97,750
$140,712

18. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Donor restricted contributions held for specific purposes are as follows:

December 31, 2017

Program designated $155,688
Capital campaign 265,875
$421,563
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19. Other Investment

The Agency owns a 12.5% interest in LI Alliance, LLC (the “Alliance”), which was established to
strategically position the Agency and other Alliance members to participate in programs relating to
delivery of care to persons with developmental disabilities and other disorders through managed
care or other models. The Agency's interest in the Alliance amounted to approximately $29,000 at
December 31, 2017.

20. Subsequent Events

The Agency and Affiliate’s management has performed subsequent events procedures through
May 23, 2018, which is the date the combined financial statements were available to be issued and
there were no subsequent events requiring adjustment to the combined financial statements or
disclosures as stated herein.
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Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combining Statement of Financial Position

(with comparative totals for 2016)

December 31,

Developmental DDI
Disabilities Foundation, Combined Total
Institute, Inc. Inc. Eliminations 2017 2016
Assets

Current:
Cash and cash equivalents $13,685,926 $ 688,009 S - $14,373,935 $16,436,539
Assets limited as to use, current portion 2,311,998 202,993 2,514,991 2,953,460
Investments, at fair value - 4,996 4,996 4,996
Accounts receivable, net 19,083,777 - 19,083,777 17,641,986
Government and other grants receivable 1,011,873 - 1,011,873 738,789
Contributions and pledges receivable, current portion 146,217 146,217 170,113
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,693,054 9,243 2,702,297 2,623,646
Total Current Assets 38,786,628 1,051,458 39,838,086 40,569,529
Security Deposits 198,286 198,286 198,286
Other Investment 28,688 28,688 -
Due From Affiliates 35,956 (35,956) - -
Contributions and Pledges Receivable, Net, Less Current Portion 54,145 54,145 82,953
Assets Limited as to Use, Less Current Portion 4,708,558 4,708,558 4,789,757
Fixed Assets, Net 27,625,661 27,625,661 27,545,851
$71,383,777 $1,105,603 $(35,956) $72,453,424 $73,186,376
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December 31,

Developmental DDI
Disabilities Foundation, Combined Total
Institute, Inc. Inc. Eliminations 2017 2016
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses S 4,447,122 S - S - $ 4,447,122 $ 3,801,400
Accrued interest payable 177,208 - - 177,208 135,957
Accrued payroll and related benefits 6,313,736 6,313,736 7,553,789
Accrued pension payable 879,584 - - 879,584 1,411,759
Due to affiliates - 35,956 (35,956) - -
Deferred revenue, current portion 2,634,869 - - 2,634,869 3,047,163
Capital lease obligations, current portion 765,696 - - 765,696 639,826
Mortgages and loans payable, current portion 184,349 - - 184,349 203,280
Bonds payable, current portion 1,972,176 1,972,176 1,868,232
Due to governmental agencies, current portion 1,397,987 - - 1,397,987 1,619,544
Total Current Liabilities 18,772,727 35,956 (35,956) 18,772,727 20,280,950
Deferred Revenue, Less Current Portion 1,967,061 1,967,061 1,845,076
Capital Lease Obligations, Less Current Maturities 1,053,121 1,053,121 872,621
Mortgages and Loans Payable, Less Current Maturities 1,724,224 1,724,224 1,903,267
Bonds Payable, Less Current Maturities 19,046,728 19,046,728 20,987,848
Due to Governmental Agencies, Less Current Portion 3,500,485 3,500,485 2,671,887
Total Liabilities 46,064,346 35,956 (35,956) 46,064,346 48,561,649
Net Assets:
Unrestricted net assets 25,319,431 648,084 25,967,515 24,207,669
Temporarily restricted net assets - 421,563 421,563 417,058
Total Net Assets 25,319,431 1,069,647 26,389,078 24,624,727
$71,383,777 $1,105,603 $(35,956) $72,453,424 $73,186,376
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Combining Statement of Activities
(with comparative totals for 2016)

Year ended December 31,

Developmental

Disabilities
Institute, Inc. DDI Foundation, Inc. Combined Total
Temporarily
Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted Total 2017 2016
Program Revenues:
Fees for services $95,260,259 S S S $95,260,259 $93,667,038
Government and other grants 1,605,822 1,605,822 1,643,595
Net patient service revenues - - 2,802,955
Other program revenues 2,093,993 - - 2,093,993 1,698,056
Net assets released from restrictions - 42,962 (42,962) - -
Total Program Revenues 98,960,074 42,962 (42,962) 98,960,074 99,811,644
Expenses:
Program services:
Education services 31,910,552 31,910,552 32,321,183
Clinic services - - 3,702,449
Adult day services 18,311,200 18,311,200 17,327,926
Children’s residential services 10,635,824 10,635,824 10,885,451
Adult residential services 28,943,230 28,943,230 27,669,160
Other programs 1,199,492 1,199,492 713,808
Total Program Services 91,000,298 91,000,298 92,619,977
Supporting services:
Management and general 6,663,472 - - 6,663,472 6,144,108
Fundraising - 241,488 241,488 241,488 55,464
Total Supporting Services 6,663,472 241,488 241,488 6,904,960 6,499,572
Total Expenses 97,663,770 241,488 241,488 97,905,258 99,119,549
Change in Net Assets Before Nonoperating Revenues
and Expenses 1,296,304 (198,526) (42,962) (241,488) 1,054,816 692,095
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses:
Capital campaign income 71,812 71,812 71,812 222,392
Capital campaign expenses (97,750) (97,750) (97,750) (512,574)
Net Expenses From Capital Campaign (25,938) (25,938) (25,938) (290,182)
Special events revenues 464,288 464,288 464,288 389,091
Direct cost to donors (126,526) (126,526) (126,526) (111,029)
Net Revenues From Special Events 337,762 337,762 337,762 278,062
Contributions 10,137 88,818 73,405 162,223 172,360 62,247
Gain on sale of fixed assets 59,270 - - - 59,270 29,926
Loss on other investment (21,312) (21,312) -
Interest income 50,466 50,466 41,594
Other income 88,170 - - 88,170 76,400
Prior period income 48,486 271 271 48,757 2,293,754
Total Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 235,217 426,851 47,467 474,318 709,535 2,491,801
Change in Net Assets 1,531,521 228,325 4,505 232,830 1,764,351 3,183,896
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 23,787,910 419,759 417,058 836,817 24,624,727 21,440,831
Net Assets, End of Year $25,319,431 $ 648,084 $421,563 $1,069,647 $26,389,078 $24,624,727
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Tel: +212 885-8000 100 Park Avenue
Fax: +212 697-1299 New York, NY 10017
. www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors

Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc.
and Affiliate

Smithtown, New York

Report on the Combined Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Developmental Disabilities
Institute, Inc. and Affiliate (collectively, the “Agency and Affiliate”), which comprise the
combined statement of financial position as of December 31, 2016, and the related combined
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the combined financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Combined Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of combined financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the combined financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
combined financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate as of
December 31, 2016, and the results of changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matters
Supplementary Information

Our audit of the combined financial statements was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on those statements as a whole. The supplementary information presented in the
following section of this report is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the combined financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the combined financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the combined financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial statements or to
the combined financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the combined financial
statements as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have audited the Agency and Affiliate’s 2015 combined financial statements and our report,
dated May 20, 2016, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited combined financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2015 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

O URR P
May 19, 2017



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Statement of Financial Position
(with comparative totals for 2015)

December 31, 2016 2015
Assets
Current:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $16,436,539 $15,000,115
Assets limited as to use, current portion (Note 3) 2,953,460 3,732,331
Investments, at fair value (Notes 3 and 4) 4,996 4,996
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$709,415 and $441,134 for 2016 and 2015, respectively
(Note 3) 17,641,986 14,160,941
Government and other grants receivable (Note 3) 738,789 831,894
Current portion of contributions and pledges receivable, net (Notes 3
and 5) 170,113 83,529
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,821,932 1,359,096
Total Current Assets 40,767,815 35,172,902
Contributions and Pledges Receivable, Net, Less Current Portion
(Notes 3 and 5) 82,953 108,714
Assets Limited as to Use, Less Current Portion (Note 4) 4,789,757 4,696,140
Fixed Assets, Net (Notes 3, 6, 12 and 13) 27,545,851 28,059,733
$73,186,376 $68,037,489
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 3,801,400 S 3,311,499
Accrued interest payable (Note 13) 135,957 132,657
Accrued payroll and related benefits 7,553,789 6,010,195
Accrued pension payable (Note 7) 1,411,759 816,729
Deferred revenue, current portion (Note 3) 3,047,163 2,023,502
Capital lease obligations, current portion (Note 10) 639,826 607,378
Mortgages and loans payable, current portion (Note 12) 203,280 249,562
Bonds payable, current portion (Note 13) 1,868,232 1,819,239
Due to governmental agencies, current portion (Notes 3 and 9) 1,619,544 918,521
Total Current Liabilities 20,280,950 15,889,282
Deferred Revenue, Less Current Portion (Note 3) 2,191,530 1,706,503
Capital Lease Obligations, Less Current Maturities (Note 10) 872,621 764,417
Mortgages and Loans Payable, Less Current Maturities (Note 12) 1,903,267 2,103,819
Bonds Payable, Less Current Maturities (Note 13) 20,987,848 20,612,905
Due to Governmental Agencies, Less Current Portion
(Notes 3 and 9) 2,325,433 5,519,732
Total Liabilities 48,561,649 46,596,658
Commitments and Contingencies
(Notes 3, 6, 8,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 and 15)
Net Assets:
Unrestricted net assets (Note 3) 24,207,669 20,704,388
Temporarily restricted net assets (Notes 3, 16 and 17) 417,058 736,443
Total Net Assets 24,624,727 21,440,831
$73,186,376 $68,037,489

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Statement of Activities
(with comparative totals for 2015)

Year ended December 31,

Temporarily Total
Unrestricted Restricted 2016 2015
Program Revenues:
Fees for services $93,667,038 S $93,667,038 $90,897,280
Government and other grants 1,643,595 1,643,595 1,322,400
Clinic revenue 2,802,955 2,802,955 4,880,236
Other program revenues 1,698,056 - 1,698,056 1,748,095
Net assets released from restrictions (Note 16) 63,212 (63,212) - -
Total Program Revenues 99,874,856 (63,212) 99,811,644 98,848,011
Expenses:
Program services:
Education services 32,321,183 32,321,183 32,167,330
Clinic services 3,702,449 3,702,449 5,413,192
Adult day services 17,327,926 17,327,926 16,389,994
Children’s residential services 10,885,451 10,885,451 10,550,947
Adult residential services 27,669,160 27,669,160 27,366,414
Other programs 713,808 713,808 64,642
Total Program Services 92,619,977 92,619,977 91,952,519
Supporting services:
Management and general 6,144,108 6,144,108 5,879,833
Fundraising 355,464 355,464 184,604
Total Supporting Services 6,499,572 6,499,572 6,064,437
Total Expenses 99,119,549 99,119,549 98,016,956
Change in Net Assets Before
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 755,307 (63,212) 692,095 831,055
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses:
Capital campaign income 222,392 222,392 100,532
Capital campaign expenses (512,574) (512,574) (317,288)
Net Expenses From Capital Campaign (290,182) (290,182) (216,756)
Special events revenues 389,091 389,091 394,326
Direct cost to donors (111,029) (111,029) (113,751)
Net Revenues From Special Events 278,062 - 278,062 280,575
Contributions 28,238 34,009 62,247 107,101
Gain on sale of fixed assets 29,926 - 29,926 78,054
Interest income 41,594 41,594 42,827
Other income 76,400 76,400 97,226
Prior period income (Note 3(l)) 2,293,754 2,293,754 1,074,335
Total Nonoperating Revenues
and Expenses 2,747,974 (256,173) 2,491,801 1,463,362
Change in Net Assets 3,503,281 (319,385) 3,183,896 2,294,417
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 20,704,388 736,443 21,440,831 19,146,414
Net Assets, End of Year $24,207,669 $ 417,058 $24,624,727 $21,440,831

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Statement of Functional Expenses
(with comparative totals for 2015)

Year ended December 31,

Program Services

Supporting Services

Children’s Adult Total Total
Education Clinic Adult Day Residential Residential Other Program Management Supporting Total
Services Services Services Services Services Programs Services and General Fundraising Services 2016 2015
Salaries and Related Expenses:
Salaries $21,517,435 $1,897,028  $ 9,874,637 S 6,175,856  $16,642,636 $357,163  $56,464,755 $3,460,484 $ 98,207 $3,558,691 $60,023,446  $59,078,819
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 7,404,531 522,277 3,664,801 2,062,504 5,919,774 116,304 19,690,191 1,066,235 31,706 1,097,941 20,788,132 20,901,835
Total Salaries and Related Expenses 28,921,966 2,419,305 13,539,438 8,238,360 22,562,410 473,467 76,154,946 4,526,719 129,913 4,656,632 80,811,578 79,980,654
Other Expenses:
Fee-for-services professionals 99,879 288,795 20,074 62,667 241,780 3,285 716,480 128,979 128,979 845,459 646,873
Building occupancy 481,441 158,374 840,205 7 17,187 78,928 1,576,142 19,078 - 19,078 1,595,220 1,571,491
Telephone 198,324 35,007 216,671 49,545 130,869 12,421 642,837 46,024 1,461 47,485 690,322 588,202
Travel 39,519 2,650 59,192 9,750 49,853 1,651 162,615 19,471 849 20,320 182,935 110,937
Supplies 361,768 163,757 226,910 303,714 625,962 1,970 1,684,081 368,519 959 369,478 2,053,559 1,798,578
Food 1,258 1 24,799 331,507 803,299 - 1,160,864 623 - 623 1,161,487 1,138,426
Office expense 125,345 9,788 65,966 36,215 62,963 7,268 307,545 102,976 66,243 169,219 476,764 925,359
Dues and subscriptions 24,997 3,122 6,138 524 1,720 2,100 38,601 61,480 3,976 65,456 104,057 75,761
Postage 10,405 3,427 2,724 1,161 653 134 18,504 42,538 436 42,974 61,478 72,082
Meetings and conferences 28,975 620 12,162 8,006 10,549 3,123 63,435 8,607 3,872 12,479 75,914 78,650
Employee training and recruitment 158,875 1,213 85,589 80,490 134,184 1,136 461,487 93,186 4,330 97,516 559,003 465,328
Legal and accounting 150 10,572 - 840 9,451 - 21,013 211,335 - 211,335 232,348 294,457
Utilities 330,191 35,741 194,746 118,590 301,913 18,862 1,000,043 32,698 451 33,149 1,033,192 1,038,663
Repairs and maintenance 303,952 61,542 302,749 113,323 314,170 8,711 1,104,447 30,602 4,825 35,427 1,139,874 1,365,834
Equipment and furniture 60,646 6,493 46,946 47,212 58,824 17,311 237,432 12,327 3,104 15,431 252,863 400,121
Interest 228,102 93,146 180,300 209,207 332,433 45,164 1,088,352 42,492 50 42,542 1,130,894 1,218,430
Insurance 298,950 50,426 393,394 132,178 434,058 3,709 1,312,715 48,668 124 48,792 1,361,507 1,336,859
Medicaid assessment taxes - - - 660,184 199,887 - 860,071 - - - 860,071 825,483
Debt-related expenses - - - - - - - 20,742 - 20,742 20,742 13,807
Vehicle expense 17,890 231 498,985 34,269 270,038 116 821,529 1,520 12 1,532 823,061 905,375
Bad debt expense 157,683 238,889 9,045 - 27,656 - 433,273 - - - 433,273 128,300
Contributions expense - - - - - 134,558 134,558 134,558 -
Total Expenses Before Depreciation and
Amortization 31,850,316 3,583,099 16,726,033 10,437,749 26,589,859 679,356 89,866,412 5,818,584 355,163 6,173,747 96,040,159 94,979,670
Depreciation and Amortization 470,867 119,350 601,893 447,702 1,079,301 34,452 2,753,565 325,524 301 325,825 3,079,390 3,037,286
Total Expenses $32,321,183 $3,702,449  $17,327,926  $10,885,451  $27,669,160 $713,808  $92,619,977 $6,144,108 $355,464  $6,499,572 $99,119,549  $98,016,956

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Statement of Cash Flows
(with comparative totals for 2015)

Year ended December 31, 2016 2015
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $ 3,183,896 S 2,294,417
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,079,390 3,037,286
Interest on debt issuance costs (32,958) 79,020
Gain on sale of fixed assets (29,926) (78,054)
Provision for bad debt 433,273 128,300
Discount on pledges receivables 4,285 3,989
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable (3,840,042) 1,842,164
Government and other grants receivable 114,581 103,068
Contributions and pledges receivable (86,584) 14,817
Prepaid expenses and other assets (1,462,836) (100,361)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 489,901 1,001,413
Accrued interest payable 3,300 2,980
Accrued payroll and related benefits 1,543,594 131,073
Accrued pension payable 595,030 (81,048)
Deferred revenue 1,508,688 377,149
Due to governmental agencies (2,493,276) 1,401,315
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 3,010,316 10,157,528
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of fixed assets (1,784,871) (2,915,888)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 50,116 129,165
Assets limited to use (685,254) (35,858)
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (1,049,501) (2,822,581)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from bonds 2,355,000 -
Repayments on capital lease obligations (734,451) (709,871)
Principal payments on mortgages and loans payable (254,940) (242,573)
Principal payments on bonds payable (1,890,000) (1,785,000)
Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
Financing Activities (524,391) (2,737,444)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,436,424 4,597,503
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 15,000,115 10,402,612
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $16,436,539 $15,000,115
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest $ 1,130,894 $ 1,218,430
Noncash transaction related to capital leases 875,103 754,668
Transfer of fixed assets to LISH 74,276 -
Accounts receivable recorded on transfer of fixed assets to
LISH (74,276) -

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

1. Principles of Combination

The accompanying combined financial statements include the accounts of Developmental
Disabilities Institute, Inc. (the “Agency”) and DDI Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”) (collectively,
the “Agency and Affiliate”), which are related by certain common members of the Board of Directors
and identical management.

All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in combination.

2. Nature of the Organizations

(a) The Agency is a New York State not-for-profit corporation which operates health, education
and residential facilities for the therapeutic education, guidance and training of developmentally
disabled children, adults and their families. The Agency also operated Diagnostic and Treatment
Centers, which are licensed by the New York State Department of Health under Article 28 of the
Public Health Law to provide rehabilitative, therapeutic, medical and dental services primarily for
developmentally disabled children and adults. The Agency is exempt from Federal, state and local
income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”), and therefore has
made no provision for income taxes in the accompanying combined financial statements. In addition,
the Agency has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a “private foundation”
within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. There was no unrelated business income for the
year ended December 31, 2016.

As of August 22, 2016, the Agency surrendered the license for its Diagnostic and Treatment Center
(“OPTI Healthcare”). OPTI Healthcare was transitioned over to another unrelated not-for-profit
entity, Long Island Select Healthcare (“LISH”) which will continue to provide services as a federally-
qualified healthcare center. The Agency leases space to LISH and has a tenant-landlord relationship.
In addition, LISH has an outstanding liability to the Agency related to the sale of equipment from
OPTI Healthcare, payment of startup expenses by the Agency and a loan for operating expenses
during the initial months of operations.

(b) The Foundation is a New York State not-for-profit corporation that was established May 31,
1988 and began operations October 1, 1990. The Foundation is organized and operated exclusively
for charitable, scientific and educational purposes. Consistent with the foregoing, its specific
purpose is to promote and support the activities of the Agency. The Foundation maintains certain
common board members with the Agency. The Foundation is exempt from Federal, state and local
income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and, therefore has made no provision for income
taxes in the accompanying combined financial statements. In addition, the Foundation has been
determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a “private foundation” within the meaning of
Section 509(a) of the Code. There was no unrelated business income for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

The combined financial statements of the Agency and Affiliate have been prepared on the accrual
basis. In the combined statement of financial position, assets and liabilities are presented in order
of liquidity or conversion to cash and their maturity resulting in the use of cash, respectively.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

(b) Financial Statement Presentation

The classification of the Agency’s net assets and its support, revenue and expenses is based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. It requires that the amounts for each of three
classes of net assets, permanently restricted, temporarily restricted, and unrestricted, be displayed
in a statement of financial position and that the amounts of change in each of those classes of net
assets be displayed in a combined statement of activities.

These classes are defined as follows:

(i)  Permanently Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the Agency is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by
passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Agency.

(ii) Temporarily Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the Agency is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage
of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the Agency pursuant to those
stipulations. When such stipulations end or are fulfilled, such temporarily restricted net assets
are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the combined statement of
activities.

(iii) Unrestricted - The part of net assets that is neither permanently nor temporarily restricted
by donor-imposed stipulations.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency and Affiliate consider all highly liquid instruments purchased with a maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

(d) Assets Limited as to Use, Current Portion

Assets limited as to use consists of cash held in banks for future contributions to the pension plan
and future workers compensation claims.

(e) Provision for Doubtful Accounts

The Agency and Affiliate provide an allowance for doubtful accounts for accounts receivable which
are specifically identified by management as to their uncertainty in regards to collectability. As of
December 31, 2016, the total allowance for doubtful accounts is $709,415.

(f) Investments at Fair Value

Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820, “Fair Value Measurement,” defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands the disclosures about fair value
measurements. ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in a principal or most advantageous market. Fair value is a market-based
measurement that is determined based on inputs, which refer broadly to assumptions that market
participants use in pricing assets or liabilities. These inputs can be readily observable, market
corroborated, or unobservable. ASC 820 established a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value in three broad levels. The standard
requires that assets and liabilities be classified in their entirety based on the level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input may
require judgment considering factors specific to the asset or liability, and may affect the valuation
of the asset or liability and their placement within the fair value hierarchy. The Agency and Affiliate
classify fair value balances based on the fair value hierarchy defined by ASC 820 as follows:
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Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

Level 1 - Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. An active market for the asset or liability is a market in which transactions for the asset
or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. Valuation adjustments and block discounts are not applied to Level 1 instruments.

Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant
inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement.

Investment income is recognized when earned and consists of interest and dividends. Dividends are
recorded on the ex-dividend date. Purchases and sales are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(g) Income Taxes

The Agency and Affiliate were incorporated in the State of New York and is exempt from Federal
and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and, therefore, have made no provision
for income taxes in the accompanying combined financial statements. In addition, the Agency and
Affiliate have been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be “private foundations”
within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business
income for the year ended December 31, 2016. Management believes that the Agency and Affiliate
are no longer subject to income tax examinations for years prior to 2013.

Under ASC 740, an organization must recognize the tax benefit associated with tax positions taken
for tax return purposes when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained. The
Agency and Affiliate do not believe there are any material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly,
they will not recognize any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The Agency and Affiliate have
filed for and received income tax exemptions in the jurisdictions where they are required to do so.
Additionally, the Agency and Affiliate have filed Internal Revenue Service Form 990 tax returns, as
required, and all other applicable returns in jurisdictions when it is required. For the year ended
December 31, 2016, there was no interest or penalties recorded or included in the combined
statement of activities.

(h) Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements and equipment under capital leases
are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Years
Buildings 18-40
Building improvements 5-40
Furniture and fixtures 4-20
Equipment and vehicles 3-15

11
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Notes to Combined Financial Statements

(i) Impairment of Fixed Assets

The Agency and Affiliate review fixed assets for impairment whenever events or changes in business
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable. An
impairment loss would be recognized when the future cash flows from the use of the asset are less
than the carrying amount of that asset. As of December 31, 2016, there have been no such losses.

(j) Contributions and Pledges Receivable

Contributions and pledges receivable, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as
revenues in the appropriate category of net assets in the period received. Promises to give are
recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows, based on an appropriate discount rate
at the time of the gift. Amortization of the discount in subsequent years is included in contribution
revenue. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value at the
date of the gift. Contributions for capital projects are reported as nonoperating revenues.
Conditional contributions, including conditional promises to give, are not recognized until the
conditions are substantially met.

Unconditional promises to give are recorded in the combined financial statements at present value
using a discount rate which represents risk-free interest rates applicable to the years in which
promises are received. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Agency and Affiliate used a
discount rate of 1.78%.

Contributions receivable consist of $236,381 for the capital campaign and $16,685 for pledges
receivable at December 31, 2016.

The capital campaign represents funds donated to the Agency and Affiliate for the purpose of
renovations of the Little Plains School located in Huntington, New York and the Hollywood Drive
campus located in Smithtown, New York, and expenses related to the capital campaign.

(k) Third-party Reimbursements and Revenue Recognition

The Agency receives substantially all of its revenue for services provided to approved clients from
third-party reimbursement agencies; primarily the Office for People With Developmental Disabilities
(“OPWDD”), Department of Health and the State Education Department of New York. These
revenues are based on predetermined rates based on cost reimbursement principles and are subject
to audit and retroactive adjustment by the respective third-party fiscal intermediary. The financial
statement impact of such adjustments is recognized in the period in which the retroactive
adjustment occurred.

Revenue is recognized as earned from third parties and when received or pledged for contributions,
special events and fundraising activities.

()  Allocation Methodology

Common costs incurred for the administration of the various programs are allocated directly to
respective programs as incurred and/or utilizing predetermined allocation rates established by
management.

(m) Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Agency and Affiliate to concentration of credit
risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents. At various times, the Agency and Affiliate have
cash deposits at financial institutions, which exceed the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation
insurance limits.

12



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

(n) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the combined financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(o) Comparative Financial Information

The combined financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information.
With respect to the combined statement of activities, the prior year information is presented in
total, not by net asset class. With respect to the combined statement of functional expenses, the
prior year expenses are presented by expense classification in total rather than functional category.
Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Agency and Affiliate’s combined financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015, from which the summarized information was derived in total but not by net
asset class.

(p) Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards
Update (“ASU”) 2016-02, “Accounting for Leases,” which applies a right-of-use (“ROU”) model that
requires a lessee to record, for all leases with a lease term of more than 12 months, an asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a liability to make lease payments. For leases
with a term of 12 months or less, a practical expedient is available whereby a lessee may elect, by
class of underlying asset, not to recognize an ROU asset or lease liability. At inception, lessees must
classify all leases as either finance or operating based on five criteria. Balance sheet recognition of
finance and operating leases is similar, but the pattern of expense recognition in the income
statement, as well as the effect on the statement of cash flows, differs depending on the lease
classification. In addition, lessees and lessors are required to provide certain qualitative and
quantitative disclosures to enable users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and
uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The amendments are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the pending
adoption of ASU 2016-02.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14, “Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) and Health Care
Entities (Topic 954) - Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities.” The ASU
amends the current reporting model for nonprofit organizations and enhances their required
disclosures. The major changes include: (a) requiring the presentation of only two classes of net
assets now entitled “net assets without donor restrictions” and “net assets with donor restrictions,”
(b) modifying the presentation of underwater endowment funds and related disclosures, (c)
requiring the use of the placed in service approach to recognize the expirations of restrictions on
gifts used to acquire or construct long-lived assets absent explicit donor stipulations otherwise, (d)
requiring that all nonprofits present an analysis of expenses by function and nature in either the
statement of activities, a separate statement, or in the notes and disclose a summary of the
allocation methods used to allocate costs, (e) requiring the disclosure of quantitative and qualitative
information regarding liquidity and availability of resources, (f) presenting investment return net of
external and direct expenses, and (g) modifying other financial statement reporting requirements
and disclosures intended to increase the usefulness of nonprofit financial statements. The ASU is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. The
provisions of the ASU must be applied on a retrospective basis for all years presented although
certain optional practical expedients are available for periods prior to adoption. Management is
currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on its combined financial statements.
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Notes to Combined Financial Statements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606),”
which is a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that will supersede existing revenue
recognition guidance. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The FASB also issued ASU 2015-14 which deferred the effective date until annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2018. Earlier adoption is permitted subject to certain limitations. The
amendments in this update are required to be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period
presented or with the cumulative effect being recognized at the date of initial application.
Management is currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on its combined financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, “Interest - Imputation of Interest: Simplifying the
Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs,” which resulted in the reclassification of debt issuance costs
from other assets to inclusion as a reportable long-term debt balance on the combined balance
sheet. The standard also calls for the amortization of debt issuance costs to now be reported as
interest expense in the financial statements. The standard is effective for all non-public business
entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015 and must be applied retrospectively. The
Agency and Affiliate have adopted and applied the standard for the year ended December 31, 2016.

(q) Reclassifications

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to be consistent with the current year financial
statement presentation.

4. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use, Long-Term Portion

The cost and respective fair values of investments at December 31, 2016 are as follows:

December 31, 2016

Cost Fair Value

Agency and Affiliate:
Common stock S 4,996 S 4,996
Federated Treasury Obligations Fund 3,759,553 3,759,553
Debt service reserve fund - money market fund 1,030,204 1,030,204
Total $4,794,753 $4,794,753

The Agency and Affiliate’s assets recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon a fair
value hierarchy in accordance with ASC 820. See Note 2 for a discussion of the Agency and Affiliate’s
policies regarding this hierarchy. A description of the valuation techniques applied to the Agency
and Affiliate’s major categories of assets measured at fair value is below.
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Notes to Combined Financial Statements

The Agency and Affiliate have investments in common stock, treasury obligation and money market
funds. The Agency and Affiliate’s custodian prices these investments using nationally recognized
pricing services. The Agency and Affiliate’s common stock, Federated Treasury Obligations Fund
and debt service reserve fund are classified as Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

The following table shows, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Agency and Affiliate’s
financial assets that are accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2016.
The financial assets are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The Agency and Affiliate’s assessment of the significance
of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the placement
within the fair value hierarchy levels. There have been no changes in the levels from the prior year.

Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant
for Identical ~ Significant Other Unobservable Balance at
Assets Observable Inputs Inputs December 31,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2016
Common stock S 4,996 S- S- S 4,996
2005 A-B Civic Facility Revenue Bonds:
Federal Treasury Obligations Fund 125,746 - - 125,746
2006 A-B Civic Facility Revenue Bonds:
Federal Treasury Obligations Fund 69,320 - - 69,320
2012 AA-AF Local Development Corp. Revenue
Bond 3,046,269 - - 3,046,269
2012 BA-BE County Economic Development Corp.
Revenue Bond 517,397 - - 517,397
Facilities Development Corporation (“FDC”)
mortgages payable - debt service reserve fund 1,030,204 - - 1,030,204
2004 A-C Civic Facility Revenue Bonds:
Federal Treasury Obligations Fund 821 - - 821
$4,794,753 $- $- 54,794,753

5. Contributions and Pledges Receivable, Net

At December 31, 2016, the net present value of contributions and pledges receivable is $253,066.
The net present value of pledges receivable was calculated using a discount rate of 1.78%.

Net present value of pledges receivable at December 31, 2016 is summarized below:

December 31, 2016

Total contributions and pledges receivable $257,351
Discount (4,285)
Net present value of contributions receivable $253,066
Amount due in:
One year $170,113
Two to five years 87,238
$257,351
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6. Fixed Assets, Net

Fixed assets, net, including equipment under capital leases, consists of the following:

December 31, 2016

Land $ 5,950,101
Buildings and building improvements 43,429,755
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 6,808,402
Vehicles under capital lease obligations 5,431,857
Machinery and equipment 183,194
IT equipment 1,139,262
Leasehold improvements 1,997,651
64,940,222
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (37,764,141)
Construction-in-progress 369,770
$27,545,851

The estimated cost to complete the construction-in-progress is approximately $997,175.

7. Pension Plans
(a) 403(b) Tax Deferred Annuity Plan

The Agency is the sponsor of a 403(b) tax deferred annuity plan that covers all Agency and Affiliate
employees meeting eligibility requirements. Employee contributions are immediately vested. The
Agency also makes a discretionary contribution based upon a percentage of an employee’s salary,
which will become 100% vested after three or five years depending on date of hire. Accrued pension
payable for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $1,411,759. In 2016, employer contributions of
$816,930 were made.

(b) Frozen Plan

The Agency and Affiliate had a defined contribution 401(a) pension plan for all salaried employees
who completed one year of service. Contributions were based on a percentage of employees’
salaries and vesting occurred after five years. The plan was frozen as of April 6, 2001.

8. Workers’ Compensation Reserve

The Agency was previously a member of the now terminated and insolvent Community Residence
Insurance Saving Plan Self-Insurance Trust for Workers’ Compensation (“CRISP”). Due to financial
deficits, the Workers’ Compensation Board (“WCB”) of New York State assumed the administration
of CRISP. WCB has been charged with facilitating the extinguishment of the liabilities of the trust
and performed a review to reconstruct and allocate the deficit among CRISP’s former members. The
Agency received an assessment based on this review for fiscal years 2006-2011. In 2016, the WCB
and the Agency counsel agreed to a settlement in the amount of $1,569,026. The full liability, net
of a discount based on lump-sum payment, has been recorded in the accompanying combined
financial statements. In March 2017, the Agency paid the discounted lump-sum amount of
$1,490,575 and the WCB has issued the Agency a full release of liability related to the CRISP Trust.
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9. Due to Governmental Agencies

Due to governmental agencies consists of the following:

December 31, 2016

Advances by funding sources to be recouped in future years $3,944,977

10. Capital Lease Obligations

Capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

December 31, 2016

The Agency financed the cost of vehicles with notes payable in various monthly
installments through 2020. The interest rates on these leases range from

5.25% to 7.27%. $1,512,447
Less: Current maturities (639,826)
S 872,621

Future minimum principal payments and the present value of net minimum principal payments are
as follows:

December 31,

2017 S 709,252
2018 552,990
2019 259,689
2020 112,860
Total minimum lease payments 1,634,791
Less: Interest (122,344)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $1,512,447

11. Line of Credit

The Agency has a revolving line of credit with a bank of up to $9,000,000 and expires on August 31,
2017. Interest is charged at 3.75% per annum. There were no amounts outstanding at December 31,
2016. The line of credit is secured by outstanding accounts receivable excluding any receivables,
subject to subordination agreements.
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12. Mortgages and Loans Payable

Mortgages and loans payable consist of the following:

December 31, 2016

Mortgage payable to Facilities Development Corporation (“FDC”), due August

2017, payable in semi-annual debt service payments ranging from $24,430 to

$24,837, including interest at 7.95% per annum; secured by real estate

located in Plainview, New York. S 24,527
Mortgage payable to FDC, due August 2018, payable in semi-annual debt

service payments ranging from $22,544 to $22,880, including interest at 6.76%

per annum; secured by real estate located in Greenlawn, New York. 636
Mortgage payable to FDC, due February 2021, payable in semi-annual debt

service payments ranging from $8,066 to $11,242, including interest at 5.61%

per annum; secured by real estate located in Mt. Sinai, New York. 63,944
Various loans payable, due from May 2025 to February 2026, payable in current

monthly installments ranging from $3,383 to $7,125, including interest from

3.65% to 5.49%; secured by related vehicles, land and buildings. 2,017,440
2,106,547

Less: Current maturities (203,280)
$1,903,267

Mortgages and loans payable mature as follows:

December 31,

2017 $ 203,280
2018 184,259
2019 193,206
2020 192,499
2021 115,290
Thereafter 1,227,195
2,115,729

Less: Unamortized balance of deferred financing costs (9,182)
$2,106,547

13. Bonds Payable

(a) On December 17, 2004, the Agency obtained financing of $265,000 of Civic Facility Revenue
bonds through the Suffolk County Industrial Development Agency (“SCIDA”) for the renovation and
equipping of a facility located in Medford, NY. The bonds, which require quarterly interest
payments, bear interest at 6%. At December 31, 2016, $40,000 remains outstanding:
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(b) On January 21, 2005 the Agency obtained financing of $163,000 of Civic Facility Revenue
bonds through the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (“NCIDA”) for the renovation and
equipping of a facility located in Bellmore, NY. The bonds, which require quarterly interest
payments, bear interest at 6%. At December 31, 2016, $40,000 remains outstanding.

(c)  On October 13, 2005, the Agency obtained financing of $1,091,000 of Civic Facility Revenue
Bonds through SCIDA for the renovation and equipping of a facility located in East Patchogue, NY.
The bonds, which require quarterly interest payments, bear interest at 6%. At December 31, 2016,
$375,000 remains outstanding.

(d) On September 27, 2006, the Agency obtained financing of $3,857,000 of Civic Facility Revenue
Bonds through SCIDA to renovate properties located in Nesconset, NY, Commack, NY, Babylon, NY,
Smithtown, NY and Bohemia, NY, and for acquisitions and renovations of properties located in Ridge,
NY and Yaphank, NY. The bonds, which require quarterly interest payments, bear interest at 5.95%.
At December 31, 2016, $1,470,000 remains outstanding.

(e) On August 29, 2012, the Agency obtained financing of $20,016,071 through the Town of
Huntington Local Development Corporation to renovate properties in Smithtown and Huntington, NY
and to refinance outstanding amounts associated with financing obtained in 1993 and 1998 through
SCIDA. The bond, which requires monthly interest payments, bears interest ranging from 2.5% to
3.8%. At December 31, 2016, $15,434,476 remains outstanding.

On August 29, 2012, the Agency obtained financing of $5,880,138 through the Suffolk County
Economic Development Corporation to renovate properties in Hauppauge, NY and to refinance
outstanding amounts associated with financing obtained in 1993, 1998 and 1999. The bond, which
requires monthly interest payments, bears interest ranging from 2.5% to 4.4%. At December 31,
2016, $3,952,482 remains outstanding.

(f)  On October 5, 2016, the Agency obtained financing of $2,355,000 through the Dormitory
Authority of New York State for properties in Deer Park, NY and Centereach, NY and to renovate
properties in Smithtown, NY. The bond, which requires monthly interest payments, bears interest
ranging from 1.5% to 4%. At December 31, 2016, $2,355,000 remains outstanding.

The aggregate principal maturities for the years ending December 31 are as follows:

December 31,

2017 $ 1,868,232
2018 2,080,000
2019 2,130,000
2020 2,205,000
2021 2,205,000
Thereafter 13,061,958
23,550,190

Less: Unamortized balance of deferred financing costs (694,110)
$22,856,080

All bonds are secured by the related properties.

Interest expense related to the bonds for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $857,571.
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14. Operating Leases

Pursuant to several lease agreements, the Agency and Affiliate are obligated for minimum annual
rentals payable to nonrelated entities, as indicated below. The Agency is obligated for certain
operating costs at these sites. The future minimum commitments to all nonrelated parties are as
follows:

December 31,

2017 $1,426,318
2018 1,028,622
2019 524,260
2020 422,251
2021 434,856
Thereafter 853,937

Total minimum lease payments $4,690,244

Total rental expense under noncancellable operating leases amounted to $1,420,709 for the year
ended December 31, 2016.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

(a) In conjunction with the operation of its Diagnostic and Treatment Centers, the Agency
maintains occurrence-basis malpractice insurance policies for certain qualified providers.
Non-qualified providers are required to maintain their own malpractice coverage. Management is
not aware of any outstanding individual or aggregate malpractice claims that could potentially
exceed the existing coverage limitations.

(b) For the year ended December 31, 2016, revenues from Medicare and Medicaid programs
accounted for a significant portion of the Agency’s revenues. Laws and regulations governing
Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. The Agency believes
that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or
threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such regulatory
inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future
government review and interpretation. In the event noncompliance is determined, the Agency would
be subject to regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and
Medicaid programs.

(c) Additionally, the Agency is involved in certain disputes arising from the normal course of its
businesses. In the opinion of management and on the advice of legal counsel, the expected outcome
of such disputes, in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the Agency’s financial
position.

(d)  On July 15, 2015, the Agency entered into an irrevocable letter of credit amounting to
$2,816,837 from a bank which matures on August 1, 2017. The letter of credit was issued in
conjunction with the Agency’s workers’ compensation policy. There were no outstanding borrowings
at December 31, 2016.
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Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

16. Net Assets Released From Restrictions

During 2016, temporarily restricted net assets that were released from donor restrictions by
incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpose are as follows:

Program designated S 63,212
Capital Campaign 512,574
$575,786

17. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Donor restricted contributions held for specific purposes are as follows:

December 31, 2016

Program designated S 81,100
Memorial 44,145
Capital campaign 291,813

$417,058

18. Subsequent Events

The Agency and Affiliate’s management has performed subsequent events procedures through
May 19, 2017, which is the date the combined financial statements were available to be issued and
there were no subsequent events requiring adjustment to the combined financial statements or
disclosures as stated herein.
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Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combining Statement of Financial Position
(with comparative totals for 2015)

December 31,

Developmental DDI
Disabilities Foundation, Combined Total
Institute, Inc. Inc. Eliminations 2016 2015
Assets

Current:
Cash and cash equivalents $15,981,145 $455,394 S - $16,436,539 $15,000,115
Assets limited as to use, current portion 2,813,322 140,138 - 2,953,460 3,732,331
Investments, at fair value - 4,996 4,996 4,996
Accounts receivable, net 17,641,986 - 17,641,986 14,160,941
Government and other grants receivable 738,789 - 738,789 831,894
Current portion of contributions and pledges receivable 170,113 170,113 83,529
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,810,639 11,293 2,821,932 1,359,096
Total Current Assets 39,985,881 781,934 40,767,815 35,172,902
Due From Affiliates 27,863 (27,863) - -
Assets Limited as to Use, Less Current Portion 4,789,757 4,789,757 4,696,140
Contributions and Pledges Receivable, Net, Less Current Portion 82,953 82,953 108,714
Fixed Assets, Net 27,545,851 27,545,851 28,059,733
$72,349,352 $864,887 $(27,863) $73,186,376 $68,037,489
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Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combining Statement of Financial Position
(with comparative totals for 2015)

December 31,

Developmental DDI
Disabilities Foundation, Combined Total
Institute, Inc. Inc. Eliminations 2016 2015
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 3,801,193 S 207 S - $ 3,801,400 $ 3,311,499
Accrued interest payable 135,957 - - 135,957 132,657
Accrued payroll and related benefits 7,553,789 - - 7,553,789 6,010,195
Accrued pension payable 1,411,759 - - 1,411,759 816,729
Due to affiliates - 27,863 (27,863) - -
Deferred revenue, current portion 3,047,163 - - 3,047,163 2,023,502
Capital lease obligations, current portion 639,826 - 639,826 607,378
Mortgages and loans payable, current portion 203,280 - - 203,280 249,562
Bonds payable, current portion 1,868,232 1,868,232 1,819,239
Due to governmental agencies, current portion 1,619,544 1,619,544 918,521
Total Current Liabilities 20,280,743 28,070 (27,863) 20,280,950 15,889,282
Deferred Revenue, Less Current Portion 2,191,530 2,191,530 1,706,503
Capital Lease Obligations, Less Current Maturities 872,621 872,621 764,417
Mortgages and Loans Payable, Less Current Maturities 1,903,267 1,903,267 2,103,819
Bonds Payable, Less Current Maturities 20,987,848 20,987,848 20,612,905
Due to Governmental Agencies, Less Current Portion 2,325,433 2,325,433 5,519,732
Total Liabilities 48,561,442 28,070 (27,863) 48,561,649 46,596,658
Net Assets:
Unrestricted net assets 23,787,910 419,759 24,207,669 20,704,388
Temporarily restricted net assets - 417,058 417,058 736,443
Total Net Assets 23,787,910 836,817 24,624,727 21,440,831
$72,349,352 $864,887 $(27,863) $73,186,376 $68,037,489
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Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combining Statement of Activities
(with comparative totals for 2015)

Year ended December 31,

Developmental
Disabilities
Institute, Inc.

DDI Foundation, Inc.

Combined Total

Temporarily
Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted Total 2016 2015
Program Revenues:
Fees for services $93,667,038 S S S $93,667,038 $90,897,280
Government and other grants 1,643,595 1,643,595 1,322,400
Net patient service revenues 2,802,955 2,802,955 4,880,236
Other program revenues 1,698,056 - - 1,698,056 1,748,095
Net assets released from restrictions - 63,212 (63,212) - -
Total Program Revenues 99,811,644 63,212 (63,212) 99,811,644 98,848,011
Expenses:
Program services:
Education services 32,321,183 32,321,183 32,167,330
Clinic services 3,702,449 3,702,449 5,413,192
Adult day services 17,327,926 17,327,926 16,389,994
Children’s residential services 10,885,451 10,885,451 10,550,947
Adult residential services 27,669,160 27,669,160 27,366,414
Other programs 713,808 713,808 64,642
Total Program Services 92,619,977 92,619,977 91,952,519
Supporting services:
Management and general 6,144,108 - - 6,144,108 5,879,833
Fundraising - 355,464 355,464 55,464 184,604
Total Supporting Services 6,144,108 355,464 355,464 6,499,572 6,064,437
Total Expenses 98,764,085 355,464 355,464 99,119,549 98,016,956
Change in Net Assets Before Nonoperating Revenues
and Expenses 1,047,559 (292,252) (63,212) (355,464) 692,095 831,055
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses:
Capital campaign income 222,392 222,392 222,392 100,532
Capital campaign expenses (512,574) (512,574) (512,574) (317,288)
Net Expenses From Capital Campaign (290,182) (290,182) (290,182) (216,756)
Special events revenues 389,091 389,091 389,091 394,326
Direct cost to donors (111,029) (111,029) (111,029) (113,751)
Net Revenues From Special Events 278,062 278,062 278,062 280,575
Contributions 10,000 18,238 34,009 52,247 62,247 107,101
Gain on sale of fixed assets 29,926 - - 29,926 78,054
Interest income 41,512 82 82 41,594 42,827
Other income 76,400 - 76,400 97,226
Prior period income 2,291,603 2,151 2,151 2,293,754 1,074,335
Total Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 2,449,441 298,533 (256,173) 42,360 2,491,801 1,463,362
Change in Net Assets 3,497,000 6,281 (319,385) (313,104) 3,183,896 2,294,417
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 20,290,910 413,478 736,443 1,149,921 21,440,831 19,146,414
Net Assets, End of Year $23,787,910 $ 419,759 $ 417,058 $ 836,817 $24,624,727 $21,440,831

24



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



Developmental Disabilities Institute,
Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Financial Statements and

Supplementary Information
Year Ended December 31, 2015

The report accompanying these financial statements was issued by
BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member of
BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Financial Statements and Supplementary Information
Year Ended December 31, 2015



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Contents
Independent Auditor’s Report 3-4
Combined Financial Statements:
Statement of Financial Position as of December 31, 2015 5
Statement of Activities for the Year Ended December 31, 2015 6
Statement of Functional Expenses for the Year Ended December 31, 2015 7
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31, 2015 8
Notes to Combined Financial Statements 9-20
Independent Auditor’s Report on Supplementary Information 21
Supplementary Information:
Combining Statement of Financial Position as of December 31, 2015 22-23
Combining Statement of Activities for the Year Ended December 31, 2015 24



Tel: +212 885-8000 100 Park Avenue
Fax: +212 697-1299 New York, NY 10017
. www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors

Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc.
and Affiliate

Smithtown, New York

Report on the Combined Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Developmental Disabilities
Institute, Inc. and Affiliate (collectively, the “Institute and Affiliate”), which comprise the
combined statement of financial position as of December 31, 2015, and the related combined
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the combined financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Combined Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of combined financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the combined financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the combined financial statements.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and
Affiliate as of December 31, 2015, and the results of changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have audited the Institute and Affiliate’s 2014 combined financial statements and our
report, dated May 28, 2015, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited combined
financial statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein

as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014 is consistent, in all material respects, with the
audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

oo Uy L

May 20, 2016



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Statement of Financial Position
(with comparative totals for 2014)

December 31, 2015 2014
Assets
Current:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $15,000,115 $10,402,612
Assets limited as to use, current portion (Note 3) 3,732,331 3,752,520
Investments, at fair value (Notes 3 and 4) 4,996 4,996
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$441,134 and $375,045 for 2015 and 2014, respectively
(Note 3) 14,160,941 16,131,405
Government and other grants receivable (Note 3) 831,894 934,962
Current portion of contributions and pledges receivable, net (Notes 3
and 5) 83,529 139,908
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,359,096 1,258,735
Total Current Assets 35,172,902 32,625,138
Deferred Costs, Net (Note 3) 794,652 873,672
Assets Limited as to Use, Less Current Portion (Note 4) 4,696,140 4,640,093
Contributions and Pledges Receivable, Net, Less Current Portion
(Notes 3 and 5) 108,714 71,141
Fixed Assets, Net (Notes 3, 6, 12 and 13) 28,059,733 27,477,574
$68,832,141 $65,687,618
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 3,311,499 $ 2,310,086
Accrued interest payable (Note 13) 132,657 129,677
Accrued payroll and related benefits 6,010,195 5,879,122
Accrued pension payable (Note 7) 816,729 897,777
Deferred revenue, current portion (Note 3) 2,023,502 1,804,318
Capital lease obligations, current portion (Note 10) 607,378 500,002
Mortgages and loans payable, current portion (Note 12) 257,668 244,387
Bonds payable, current portion (Note 13) 1,890,000 1,785,000
Due to governmental agencies, current portion (Notes 3 and 9) 918,521 1,547,860
Total Current Liabilities 15,968,149 15,098,229
Deferred Revenue, Less Current Portion (Note 3) 1,706,503 1,548,538
Capital Lease Obligations, Less Current Maturities (Note 10) 764,417 826,996
Mortgages and Loans Payable, Less Current Maturities (Note 12) 2,120,551 2,376,405
Bonds Payable, Less Current Maturities (Note 13) 21,311,958 23,201,958
Due to Governmental Agencies, Less Current Portion
(Notes 3 and 9) 5,519,732 3,489,078
Total Liabilities 47,391,310 46,541,204
Commitments and Contingencies
(Notes 3, 6, 8,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 and 15)
Net Assets:
Unrestricted net assets (Note 3) 20,704,388 18,218,769
Temporarily restricted net assets (Notes 3, 16 and 17) 736,443 927,645
Total Net Assets 21,440,831 19,146,414
$68,832,141 $65,687,618

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.
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Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Statement of Activities
(with comparative totals for 2014)

Year ended December 31,

Temporarily Total
Unrestricted Restricted 2015 2014
Program Revenues:
Fees for services $90,897,280 S - $90,897,280 $85,125,406
Government and other grants 1,322,400 1,322,400 1,442,514
Clinic revenue 4,880,236 4,880,236 4,780,926
Other program revenues 1,748,095 - 1,748,095 1,515,040
Net assets released from restrictions (Note 16) 25,660 (25,660) - -
Total Program Revenues 98,873,671 (25,660) 98,848,011 92,863,886
Expenses:
Program services:
Education services 32,167,330 32,167,330 29,682,713
Clinic services 5,413,192 5,413,192 5,192,637
Adult day services 16,389,994 16,389,994 15,648,495
Children’s residential services 10,550,947 10,550,947 7,934,228
Adult residential services 27,366,414 27,366,414 25,811,303
Other programs 64,642 64,642 5,136
Total Program Services 91,952,519 91,952,519 84,274,512
Supporting services:
Management and general 5,879,833 5,879,833 5,793,961
Fundraising 184,604 184,604 171,150
Total Supporting Services 6,064,437 6,064,437 5,965,111
Total Expenses 98,016,956 98,016,956 90,239,623
Change in Net Assets Before
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 856,715 (25,660) 831,055 2,624,263
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses:
Capital campaign income - 100,532 100,532 67,935
Capital campaign expenses - (317,288) (317,288) (298,489)
Net Expenses From Capital Campaign (216,756) (216,756) (230,554)
Special events revenues 394,326 394,326 398,815
Direct cost to donors (113,751) (113,751) (127,729)
Net Revenues From Special Events 280,575 - 280,575 271,086
Contributions 55,887 51,214 107,101 50,733
Gain on sale of fixed assets 78,054 - 78,054 40,014
Unrealized losses on investments - - (109)
Interest income 42,827 42,827 39,888
Other income 97,226 97,226 106,641
Prior period income (Note 3(l)) 1,074,335 1,074,335 1,728,904
Total Nonoperating Revenues
and Expenses 1,628,904 (165,542) 1,463,362 2,006,603
Change in Net Assets 2,485,619 (191,202) 2,294,417 4,630,866
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 18,218,769 927,645 19,146,414 14,515,548
Net Assets, End of Year $20,704,388 $736,443  $21,440,831 $19,146,414

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Statement of Functional Expenses

(with comparative totals for 2014)

Year ended December 31,

Program Services

Supporting Services

Children’s Adult Total Total
Education Clinic Adult Day Residential Residential Other Program Management Supporting Total
Services Services Services Services Services Programs Services and General Fundraising Services 2015 2014
Salaries and Related Expenses:
Salaries $20,951,171 $3,102,197 $ 9,162,847 $ 5,866,283 $16,459,215 $42,914 $55,584,627 $3,399,889 $ 94,303 $3,494,192 $59,078,819 $55,557,155
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 7,421,271 867,335 3,565,905 2,009,967 5,997,457 15,681 19,877,616 992,746 31,473 1,024,219 20,901,835 17,642,337
Total Salaries and Related Expenses 28,372,442 3,969,532 12,728,752 7,876,250 22,456,672 58,595 75,462,243 4,392,635 125,776 4,518,411 79,980,654 73,199,492
Other Expenses:
Fee-for-services professionals 82,712 252,926 26,982 27,646 123,569 513,835 133,038 133,038 646,873 592,312
Building occupancy 479,576 229,604 831,624 22 11,488 - 1,552,314 19,177 - 19,177 1,571,491 1,567,432
Telephone 169,068 42,333 152,705 46,791 140,828 48 551,773 34,660 1,769 36,429 588,202 530,349
Travel 9,473 1,596 48,244 4,203 29,874 165 93,555 16,096 1,286 17,382 110,937 104,660
Supplies 546,469 126,433 193,740 317,620 595,893 123 1,780,278 17,602 698 18,300 1,798,578 1,867,896
Food 4,543 9 29,655 322,851 780,810 - 1,137,868 558 - 558 1,138,426 1,065,641
Office expense 210,379 102,511 121,756 58,905 84,704 272 578,527 325,882 20,950 346,832 925,359 799,904
Dues and subscriptions 17,436 3,694 3,811 1,968 4,452 999 32,360 40,989 2,412 43,401 75,761 68,961
Postage 11,857 3,059 1,849 1,413 866 - 19,044 52,506 532 53,038 72,082 64,497
Meetings and conferences 21,727 627 19,735 7,693 10,171 506 60,459 16,202 1,989 18,191 78,650 77,865
Employee training and recruitment 157,971 3,869 86,243 51,919 129,593 - 429,595 35,693 40 35,733 465,328 397,049
Legal and accounting 1,869 874 - 48,444 4,650 55,837 238,620 - 238,620 294,457 302,710
Utilities 315,339 64,224 183,099 116,006 322,005 - 1,000,673 37,481 509 37,990 1,038,663 1,181,204
Repairs and maintenance 459,031 91,653 290,646 181,006 302,967 1,171 1,326,474 29,571 9,789 39,360 1,365,834 1,032,661
Equipment and furniture 264,890 7,727 29,786 31,193 28,182 2,611 364,389 24,331 11,401 35,732 400,121 319,580
Interest 225,707 136,848 166,163 217,054 357,010 - 1,102,782 45,003 56 45,059 1,147,841 990,757
Insurance 298,327 77,098 367,453 133,818 412,101 152 1,288,949 47,544 366 47,910 1,336,859 1,319,734
Medicaid assessment taxes - - - 624,670 200,813 - 825,483 - - - 825,483 693,279
Amortization of debt issuance costs 16,176 12,140 10,408 8,587 23,278 70,589 - - 70,589 189,836
Debt-related expenses - - - - - - 13,807 - 13,807 13,807 13,831
Vehicle expense 48,519 1,827 521,593 40,828 286,776 899,543 5,769 63 5,832 905,375 1,213,204
Bad debt expense - 121,741 - - - 121,741 - 6,559 6,559 128,300 21,404
Total Expenses Before Depreciation and
Amortization 31,713,511 5,250,325 15,814,244 10,118,887 26,306,702 64,642 89,268,311 5,527,164 184,195 5,711,359 94,979,670 87,614,258
Depreciation and Amortization 453,819 162,867 575,750 432,060 1,059,712 2,684,208 352,669 409 353,078 3,037,286 2,625,365
Total Expenses $32,167,330 $5,413,192  $16,389,994  $10,550,947  $27,366,414 $64,642  $91,952,519 $5,879,833 $184,604 $6,064,437 $98,016,956 $90,239,623

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combined Statement of Cash Flows
(with comparative totals for 2014)

Year ended December 31, 2015 2014
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $ 2,294,417 S 4,630,866
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,037,286 2,625,365
Amortization of debt issuance costs 70,589 189,836
Gain on sale of fixed assets (78,054) (40,014)
Provision for bad debt 128,300 21,404
Discount on pledges receivables 3,989 2,623
Unrealized loss (gain) on investments - 109
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable 1,842,164 (3,434,496)
Government and other grants receivable 103,068 79,406
Contributions and pledges receivable 14,817 12,878
Prepaid expenses and other assets (100,361) (128,417)
Debt issuance costs 8,431 73,804
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,001,413 (99,688)
Accrued interest payable 2,980 931
Accrued payroll and related benefits 131,073 (110,878)
Accrued pension payable (81,048) (17,318)
Deferred revenue 377,149 299,126
Due to governmental agencies 1,401,315 (49,142)
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 10,157,528 4,056,395
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of fixed assets (2,915,888) (5,087,501)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 129,165 53,789
Cash - restricted 20,189 575,305
Assets limited to use (56,047) 4,220,927
Proceeds from sale of investments - 22,913
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (2,822,581) (214,567)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Payments on line of credit - (384,000)
Repayments on capital lease obligations (709,871) (619,705)
Proceeds from mortgages and loans payable - 1,150,000
Principal payments on mortgages and loans payable (242,573) (229,734)
Principal payments on bonds payable (1,785,000) (1,788,000)
Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (2,737,444) (1,871,439)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,597,503 1,970,389
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 10,402,612 8,432,223
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $15,000,115 $10,402,612
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest $ 1,147,841 S 990,756
Noncash transaction related to capital leases 754,668 735,501

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

1. Principles of Combination

The accompanying combined financial statements include the accounts of Developmental
Disabilities Institute, Inc. (the ”Institute”) and DDI Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”)
(collectively, the “Institute and Affiliate”), which are related by certain common members of the
Board of Directors and identical management.

All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in combination.

2. Nature of the Organizations

(a) The Institute is a New York State not-for-profit corporation which operates health,
education and residential facilities for the therapeutic education, guidance and training of
developmentally disabled children, adults and their families. The Institute also operates
Diagnostic and Treatment Centers, which are licensed by the New York State Department of
Health under Article 28 of the Public Health Law to provide rehabilitative, therapeutic, medical
and dental services primarily for developmentally disabled children and adults. The Institute is
exempt from Federal, state and local income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (the “Code”), and therefore has made no provision for income taxes in the
accompanying combined financial statements. In addition, the Institute has been determined by
the Internal Revenue Service not to be a “private foundation” within the meaning of Section
509(a) of the Code. There was no unrelated business income for the year ended December 31,
2015.

(b) The Foundation is a New York State not-for-profit corporation that was established May 31,
1988 and began operations October 1, 1990. The Foundation is organized and operated exclusively
for charitable, scientific and educational purposes. Consistent with the foregoing, its specific
purpose is to promote and support the activities of the Institute. The Foundation maintains certain
common board members with the Institute. The Foundation is exempt from Federal, state and
local income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and, therefore has made no provision for
income taxes in the accompanying combined financial statements. In addition, the Foundation has
been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a “private foundation” within the
meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. There was no unrelated business income for the year
ended December 31, 2015.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

The combined financial statements of the Institute and Affiliate have been prepared on the
accrual basis. In the combined statement of financial position, assets and liabilities are presented
in order of liquidity or conversion to cash and their maturity resulting in the use of cash,
respectively.

(b) Financial Statement Presentation

The classification of the Institute’s net assets and its support, revenue and expenses is based on
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. It requires that the amounts for each of
three classes of net assets, permanently restricted, temporarily restricted, and unrestricted, be
displayed in a statement of financial position and that the amounts of change in each of those
classes of net assets be displayed in a statement of activities.



Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

These classes are defined as follows:

(i)  Permanently Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the Institute is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by
passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Institute.

(ii)) Temporarily Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the Institute is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by
passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the Institute pursuant to those
stipulations. When such stipulations end or are fulfilled, such temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the combined statement of
activities.

(iii) Unrestricted - The part of net assets that is neither permanently nor temporarily restricted
by donor-imposed stipulations.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Institute and Affiliate consider all highly liquid instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

(d) Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use consists of cash held in banks for future contributions to the pension plan
and future workers compensation claims.

(e) Provision for Doubtful Accounts

The Institute and Affiliate provide an allowance for doubtful accounts for accounts receivable
which are specifically identified by management as to their uncertainty in regards to
collectability. As of December 31, 2015, the total allowance for doubtful accounts is $441,134.

(f) Investments at Fair Value

Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820, “Fair Value Measurement”, defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands the disclosures about fair value
measurements. ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in a principal or most advantageous market. Fair value is a market-based
measurement that is determined based on inputs, which refer broadly to assumptions that market
participants use in pricing assets or liabilities. These inputs can be readily observable, market
corroborated, or unobservable. ASC 820 established a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value in three broad levels. The standard
requires that assets and liabilities be classified in their entirety based on the level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input may
require judgment considering factors specific to the asset or liability, and may affect the
valuation of the asset or liability and their placement within the fair value hierarchy. The Institute
and Affiliate classify fair value balances based on the fair value hierarchy defined by ASC 820 as
follows:

Level 1 - Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. An active market for the asset or liability is a market in which transactions for the asset
or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis. Valuation adjustments and block discounts are not applied to Level 1 instruments.

Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all
significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.
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Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement.

Investment income is recognized when earned and consists of interest and dividends. Dividends
are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Purchases and sales are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(g) Income Taxes

The Institute and Affiliate were incorporated in the State of New York and is exempt from Federal
and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and, therefore, have made no
provision for income taxes in the accompanying combined financial statements. In addition, the
Institute and Affiliate have been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be “private
foundations” within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. There was no
unrelated business income for the year ended December 31, 2015. Management believes that the
Institute and Affiliate are no longer subject to income tax examinations for years prior to 2012.

Under ASC 740, an organization must recognize the tax benefit associated with tax positions taken
for tax return purposes when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained. The
Institute and Affiliate do not believe there are any material uncertain tax positions and,
accordingly, they will not recognize any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The Institute and
Affiliate have filed for and received income tax exemptions in the jurisdictions where they are
required to do so. Additionally, the Institute and Affiliate have filed Internal Revenue Service
Form 990 tax returns, as required, and all other applicable returns in jurisdictions when it is
required. For the year ended December 31, 2015, there was no interest or penalties recorded or
included in the combined statement of activities.

(h) Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements and equipment under capital leases
are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the related
assets.

Years
Buildings 18-40
Building improvements 5-40
Furniture and fixtures 4-20
Equipment and vehicles 3-15

(i) Impairment of Fixed Assets

The Institute and Affiliate review fixed assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully
recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the future cash flows from the use of
the asset are less than the carrying amount of that asset. As of December 31, 2015, there have
been no such losses.
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(j) Contributions and Pledges Receivable

Contributions and pledges receivable, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as
revenues in the appropriate category of net assets in the period received. Promises to give are
recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows, based on an appropriate discount
rate at the time of the gift. Amortization of the discount in subsequent years is included in
contribution revenue. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair
value at the date of the gift. Contributions for capital projects are reported as nonoperating
revenues. Conditional contributions, including conditional promises to give, are not recognized
until the conditions are substantially met.

Unconditional promises to give are recorded in the combined financial statements at present value
using a discount rate which represents risk-free interest rates applicable to the years in which
promises are received. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Institute and Affiliate used a
discount rate of 3%.

Contributions receivable consist of $172,306 for the capital campaign and $19,937 for pledges
receivable at December 31, 2015.

The capital campaign represents funds donated to the Institute and Affiliate for the purpose of
renovations of the Little Plains School located in Huntington, New York and expenses related to
the capital campaign.

(k) Deferred Costs

Deferred costs consist of debt issuance costs and deferred start-up costs. Debt issuance costs are
deferred and amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the related debt.
Deferred start-up costs are amortized using the straight-line method over a five-year term in
accordance with the reimbursement period of the costs to acquire those assets. As of
December 31, 2015, the total accumulated amortization for debt issuance costs and deferred costs
is $1,550,878.

(I)  Third-party Reimbursements and Revenue Recognition

The Institute receives substantially all of its revenue for services provided to approved clients
from third-party reimbursement agencies; primarily the Office for People With Developmental
Disabilities (“OPWDD”), Department of Health and the State Education Department of New York.
These revenues are based on predetermined rates based on cost reimbursement principles and are
subject to audit and retroactive adjustment by the respective third-party fiscal intermediary. The
financial statement impact of such adjustments is recognized in the period in which the
retroactive adjustment occurred.

Revenue is recognized as earned from third parties and when received or pledged for
contributions, special events and fundraising activities.

(m) Allocation Methodology

Common costs incurred for the administration of the various programs are allocated directly to
respective programs as incurred and/or utilizing predetermined allocation rates established by
management.

(n) Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Institute and Affiliate to concentration of
credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents. At various times, the Institute and
Affiliate have cash deposits at financial institutions, which exceed the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation insurance limits.
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(o) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the combined financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(p) Comparative Financial Information

The combined financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information. With respect to the combined statement of activities, the prior year information is
presented in total, not by net asset class. With respect to the combined statement of functional
expenses, the prior year expenses are presented by expense classification in total rather than
functional category. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the Institute and Affiliate’s combined financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, from which the summarized information was
derived in total but not by net asset class.

(q) Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards
Update (“ASU”) 2016-02, “Accounting for Leases”, which applies a right-of-use (“ROU”) model
that requires a lessee to record, for all leases with a lease term of more than 12 months, an asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a liability to make lease payments. For
leases with a term of 12 months or less, a practical expedient is available whereby a lessee may
elect, by class of underlying asset, not to recognize an ROU asset or lease liability. At inception,
lessees must classify all leases as either finance or operating based on five criteria. Balance sheet
recognition of finance and operating leases is similar, but the pattern of expense recognition in
the income statement, as well as the effect on the statement of cash flows, differs depending on
the lease classification. In addition, lessees and lessors are required to provide certain qualitative
and quantitative disclosures to enable users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing,
and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The amendments are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the pending
adoption of ASU 2016-02.

(r) Reclassifications

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to be consistent with the current year financial
statement presentation.

4. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

The cost and respective fair values of investments at December 31, 2015 are as follows:

December 31, 2015

Cost Fair Value

Institute and Affiliate:
Common stock S 4,996 S 4,996
Federated Treasury Obligations Fund 3,743,755 3,743,755
Debt service reserve fund - money market fund 952,385 952,385
Total $4,701,136 $4,701,136
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The Institute and Affiliate’s assets recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon a fair
value hierarchy in accordance with ASC 820. See Note 2 for a discussion of the Institute and
Affiliate’s policies regarding this hierarchy. A description of the valuation techniques applied to
the Institute and Affiliate’s major categories of assets measured at fair value is below.

The Institute and Affiliate have investments in common stock, treasury obligation and money
market funds. The Institute and Affiliate’s custodian prices these investments using nationally
recognized pricing services. The Institute and Affiliate’s common stock, Federated Treasury
Obligations Fund and debt service reserve fund are classified as Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy.

The following table shows, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Institute and Affiliate’s
financial assets that are accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2015.
The financial assets are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The Institute and Affiliate’s assessment of the
significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect
the placement within the fair value hierarchy levels. There have been no changes in the levels
from the prior year.

Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable  Unobservable Balance at
Assets Inputs Inputs December 31,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2015
Common stock S 4,996 S- S- S 4,996
2005 A-B Civic Facility Revenue Bonds:
Federal Treasury Obligations Fund 126,939 - - 126,939
2006 A-B Civic Facility Revenue Bonds:
Federal Treasury Obligations Fund 72,881 - - 72,881
2012 AA-AF Local Development Corp.
Revenue Bond 3,106,601 - - 3,106,601
2012 BA-BE County Economic
Development Corp. Revenue Bond 437,034 - - 437,034
Facilities Development Corporation
(“FDC”) mortgages payable - debt
service reserve fund 952,385 - - 952,385
2004 A-C Civic Facility Revenue Bonds:
Federal Treasury Obligations Fund 300 - - 300
$4,701,136 $- $- $4,701,136
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5. Contributions and Pledges Receivable, Net

At December 31, 2015, the net present value of contributions and pledges receivable is $192,243.
The net present value of pledges receivable was calculated using a discount rate of 3%.

Net present value of pledges receivable at December 31, 2015 is summarized below:

December 31, 2015

Total contributions and pledges receivable $196,232
Discount (3,989)
Net present value of contributions receivable $192,243

Amount due in:
One year S 83,529
Two to five years 112,703
$196,232

6. Fixed Assets, Net

Fixed assets, net, including equipment under capital leases, consists of the following:

December 31, 2015

Land S 5,823,644
Buildings and building improvements 41,253,949
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 8,618,856
Vehicles under capital lease obligations 4,822,961
Machinery and equipment 215,929
IT equipment 945,533
Leasehold improvements 1,997,651
63,678,523
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (36,935,264)
Construction-in-progress 1,316,474
$ 28,059,733

The estimated cost to complete the construction-in-progress is approximately $756,000.

7. Pension Plans
(a) 403(b) Tax Deferred Annuity Plan

The Institute is the sponsor of a 403(b) tax deferred annuity plan that covers all Institute and
Affiliate employees meeting eligibility requirements. Employee contributions are immediately
vested. The Institute also makes a discretionary contribution based upon a percentage of an
employee’s salary, which will become 100% vested after three or five years depending on date of
hire. Accrued pension payable for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $816,729. In 2015,
employer contributions of $897,777 were made.
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(b) Frozen Plan

The Institute and Affiliate had a defined contribution 401(a) pension plan for all salaried
employees who completed one year of service. Contributions were based on a percentage of
employees’ salaries and vesting occurred after five years. The plan was frozen as of April 6, 2001.

8. Workers’ Compensation Reserve

DDI was previously a member of the now terminated and insolvent Community Residence
Insurance Saving Plan Self-Insurance Trust for Workers’ Compensation (“CRISP”). Due to financial
deficits, the Workers’ Compensation Board (“WCB”) of New York State assumed the administration
of CRISP. WCB has been charged with facilitating the extinguishment of the liabilities of the trust
and performed a review to reconstruct and allocate the deficit among CRISP’s former members.
DDI received an assessment based on this review for fiscal years 2006-2011. Former CRISP
members retained counsel and negotiated an MOU with the WCB. The terms of the MOU called for
DDI to pay a monthly amount of $28,102. On the advice of counsel, DDI, and other former CRISP
members involved with the MOU, stopped making these monthly payments. The WCB has offered a
settlement agreement which is currently being negotiated upon by counsel. DDI’s exact liability
cannot be determined at this time. As such, provision for the amount of the full liability has not
been recorded in the accompanying combined financial statements.

9. Due to Governmental Agencies

Due to governmental agencies consists of the following:

December 31, 2015

Advances by funding sources to be recouped in future years $6,438,253

10. Capital Lease Obligations

Capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

December 31, 2015

The Institute financed the cost of vehicles with notes payable in various
monthly installments through 2019. The interest rates on these leases range

from 5.25% to 7.27%. $1,371,795
Less: Current maturities (607,378)
S 764,417
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Future minimum principal payments and the present value of net minimum principal payments are
as follows:

December 31,

2016 S 669,291
2017 478,048
2018 312,531
2019 15,632
Total minimum lease payments 1,475,502
Less: Interest (103,707)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $1,371,795

11. Line of Credit

The Institute has a revolving line of credit with a bank of up to $9,000,000 and expires on
August 31, 2016. Interest is charged at 3.75% per annum. There were no amounts outstanding at
December 31, 2015. The line of credit is secured by outstanding accounts receivable excluding any
receivables, subject to subordination agreements.

12. Mortgages and Loans Payable

Mortgages and loans payable consist of the following:

December 31, 2015

Mortgage payable to Facilities Development Corporation (“FDC”), due August

2017, payable in semi-annual debt service payments ranging from $24,430 to

$24,837, including interest at 7.95% per annum; secured by real estate

located in Plainview, New York. S 74,450
Mortgage payable to FDC, due August 2018, payable in semi-annual debt

service payments ranging from $22,544 to $22,880, including interest at 6.76%

per annum; secured by real estate located in Greenlawn, New York. 48,575
Mortgage payable to FDC, due February 2021, payable in semi-annual debt

service payments ranging from $8,066 to $11,242, including interest at 5.61%

per annum; secured by real estate located in Mt. Sinai, New York. 88,864
Various loans payable, due from May 2025 to February 2026, payable in current

monthly installments ranging from $3,383 to $7,125, including interest from

3.65% to 5.49%; secured by related vehicles, land and buildings. 2,166,330
2,378,219

Less: Current maturities (257,668)
$2,120,551
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Mortgages and loans payable mature as follows:

December 31,

2016 S 257,668
2017 213,125
2018 186,670
2019 195,742
2020 193,644
Thereafter 1,331,370

$2,378,219

13. Bonds Payable

(a) On December 1, 2004, the Institute obtained financing of $265,000 of Civic Facility Revenue
bonds through the Suffolk County Industrial Development Agency (“SCIDA”) for the renovation and
equipping of a facility located in Medford, NY. The bonds, which require quarterly interest
payments, bear interest at 6%. At December 31, 2015, $60,000 remains outstanding:

(b) On January 21, 2005 the Institute obtained financing of $163,000 of Civic Facility Revenue
bonds through the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (“NCIDA”) for the renovation and
equipping of a facility located in Bellmore, NY. The bonds, which require quarterly interest
payments, bear interest at 6%. At December 31, 2015, $55,000 remains outstanding.

(c)  On October 1, 2005, the Institute obtained financing of $1,091,000 of Civic Facility Revenue
Bonds through SCIDA for the renovation and equipping of a facility located in East Patchogue, NY.
The bonds, which require quarterly interest payments, bear interest at 6%. At December 31, 2015,
$455,000 remains outstanding.

(d) On September 26, 2006, the Institute obtained financing of $3,857,000 of Civic Facility
Revenue Bonds through SCIDA to renovate properties located in Nesconset, NY, Commack, NY,
Babylon, NY, Smithtown, NY and Bohemia, NY, and for acquisitions and renovations of properties
located in Ridge, NY and Yaphank, NY. The bonds, which require quarterly interest payments,
bear interest at 5.95%. At December 31, 2015, $1,715,000 remains outstanding.

(e) On August 29, 2012, the Institute obtained financing of $20,016,071 through the Town of
Huntington Local Development Corporation to renovate properties in Smithtown and Huntington,
NY and to refinance outstanding amounts associated with financing obtained in 1993 and 1998
through SCIDA. The bond, which requires monthly interest payments, bears interest ranging from
2.5% to 3.8%. At December 31, 2015, $16,524,476 remains outstanding.

On August 29, 2012, the Institute obtained financing of $5,880,138 through the Suffolk County
Economic Development Corporation to renovate properties in Hauppauge, NY and to refinance
outstanding amounts associated with financing obtained in 1993, 1998 and 1999. The bond, which
requires monthly interest payments, bears interest ranging from 2.5% to 4.4%. At December 31,
2015, $4,392,482 remains outstanding.
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The aggregate principal maturities for the years ending December 31 are as follows:

December 31,

2016 $1,890,000
2017 1,940,000
2018 2,010,000
2019 2,060,000
2020 2,135,000
Thereafter 13,166,958

$23,201,958

All bonds are secured by the related properties.

Interest expense related to the bonds for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $930,150.

14. Operating Leases

Pursuant to several lease agreements, the Institute and Affiliate are obligated for minimum annual
rentals payable to nonrelated entities, as indicated below. The Institute is obligated for certain
operating costs at these sites. The future minimum commitments to all nonrelated parties are as
follows:

December 31,

2016 $1,379,576
2017 1,303,605
2018 936,195
2019 452,602
2020 345,322
Thereafter 731,195

Total minimum lease payments $5,148,495

Total rental expense under noncancellable operating leases amounted to $1,403,292 for the year
ended December 31, 2015.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

(a) In conjunction with the operation of its Diagnostic and Treatment Centers, the Institute
maintains occurrence-basis malpractice insurance policies for certain qualified providers.
Non-qualified providers are required to maintain their own malpractice coverage. Management is
not aware of any outstanding individual or aggregate malpractice claims that could potentially
exceed the existing coverage limitations.

(b) For the year ended December 31, 2015, revenues from Medicare and Medicaid programs
accounted for a significant portion of the Institute’s revenues. Laws and regulations governing
Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. The Institute believes
that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or
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threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such regulatory
inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future
government review and interpretation. In the event noncompliance is determined, the Institute
would be subject to regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare
and Medicaid programs.

(c) Additionally, the Institute is involved in certain disputes arising from the normal course of
its businesses. In the opinion of management and on the advice of legal counsel, the expected
outcome of such disputes, in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the
Institute’s financial position.

(d) On July 15, 2015, the Institute entered into an irrevocable letter of credit amounting to
$2,816,837 from a bank which matures on August 1, 2016. The letter of credit was issued in
conjunction with the Institute’s workers’ compensation policy. There were no outstanding
borrowings at December 31, 2015.

16. Net Assets Released From Restrictions

During 2015, temporarily restricted net assets that were released from donor restrictions by
incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpose are as follows:

Program designated S 25,660
Capital Campaign 317,288
$342,948

17. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Donor restricted contributions held for specific purposes are as follows:

December 31, 2015

Program designated $103,970
Memorial 44,220
Capital campaign 588,253

$736,443

18. Subsequent Events

It is the intention of the Institute to surrender the license for its Diagnostic and Treatment Center
(“OPTI Healthcare”) during 2016. OPTI Healthcare will be transitioned over to another unrelated
entity which will continue to provide services as a Federally Qualified Healthcare Center. The
Institute will lease space to this entity and have a tenant-landlord relationship.

The Institute and Affiliate’s management has performed subsequent events procedures through
May 20, 2016, which is the date the combined financial statements were available to be issued
and there were no subsequent events, other than those mentioned above, requiring adjustment to
the combined financial statements or disclosures as stated herein.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit of the combined financial statements included in the preceding section of this report
was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on those statements as a whole. The
supplementary information presented in the following section of this report is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the combined financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the combined financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the combined financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the combined financial statements as a whole.

oo U (P
New York, New York

May 20, 2016
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Developmental Disabilities Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Combining Statement of Financial Position

(with comparative totals for 2014)

December 31,

Developmental DDI
Disabilities Foundation, Combined Total
Institute, Inc. Inc. Eliminations 2015 2014
Assets

Current:
Cash and cash equivalents $14,555,228 S 444,887 S - $15,000,115 $10,402,612
Assets limited as to use, current portion 3,213,816 518,515 3,732,331 3,752,520
Investments, at fair value - 4,996 4,996 4,996
Accounts receivable, net 14,160,941 - - 14,160,941 16,131,405
Government and other grants receivable 831,894 - - 831,894 934,962
Current portion of contributions and pledges receivable - 83,529 83,529 139,908
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,353,699 5,397 1,359,096 1,258,735
Total Current Assets 34,115,578 1,057,324 35,172,902 32,625,138
Due From Affiliates 10,517 (10,517) - -
Deferred Costs, Net 794,652 794,652 873,672
Assets Limited as to Use, Less Current Portion 4,696,140 4,696,140 4,640,093
Contributions and Pledges Receivable, Net, Less Current Portion 108,714 108,714 71,141
Fixed Assets, Net 28,059,733 28,059,733 27,477,574
$67,676,620 $1,166,038 $(10,517) $68,832,141 $65,687,618
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December 31,

Developmental DDI
Disabilities Foundation, Combined Total
Institute, Inc. Inc. Eliminations 2015 2014
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses S 3,305,899 S 5,600 S - $ 3,311,499 $ 2,310,086
Accrued interest payable 132,657 - 132,657 129,677
Accrued payroll and related benefits 6,010,195 6,010,195 5,879,122
Accrued pension payable 816,729 - - 816,729 897,777
Due to affiliates - 10,517 (10,517) - -
Deferred revenue, current portion 2,023,502 - - 2,023,502 1,804,318
Capital lease obligations, current portion 607,378 - - 607,378 500,002
Mortgages and loans payable, current portion 257,668 257,668 244,387
Bonds payable, current portion 1,890,000 1,890,000 1,785,000
Due to governmental agencies, current portion 918,521 - - 918,521 1,547,860
Total Current Liabilities 15,962,549 16,117 (10,517) 15,968,149 15,098,229
Deferred Revenue, Less Current Portion 1,706,503 1,706,503 1,548,538
Capital Lease Obligations, Less Current Maturities 764,417 764,417 826,996
Mortgages and Loans Payable, Less Current Maturities 2,120,551 2,120,551 2,376,405
Bonds Payable, Less Current Maturities 21,311,958 21,311,958 23,201,958
Due to Governmental Agencies, Less Current Portion 5,519,732 5,519,732 3,489,078
Total Liabilities 47,385,710 16,117 (10,517) 47,391,310 46,541,204
Net Assets:
Unrestricted net assets 20,290,910 413,478 20,704,388 18,218,769
Temporarily restricted net assets - 736,443 736,443 927,645
Total Net Assets 20,290,910 1,149,921 21,440,831 19,146,414
$67,676,620 $1,166,038 $(10,517) $68,832,141 $65,687,618
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Combining Statement of Activities
(with comparative totals for 2014)

Year ended December 31,

Developmental

Disabilities
Institute, Inc. DDI Foundation, Inc. Combined Total
Temporarily
Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted Total 2015 2014
Program Revenues:
Fees for services $90,897,280 S S S $90,897,280 $85,125,406
Government and other grants 1,322,400 1,322,400 1,442,514
Net patient service revenues 4,880,236 4,880,236 4,780,926
Other program revenues 1,748,095 - - 1,748,095 1,515,040
Net assets released from restrictions - 25,660 (25,660) - -
Total Program Revenues 98,848,011 25,660 (25,660) 98,848,011 92,863,886
Expenses:
rogram services:
Education services 32,167,330 32,167,330 29,682,713
Clinic services 5,413,192 5,413,192 5,192,637
Adult day services 16,389,994 16,389,994 15,648,495
Children’s residential services 10,550,947 10,550,947 7,934,228
Adult residential services 27,366,414 27,366,414 25,811,303
Other programs 64,642 64,642 ,136
Total Program Services 91,952,519 91,952,519 84,274,512
Supporting services:
Management and general 5,879,833 - - 5,879,833 5,793,961
Fundraising - 184,604 184,604 184,604 171,150
Total Supporting Services 5,879,833 184,604 184,604 6,064,437 5,965,111
Total Expenses 97,832,352 184,604 184,604 98,016,956 90,239,623
Change in Net Assets Before Nonoperating Revenues
and Expenses 1,015,659 (158,944) (25,660) (184,604) 831,055 2,624,263
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses:
Capital campaign income 100,532 100,532 100,532 67,935
Capital campaign expenses (317,288) (317,288) (317,288) (298,489)
Net Expenses From Capital Campaign (216,756) (216,756) (216,756) (230,554)
Special events revenues 394,326 394,326 394,326 398,815
Direct cost to donors (113,751) (113,751) (113,751) (127,729)
Net Revenues From Special Events 280,575 280,575 280,575 271,086
Contributions 10,000 45,887 51,214 97,101 107,101 50,733
Gain on sale of fixed assets 78,054 - - - 78,054 40,014
Unrealized losses on investments - - - - (109)
Interest income 42,717 110 110 42,827 39,888
Other income 97,226 - - 97,226 106,641
Prior period income 1,073,653 682 682 1,074,335 1,728,904
Total Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 1,301,650 327,254 (165,542) 161,712 1,463,362 2,006,603
Change in Net Assets 2,317,309 168,310 (191,202) (22,892) 2,294,417 4,630,866
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 17,973,601 245,168 927,645 1,172,813 19,146,414 14,515,548
Net Assets, End of Year $20,290,910 $413,478 $736,443 $1,149,921 $21,440,831 $19,146,414
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Eden Il School for Autistic Children, Inc.
d/b/a Eden Il Programs

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Eden Il School for Autistic Children, Inc. d/b/a Eden Il
Programs ("Eden II" or the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the School as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Prior Period Financial Statements

The financial statements of Eden Il as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, were audited by other
auditors whose report dated November 30, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements.

Sty foanek Lf

New York, NY
November 21, 2018

Morison KSi
Independent member



EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.

(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2D and 16) $ 552,563 $ 383,692
Program services receivable, net (Notes 2H, 2J and 3) 4,346,156 3,589,255
Grants and contracts receivable, net (Notes 2| and 4) 3,179,527 3,220,435
Prepaid expenses and other assets 427,697 391,182
Assets whose use is limited (Notes 2E, 6 and 17) 1,492,034 1,489,890
Property and equipment, net (Notes 2F, 2G and 5) 16,531,725 17,409,194
TOTAL ASSETS $ 26,529,702 $ 26,483,648
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 988,222 $ 852,751
Accrued compensation and benefits 2,857,650 2,798,093
Due to state and local agencies (Notes 2M and 15A) 1,688,108 1,261,839
Due to related party (Note 14) 1,419,854 1,734,890
Bonds payable, net (Notes 2K and 7) 6,871,567 7,524,233
Loan payable (Note 10) 2,548,128 2,748,128
Mortgages and notes payable, net (Notes 2K and 8) 1,494,115 1,557,957
Line of credit (Note 9) 975,000 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 18,842,644 18,477,891
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 15)
NET ASSETS (Notes 2B and 12):
Unrestricted 6,877,505 7,332,559
Temporarily restricted 809,553 673,198
TOTAL NET ASSETS 7,687,058 8,005,757
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 26,529,702 $ 26,483,648
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -2-



REVENUE AND SUPPORT:
Program and public support services revenue (Notes 2H and 11)
Grants and contract services (Note 2I)
Contributions (Note 2I)
Other revenue (Note 14)
Net assets released from restrictions (Notes 2B and 12)

TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT

EXPENSES: (Note 2L)
Program Services:
Educational services
Residential services
Adult habilitation services
Family Support
Community outreach

Total Program Services
Supporting Services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total Supporting Services

Total Expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Unrealized gain (loss) on debt service reserve funds
Gain on sale of asset
Loss on debt extinguishment
Total Non-operating activities

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Net assets - beginning of year

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.

(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Year Ended June 30:

Year Ended June 30:

Temporarily 2018 Temporarily 2017

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total
$ 30,983,437 - 30,983,437 $ 29,938,685 $ - 29,938,685
676,303 - 676,303 618,557 - 618,557
80,624 357,433 438,057 143,726 126,011 269,737
615,305 - 615,305 485,627 - 485,627

221,078 (221,078) - 106,987 (106,987) -

32,576,747 136,355 32,713,102 31,293,582 19,024 31,312,606
10,343,597 - 10,343,597 10,177,177 - 10,177,177
8,955,151 - 8,955,151 8,191,219 - 8,191,219
4,810,315 - 4,810,315 4,168,769 - 4,168,769
1,836,811 - 1,836,811 1,761,374 - 1,761,374
2,186,817 - 2,186,817 2,339,002 - 2,339,002
28,132,691 - 28,132,691 26,637,541 - 26,637,541
4,376,567 - 4,376,567 4,264,665 - 4,264,665
527,518 - 527,518 573,312 - 573,312
4,904,085 - 4,904,085 4,837,977 - 4,837,977
33,036,776 - 33,036,776 31,475,518 - 31,475,518
(460,029) 136,355 (323,674) (181,936) 19,024 (162,912)
4,975 - 4,975 (22,844) - (22,844)

- - - 25,050 - 25,050
- - - (172,692) - (172,692)
4,975 - 4,975 (170,486) - (170,486)
(455,054) 136,355 (318,699) (352,422) 19,024 (333,398)
7,332,559 673,198 8,005,757 7,684,981 654,174 8,339,155
6,877,505 $ 809,553 7,687,058 7,332,559 $ 673,198 8,005,757
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -3-



Salaries
Fringe benefits (Note 13)
Total Salaries, Wages, and Fringe Benefits

Food

Repairs and maintenance
Utilities

Travel

Staff training and development
Consultants and contractual services
Consumable supplies
Insurance

Professional Fees

Rent (Note 15)

Interest

Facility tax

Miscellaneous

Depreciation (Note 2F)

Bad debt expense

Total expenses

EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.

(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(with comparative totals for 2017)

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Program Services Supporting Services

Community Total Management Total
Adult Habilitati Family Support Outreach Program Services and General Fundraising Supporting Services Total 2018 Total 2017
$ 6,792,389 $ 5,632,647 $ 3,090,961 $ 1,293,913 § 1,593,096 $ 18,403,006 2,213,942 $ 353,337 2,567,279 $ 20,970,285 $ 19,813,055
1,692,781 1,583,928 772,180 277,156 406,408 4,732,453 600,038 87,044 687,082 5,419,535 5,197,388
8,485,170 7,216,575 3,863,141 1,571,069 1,999,504 23,135,459 2,813,980 440,381 3,254,361 26,389,820 25,010,443
530 222,881 109 905 - 224,425 1,086 - 1,086 225,511 202,899
220,753 231,634 197,381 20,119 23,421 693,308 108,224 1,725 109,949 803,257 767,483
115,740 133,814 63,952 12,145 20,543 346,194 99,161 5,386 104,547 450,741 434,295
10,159 8,908 17,479 19,776 5,336 61,658 12,544 1,041 13,585 75,243 90,006
15,595 9,398 7,415 3,914 9,423 45,745 40,549 1,138 41,687 87,432 67,673
68,808 25,020 - - 1,300 95,128 171,020 12,445 183,465 278,593 248,212
149,228 351,801 179,408 64,021 27,047 771,505 105,770 31,144 136,914 908,419 913,604
58,921 76,674 38,350 7,110 1,087 182,142 215,412 - 215,412 397,554 348,608
20,754 13,950 8,002 1,287 9,496 53,489 132,253 135 132,388 185,877 228,356
298,188 114,717 219,716 1,737 88,380 722,738 196,144 235 196,379 919,117 623,273
257,720 131,920 30,273 27,088 5,841 452,842 132,204 - 132,204 585,046 630,906
- 93,730 - - - 93,730 - - - 93,730 94,830
3,253 510 425 140 6,713 11,041 88,426 33,888 122,314 133,355 122,319
604,861 347,858 189,767 70,994 17,298 1,230,778 259,794 - 259,794 1,490,572 1,562,611
33,917 (24,239) (5.103) 36,506 (28,572) 12,509 - - - 12,509 130,000
$ 10,343,597 $ 8,955,151 $ 4,810,315 § 1,836,811 § 2,186,817 $ 28,132,691 4,376,567 $ 527,518 4,904,085 $ 33,036,776 $ 31,475,518

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financials statements.



Salaries
Fringe benefits (Note 13)
Total Salaries, Wages, and Fringe Benefits

Food

Repairs and maintenance
Utilities

Travel

Staff training and development
Consultants and contractual services
Consumable supplies
Insurance

Professional Fees

Rent (Note 15)

Interest

Facility tax

Miscellaneous

Depreciation (Note 2F)

Bad debt expense

Total expenses

EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.
(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Program Services

Supporting Services

Community Total Management Total
Edi i | Residential _ Adult Habilitation Family Support Outreach Program Services and General Fundraising Supporting Services Total
$ 6,637,655 $ 5,067,114 $ 2,689,591 § 1,296,149 $ 1,634,730 $ 17,325,239 $ 2,107,684 $ 380,132 $ 2,487,816 $ 19,813,055
1,708,497 1,352,830 674,109 290,182 432,881 4,458,499 642,962 95,927 738,889 5,197,388
8,346,152 6,419,944 3,363,700 1,586,331 2,067,611 21,783,738 2,750,646 476,059 3,226,705 25,010,443
32 201,022 14 457 45 201,570 1,329 - 1,329 202,899
183,773 270,292 166,528 10,922 28,627 660,142 106,028 1,313 107,341 767,483
122,658 129,573 57,426 9,623 24,599 343,879 85,212 5,204 90,416 434,295
10,694 6,482 15,758 33,513 6,162 72,609 15,656 1,741 17,397 90,006
9,163 5,441 4,457 2,377 8,626 30,064 37,459 150 37,609 67,673
47,431 24,360 800 - - 72,591 166,140 9,481 175,621 248,212
185,541 330,744 155,679 43,443 27,089 742,496 127,839 43,269 171,108 913,604
39,130 59,851 39,864 4,966 1,206 145,017 203,591 - 203,591 348,608
13,810 14,948 6,448 1,297 19,150 55,653 172,313 390 172,703 228,356
289,822 93,200 137,680 344 71,828 592,874 30,210 189 30,399 623,273
278,645 124,319 25,438 16,001 11,111 455,514 175,392 - 175,392 630,906
- 94,830 - - - 94,830 - - - 94,830
1,509 2,037 1,042 191 6,864 11,643 75,160 35,516 110,676 122,319
595,235 407,259 182,979 37,805 21,643 1,244,921 317,690 - 317,690 1,662,611
53,582 6,917 10,956 14,104 44,441 130,000 - - - 130,000
$ 10,177,177 § 8,191,219 § 4,168,769 $ 1,761,374 $ 2,339,002 § 26,637,541 $ 4,264,665 $ 573312 § 4,837,977 $ 31,475,518

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.
(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets $ (318,699) $ (333,398)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,490,572 1,562,611
Bad debt expense 12,509 130,000
Unrealized (loss)/gain on debt service reserve funds (4,975) 22,844
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Program services receivable (769,410) (810,024)
Grants and contracts receivable 40,908 (40,962)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (36,515) (112,156)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 135,471 (178,196)
Accrued compensation and benefits 59,557 214,634
Due to state and local agencies 426,269 925,782
Due to related party (315,036) (1,143,230)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 720,651 237,905
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (613,103) (215,934)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (613,103) (215,934)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from line of credit 9,474,194 10,000,000
Repayment of line of credit (8,499,194) (11,403,925)
Proceeds on sale of fixed assets - 25,050
Proceeds from mortgages payable - 1,665,000
Amortization of bond premium (34,123) (17,841)
Amortization of deferred bond issuance costs 41,457 28,097
Amortization of deferred mortgage issuance costs 1,392 2,595
Payments on mortgages and notes payable (65,234) (74,412)
Repayment of loan payable (200,000) -
Proceeds from bonds payable - 1,535,000
Payments on bonds payable (660,000) (2,717,405)
Assets whose use is limited 2,831 429,400
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 61,323 (528,441)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 168,871 (506,470)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - beginning of year 383,692 890,162
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 552,563 $ 383,692
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 576,320 3 665,789

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -6-



EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.
(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1 — ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Eden Il School for Autistic Children, Inc. (d/b/a Eden Il Programs) (the "School") is a not-for-profit organization
serving over 500 participants in New York City and Long Island. The mission of the School is to support people
with autism throughout their lives to achieve their full potential through service, science and passion. The School
provides a variety of services using the evidence-based principles of applied behavior analysis ("ABA") to treat the
delays and challenges associated with autism spectrum disorder ("ASD"). The School is recognized nationally as
a leader in working with individuals across the autism spectrum, including those with the most significant
challenges.

With an exclusive focus on ASD, the School helps the autism community by providing programs and services
combined with lifespan support to improve the quality of life for individuals with ASD. The School has the greatest
ability to help individuals with ASD reach their highest potential for independent, self-sustained living through high-
quality ABA therapy, educational programs, adult day programs, group residential care, family support, respite,
and a number of other services. The School uses the evidence-based practices of ABA to develop skills, promote
independence, and change lives for the better.

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Accounting — The School’s financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. The School adheres to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“U.S. GAAP”).

B. Basis of Presentation — The School maintains its net assets under the following two classes:

e Unrestricted — represents resources available for support of the School’'s operations over which the
Board of Trustees has discretionary control.

e Temporarily restricted — represents assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations. When a
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and
reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Temporarily restricted
net assets are released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses, thereby satisfying the
restricted purposes of providing program services as specified by the donors. Unconditional promises
to give that are due in future periods to support the current-period activities are reported as
unrestricted support.

C. Use of Estimates — The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures at the date of the financial statements.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase.

E. Investments and Fair Value Measurements — Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value
measurements are based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In order to increase
consistency and comparability in fair value measurements, a fair value hierarchy prioritizes observable and
unobservable inputs used to measure fair value into three levels as described in Note 17.

F. Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are capitalized by the School, provided the cost is
$5,000 or more and the useful life is one year or more. Property and equipment purchased using government
support are capitalized in accordance with the requirements of the funding source. Depreciation is provided
for amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreciable assets to operations using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset or remaining term of the lease.

-7-



EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.
(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G.

Impairment of Long Lived Assets — The School reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the
asset to aggregate future net cash flows (undiscounted and without interest) expected to be generated by the
asset. If such assets are considered impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount
by which the carrying amounts of the assets exceed the fair value. No impairment loss has been recognized
during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Revenue Recognition — The School records receivables and revenue when earned based on established
rates or contracts for services provided. Principal support for the programs operated by the School is
derived directly from various New York State governmental sources and indirectly from the federal
governmental sources. Laws and regulations governing Medicaid programs are subject to interpretation.
Noncompliance with such laws and regulations could result in fines, penalties and exclusion from Medicaid
programs. There are occasions when funding source reimbursements for prior years are adjusted in the
current period.

Contributions and Pledges — Contributions and unconditional promises to give are recorded as support
when pledges are made and are classified as unrestricted or temporarily restricted support. Unconditional
promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of their
estimated future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using rates applicable to the
years in which the promises are received and consider market and credit risk as applicable. Amortization of
the discounts are included in contribution revenue in the statements of activities.

Contributed goods and long-lived assets are recorded at their fair value on the date of receipt. The School
records as unrestricted support the gifts of long-lived assets (such as property and equipment) or of cash and
other assets restricted to the purchase of long-lived assets, for which donors have not expressly stipulated
how or how long the long-lived asset must be used by the School.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — The School determines whether an allowance for uncollectible
accounts receivable should be provided. Such estimates are based on management’s assessment of the
aged basis of the receivables, current economic conditions, creditworthiness of other sources and
historical information. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the School determined that an allowance of $293,330
and $324,227, respectively, was necessary.

Debt Issuance Costs — Debt issuance costs are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the
life of the related debt. Amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $42,849 and
$30,692, respectively.

Functional Allocation of Expenses — The costs of providing the School’s services have been
summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs
and supporting services benefited.

. Deferred Revenue / Due to Funding Source — Represents advances received from various funding sources

under contracts for which the School has not yet met the grant conditions or provided the services. Such
amounts will be recouped by funding sources in a future fiscal year.

Reclassifications — Certain line items in the June 30, 2017 financial statements were reclassified to conform
to the 2018 presentation.



EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.
(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 3 — PROGRAM SERVICES RECEIVABLE, NET

Program services receivable, net consisted of the following as of June 30:

2018 2017
Medicaid $ 2,632,060 $ 2,069,294
New York City Board of Education 837,384 701,969
Long Island School Districts 323,733 279,278
Other receivables 846,309 862,941
4,639,486 3,913,482
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (293,330) (324,227)
Total program services receivable, net $ 4,346,156 $ 3,589,255
NOTE 4 — GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE
Grants and contracts receivable consisted of the following as of June 30:
2018 2017
Legislative Grants $ 3,050,409 $ 3,153,709
Individuals with Disabilities Act 62,425 46,910
Other 66,693 19,816
Total grants and contracts receivable $ 3,179,527 $ 3,220,435
NOTE 5 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consisted of the following as of June 30:
Estimated
2018 2017 Useful Lives
Land $ 3,000,276 $ 3,351,276
Building and improvements 21,981,183 24,478,245 5-25 years
Vehicles 310,810 310,810 5 years
Furniture and equipment 2,412,043 2,292,967 5 years
Building held for sale 2,871,212 -
Construction in progress 513,994 43,117
Total cost 31,089,518 30,476,415
Less: accumulated depreciation (14,557,793) (13,067,221)
Net book value $ 16,531,725 $ 17,409,194

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to $1,490,572 and $1,562,611 for the years ended June 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

Construction in progress consists of renovation of a building. Additional costs remaining to complete the
renovation is approximately $798,653 and is estimated to be completed in fiscal year 2019.

In March 2018, the Board of Trustees approved the sale of a property located in Staten Island, New York.
Accordingly, the property is classified as a held-for-sale as of June 30, 2018 with a book value of $2,871,212 and
accumulated depreciation of $2,338,251. The School closed on the sale subsequent to year-end (see note 19).



EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.
(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 6 — ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

The School has debt service reserve funds in connection with the Dormitory Authority of the State of New York
(“DASNY”), the New York City Industrial Agency (“IDA”), and Build NYC bond issuances. These balances are

limited under terms of debt indentures.

The funds as of June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Assets Whose Debt Service
Use is Limited Reserve Funds Total
IDA —2004C $ 32,282 § - $ 32,282
Build NYC — 2013A 167,595 248,096 415,691
DASNY —2015A 603,979 320,337 924,316
DASNY —2016B 71,522 48,223 119,745
$ 875378 $ 616,656 $ 1,492,034
The funds as of June 30, 2017 were as follows:
Assets Whose Debt Service
Use is Limited Reserve Funds Total
IDA —2004C $ 32,282 § - $ 32,282
Build NYC — 2013A 163,693 246,019 409,712
DASNY —2015A 637,880 316,244 954,124
DASNY —2016B 46,136 47,636 93,772
$ 879,991 $ 609,899 $ 1,489,890
NOTE 7 — BONDS PAYABLE, NET
Bonds payable, net consisted of the following as of June 30:
Description 2018 2017
In April 2013, the School and the Build NYC Resource Corporation issued Series
2013A-1 2013A-2 revenue bonds through the Special Needs Facilities Pooled
Program in the amount of $3,305,000. The proceeds of the bonds were to
finance the cost of acquiring, equipping and renovating a building purchased
located in Staten Island, NY. $ 3,005,000 $ 3,080,000
In March 2015, DASNY issued $4,000,000 of bonds on behalf of the School that
were purchased by a bank. The transaction generated a $213,616 premium.
The proceeds of the 2015 bonds were used to refinance the School’s
outstanding 2005A, 2006D and 2007C bonds along with an adjustable rate
mortgage on a property owned by the School. The 2015 bonds have a term of
10 years and bear an annual interest rate ranging from 1.2%-4%. The bonds
are collateralized by the School’s buildings located on Staten Island and on
Long Island. 2,755,000 3,325,000
In November 2016, DASNY issued $1,535,000 of bonds on behalf of the School
that were purchased by a bank. The transactions generated a $16,000
premium. The Proceeds of the 2016 bonds were used to refinance the School’'s
outstanding loans related to an IRA located in Sherwood Avenue of Staten
Island. The 2016 bonds have a term of 25 years and bear an annual interest
rate raging from 2%-4%. The bonds are collateralized by the School’s location
at Sherwood. 1,520,000 1,535,000
Plus: Premiums on DASNY bonds 117,022 151,145
7,397,022 8,091,145
Less: Deferred bond issuance costs 525,455 566,912
Total bonds payable, net $ 6871567 $ 7,524,233

-10 -



EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.
(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 7 — BONDS PAYABLE, NET (Continued)

Future annual principal payments of the School's bonds payable during each of the five years following June 30,
2018 and thereafter are as follows:

Amount
2019 $ 685,000
2020 700,000
2021 655,000
2022 350,000
2023 405,000
Thereafter 4,485,000
7,280,000
Bond premium 117,022
Total bonds payable, net 7,397,022
NOTE 8 — MORTGAGES AND NOTES PAYABLE, NET
Mortgages payable consisted of the following as of June 30:
Description 2018 2017

In November 2016, the School secured permanent financing under two
mortgage notes payable with a bank for the building on Staten Island. These
notes included a twenty-five year mortgage and a ten-year mortgage in the
cumulative amount of $1,665,000 that matures in November 2042 and 2026,
respectively. Both notes bear interest at the rate of 3.75% per annum. $ 1,574,555 $ 1,630,138

The School secured a mortgage loan from a financial institution amounting to
$354,750 for a building located on Staten Island. The mortgage due September
1, 2017 was payable in equal monthly installments of $3,263, including interest
at 7.38% per annum. The loan is secured by the property on Staten Island. The

mortgage was fully repaid as of June 30, 2018. - 9,651
1,574,555 1,639,789

Less: deferred issuance costs 80,440 81,832
Total mortgages payable, net $ 1494115 $§ 1,557,957

Future annual principal payments of the School's mortgages payable during each of the five years following June
30, 2018 and thereafter are as follows:

2019 $ 55,995
2020 58,161
2021 60,412
2022 62,749
2023 65,177
Thereafter 1,272,062

Total mortgages payable, net $ 1,574,555

NOTE 9 — LINE OF CREDIT

The School has a revolving line of credit from a bank with a maximum borrowing limit to $2.5 million with a
maturity date of May 1, 2019. The line of credit interest rate is equal to the lesser of the prime rate on the last
business day of each month as published in The Wall Street Journal plus 1.00% with a minimum of 5.75%, as of
June 30, 2018. The line is secured by a general lien. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the School had $975,000
and $0 in outstanding borrowings, respectively.
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EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.
(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 10 — LOAN PAYABLE

The School obtained a bridge loan from FJC, a Foundation of Philanthropic Funds, allowing the School access
up to $4,730,000 for the renovation of 15 Beach Street property for use as a School and School headquarters.
As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, $2,548,128 and $2,748,128, respectively, remains outstanding on the loan. The
loan had a maturity date of March 31, 2018 and the date was extended to December 31, 2018, at which time
the full outstanding balance is payable. Interest is payable quarterly at the prime rate published in The Wall
Street Journal (4.5% at June 30, 2018) plus 3%.

NOTE 11 — PROGRAM AND PUBLIC SUPPORT SERVICES REVENUE

Program and public support services revenue consisted of the following as of June 30:

2018 2017

New York State Office of People with Developmental Disabilities (“OPWDD”):
Medicaid $ 17,008,882 $ 16,443,422
Other 582,867 450,868
New York City Board of Education 9,240,407 8,790,623
Long Island School Districts 2,113,472 1,875,499
Outreach and Consulting 1,953,871 2,279,586
Other Revenue 83,938 98,687

$ 30983437 $ 29,938,685

NOTE 12 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of the following as of June 30:

2018 2017

New York City Adult $ 343,580 $ 425,116
Early Childhood Campaign 273,058 30,058
Long Island Kiosk 80,050 32,477
Residential 52,624 58,904
Educational 36,955 23,494
Wright Ave 11,500 11,500
Day Habilitation 10,982 43,255
Other 804 48,394
$ 809,553 $ 673,198

Net assets were released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes for the years
ended June 30 as follows:

2018 2017

New York City Adult $ 79,436 $ -

Early Childhood Campaign 11,777 -
Long Island Kiosk 72,640 10,523
Residential 13,280 73
Educational 7,370 20,339
Wright Ave - 38,500
Day Habilitation 26,479 28,461

Family Services 4,000 -
Other 6,096 9,091
$ 221,078 $ 106,987
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EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.
(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 13 — PENSION PLAN

The School sponsors an employee pension plan (a defined contribution plan) covering all eligible employees. The
amounts contributed to the Plan is a fixed percentage of participant's compensation. For the years ended June
30, 2018 and 2017 pension expense amounted to $412,288 and $375,031, respectively.

In addition, the School also sponsors a 457 Supplemental Retirement Plan, which allows a select group of
management or highly compensated employees of the School to receive benefits. The Board of Trustees
determines the contribution amounts annually. For each of the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Board of
Trustees approved a contribution of $25,000 and $0, respectively.

NOTE 14 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Foundation for the Advancement of Autistic Persons, Inc. (the "Foundation"), which was established to
solicit charitable contributions and other funds, and provide other benefits and support the mission of the
School and other organizations dedicated to the support of individuals with autism, shares certain members of
management with the School. The Foundation provides an operational line of credit to the School of
$1,000,000. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017 there were no outstanding borrowings.

The Foundation provides advances with no stated due date to the School. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the
balance of this advance was $1,832,100. The Foundation requires that $25,000 be repaid each year. The
remaining portion has no specified due date. These advances have no defined repayment terms; however, the
Foundation anticipates repayment of the advance upon completion of the construction, and receipt of
outstanding pledges and grants by the School. There were no cash payments made during the years ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017.

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Foundation owed $412,246 and $97,210, respectively, to Eden Il for
various operating matters.

The School provides management and personnel services to the Foundation. The School charged the
Foundation $250,000 and $100,000 for these services for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

NOTE 15 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Pursuant to the School's contractual relationships with certain governmental funding sources,
governmental agencies have the right to examine the books and records of the School involving
transactions relating to these contracts. The accompanying financial statements make no provision for
possible disallowances. Although such possible disallowances could be substantial in amount, in the
opinion of management, any actual disallowances would be immaterial.

B. The School has lease agreements for rental space which expire at various dates through 2028. For the years
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, rent expense for all facilites amounted to $919,118 and $623,270,
respectively. In additional to the facilities, the School leases equipment and vehicles under noncancelable
operating lease. Future minimum lease payments are as follow for years ending after June 30, 2018:

2019 $ 1,050,000
2020 886,000
2021 778,000
2022 557,000
2023 209,000
Thereafter 1,130,000
Total $ 4,610,000

C. The School believes it has no uncertain tax positions as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, in accordance with
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 740, which provides standards for establishing and
classifying any tax provisions for uncertain tax positions.
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EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.
(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 15 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

D. The School has a self-insured medical plan covering eligible employees. In determining the amount of
expense and liability to be recorded for the medical plan, management (with the aid of an insurance
broker) makes estimated payments of health care premiums for all eligible employees in the medical plan
based on historic payments. The self-insured liability account amounted to $300,000 as of June 30, 2018
and 2017.

NOTE 16 — CONCENTRATION

Cash and cash equivalents that potentially subject the School to a concentration of credit risk include cash
accounts with a bank that exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insurance limits.
Accounts are insured up to $250,000 per depositor. As of June 30, 2018, there was approximately $81,000 of
cash and cash equivalents held by a bank that exceeded FDIC limits.

NOTE 17 — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value hierarchy defines three levels as follows:

Level 1: Valuations based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market that are accessible at the
measurement date for identical assets or liabilities. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to
Level 1 inputs.

Level 2: Valuations based on observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities; quoted price in inactive markets; or model-derived valuations in which all significant
inputs are observable or can be derived principally from or corroborated with observable market data.

Level 3: Valuations based on unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available. The
fair value hierarchy gives lowest priority to Level 3 inputs.

Financial assets carried at fair value consisted of U.S. Treasury obligations and money market funds, which
were held as reserves, and amounted to $1,492,034 and $1,489,890 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, and were classified as Level 1.

In determining the value, the School utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible in its assessment of fair value. The
availability of observable market data is monitored to assess the appropriate classification of financial
instruments within the fair value hierarchy. Changes in economic conditions or model-based valuation
techniques may require the transfer of financial instruments from one fair value level to another. In such
instances, the transfer is reported at the end of the reporting period. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and
2017, there were no transfers.

NOTE 18 — UNRESTRICTED NET ASSET DEFICIT

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the School posted a deficit of $318,699 and $333,398,
respectively. In addition, after removing the School’s investment in property and equipment net of related debt,
the operating net assets are a deficit of approximately ($230,000) as of June 30, 2018 and $264,000 as of June
30, 2017. Management is constantly evaluating individual programs and has identified expansion possibilities to
improve the School's financial performance. In 2017, the School successfully added two preschool classrooms.
With the completion of the renovation of the new early education building, the School will have the capacity to add
additional classrooms to serve known, unmet needs on Staten Island. In OPWDD programs, the School has
been approved for three IRA houses on Staten Island and is seeking expansion of the residential programs on
Long Island. As noted in Note 19, the first of these houses was purchased in October 2018 and is expected to be
opened in 2019. The recently completed renovation of leased space at 400 Victory Boulevard will provide new
space for the Staten Island DayHab program to create new opportunities to provide services to adults not
currently involved in Eden Il Program. The School continues to search for a location on Long Island to be able to
so the same.
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EDEN Il SCHOOL FOR AUTISTIC CHILDREN, INC.
(D/B/A EDEN Il PROGRAMS)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 19 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School has evaluated, for potential recognition and disclosure, events subsequent to the date of the
statement of financial position through November 21, 2018, the date the financial statements were available to be
issued. The following events were noted:

e Subsequent to year ended June 30, 2018, the School sold a building located at 150 Granite Avenue,
Staten Island for a total price of $3,651,002.

e On September 25, 2018, the School's Board of Trustees approved the purchase and renovation of the
property located at 205 Eltingville Boulevard, Staten Island, New York for a total price of $1,746,844. The
purchase was funded by the Office for People with Developmental Disabilities (‘OPWDD”). The property
will be used for the establishment of a seven bed Individualized Residential Alternative.
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Tel: +212 885-8000 100 Park Avenue
Fax: +212 697-1299 New York, NY 10017
a www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Trustees
Eden Il School for Autistic Children, Inc.
Staten Island, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Eden Il School for Autistic Children,
Inc. (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the School’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Eden Il School for Autistic Children, Inc. as of June 30, 2017, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the School’s 2016 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on the School’s audited financial statements in our report, dated
November 29, 2016. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

BDo USq, Li P
November 30, 2017



Eden Il School For Autistic Children, Inc.

Statement of Financial Position
(with comparative totals for 2016)

June 30, 2017 2016
Assets (Note 10)
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 383,692 S 890,162
Program services receivable, net (Note 4) 3,589,255 4,269,279
Grants and contracts receivable, net (Note 5) 3,220,435 3,261,397
Prepaid expenses and other assets 391,182 279,026
Total Current Assets 7,584,564 8,699,864
Assets Whose Use is Limited (Notes 3 and 6) 1,489,890 1,963,484
Property and Equipment, Net (Note 2) 17,409,194 18,769,983
$26,483,648 $29,433,331
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 852,751 $ 1,030,947
Accrued compensation 2,798,093 2,583,459
Due to state and local agencies 1,261,839 336,057
Due to related party, net, current portion (Note 16) 25,000 25,000
Bonds payable, current portion (Note 8) 660,000 753,472
Mortgages and notes payable, current portion (Note 9) 63,560 36,931
Loan payable, current portion - -
Line of credit (Note 10) - 1,403,925
Total Current Liabilities 5,661,243 6,169,791
Long-Term Liabilities:
Due to related party, net, less current maturities (Note 16) 1,709,890 2,853,120
Loan payable, net of current maturities 2,748,128 4,227,363
Bonds payable, long-term portion, net of unamortized
issuance costs of $546,317 and $701,209 in 2017 and
2016, respectively (Notes 8 and 18) 6,866,828 7,492,826
Mortgages and notes payable, less current maturities and
deferred mortgage costs (Note 9) 1,491,802 351,076
Total Liabilities 18,477,891 21,094,176
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 8, 9, 10, 11, 14,
15 and 17)
Net Assets (Note 2):
Unrestricted net assets 7,332,559 7,684,981
Temporarily restricted net assets (Note 15) 673,198 654,174
Total Net Assets 8,005,757 8,339,155
$26,483,648 $29,433,331

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Eden Il School For Autistic Children, Inc.

Statement of Activities
(with comparative totals for 2016)

Year ended June 30,

Temporarily Totals
Unrestricted Restricted 2017 2016
Program Revenue:
Program and public support services
revenue (Note 12) $29,938,685 ) - $29,938,685 $29,050,185
Grants and contract services
(Note 13) 618,557 618,557 601,275
Other revenue 485,627 485,627 439,265
Total Program Revenue 31,042,869 31,042,869 30,090,725
Expenses:
Program services:
Educational services 10,177,177 10,177,177 10,002,239
Residential services 8,191,219 8,191,219 7,304,355
Adult habilitational services 4,168,769 4,168,769 4,024,960
Family support 1,761,374 1,761,374 1,868,356
Community outreach 2,339,002 2,339,002 2,681,212
Total Program Services 26,637,541 26,637,541 25,881,122
Supporting services:
Management and general 4,264,665 4,264,665 4,440,028
Fundraising 573,312 573,312 515,841
Total Supporting Services 4,837,977 4,837,977 4,955,869
Total Expenses 31,475,518 31,475,518 30,836,991
Change in Net Assets Before
Non-operating Revenues (432,649) (432,649) (746,266)
Non-operating Revenues:
Contributions 143,726 126,011 269,737 393,387
Unrealized (loss) gain on debt
service reserve funds (22,844) (22,844) 11,060
Gain on sale of asset 25,050 25,050 -
Loss on debt extinguishment (Note 8) (172,692) (172,692) -
Net assets released from restriction
(Note 15) 106,987 (106,987) - -
Total Non-operating
Revenues 80,227 19,024 99,251 404,447
Change in Net Assets (352,422) 19,024 (333,398) (341,819)
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 7,684,981 654,174 8,339,155 8,680,974
Net Assets, End of Year $ 7,332,559 $ 673,198 $ 8,005,757 $ 8,339,155

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Eden Il School For Autistic Children, Inc.

Statement of Functional Expenses
(with comparative totals for 2016)

Year ended June 30,

Program Services

Supporting Services

Adult Family Community Total Program Management Totals
Educational Residential  Habilitational Support Outreach Services and General Fundraising 2017 2016
Salaries and Wages and Fringe Benefits:
Salaries and wages $ 6,637,655 $5,067,114 $2,689,591 $1,296,149 $1,634,730 $17,325,239 $2,107,684 $380,132  $19,813,055 $19,249,235
Fringe benefits 1,708,497 1,352,830 674,109 290,182 432,881 4,458,499 642,962 95,927 5,197,388 5,195,995
Total Salaries and Wages and Fringe Benefits 8,346,152 6,419,944 3,363,700 1,586,331 2,067,611 21,783,738 2,750,646 476,059 25,010,443 24,445,230
Other Expenses:
Food 32 201,022 14 457 45 201,570 1,329 - 202,899 201,700
Repairs and maintenance 183,773 270,292 166,528 10,922 28,627 660,142 106,028 1,313 767,483 780,338
Utilities 122,658 129,573 57,426 9,623 24,599 343,879 85,212 5,204 434,295 410,010
Travel 10,694 6,482 15,758 33,513 6,162 72,609 15,656 1,741 90,006 110,666
Staff training and development 9,163 5,441 4,457 2,377 8,626 30,064 37,459 150 67,673 70,668
Consultants and contractual services 47,431 24,360 800 - - 72,591 166,140 9,481 248,212 250,039
Consumable supplies 185,541 330,744 155,679 43,443 27,089 742,496 127,839 43,269 913,604 823,930
Insurance 39,130 59,851 39,864 4,966 1,206 145,017 203,591 - 348,608 333,411
Professional fees 13,810 14,948 6,448 1,297 19,150 55,653 172,313 390 228,356 184,921
Rent 289,822 93,200 137,680 344 71,828 592,874 30,210 189 623,273 623,581
Interest 278,645 124,319 25,438 16,001 11,111 455,514 175,392 - 630,906 633,416
Facility tax - 94,830 - - - 94,830 - - 94,830 89,213
Miscellaneous 1,509 2,037 1,042 191 6,864 11,643 72,565 35,516 119,724 161,001
Depreciation and amortization 595,235 407,259 182,979 37,805 21,643 1,244,921 320,285 - 1,565,206 1,599,378
Bad debt expense 53,582 6,917 10,956 14,104 44,441 130,000 - - 130,000 119,489
Total Expenses $10,177,177 $8,191,219 $4,168,769 $1,761,374 $2,339,002 $26,637,541 $4,264,665 $573,312  $31,475,518 $30,836,991

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Eden Il School For Autistic Children, Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows

(with comparative totals for 2016)

Year ended June 30, 2017 2016
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $  (333,398) S (341,819)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,565,206 1,599,378
Bad debt expense 130,000 119,489
Unrealized gain on debt service reserve funds (22,844) (11,060)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Program services receivable (810,024) (1,427,334)
Grants and contracts receivable (40,962) 85,489
Prepaid expenses and other assets (112,156) (61,393)
(Decrease) increase in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (178,196) 231,108
Accrued compensation 214,634 128,682
Due to state and local agencies 925,782 (786,003)
Due to related party (1,143,230) 846,641
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 194,812 383,178
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (218,529) (1,434,281)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from line of credit 10,000,000 10,593,925
Repayments of line of credit (11,403,925) (9,190,000)
Proceeds on sale of fixed assets 25,050 -
Proceeds from mortgages payable 1,665,000
Amortization of deferred issuance costs 123,420 -
Payments on mortgages and notes payable (71,817) 673,203
Proceeds from bonds payable 1,535,000 -
Payments on bonds payable (2,830,569) (298,473)
Assets whose use is limited 475,088 (441,068)
Net Cash (Used In) Provided By Financing
Activities (482,753) 1,337,587
(Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (506,470) 286,484
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 890,162 603,678
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year S 383,692 S 890,162
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the year for Interest $ 678,640 S 428,471

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Eden Il School For Autistic Children, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Nature of Organization

Eden 1l School for Autistic Children, Inc. (the “School”) is a not-for-profit organization serving over
500 participants in New York City and Long Island. The mission of the School is to support people
with autism throughout their lives to achieve their full potential through service, science and
passion. The School provides a variety of services using the evidence-based principles of applied
behavior analysis (“ABA”) to treat the delays and challenges associated with autism spectrum
disorder (“ASD”). The School is recognized nationally as a leader in working with individuals across
the autism spectrum, including those with the most significant challenges.

With an exclusive focus on ASD, the School helps the autism community by providing programs and
services combined with lifespan support to improve the quality of life for individuals with ASD. The
School has the greatest ability to help individuals with ASD reach their highest potential for
independent, self-sustained living through high-quality ABA therapy, educational programs, adult
day programs, group residential care, family support, respite, and a number of other services. The
School uses the evidence-based practices of ABA to develop skills, promote independence, and
change lives for the better.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the School have been prepared on the accrual basis. In the statement
of financial position, assets and liabilities are presented, on a classified basis, in order of liquidity
or conversion to cash and their maturity resulting in the use of cash, respectively.

(b) Financial Statement Presentation

The classification of a not-for-profit organization’s net assets and its support, revenue and expenses
is based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. It requires that the amounts for
each of three classes of net assets, permanently restricted, temporarily restricted, and
unrestricted, be displayed in a statement of financial position and that the amounts of change in
each of those classes of net assets be displayed in a statement of activities.

These classes are defined as follows:

(i)  Permanently Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the School is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by
passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the School.

(ii) Temporarily Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the School is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage
of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the School pursuant to those stipulations.
When such stipulations end or are fulfilled, such temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities.

(iii) Unrestricted - The part of net assets that is neither permanently nor temporarily restricted
by donor-imposed stipulations.



Eden Il School For Autistic Children, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The School considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents. Financial instruments, which potentially subject the School to
credit risk, consist principally of temporary cash investments. The School places its temporary cash
investments with various financial institutions. The School maintains its cash in bank deposit
accounts which, at times, may exceed Federally insured limits.

(d) Fair Value Measurement

Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820-10, “Fair Value Measurement,” defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands the disclosures about fair value
measurements. ASC 820-10 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in a principal or most advantageous market. Fair value is a market-based
measurement that is determined based on inputs, which refer broadly to assumptions that market
participants use in pricing assets or liabilities. These inputs can be readily observable, market
corroborated, or unobservable. ASC 820-10 established a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value in three broad levels. The standard
requires that assets and liabilities be classified in their entirety based on the level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input may
require judgment considering factors specific to the asset or liability, and may affect the valuation
of the asset or liability and their placement within the fair value hierarchy. The School classifies
fair value balances based on the fair value hierarchy defined by ASC 820-10 as follows:

Level 1 - Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. An active market for the asset or liability is a market in which transactions for the asset
or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis.

Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant
inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement.

(e) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(f) Program Services Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Program service receivables are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances reduced by
an allowance for doubtful accounts.

Management specifically analyzes accounts receivable, historical bad debts, current funding trends
and changes in payment terms and rates when evaluating the allowance for doubtful accounts.

10



Eden Il School For Autistic Children, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

(¢) Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 2 to 25 years. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the lesser of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Such
amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the accompanying statement of
functional expenses.

(h) Impairment of Fixed Assets

The School reviews fixed assets for impairment whenever events or changes in business
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable. An
impairment loss would be recognized when the future cash flows from the use of the asset are less
than the carrying amount of that asset. As of June 30, 2017, there have been no such losses.

(i)  Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the related
debt. Amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $44,003. In April 2015, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
2015-03, “Interest - Imputation of Interest: Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs,”
which resulted in the reclassification of debt issuance costs from other assets to inclusion as a
reduction of the reportable long-term debt balance on the statement of financial position. The
School adopted this standard in 2017 and applied its provisions retrospectively.

(j) Contributions

Contributions received and unconditional promises to give that are reasonably determinable are
recorded as public support at fair value, as determined by management, in the period received and
are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.
Contributions are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. Conditional contributions are
recognized as revenue when the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met. The
School records contributions as temporarily restricted if they are received with donor stipulations
that limit their use either through purpose or time restrictions. When donor restrictions expire, that
is, when a time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, temporarily restricted net assets
are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions.

It is the School’s policy to record temporarily restricted donations and contributions received in the
same accounting period that the restriction is satisfied in unrestricted net assets at the time of
donation.

The School reports gifts of land, buildings and equipment as unrestricted support unless explicit
donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with
explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that
must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor
stipulations about how those long-lived assets must be maintained, the School reports expirations
of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

(k) Income Taxes

The School was incorporated in the state of New York and is exempt from Federal and state income
taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”) and therefore has made
no provision for income taxes in the accompanying financial statements. In addition, the School has
been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a “private foundation” within the

11
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meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. There was no unrelated business income for the year ended
June 30, 2017.

The School adopted the provisions of ASC 740, “Income Taxes,” on January 1, 2009. Under ASC 740,
an organization must recognize the tax benefit associated with tax positions taken for tax return
purposes when it is more likely than not that the position will not be sustained upon examination
by a taxing authority. The implementation of ASC 740 had no impact on the School’s financial
statements. The School does not believe it has taken any material uncertain tax positions and,
accordingly, it has not recorded any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The School has filed for
and received income tax exemptions in the jurisdictions where it is required to do so. Additionally,
the School has filed Internal Revenue Service Form 990 information returns, as required, and all
other applicable returns in jurisdictions where so required. For the year ended June 30, 2017, there
were no interest or penalties recorded or included in the statement of activities. The School is
subject to routine audits by taxing authorities. As of June 30, 2017, the School was not subject to
any examination by a taxing authority. Management believes it is no longer subject to income tax
examinations for the years prior to 2014.

(I)  Due to State and Local Agencies

Due to state and local agencies consists of advances by funding sources to be recouped. The balance
at June 30, 2017 amounted to $1,261,839.

(m) Functional Allocation of Expenses

Expenses are recorded in the period incurred. Expenses are allocated into functional categories
depending on the ultimate purpose of the expense.

(n) Accounting Pronouncements Issued But Not Yet Adopted
Revenue From Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” which is a
comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that will supersede existing revenue recognition
guidance. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The FASB also
issued ASU 2015-14, which deferred the effective date for the School until annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2017 due to the fact the School has been deemed a conduit debt obligor. Earlier
adoption is permitted subject to certain limitations. The amendments in this update are required
to be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or with the cumulative effect
being recognized at the date of initial application. Management is currently evaluating the impact
of this ASU on its combined financial statements.

Leases (Topic 842)

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842),” to increase transparency and
comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the statement
of financial positon and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements for lessees and
lessors. The new standard applies a right-of-use (“ROU”) model that requires, for all leases with a
lease term of more than 12 months, an asset representing its ROU of the underlying asset for the
lease term and a liability to make lease payments to be recorded. The ASU is effective for the
School’s fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, with early adoption permitted.
Management is currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on its financial statements. The School
is deemed to be a conduit debt obligor since their bond is held by the public and therefore has an
effective date for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

12
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Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) and Health Care Entities (Topic 954) - Presentation of Financial
Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14, “Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) and Health Care
Entities (Topic 954) - Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities.” The ASU
amends the current reporting model for nonprofit organizations and enhances their required
disclosures. The major changes include: (a) requiring the presentation of only two classes of net
assets now entitled “net assets without donor restrictions” and “net assets with donor restrictions,”
(b) modifying the presentation of underwater endowment funds and related disclosures,
(c) requiring the use of the placed in service approach to recognize the expirations of restrictions
on gifts used to acquire or construct long-lived assets absent explicit donor stipulations otherwise,
(d) requiring that all nonprofits present an analysis of expenses by function and nature in either the
statement of activities, a separate statement, or in the notes and disclose a summary of the
allocation methods used to allocate costs, (e) requiring the disclosure of quantitative and
qualitative information regarding liquidity and availability of resources, (f) presenting investment
return net of external and direct expenses, and (g) modifying other financial statement reporting
requirements and disclosures intended to increase the usefulness of nonprofit financial statements.
The ASU is effective for the School’s financial statements for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. The provisions of the ASU must be applied on a
retrospective basis for all years presented although certain optional practical expedients are
available for periods prior to adoption. Management is currently evaluating the impact of this ASU
on their financial statements.

3. Investments and Fair Value Measurements

The School’s assets recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon a fair value hierarchy
in accordance with ASC 820. See Note 2 for a discussion of the School’s policies regarding this
hierarchy.

The financial assets are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The School’s assessment of the significance of a particular
input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the placement within the
fair value hierarchy levels.

The fair value of the money market funds and U.S. Treasury obligations, which consist of assets
whose use is limited and debt service reserve funds held by the School, have all been classified as
Level 1 investments.

Fair Market
Cost Value

Assets
Money market funds S 850,885 S 850,885
U.S. Treasury obligations 639,005 639,005
$1,489,890 $1,489,890
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4. Program Services Receivable, Net

Program services receivable, net, as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following:

June 30, 2017 Amount
New York City Board of Education S 701,969
Medicaid 2,069,294
Long Island School Districts 279,278
Other receivables 862,941
3,913,482
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (324,227)
Total $3,589,255

5. Grants and Contracts Receivable

Grants and contracts receivable, net, as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following

June 30, 2017

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (“IDEA”) S 46,910
Legislative grants and other receivables 3,126,209
Other 47,316

Total $3,220,435

6. Assets Whose Use is Limited

The School has debt service reserve funds in connection with the Dormitory Authority of the State
of New York (“DASNY”) the New York City Industrial Development Agency (“IDA”) and Build NYC
bond issuances. These balances are limited under terms of debt indentures. The funds as of June 30,
2017 are as follows:

Assets Whose Use Debt Service
June 30, 2017 is Limited Reserve Funds Total
IDA 2004C S 32,282 S - S 32,282
Build NYC 2013A 163,693 246,019 409,712
DASNY 2015A 637,880 316,244 954,124
DASNY 2016B - 93,772 93,772
$833,855 $656,035 $1,489,890
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7. Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net, at cost, consists of the following at June 30, 2017:

June 30, 2017

Land S 3,351,276
Building and improvements 24,478,245
Equipment 2,603,777
Construction-in-progress 43,117
30,476,415

Less: Accumulated depreciation (13,067,221)
Total $ 17,409,194

Depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment for the year ended June 30,
2017 amounted to $1,565,206. Management believes that the estimated cost to complete
construction-in-progress is deminimus.

8. Bonds Payable, Net
Bonds payable as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following:

June 30, 2017

In April 2013, the School and the Build NYC Resource Corporation issued Series 2013A-1
2013A-2 revenue bonds through the Special Needs Facilities Pooled Program in the amount
of $3,305,000. The proceeds of the bonds were to finance the cost of acquiring, equipping
and renovating a building purchased at 15 Beach Street. $3,080,000

In March 2015, DASNY issued $4,000,000 of bonds on behalf of the School that were purchased
by a single bank. The transaction generated a $213,616 premium. The proceeds of the 2015
bonds were used to refinance the School’s outstanding 2005A, 2006D, and 2007C Bonds along
with an adjustable rate mortgage on a property owned by the School. The 2015 bonds have
a term of 10 years and bear an annual interest rate ranging from 1.2% - 4.0%. The bonds are
collateralized by the School’s buildings at 106 Grayson Ave, 94 Wright Street and 682
Collfield Avenue on Staten Island and 131 Cambon Ave and 155 Dix Hills Road on Long Island. 3,325,000

In November 2016, DASNY issued $1,535,000 of bonds on behalf of the School that were
purchased by a single bank. The transaction generated a $16,000 premium. The proceeds of
the 2016 bonds were used to refinance the School’s outstanding loans related to an IRA
located in the Sherwood section of Staten Island. The 2016 bonds have a term of 25 years
and bear an annual interest rate ranging from 2.0%-4.0%. The bonds are collateralized by

the School’s location at Sherwood. 1,535,000
Plus: Premiums on DASNY bonds 151,145
8,091,145

Less: Current portion 660,000
7,431,145

Less: Deferred bond issuance costs 564,317
$6,866,828
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The aggregate amounts of principal payments on the bonds payable during each of the five years
following June 30, 2017 and thereafter are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount
2018 S 660,000
2019 685,000
2020 700,000
2021 655,000
2022 350,000
Thereafter 4,890,000
7,940,000

Bond premium 151,145
Total bonds payable, net $8,091,145

The School had obtained various financing revenue bonds through various municipal agencies due at
various dates for the acquisition and renovation of certain residences for use in its programs. These
bonds are conduit debt securities since they are offered by a governmental entity not for its own
use, but for the use of the School. As the conduit debt obligor, the School is required to make all
interest and principal payments as they become due. The bonds are publicly held and therefore
have additional financial reporting requirements.

9. Mortgages Payable, Net
Mortgages payable as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following:

June 30, 2017

The School received a $354,750 mortgage loan from a financial institution for a

building located at Dixon Avenue, Staten Island. The mortgage, due

September 1, 2017, is payable in monthly installments of $3,263, including

interest at 7.38% per annum. The School has the option to renew the loan for

an additional five years. The loan is secured by the property on Dixon Avenue,

Staten Island. ) 9,651
In November 2016, the School secured permanent financing under two mortgage

notes payable with a bank for the location at 150 Granite, Staten Island. These

notes includes a twenty-five year mortgage and a ten-year mortgage in the

cumulative amount of $1,665,000 that matures in November 2042 and 2026,

respectively. Both notes bear interest at the rate of 3.75% per annum. 1,630,138
1,639,789

Less: Current maturities 63,560
Less: Deferred issuance costs 84,427
$1,491,802
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The aggregate amounts of principal payments on the long-term debt during each of the five years
following June 30, 2017 and thereafter are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount
2018 S 63,560
2019 55,995
2020 58,161
2021 60,412
2022 62,749
Thereafter 1,338,912

Total $1,639,789

10. Line of Credit

The School executed a line of credit for $2,000,000 with a financial institution, which expires on
May 1, 2018. The agreement requires interest to be charged at a rate equal to the financial
institution’s prime rate plus 1.00%, with a minimum rate of 3.50% (5.25% as of June 30, 2017). The
line is secured by a general lien. As of June 30, 2017, there was no balance outstanding on the line
of credit.

11. Loans Payable

The School obtained a bridge loan from FJC, a Foundation of Philanthropic Funds, allowing the
School access of up to $4,730,000 for the renovation of 15 Beach Street for use as a School and
agency headquarters. As of June 30, 2017, $2,748,128 was drawn on the loan. The loan has a
maturity date of March 31, 2018, at which time the full outstanding balance is payable. Interest is
payable quarterly at the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal (4.25% at June 30, 2017)
plus 3%.

12. Program and Public Support Services Revenue

For the year ended June 30, 2017, program and public support services revenue consists of the
following:

Year ended June 30, 2017
New York City Office of People With Developmental Disabilities (“OPWDD”):

Medicaid $16,443,422
Other 450,868
New York City Board of Education 8,790,623
Long Island School Districts 1,875,499
Other revenue 98,687
Outreach and Consulting 2,279,586
$29,938,685
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Medicaid revenue is reimbursed to the School at the net reimbursement rates as determined by
previous years’ cost reports submitted by the School. Reimbursement rates are subject to revisions
under the provisions of cost reimbursement regulations. Adjustments for the State Education
Department rate reconciliation are recognized in the year reconciled.

Certain programs of the School are funded by the Office of People with Developmental Disabilities
(“OPWDD”) and are eligible for property cost reimbursement. Once the rates have been finalized
by OPWDD, the School receives additional revenue through a rate adjustment for these programs.
The financial statements include the cost of the projects. The revenue is recorded once received
by the School.

13. Grants and Contract Services

For the year ended June 30, 2017, grants and contract service revenues consist of the following:

Year ended June 30, 2017

Consulting and outreach S
Education:
IDEA 214,751
Other 72,448
OPWDD and NYC-DOHMH 331,358
$618,557

14. Pension Plan

The School has a qualified defined contribution pension plan covering substantially all full-time
employees who meet certain eligibility requirements. The amount contributed to the plan is a fixed
percentage of participants’ compensation. Pension expense amounted to $375,031 for the year
ended June 30, 2017.

15. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets as of June 30, 2017 are available for the following purposes:

June 30, 2017

NYC adult $425,116
Residential 58,904
LI Kiosk 32,477
Preschool capital 30,058
Educational 23,494
Day habilitation 43,255
Wright Avenue 11,500
Other 48,394

Total $673,198
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For the year ended June 30, 2017, the following amounts were released from restriction:

June 30, 2017

Day habilitation S 28,461
Educational 20,339
LI Kiosk 10,523
Other 9,091
Wright Avenue 38,500
Residential 73

Total $106,987

16. Related Party Transactions

The Foundation for the Advancement of Autistic Persons, Inc. (the “Foundation”), which was
established to solicit charitable contributions and other funds, and provide other benefits and
support the mission of the School and other organizations dedicated to the support of individuals
with autism, shares certain members of management with the School. The Foundation provides an
operational line of credit to the School of $1,000,000. As of June 30, 2017, there was no outstanding
balance on the line of credit. While there is no defined repayment term, there is a requirement
that the advance be fully paid at least twice during each fiscal year.

The Foundation provides advances with no stated due date to the School. At June 30, 2017, the
balance of this advance was $1,832,100. The Foundation requires that $25,000 be repaid each year.
The remaining portion has no specified due date.

These advances have no defined repayment terms; however, the Foundation anticipates repayment
of the advance upon completion of the construction, and receipt of outstanding pledges and grants
by the School.

The remainder of the $97,210 balance of the amount due to the Foundation represents the net
amounts due for operating matters offset by amounts due to the School.

The School provides management and personnel services to the Foundation. The Foundation
incurred $100,000 for these services for the year ended June 30, 2017.

17. Commitments and Contingencies

(a) The School’s program costs are subject to audit by various government agencies. In the
opinion of the School management, any liabilities which might be incurred would not have a material
effect on the School’s financial position or results of operations.
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(b)  The School has lease agreements for rental space which expire at various dates through 2019.
Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $623,273. In addition to these facilities, the
School leases equipment and vehicles under noncancelable operating leases. Noncancelable
minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount
2018 S 712,470
2019 860,087
2020 776,038
2021 743,607
2022 552,405
Thereafter 3,085,532

18. Subsequent Events

The School’s management has performed subsequent events procedures through November 30,
2017, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued and there were no
subsequent events requiring adjustment to the financial statements or disclosures as stated herein.
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Tel: +212 885-8000 100 Park Avenue
Fax: +212 697-1299 New York, NY 10017
A www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Trustees
Eden Il School for Autistic Children, Inc.
Staten Island, New York

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Eden Il School for Autistic Children,
Inc. (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the School’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Eden Il School for Autistic Children, Inc. as of June 30, 2016, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the School’s 2015 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on the School’s audited financial statements in our report, dated
November 30, 2015. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as

of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

BDO &S, LiP

November 29, 2016
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Statement of Financial Position
(with comparative totals for 2015)

June 30, 2016 2015
Assets (Note 10)
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 890,162 S 603,678
Program services receivable, net (Note 4) 4,267,783 2,959,938
Grants and contracts receivable, net (Note 5) 3,262,893 3,348,382
Prepaid expenses and other assets 279,026 217,633
Total Current Assets 8,699,864 7,129,631
Assets Whose Use is Limited (Notes 3 and 6) 1,963,484 1,511,356
Debt Issuance Costs, Net of Accumulated Amortization of
$389,430 and $257,558, respectively 706,287 839,148
Property and Equipment, Net (Notes 2, 7, 8 and 9) 18,769,983 18,802,219
$30,139,618 $28,282,354
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,508,956 S 1,277,848
Accrued compensation 2,105,450 1,976,768
Due to state and local agencies 336,057 1,122,060
Due to related party, net, current portion (Note 16) 25,000 25,000
Bonds payable, current portion (Notes 8 and 18) 753,472 265,000
Mortgages and notes payable, current portion (Note 9) 36,931 34,017
Line of credit 1,403,925 -
Total Current Liabilities 6,169,791 4,700,693
Long-Term Liabilities:
Due to related party, net, less current maturities (Note 16) 2,853,120 2,006,479
Loans payable 4,227,363 3,519,825
Bonds payable, less current maturities (Notes 8 and 18) 8,540,514 9,327,459
Mortgages and notes payable, less current maturities
(Note 9) 9,675 46,924
Total Liabilities 21,800,463 19,601,380
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 8, 9, 10, 11
and 17)
Net Assets:
Unrestricted net assets 7,684,981 8,075,649
Temporarily restricted net assets (Note 15) 654,174 605,325
Total Net Assets 8,339,155 8,680,974
$30,139,618 $28,282,354

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Activities

(with comparative totals for 2015)

Year ended June 30,

Temporarily Totals
Unrestricted Restricted 2016 2015
Program Revenue:
Program and public support services
revenue (Note 12) $29,050,185 S - $29,050,185 $26,305,563
Grants and contract services
(Note 13) 601,275 601,275 616,045
Other revenue 439,265 439,265 400,724
Total Program Revenue 30,090,725 30,090,725 27,322,332
Expenses:
Program services:
Educational services 10,002,239 10,002,239 9,211,919
Residential services 7,304,355 7,304,355 7,224,999
Adult habilitational services 4,024,960 4,024,960 3,472,348
Family support 1,868,356 - 1,868,356 1,634,157
Community outreach 2,681,212 - 2,681,212 2,212,891
Total Program Services 25,881,122 25,881,122 23,756,314
Supporting services:
Management and general 4,440,028 4,440,028 3,359,867
Fundraising 515,841 515,841 281,412
Total Supporting Services 4,955,869 4,955,869 3,641,279
Total Expenses 30,836,991 30,836,991 27,397,593
Change in Net Assets Before
Non-operating Revenues (746,266) (746,266) (75,261)
Non-operating Revenues:
Contributions 236,099 157,288 393,387 353,222
Loss on swap agreement - - - (1,450)
Unrealized gain on debt service
reserve funds 11,060 11,060 119
Gain on sale of asset (Note 7) - - - 727,276
Loss on debt extinguishment (Note 8) - (286,432)
Net assets released from restriction
(Note 15) 108,439 (108,439) -
Total Non-operating
Revenues 355,598 48,849 404,447 792,735
Change in Net Assets (390,668) 48,849 (341,819) 717,474
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 8,075,649 605,325 8,680,974 7,963,500
Net Assets, End of Year $ 7,684,981 $ 654,174 $ 8,339,155 $ 8,681,004

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Eden Il School For Autistic Children, Inc.

Statement of Functional Expenses
(with comparative totals for 2015)

Year ended June 30,

Program Services

Supporting Services

Adult Family Community Total Program Management Totals
Educational Residential  Habilitational Support Outreach Services and General Fundraising 2016 2015
Salaries and Wages and Fringe Benefits:
Salaries and wages $ 6,570,349 $4,459,928 $2,611,273 $1,349,061 $1,846,838 $16,837,449 $2,077,896 $333,890  $19,249,235 $17,870,673
Fringe benefits 1,823,495 1,196,270 694,430 359,447 499,385 4,573,027 532,273 90,695 5,195,995 4,433,722
Total Salaries and Wages and Fringe Benefits 8,393,844 5,656,198 3,305,703 1,708,508 2,346,223 21,410,476 2,610,169 424,585 24,445,230 22,304,395
Other Expenses:
Food 287 198,944 343 2,072 37 201,683 17 - 201,700 225,676
Repairs and maintenance 221,903 237,998 146,691 19,302 20,191 646,085 133,823 430 780,338 638,853
Utilities 121,358 111,464 49,719 15,810 12,553 310,904 95,019 4,087 410,010 329,430
Travel 15,534 4,445 25,729 29,763 14,772 90,243 17,930 2,493 110,666 120,050
Staff training and development 7,832 4,961 5,251 1,614 16,587 36,245 32,115 2,308 70,668 48,699
Consultants and contractual services 49,646 23,970 - - 2,790 76,406 165,346 8,287 250,039 251,479
Consumable supplies 198,834 295,673 136,868 41,562 32,036 704,973 79,790 39,167 823,930 667,886
Insurance 30,887 54,841 34,421 3,268 188 123,605 209,806 - 333,411 270,346
Professional fees 11,167 20,026 4,690 687 19,047 55,617 129,304 - 184,921 134,864
Rent 302,060 85,541 123,371 2,168 74,933 588,073 35,485 23 623,581 662,774
Interest 206,027 89,412 15,652 15,723 - 326,814 306,602 - 633,416 374,113
Facility tax - 89,213 - - - 89,213 - - 89,213 116,289
Miscellaneous 6,864 461 440 88 15,514 23,367 103,173 34,461 161,001 102,324
Depreciation and amortization 435,996 431,208 176,082 27,791 6,852 1,077,929 521,449 - 1,599,378 807,600
Bad debt expense - - - - 119,489 119,489 - 119,489 342,815
Total Expenses $10,002,239 $7,304,355 $4,024,960 $1,868,356 $2,681,212  $25,881,122 $4,440,028 $515,841  $30,836,991 $27,397,593

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Eden Il School For Autistic